
 

1 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE 

LEE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
106 HILLCREST DRIVE 

SANFORD, NORTH CAROLINA 27330 
 

August 19, 2019 
6:00 P.M. 

 
A G E N D A 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER – Amy Dalrymple, Chair 
 
INVOCATION – Commissioner Smith 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
I. ADDITIONAL AGENDA  

 
II. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA (All items listed below are routine and will be approved 

by one motion.  No separate discussion will be held except by a request of a member of the 
Board.  Any item removed from the Consent Agenda will be considered individually as a part of 
the regular agenda).  

A. Minutes from the July 15, 2019 Regular Meeting. (Pages 1-6) 
B. Minutes from the July 15, 2019 Closed Session Meeting. (Page 7) 
C. Tax Release and Refund Report for July 2019. (Pages 8-12) 
D. Vehicle purchase request from the Lee County Sheriff’s Office for four Dodge Chargers. 

(Pages 13-15) 
E. Vehicle purchase request from the Lee County Sheriff’s Office for four Dodge Durangos 

and one Nissan Maxima. (Pages 16-25) 
F. Vehicle purchase request from COLTS/Senior Services for five 20 ft lift equipped light 

transit vehicles using NCDOT grant funds. (Pages 26-30) 
G. Renewal of lease for ATM machine located at the Lee County Courthouse. (Pages 31-

40) 
H. Request for approval of the North Carolina Alliance of Public Health Agencies’ staffing 

agreement for the Health Department. (Pages 41-51) 
I. Purchase of Sand Pro 5040 equipment and attachments for ballfields from Smith Turf 

and Irrigation. (Pages 52-53) 
J. Audit contract amendment with Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A. to audit 

accounts. (Pages 54-65) 
K. Resolution for the Lee County Government Section 125 Plans for Flexible Benefits. 

(Pages 66-108) 

couv
EST. 1907

REGULAR MEETING
OF THE

LEE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
106 HILLCREST DRIVE

SANFORD, NORTH CAROLINA 27330

August 19, 2019
6:00 P.M.

AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER - Amy Dalrymple, Chair

INVOCATION — Commissioner Smith

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

l. ADDITIONAL AGENDA

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA (All items listed below are routine and will be approved
by one motion. No separate discussion will be held except by a request of a member of the
Board. Any item removed from the Consent Agenda will be considered individually as a part of
the regular agenda).

A.

B.

C.

D.

E.

F.

G.

H.

J.

K.

Minutes from the July 15, 2019 Regular Meeting. (Pages 1-6)
Minutes from the July 15, 2019 Closed Session Meeting. (Page 7)
Tax Release and Refund Report for July 2019. (Pages 8-12)
Vehicle purchase request from the Lee County Sheriff's Office for four Dodge Chargers.

(Pages 13-15)
Vehicle purchase request from the Lee County Sheriff's Office for four Dodge Durangos
and one Nissan Maxima. (Pages 16-25)
Vehicle purchase request from COLTS/Senior Services for five 20 ft lift equipped light

transit vehicles using NCDOT grant funds. (Pages 26-30)
Renewal of lease for ATM machine located at the Lee County Courthouse. (Pages 31-
40)
Request for approval of the North Carolina Alliance of Public Health Agencies' staffing

agreement for the Health Department. (Pages 41-51)
Purchase of Sand Pro 5040 equipment and attachments for ballfields from Smith Turf

and Irrigation. (Pages 52-53)
Audit contract amendment with Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A. to audit
accounts. (Pages 54-65)
Resolution for the Lee County Government Section 125 Plans for Flexible Benefits.

(Pages 66-108)

1



 

2 

 

L. Resolution for the Lee County Government Section 125 Plans for Health 
Reimbursement Account. (Pages 109-146) 

M. Budget Amendment # 08/19/19/2. (Pages 147-149) 
N. Lee County Libraries State Aid Application for 2019-2020. (Pages 150-167) 
O. Consideration of appointment of Robert Will as delegate and Charles Alexander as 

alternate delegate to the Senior Tar Heel Legislature. (Pages 168-176) 
P. Request for approval of a contract with CERES Environmental Services, Inc. for 

disaster debris management services. (Pages 177-216) 
Q. Reappointment of Charity Dodson to the Board of Health to fill the Pharmacist vacancy. 

(Page 217) 
 

III. PROCLAMATION 
A.   Proclamation recognizing the Parks and Recreation Girls 8-and-Under (8U) All-Stars  
      Youth Softball Team. – Amy Dalrymple (Pages 218-219) 
 

IV. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
A.   Joint public hearing with the Lee County Planning Board for a rezoning request for    
      approximately 10.4 acres off of Eakes Road. – Amy McNeil (Pages 220-241) 
B.  Joint public hearing with the Lee County Planning Board for a proposed Unified     
      Development Ordinance (UDO) text amendment to update the City of Sanford’s Public    
      Works Director Certificate. – Amy McNeil (Pages 242-244) 
C.  Joint public hearing regarding proposed amendment to the UDO to create new airport    
      density overlay district and to consider zoning amendment to the official zoning map to  
      apply new airport density overlay district. – Amy McNeil (Pages 245-262)  
D.  Public hearing for FY 2021 NC DOT Community Transportation Program Grant    
      Application. – Debbie Davidson (Pages 263-265) 
E.  Public hearing on a proposed economic development project. – Michael Smith (Pages     
      266-268) 
 

V. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
VI. OLD BUSINESS 
 
VII. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Request for approval of Interlocal Agreement between Lee County and Chatham  
     County for broadband expansion. – Kyle Edwards (Pages 269-272) 
B. Consideration of offer to purchase property located on Wildwood Drive (PIN # 9634-12- 
     1809-00). – Jennifer Gamble (Pages 273-283) 
C.  Consideration of Resolution requesting NC DOT funding of the realignment of Kelly  
      Drive. – Amy Dalrymple (Pages 284-285) 
 

VIII. MANAGERS’ COMMENTS 
A. Monthly Financial Report for June 2019.-Lisa Minter (Pages 286-292) 
B. Managers’ Report for the month of August 2019.-Dr. John Crumpton (Pages 293-372) 

 
IX. COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS  

 
X. CLOSED SESSIONS 

A.  Closed Session per N.C. General Statute § 143-318.11(a)(4) to discuss matters related  
     to the location or expansion of business.  

L.

M.

N.

O.

P.

Q.

Resolution for the Lee County Government Section 125 Plans for Health

Reimbursement Account. (Pages 109-146)
Budget Amendment # 08/19/19/2. (Pages 147-149)
Lee County Libraries State Aid Application for 2019-2020. (Pages 150-167)
Consideration of appointment of Robert Will as delegate and Charles Alexander as

alternate delegate to the Senior Tar Heel Legislature. (Pages 168-176)
Request for approval of a contract with CERES Environmental Services, Inc. for
disaster debris management services. (Pages 177-216)
Reappointment of Charity Dodson to the Board of Health to fill the Pharmacist vacancy.

(Page 217)

w.

Vil.

VIII.

IX.

x.

PROCLAMATION
A. Proclamation recognizing the Parks and Recreation Girls 8-and-Under (8U) All-Stars

Youth Softball Team. — Amy Dalrymple (Pages 218-219)

PUBLIC HEARINGS
A. Joint public hearing with the Lee County Planning Board for a rezoning request for

approximately 10.4 acres off of Eakes Road. — Amy McNeil (Pages 220-241)
B. Joint public hearing with the Lee County Planning Board for a proposed Unified

Development Ordinance (UDO) text amendment to update the City of Sanford's Public
Works Director Certificate. — Amy McNeil (Pages 242-244)

C. Joint public hearing regarding proposed amendment to the UDO to create new airport
density overlay district and to consider zoning amendment to the official zoning map to
apply new airport density overlay district. — Amy McNeil (Pages 245-262)

D. Public hearing for FY 2021 NC DOT Community Transportation Program Grant
Application. — Debbie Davidson (Pages 263-265)

E. Public hearing on a proposed economic development project. — Michael Smith (Pages

266-268)

PUBLIC COMMENTS

OLD BUSINESS

NEW BUSINESS
A. Request for approval of Interlocal Agreement between Lee County and Chatham

County for broadband expansion. — Kyle Edwards (Pages 269-272)
B. Consideration of offer to purchase property located on Wildwood Drive (PIN # 9634-12-

. — Jennifer Gamble (Pages 273-283)1809-00)
C. Consideration of Resolution requesting NC DOT funding of the realignment of Kelly

Drive. — Amy Dalrymple (Pages 284-285)

MANAGERS' COMMENTS
A. Monthly Financial Report for June 2019.-Lisa Minter (Pages 286-292)
B. Managers' Report for the month of August 2019.-Dr. John Crumpton (Pages 293-372)

COMMISSIONERS' COMMENTS

CLOSED SESSIONS
A. Closed Session per N.C. General Statute S 143-318.11 to discuss matters related

to the location or expansion of business.

2



 

3 

 

B.  Closed session per N.C. General Statute § 143-318(a)(5) to discuss the acquisition of  
      real property.  
 

 
ADJOURN 

B. Closed session per N.C. General Statute S 143-318(a)(5) to discuss the acquisition of

real property.

ADJOURN

3



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 

Page 1 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 1 of 373

ITEM

11. A.

CAVO

LEE COUNTY AGENDA ABSTRACT
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING

(Use the Down or Up Arrows to move between fields of the Form)

MEETING DATE: 19, 2019

SUBJECT: Minutes from the July 15, 2019 Regular Meeting

DEPARTMENT: Governing Body

CONTACT PERSON: Gamble, Clerk to the Board

TYPE: Consent Agenda Acdon Item Public Informadon

REQUEST
BUDGET IMPACT
ATTACHMENTS

A rove minutes from the ul 15, 2019 f armeetin

N/A
"Draft" co of the ul 15, 2019 minutes

PRIOR BOARD ACTION A rove minutes from the ulv 15, 2019 re armeetin

RECOMMENDATION Pleasure of the Board.

SUMMARY
A "draft" copy of the minutes from the July 15, 2019 regular meeting have been prepared for approval. Attachments
referenced in the minutes are available for review in the Clerk's Office located at 408 Summit Drive, Sanford NC.

Once approved, minutes will be recorded at the Lee County Register of Deeds Office.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 

Page 2 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 2 of 373

REGULAR MEETING
OF THE

LEE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
106 HILLCREST DRIVE

SANFORD, NORTH CAROLINA 27330

July 15, 2019

The regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners for the County of Lee, State of
North Carolina, convened at 6:00 P.M. in the Commissioners Room, First Floor, Lee County
Government Center, 106 Hillcrest Drive, Sanford, North Carolina, on said date. Commissioners
present when the meeting was called to order were Amy M. Dalrymple, Arianna M. Del Palazzo,
Dr. Andre Knecht, Robert T. Reives, and Cameron W. Sharpe, Commissioners Kirk D. Smith
and Kevin C. Dodson were absent. Staff in attendance included County Manager John

Crumpton, County Attorney Whitney Parrish, and Deputy County Attorney/CIerk to the Board
Jennifer Gamble.

Chair Dalrymple called the meeting to order and the following business was transacted:

Commissioner Dalrymple requested a moment of silence and the Pledge of Allegiance
was recited.

ADDITIONAL AGENDA

The Board considered changes and additions to the Agenda. County Attorney Whitney
Parrish requested the addition of a Closed Session per N.C. General Statute S 143-318(a)(3) to
consult with the County Attorney regarding the matter of Lee County, North Carolina v.

Amerisourcebergen Drug Corporation, in re: National Prescription Opiate Litigation.
Commissioner Reives requested to move from New Business Item A, Downtown Sanford Wifi
RFP, Item B, the Emergency Management Grant award, and Item C, the Local Emergency
Planning Committee 2018 Annual Report to Consent Agenda. Commissioner Knecht requested
further clarification of the Wi-Fi contract. Items B and C were moved from New Business to the
Consent Agenda. With no further changes/additions requested, Commissioner Reives moved to
approve the Agenda as amended. Upon a vote, the results were as follows:

Aye: Dalrymple, Del Palazzo, Knecht, Reives, Sharpe
Nay: None

The Chair ruled the motion had carried.

P ege 115



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 

Page 3 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 3 of 373

II. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA

The Board considered changes to the Consent Agenda. With no further changes
requested, Commissioner Sharpe moved to approve the Consent Agenda as amended, which
consisted of the following items:

A Minutes from the June 17, 2019 Regular Meeting.
B. Minutes from the June 17, 2019 Closed Session Meeting.
C. Renewal of NC Cardinal Contract with Lee County Libraries.
D. Designation of Voting Delegate to NCACC Annual Conference.

Annual Software Maintenance Renewal for Finance/HR Software.E.

F. Microsoft Enterprise Agreement for Microsoft Licensing.
G. Lee County Enterprise Data Storage License/Support Renewal.

Tax Release and Refund Report for June 2019.H.

NC DOT and FTA required updated Title VI Plan.
J. General Services Division vehicle purchase request for one F150 truck from the NC

Sheriff's Association vehicle bid in the amount of $19,985.34
K. Forest Services Contract.

Budget Amendment # 07/15/19/01.L.

M. Emergency services vehicle replacement in the amount of $32,404.
N. Emergency Services Grant Award.
O. Local Emergency Planning Committee 2018 Annual Report.

Upon a vote, the results were as follows

Aye: Dalrymple, Del Palazzo, Knecht, Reives, Sharpe
Nay: None

The Chair ruled the motion had carried.

Ill, PUBLIC HEARING

A. Public hearinq on the request from the Sanford-Lee County Reqional Airport Authoritv for
a loan from the revolvinq loan fund. Finance Director/Assistant County Manager Lisa Minter
stated that an application had been received from the Sanford-Lee County Regional Airport
Authority for a $400,000 loan from the Revolving Loan Fund. The term of the loan would be
59 months, and the interest rate would be 0%. The proceeds from the loan would be used
for furniture, audio-visual and security equipment for the new terminal building, as well as
site improvements. The Board received the application at its May 6, 2019 regular meeting. It

was at that time the Board also voted to authorize the loan amount in the amount of
$400,000. Pursuant to the revolving loan fund policy adopted by the Board, a public hearing

must be held before a promissory note/loan agreement can be signed by the parties. Staff
requested due to the timing that the Board vote to waive its policy in order to vote to approve

the promissory note/loan agreement the same night the public hearing is held and to
authorize the Chair to sign any documents necessary to effectuate the loan. Chair
Dalrymple opened the public hearing for comment.

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to of the request to issue a loan to the Sanford-Lee
County Regional Airport Authority from the Revolving Loan fund.

Chair Darlymple closed the public hearing.

Page 25



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 

Page 4 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 4 of 373

Commissioner Reives moved to waive the policy regarding voting following a public hearing
to proceed with a vote on the issuance of the loan. Upon a vote, the results were as follows:

Aye: Dalrymple, Del Palazzo, Knecht, Reives, Sharpe
Nay: None

The Chair rules the motion had carried.

Commissioner Reives moved to approve the issuance of a loan to the Sanford-Lee County
Regional Airport Authority in the amount of $400,000 from the Revolving Loan fund. Upon a
vote, the results were as follows:

Aye: Dalrymple, Del Palazzo, Knecht, Reives, Sharpe
Nay: None

The Chair ruled the motion had carried.

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS

Pursuant to General Statute S 152A-52.1 , Chair Dalrymple/opened the floor for Public

Comments. The following person signed up to speak during the Public Comments section of the
meeting:

Keely Wood, 363 Angel Road, Sanford, NC (Coal Ash)
Commissioner Reves requested information on exactly what CHARA has been
permitted for.

V. REQUEST TO APPEAR

A. Presentation from Mackenzie Roche representinq Lee County 4-H at this year's NCACC
Annual Conference.

Mackenzie Roche, a Lee County 4 H Member and Lee County Young Commissioner spoke
before the Board regarding the importance of fixed broadband infrastructure. Ms. Roche was
required to speak regarding an issue mportant to the community to satisfy the requirement to
attend the NCACC Annual Conference. Ms. Roche requested to be included in any advocacy
projects related to this issue in the future.

VI. NEW BUSINESS

A. Downtown Sanford Wi-Fi RFP and Contract.
Information Technology Director Kyle Edwards presented the potential development and

release of an RFP for public Wi-Fi in the downtown Sanford, NC area at the Board of
Commissioner meeting on April 1, 2019. Since that time, an RFP was issued and proposals
have were received. Three vendors submitted bid responses. Two of these bids included pricing
and one did not. Mr. Edwards stated that Open Broadband's RFP response was in-line with
what we had hoped for from a financial and technology standpoint. The timeline for completion
is within 3 months of starting but not more than 6 months. The total monthly cost of $1 , 150 per
month includes 1 GBPS Internet as opposed to the 200 or 400 Mbps options and also include
the data analytics module as well so that there can be a clear view of usage statistics of the
service. Mr. Edwards stated that the purpose of this deployment is to contribute to economic

age 35



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 

Page 5 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 5 of 373

development and gage the benefits of further expansion. Businesses can benefit from the
broadband expansion using the infrastructure to privately contract with Open Broadband for
service. County Manager John Crumpton stated that the City has committed to contributing 50%
of the ongoing service cost. Commissioner Reives moved to approve the recommendations of
Open Broadband as the chosen vendor for the project and to authorize the Chair to sign the
contract, a copy of which is attached to these minutes and by this reference made a part hereof.
Upon a vote, the results were as follows:

B.

C.

D.

Aye: Dalrymple, Del Palazzo, Knecht, Reives, Sharpe
Nay: None

The Chair ruled the motion carried.

Emergency Services Grant Award — moved to Consent Agenda

Local Emerqency Planninq Committee 2018 Annual Report — moved to Consent Agenda

Tax Collector's Annual Settlement.

Each year the Tax Collector must make settlement with the governing board per
NCGS 105-373. As part of the settlement the governing board charges the Tax Collector with
collecting taxes for the current fiscal year (FY 2020) and prior fiscal years with unpaid taxes.
This charge gives the Tax collector authority to use enforced collection measures and it gives
legal notice that the tax lien is first priority. A report of all 2018 unpaid real and personal property
is available in the clerk's office and has been posted to the commissioners website for review.

Tax Administrator Michael Brown stated that Lee County is at a 99 06% current year collected
taxes. Last year at this time the County was at 99.13%. Commissioner Sharpe moved to accept
the settlement report, a copy of which is attached to these minutes and by this reference made
a part hereof. Upon a vote the results were as follows:

Aye: Dalrymple, Del Palazzo, Knecht, Reives, Sharpe
Nay. None

The Chair ruled the motion carried.

Commissioner Del Palazzo moved to adopt the Resolution Approving the Tax Collector's
Annual Settlement for Fiscal Year 2019 and Prior Years, a copy of which is attached to these
minutes and by this reference made a part hereof. Upon a vote, the results were as follows:

Aye: Dalrymple, Del Palazzo, Knecht, Rejves, Sharpe
Nay: None

The Chair ruled the motion carried.

Commissioner Sharpe moved to charge the Tax Collector with collecting 2019 taxes,
copies of which are attached to these minutes and by this reference made a part hereof. Upon a
vote, the results were as follows:

Aye: Dalrymple, Del Palazzo, Knecht, Reives, Sharpe
Nay: None

The Chair ruled the motion carried.

Page 415



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 

Page 6 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 6 of 373

VII.MANAGERS' REPORTS

A. Couny_ Managers' Monthly Report for July 2019.

County Manager John Crumpton presented his monthly report for July 2019. No action
was taken. Commissioner Reives requested options for families that are in need of a place for
elderly family members to live on their own property. He was specifically requesting review of
the rules regarding septic requirements.

VIII. COMMISSIONERS' COMMENTS
Commissioner Del Palazzo stated that she took part in an opioid response

training offered by First Health. The training was offered by grant funding.

CLOSED SESSION
Commissioner Sharpe moved to go into Closed Session per N.C. General Statute S 143-

318(a)(3) to consult with the county attorney regarding the matter of Lee County, North Carolina

v. Amerisourcebergen Drug Corporation, in re: National Prescnption Opiate Litigation and per
N.C. General Statute S 143-318.11(a)(4) to discuss matters related to the location or expansion
of business. Upon a vote, the results were as follows:

Aye: Dalrymple, Del Palazzo, Knecht, Reives, Sharpe
Nay: None

Chair Dalrymple ruled the motion had carried and the Board went into Closed Session.

ADJOURNMENT

Upon return from Closed Session and with no further business to come before the
Board, Commissioner Del Palazzo moved to adjourn the meeting. Upon a vote, the results were
as follows-

Aye: Dalrymple, Del Palazzo, Knecht, Reives, Sharpe
Nay: None

The Chair ruled the motion had carried unanimously and the meeting adjourned at 7:40 p.m.

Amy M. Dalrymple, Chair
Lee County Board of Commissioners

ATTEST:

Jennifer Gamble, Clerk to the Board

Page



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 

Page 7 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 7 of 373

ITEM

LEE COUNTY AGENDA ABSTRACT II. B.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
(Use the Down Of Up Arrows to move between fields of the Form)

MEETING DATE: August 19, 2019

SUBJECT: Minutes from the July 15, 2019 Closed Session Meeting

DEPARTMENT: Governing Body

CONTACT PERSON: Jennifer Gamble, Clerk to the Board

TYPE: Consent Agenda Action Item Public Hearing Informaåon

RE UEST
BUDGET IMPACT
ATI*ACHMENTS

A rove closed session minutes from the ul 15, 2019 closed session meetin

I\iinutes are in a sealed envelo e included in each Commissione?s enda acka

PRIOR BOARD ACTION N/A
RECOMNÆNDATION A rove minutes as resented.

SUNnvfARY

A "draft" copy of the tninutes from the July 15, 2019 closed session of the Board has been prepared and
provided for the Board's review.

Fom Updated August 2, 2017 Page 1 of 1



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 

Page 8 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 8 of 373

ITEM

LEE COUNTY AGENDA ABSTRACT 11. c.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
(Use the Down Of Up Arrows to move between fields of the Form)

MEETING DATE: August 19, 2019

SUBJECT: Tax Release and Refund Report for July 2019

DEPARTMENT: Tax

CONTACT PERSON: Michael Brown, Tax Administrator

TYPE: Consent Agenda Action Item Public Hearing Informadon

RE UEST
BUDGET IMPACT

ATTACHNÆNTS

PRIOR BOARD ACTION
RECONßfENDATION

A roval of Tax Releases and Refunds for ul 2019

No
I) Release Code Descriptions
2) General Statue 105-381 (b)

3) Personal Property Abatement Report
4 Real Pro Abatement Re ort

A rove Tax Release and Refunds for ul as resented

A release or refund is necessary to adjust Of correct an existing tax bill that is in error. North Carolina General
Statute 105-381 (b) requires the governing body to determine the release or refund of a tax.

Page 1 of 1
Form Updated August 2, 2017



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 

Page 9 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 9 of 373

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

TO

TOS

TFS

VA

CY

B

RELEASE CODE DESCRIPTIONS

ALLOWABLE EXEMPTION NOT APPLIED

LAND USE DEFERMENT NOT APPLIED OR ABATEMENT MADE
AFTER BILLING

PROPERTY DOUBLE LISTED BY TAXPAYER OR TAX OFFICE

TAX SITUS OF PROPERTY OUTSIDE JURISDICTION

REAL PROPERTY DATA IN ERROR

PERSONAL PROPERTY DATA IN ERROR

PROPERTY LISTED TO INCORRECT OWNER

LAST LIST PENALTY

TAXPAYER LISTED PERSONAL PROPERTY THEY DID
NOT OWN

PROPERTY VALUE APPEALED TO ASSESSOR, BOARD OF
OR PROPERTY TAX COMMISSION

BUSINESS PERSONAL PROPERTY ASSESSMENT: NO
LONGER OWNED OR OUT OF BUSINESS

PERSONAL PROPERTY SOLD PRIOR TO JAN 1ST.

TAX FORECLOSURE SALE

TAXPAYER

TAX OFFICE

LAND RECORDS

TAX APPRAISAL

TAX OFFICE SOFTWARE

TAX FORECLOSURE SALE

GARBAGE PICKUP

VACANT OR ADJUSTMENT FOR WASTE FEE

CITY OF SANFORD OR TOWN OR BROADWAY

BANKRUPTCY SETTLEMENT

AUDIT APPEAL OR ERROR



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 10 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting

LEE
Committed TO±y for o Bette Tomorrow

Real Property Abatement

Report

Lee County, NC
From: 7/1/2019

To: 7/31/2019

Name

2019

Release

SCATES, EMMA M.

CLEGG, NANCY

BLUE. CLEO

Release Totals:

Value

$25,000.00

$1711600.00

$0.00

$196,600.00

CounV

$193.75

$1,329.90

$0.00

$1,523.65

City

$150.00

$0.00

$0.00

$150.00

Fire District

$0.00

$197.34

$0.00

$197.34

Solid Waste

$0.00

$107.50

$322.50

$430.00

Total

$343.75

$1 ,634.74

$322.50

$2,300.99

Release Code

TO-I

VA



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 11 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting

LEE
CommittW o Betler Tomorrow

Personal Property

Abatement Report

Lee County, NC
From: 7/1/2019

To: 7/31/2019

Name

2019

Release

FURRY, DERROL E

COX, JESSICA

HALL, STEVEN G

BAKER, JAMES ARTHUR JR

DOWDY, HERMAN RAY SR

DOMINQUEZ, ROSAICELA
MALDONADO

YARBOROUGH, THOMAS C JR

ROMINE, KAREN S DDS

VIVID SALON

STINSON FAMILY DENTISTRY

AGUILAR, MARIA DEL ROSARIO
TOVAR

MEDELLIN, YOSELIN ANDREA

HOLDER, BETTY RAE

PARRAL CASTRO, CAROLINE

GARNER, DANNY

HOLLAND, MICHAEL

MONTUFAR, KIMBELY

LOPEZ, BERTHA

GARCIA, SANDEA PALACIOS

MARTINEZ, MARGARITO

BERNABE, EDUARDO

METCALF, EDMRD

CORNERSTONE PROPERTIES &
INVES

GRIBNAU, ROBERT

PATTERSON, SUSAN CIESKO

DYCUS, JUSTIN CHARLES

LEASE INVESTMENT COMPANY
LLC

GRIBNAU, ROBERT

Release Totals:

Value

$12,110.00

$1,490.00

$2,080.00

$750.00

$1 ,ooo.oo

$3,800.00

$500.00

$2,300.00

$17,956.00

$56,200.00

$1,000.00

$1,500.00

$3,010.00

$2,680.00

$4,780.00

$22,050.00

$1,000.00

$1 ,ooo.oo

$1,210.00

$2,270.00

$4,050.00

$16,600.00

$5,650.00

$304,500.00

$550.00

$978.00

$24100.00

$304,500.00

$799,614.00

County
Tax

$93.85

$11.55

$16.12

$5.81

$7.75

$29.45

$3.88

$17.83

$139.16

$435.55

$7.75

$11.63

$23.33

$20.77

$37.05

$170.89

$7.75

$7.75

$9.38

$17.59

$31.39

$128.65

$43.79

$0.00

$4.26

$7.58

$186.78

$0.00

$1,477.26

County

PenalV

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.58

$0.78

$2.95

$0.00

$0.00

$13.92

$43.56

$0.78

$1.16

$2.33

$2.08

$3.70

$17.09

$0.78

$0.78

$0.94

$1.76

$3.14

$12.87

$4.38

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$18.68

$0.00

$132.22

City

Tax

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$3.00

$13.80

$107,74

$337.20

$6.00

$9.00

$0.00

$16.08

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$6.00

$7.26

$13.62

$24.30

$99.60

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$144.60

$0.00

$788.20

City

Penalty

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$10.77

$33.72

$0.60

$0.90

$0.00

$1.61

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.60

$0.73

$1.36

$2.43

$9.96

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$14.46

$0.00

$77.14

District

Tax

$13.93

$1.19

$2.00

$0.72

$0.80

$4.26

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$2.89

$0.00

$5.50

$21.17

$0.80

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$5.42

$350.18

$0.80

$0.94

$0.00

$2,359.88

$2,770.46

District

Penalty

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.07

$0.08

$0.43

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.29

$0.00

$0.55

$2.12

$0.08

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.54

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$4.16

Total

$107.78

$12.74

$18.12

$7.19

$9.41

$37.08

$6.88

$31.63

$271.58

$850.03

$15.13

$22.69

$28.84

$40.54

$46.80

$211.26

$9.41

$15.13

$18.30

$34.33

$61.26

$251.08

$54.13

$350.18

$5.06

$8.52

$364.51

$2,359.88

$5,249.43

Ref.

Code

TO-IO

T-IO

TO-IO

T-12

TO-12

T-12

T-12

T-12

T-12

T-12

T-12

T-12

T-12

T-12

T-12

T-12

T-12

TO-3

T-12

T-IO

T-12

T-IO

T-12

T-IO



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 12 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 12 of 373

105-381. Taxpayer's remedies.

(a) Statement of Defense. - Any taxpayer asserting a valid defense to the enforcement of
the collection of a tax assessed upon his property shall proceed as hereinafter provided.

(1)

(2)

(3)

For the purpose of this subsection, a valid defense shall include the following:

a. A tax imposed through clerical error;
b. An illegal tax;
c. A tax levied for an illegal purpose.
If a tax has not been paid, the taxpayer may make a demand for the release of
the tax claim by submitting to the governing body of the taxing unit a written
statement of his defense to payment or enforcement of the tax and a request for

release of the tax at any time prior to payment of the tax.

If a tax has been paid, the taxpayer, at any time within five years after said tax

first became due or within six months from the date of payment of such tax,

whichever is the later date, may make a demand for a refund of the tax paid by
submitting to the governing body of the taxing unit a written statement of his
defense and a request for refund thereof.

(b) Action of Governing Body. - Upon receiving a taxpayer's wHtten statement of defense
and request for release or refund, the governing body of the taxing unit shall within 90 days after
receipt of such request determine whether the taxpayer has a valid defense to the tax imposed or

any part thereof and shall either release or refund that portion of the amount that is determined to

be in excess of the correct tax liability or notify the taxpayer in writing that no release or refund

will be made. The governing body may, by resolution, delegate its authority to determine requests
for a release or refund of tax of less than one hundred dollars ($100.00) to the finance offcer,

manager, or attorney of the taxing unit. A finance officer, manager, or attorney to whom this
authority is delegated shall monthly report to the governing body the actions taken by him on
requests for release or refund. All actions taken by the governing body or finance officer, manager,
or attorney on requests for release or refund shall be recorded in the minutes of the governing

body. If a release is granted or refund made, the tax collector shall be credited with the amount
released or refunded in his annual settlement.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 13 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 13 of 373

ITEM

LEE COUNTY AGENDA ABSTRACT 11. D.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
(Use the Down Of Up Arrows to move between fields of the Form)

MEETING DATE: August 19, 2019

SUBJECT: Vehicle Purchase

DEPARTMENT: Lee County- Sheriffs' Office/SRO Division

CONTACT PERSON: Lt. Don cole

TYPE: Consent Agenda Action Item Public Hearing Information

REQUEST

BUDGET MPACT

ATTACHMENTS
PRIOR BOARD ACTION

RECONfffENDATION

Purchase Four Do e Char er's

Approved Capital Purchase, additional added options will be paid for vhth
Dru seizure funds

Vehicle S ecificaüons and cost of each vehicle

A in 2019-2020Bu t

Authorize the purchase of four Dodge Chargers' for the Lee County Sheriffs'
Office SRO Division on State Contract using drug money for the addidonal
equipment from Performance Automotive Chrysler, Dodge, Jeep, Ram, Ford
605 Warsaw Road, Clinton NC 28328

SUITvfARY

Fouf Dodge Chargers were approved in the 2019-2020 budget, a total of $101,088.00

Addidonal options have been added in the amount of $314.20 per vehicle

to be paid for with drug seizure money
Specs and cost attached $25,586.20 x 4 = $102,344.80 — Dodge Chargers

Page 1 of 1
Form Updated August 2, 2017



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 14 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 14 of 373

Jeep
Vehicle Quote

Lee County Sheriff's OfficeNAME:

Make:

Model:

VIN#:

Salesman:

Dodge Model: Charger Date:

2019 Dodge Charger Pursuit, AWD 5.7L Hemi Year:

TBD

Govt

Stock #:

Miles:

Vehicle Pricing:

Market Price:

Sales Price:

Government Concessions:

TB9190 2019 Chrysler Government Concessions

Final Base Vehicle Pricing:

Upfit/Accessory Pricing

Total Body Cost:

Total Vehicle Cost:

Trade In Allowance:

o

Less: Payoff:

Trade Equity:

Net Due Prior to Taxes:

Qu a this Spec:

Total Amount: $

7/23/2019

2019
TBD

15

40,785.00

25,586.20

25,586.20

25,586.20

25,586.20

102,344.80

Note: Vehicle pricing good through contract period - Please call to confirm specs
605 Warsaw Road * Clinton, North Carolina 910-592-5337



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 15 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 15 of 373

Vehicie Build Sheet - Options Sages Codes

Seles Code

LDEE48

29A

DGJ

APA

4ES

GXQ
LNX

AWC
AYW

2019 CHARGER POLICE AWD (LDEE48)

CHARGER POLICE AWD
Customer Preferred Package 29A
5.7L V8 HEMI MDS vv•r Engine
5-Speed Auto W5A580 Transmission
White Knocke Clear Coat

Parnt

HD Cloül Seats wNinyl Rear

Black

Delivery Allowarwe Credit

Fleet Purchæe InoenEve

Additional Non-Key Aike Fobs

LED Spot Lamps
Black Left Spot l..arnp

Front ReadjnYMap Larnps
Fleet Grot.p

Patrol Package Wiring Prep

245/55R18 BSW Performance Tires

Note: Order window for 2019 AWD Hemi Charger is slated to close on
August 8th. Based on Chrysler's production status this year, this date should
be viewed as an estimate and not set in stone.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 16 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 16 of 373

ITEM

LEE COUNTY AGENDA ABSTRACT 11. E.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
(Use the Down or Up Arrows to move between fields of the Form)

MEETING DATE: August 19, 2019

SUBJECT: Vehicle Purchase

DEPARTMENT: Lee county Sheriffs' Office

CONTACT PERSON: Lt. Don cole

TYPE: Consent Agenda Action Item C] Public Hearing Information

RE UEST

BUDGET IMPACT

ATTACHMENTS
PRIOR BOARD ACTION

RECONMENDATION

Purchase Four Do e Duran o , One Nissan Maxima

Approved Capital Purchase, additional added opdons will be paid for with
Dru seizure funds

Vehicle S ecifications and cost of each vehicle

A roved in 2019-2020 Bu et

Authorize the purchase of four Dodge Durango's and One Nissan Maxima for the
Lee County Sheriffs' Office on State Contract using drug money for the additional

equipment from Performance Automotive Chrysler, Dodge, Jeep, Ram, Ford
605 Warsaw Road, Clinton NC 28328, Maxima to be purchased from CrossRoads
Nissan ofWake Forest 11120 capital Blvd. wake Forest NC 27587

SUIvnvfARY

Form Updated August 2, 2017

Four Durango's were approved in the 2019-2020 budget, a total of $122,932.00

Additional options have been added in the amount of 2027.00 per vehicle

to be paid for with drug seizure money
Specs and cost attached 32,760.00 x 4 = 131,040.00 — Dodge Durango's
One Nissan Maxima approved in the 2019-2020 budget $27,380.00

This vehicle was bided out and one bid came in at $32,799.00 this difference will

be paid for with drug seizure funds

Page 1 of 1



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 

Page 17 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 17 of 373

Jeep

2019 Dodge Durango Pursuit
WDEE75 - Duran 05.7L Hemi All Wheel Drive

NCSA Contract 19-05-09f1 spec 149

North Carolina Sheriff's Association Vehicle Contract

Emergency L'ghting for Illustrative only

Package 22Z 5.7L V-8 Hemi AWD - Standard Features
5.71 Hemi V-8 MDS Engine
8 Speed Auto 8HP70 Transmission

265/60R18 BSW Michelin Tires
18X8 Painted Aluminum Rms
Deep Tint Sunscreen
Front & Rear Intenor LED Lamps
Heavy Duty Engine Cooling
Integrated Voice Command w/Bluetooth
Remote Proximity Key with Keyless Go
Power 8-Way Dnver Seat
Power Wind0BG/Door Locks

Rear Load Leveling Suspension
Cruse Control

TittfTelescoping Steering Wheel

wm optional HQ's Console



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 

Page 18 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 18 of 373

NC$A Base Vehicfe Specificatione
CODE DESCRIPTION

WDEE75 Dod e Duran os eclal Service
AZI

LNQ
CFN
EZH
MDA
XAC

SPEC

Duran o Pursuit Vehicle

Cloth Low-Back Bucket Seats

S ot Lam Wirin Prep

2nd Row 60/40 Foldin Seat

5.7L V8 HEMI en ine
Front License Bracket

Facto Instalted Parkview Camera

4 Key Fobs, 5yr/< QO,OOC: m:.ge Pcvgertean Warranty

NCSA Zone fnformation
Durango Pursuit Base Vehicle

149 Appalachia Zone - Must Pick Up At Dealer

149 Dogwood Zone (Piedmont and Triad
149 Cardinal Zone (Charlotte to Wilmington)

149 Longleaf Zone (North East Countles

STD 1 OPTION
STD

D

STD
STD
STD

Base Price

30,703

30,733

30,703

30,743

Dodge Durango Pursuit Vehicle Available Options

AHX
LMI

WGG
ADL

NHK
RSD

RHI

XAN

Powertrain Options
Trailer Tow Grou IV

Da me Runnin Li hb Low Beam
Wra Around Grille Guard - Dealer Installed

Skid Plate Packa e

En Ine Block Heater

Sirius XM Satellite Radio

Si Disc Remote CD Pla

Blind Spot & Cross Pati

Graphics C tions
White G hics - Front Doors, Vin Wra
White Gra hlcs - All Doors Vin Wrap

Stendard Colors:

794.00

37.60

799.00

277.30

89.30

183.30

465.30

371.30

325

425

Quantity

C)

C]

PSC
PXJ
PDN
PAU
PRM
PW7
PWD

Billet Silver Metallic Clear Coat

Black Clear Coat

D r Gre Clear Coat

Granite Clear Coat

Redline 2 Coat Peari

Bri ht White Clear Coat

vrcE WHITE Pearl Coat $560 EXTRA



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 

Page 19 of 373

Emergency Equipment/Lighting Upfit

[3 Whelen Whelen Inner Edge Slicktop • Factory Console

Wheren Whelen Inner Edge Slicktop - Police SMe Console
Ü SODHH Sound Off Sllcktop - Factory Console

D SODPC Sound Off Silcktop Police style Console

Emergency Equipment Options
@ D..EULWEI D-EULWEI LED Driver Side spodi ht
E] DøEAPEB2 D.EAPEB2 - Police Wirin Packa e. see below

for details

Fac Console

Upfit Video Links:

August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 19 of 373

3,741

4,271

3,505

4074

ADD/DELETE
570.00

1,180.00

STD

2017 Granite Durango SSV, Whelen Slicktop

2017 White Durango SSV, Whelen Slicktop

Total Unit Price: $32,73C

Number Units This Spec: CÄ
Totak: $

I. 2019 Durango Pursuit
5 Year / 100,000 Mile Powertrain Warranty
3 Year / 36,000 Mile Bumper to Bumper Warranty

Notes & Instructions:
Quote Date: 07/22/2019



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 

Page 20 of 373

B C Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 20 of 373

Agency Information:

Agency Name: County of Lee
Contact: Lieutenant D, L. Cole

Position: Operations
Address 1: 1401 Elm St
Address 2:

City, State, Zip: Sanford NC 27330

Office Phone: 919-718-4621
Cell Phone: 919-271-5410

Email:

Fax: 919-718-4562

Amy Hill
Government & Fleet Sates
1555 Old Dairy Road
Columbia, South Carolina 29201

ahill@ramclinton.com

(336) 687-7964 Cell

Gene Daniei
Government Sales Manager
605 Warsaw Road
Clinton, North Carolina 28328

gdaniel@ramclinton.com

(910) 592-5337 Dealership

LAW

D-EAPEB2 Wiring Kit Includes the following:
EMERGENCY EQUIPMENT ELECTRICAL SYSTEM & PDC
Features ccior coded and labelee winng. a 150.Amp fused
Dower Distribution Center {DDC) for Police equipment and
3605 vehicie ughtirg.

LED wiring includes;
• Wig Wag PassiDr•v Wscr • Ugntbar • C-Dillar • Liftgace'Deck
• TA • Tail Lighc • License Plate.

Police equipment wiring includes:
• Speaker Pair UP • 4 Au. Leaes UP • Sren Power xa • Stren !CN+
• Radio b— • Radio IGN.'+ • Mcdern • Computer • Gun Lock • Primer
• Conscie Grcund



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 

Page 21 of 373
LEE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

FINANCE DEPARTMENT

po BOX 1968, SANFORD NC 27331-1968

Bid Tabulation Sheet

Monday, August 5, 2019 @ llam EST
Date/Time

Bidder/Address

Classic Nissan of Sanford

Sanford NC

Leith Nissan

cary NC

Southern Pines Nissan

Southern Pines NC

Crossroads Nissan

Bids Opened By

B C Agenaa
August 19, 2019

Bid #4310-01R-20 New 2019 Nissan Maxima SV
Description on Sealed Bid

Bid

Amount

No

39 qqq .00

49



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 22 of 373THIS IS

NOT AN ORDER

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 22 of 3

DATE:INFORMAL BID REQUESr

Lee County, North Carolina

Finance Department

408 Summit Drive, Sanford, NC 27331-1968

Phone: (919)-718-4600 x5512

Gas-sr.QLds.--Ncs,san.-.æ..UaLGcsé Khll//V ndor Name

Vendor Address

Vendor CRY, and ZIP

onta -ma a ress

9/9 s 700
Contact Phone Number

Lee County Is currently accept(ng informal sealed bids for the item(s) listed below If you are interested 'n

supp(yjng the item(s) to Lee County, please complete this form as well as any other information in duplicate

and retum to the Lee County Finance Office, Attm Purchasing Agent, 408 Summit Drive, Sanford, NC 27330,

by the date and time listed below. Please include the description listed below on your envelope.

DO NOT INCLUDE SALES TAX IN YOUR BID.

Bid Due Date and Time:

Monday, August 5, 2019 @ llam EST

Description to Put on Sealed Envelope:
Bid #4310-01R-20 New 2019 Nissan Maxma SV

Item Descri tjon

2019 Nissan Maxima SV per attached

specifications

Delivety/Other Charges (Please

Total

Vendor Signature

Item(s) needed by:

Price

3.217M

Da e

beended

Amount



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 

Page 23 of 373

B C Agenaa
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting

Page 3731THIS IS

NOT AN ORDER
INFORMAL BID REQUEST

Lee County, North Carolina

Finance Department

408 Summit Drive, Sanford, NC 27331-1968
Phone: (919)-718-4600 xS512

C.e05StZ.oAOS Ntss#l
Vendor Name

I(IZD
Vendor Address

Vendor City, State and Dp

Contact Name
A..Mn

Contact Phone Number

Lee County is currently accepting informal sealed bids for the item(s) listed below, If you are interested In

supplying the item(s) to Lee County, please complete this form as well as any other information in duplicate

and return to the Lee County Finance Office, Attrv PutdasJng Agent, 408 Summit Drive, Sanford, NC 27330,

by the date and time listed below. Please include the description listed below on your envelope.

DO NOT INCLUDE SALES TAX IN YOUR BID.

Bid Due Date end Time:

Monday, August S, 2019 @ llam EST

Description to Put on Sealed Envelope:
Bid #4310-01R-20 New 2019 Nissan Maxima SV

Item Description

2019 Nissan Maxima SV per attached

specifications

Delivery/Other Charges (Please explain):

Total

Vendor Signature

Item(s) needed by:

Price

Date

Extended

Amount



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 

Page 24 of 373

B C Agenaa
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 24 of 373

2019 Nissan Maxma SV

ALL ITEMS FACTORY INSTALLED UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED

INSTRUCTIONS. Listed above, you will find the model numbers of Ote vehicles that will be included in this year's con&act.

ANP PRIVF.TRATN

a. DOHC 24-vaive V6 engne,300 hp@ 6000rpm/ 261 lb-ft of torque@4400 rpm
b. Electrontca]ly controlled tlrottle

c. Drive Mode Setector (
d. Contmuously Variable Transmision (CVT)
e Traction Control System (TCS)
f. Vehicle Dynamic Control (VDC) wtrracaon Con&ol SYBtem (TCS)

2. SUSPENSION. STEERING. AND

a Independent front strut suspension

b. Independent multi-lmk rear suspension
c. Hollow-tube front subilizer bar

d. Hydro-electic power steering (HEPS)
e. Front and Reas vented disc brakes

f. 4 -wheel Anti-lock Braking (ABS)
g. Electronic Brake force Disuibution (EBD) and Brake Assist

3, WHEELS TIRES

a. 1 8" Machined Aluminum-Alloy Wheels
b. P245/45R18 V-rated all-season tires

c. Compact spare Ore
d, Tire Pressure Monitoring System (TPMS) and Easy-Fill Tire Alert

a. Halogen headbgbts

b. Halogen high beam headliÖu
c. Automatic On/OffHeadlights

d. Taillights With Integrated LED siputure
e. Front Fog L*ts (halogen)
f. Dual Exhaust with chrome fimshers

g. Outside mirrors with turn Signal indicators

h. Heated ougiae mirors

5. SF.ATNG. TRIM

a. 8-Way Power Drivers Seat and 4-Way Power Front Passenge•'s Sent
Front Zero Gravity Seats

c. 60/40 Split Fold Down Rear Seats
Contrast stitching on Instrument Panel, Door Panels, Console, Seac & Steering Wheeld

e. 'Razor Steel' faceted finishers



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 25 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 25 of 373

f. Leather-wrapped ID-shaped' flat bottom steeling wheel

g Leather-appointed
h. Heated front seats

i- Drivers seat power lumbÜ support and manual å.tgh support extension

6 CQMFORTAND CONVEF.IIENCE

a. Dual-zone Automatic; TemperaÄ.re Cont•ol (ATC) wtå Front & Rear Vents
b Nissan Jntelligent KeyTM with Push Button (qnül 'Pulse' Illumination logic)

c.. Power Front Windows w/One-Touch Auto-UpDown and Auto-Reverse Feature
d. Cruse Control
es Auto dimming rear view mirrol
f Homelink@ t.Jmvasal

g. Remote Engine Start with Intelligelt Climate Control
h. Individual LED Rear Reading lights

7. AUDIO SYSTEMS

A. NYUFM/CD Aud10 System With Reader and Eight Speakers

b. MssmConnectSM with Navigation System feaåri.ng Apple CarPlayTM and Android Auto TM 8-1nch color display
With multi-toueh connol - Two Front illuminated USB connection ports fm- iPod@interface and othE
devices - Nissan Voice Recognition for audio and nmgadon SiriusXM TraffcTM - SinusXM Travel Link+d
(Sports, Fuel Weather, Movie listings and Stock info) - Bluetooth@ Hands-Free Phone Systan - Sü•eaming
Audio via Bluetooth@ - Hands-free text messaging asststmt - Swipe to meter functionali9 (Swipe map from center
display towards ADAD to bring up Navi screen in ADA

c. Display Commander
d. HD Radio@
e. Satellite Radio

f. Auxiliary Audio Input Jack
g. 71' Advanced Drive Assist Displgy

8. SAFETY / SECURITY

a. Duver & Front Passenger Seat-mounted Side-ltnpact Supplemental Air Bags
b. Roof-mounted curtain Side-impact Supplemental Air Bags with Rollover Sensor for Front and Rear-seat Outboard

Occupant Head Protection
c. LATCH System Cower Anchors and Tether for atildren)
d Nissan Vehicle Immobilizer System
e. VeWe Sectrity System (VSS)
f. RearView Monitor

g. Forward Emergency Braking (FEB)
h. Forward Collision Waming (FCW)
i. Predictive Forward Collision Warming(PFCW)
j. Front and Rear Pa.rkmg Sensors (2FR, 2RR)

9.

a. Bumper to BurnF. 3 years, 36,000 miles
b. Powertrain: 5 years. 60,000 miles



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 26 of 373

CABO

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 26 of 373

ITEM

LEE COUNTY AGENDA ABSTRACT 11. F.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
(Jse the Down or Up Arrows to move between fields of the Form)

MEETING DATE: August 19, 2019

SUBJECT: Vehicle Replacement Van Purchase

DEPARTMENT: COLTS/Lee county Senior Services

CONTACT PERSON: Debbie Davidson

TYPE: Consent Agenda Action Item Public Hearing Information

REQUEST

BUDGET
ATTACHMENTS
PRIOR BOARD ACTION
RECOIvMENDATION

Approve purchase order for five - 20 Ft. lift Equipped Light Transit Vehicles

$286,696.55 -Coun Match - $28,670
Van Order Forms

Grant A lication A foval — October 15, 2018

A rove urchase of five 20 ft lifte ui ed ht transit vehicles as resented.

SUIvfffARY

The County of Lee Transit System applied to the NC Department of Transportation and has received
approval to purchase five lift equipped 20 ft. light transit vehicles to replace five vans that reached

the 145,000-mile replacement requirement as of June 30, 2019. The Lee County Board of
Commissioners approved this grant application on October 15, 2018 and this funding with the 10%
local match is included in the FY 2020 Lee County Budget. NC DOT covers the remaining 90% of
the cost.

Page 1 of 1
Form Updated August 2, 2017



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 27 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 27 of 373

FY19 CTP REPLACEMENT CAPITAL

2019 20 FT. LIGHT TRANSIT VEHICLE (LN) WITH LIFT ORDER FORM
COACH & EQUIPMENT METAL BODY

Send to:

P.O. No.:

ENTERSTATE TRANSPORTATION SALES
1321 West Fairfield Road, Suite 109
High Point, NC 27264
Toll Free 855-399-3949

336-899-8132

ATTN: Ken McDowell

Bid no. 201600503

N.C. Department of Transportation/Public Transportation Division

Vendor No.: 364692932

FAX: 366-899-8134

e-mail:

Contact :

e-mail:

'krmcdowell@northstate.net'

Project No.: 20-39-061 R

Order Date:

(date order placed with vendor)

408 Summit Drive. Sanfgrd NG

919-776-0501

(phone number)

Debbie Davidson

27330

919-774-7593

(FAX number)

VEHICLE ORDER

Base vehicle ce:

Quanti

5

Item no

A-2

Opdons-ltemized

Q
5

5

1
2

3

4

5

z
8

9

10

11

12

Descn üon
Lift - 2 rear wc station-plan A2

Letterinq

Logo -labor only.

Au)dlliary Round Red Brake Liqhts

Auxiliarv Amber Strobe at Rear Door

6.0L GM Gas Powered Engine
Diamond Ponation Farebox.

Transiqn destination sign - electronic

Passenqer touch tape stop request

REI P.A. Svstem w/ AWFWCP
Telma Brake Retarder

Bike Rack (stainless steel)

Addli Emerqencv Window Exits (up to 3)

Base Unit Cost
56.870.31

SUBTOTAL OF BASIC LTVs

179.00

67.00 ea./logo

281.00

188.00

1 ,290.00

193.00

2,509.00

158.00

435.00

6,782.00

1,324.00

45.00 ea.

Non+articipating Options (local cost only):

12
14

15
16

17

SUBTOTAL WI PARTICIPATING OPTIONS

GRAND TOTAL

Total Cost

284,351.55

284,351 55

11405.00

940.00

286,696.55

288,696.55
*avadable to In the anas; must have enough tn budget to cover cost

pu must have budgeted for this In pur applicatlon to oder fils Item.

EXTERIOR COLOR: The basic body of the Coach & Equipment Phoenix is white.

INTERIOR SEATING SELECTION:

*Seat coverings are listed after options on page 4

Lettering information:

Predictions Claret CODE:

(System Name & Phone No.)

607



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 28 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 28 of 373

Color and Style of 6" lettering:

Striping/Tu-Tone information: Striping (1 code):

Vehicle to be titled to: County of Lee

408 Summit Drive
Sanford NC 27330

Tu-Tone (2 codes):

Terms: Payment to vendor must be made within 30 days of acceptance of vehicle (sign off on insp. form).

20 FT. LTV METAL BODY
SPECIFICATION AND PRICING INFORMATION

Chassis:

2019 Ford E-350 cutaway chassis with 6.8L, V-IO gasoline engine; I I ,500 lb. GWVR; 96" overall width; 113" overalf height; 260" length
138" wheelbase; 4,600 lbs. front axle/ 7,800 lbs. rear axle/ 4:56 rear axle ratio; heavy duty shock absorbers; front coil and

rear leaf springs; MOR/Ryde Suspension installed on rear axle; 6-speed automatic overdrive tansmission; transmission oil cooler;
radiator coolant recovery kit; 33 gallon fuel tank; trap door access to fuel tank; 2 drive shaft guards; hydraulic front disc and drum

rear brakes; seven (7) LT225/75R16E alt season 10 ply, radial tires with rims; spare tire is wrapped & shipped flat in vehicle;
12 volt heavy duty electrical system; dual batteries, 1300 CCA total; 225 amp OEM alternator; InterMoüve fast idle; back-up alarm;
two-way radio provision; all wiring is insulated, color, number, and function coded wiring; pre-wiring for 4-camera surveillance system;

LED lighting except for OEM chassis lights; reverse alarm assistance system; and HELP type bumpers.

Body:

Coach & Equipment Phoenix has steel exterior panels with a full steel roll cage; 3/4" marine grade floor with Atro transit flooring,
color-keyedcovering with white center aisle and yellow nosing on entry steps; elecWc automatic, full view two-panel, passenger entry
door; emergency full vision rear exit door; passenger transit type windows with dark tinted glass; 2 emergency windows; rustproofing;

SMI/Transpec 1075 roof ventilator/emergency exit; remote 15Rx 8" exterior heated mirrors with convex; drivers side step w/grab bar;

Freedman Feathemleight, Mid-back passenger seating with Freedman IJSR 601' passenger restraint belh• 2-24" seat bett extenders;
OEM high-back driver's seat with power pedestal and 3 pt. restraint; locked storage area above driver (unless destination sign is
purchased); appropriate instruments, gauges, and controls; back-up camera; 12" x 6" driver's mirror; tilt steering and cruise control;

inside hood release; OEM front (driver's area) heating and air conditioning; rear heater, 65,000 BTU's and rear alc, 53,000 BTU's;
stainless steel stanchions and grab bars; oxygen tank brackets; 5 lb. fire extinguisher; 24-unit first-aid kit; emergency window
hammer/web cutter; warning reflectors, and roof top mounted strobe light.

Wheelchair lift (meets all requirements of the American with Disabilities Act and the FMVSS):

Braun Century NCLIOOO(F)lB3454HB-2, fully automatic side mounted wheelchair lift; lift platform is 34"x 54% minimum of
2 wheelchair stations offered; Q'Straint QRT-360 4-point wheelchair tie-down system and 3-point passenger restraint systems;
six QStraint Quick straps;and backup manual over-ride system. A handrail retraint (belt) between the two handrails will be provided
for extra security for passengers.

Warranty:

Chassis - 3 years/36,000 mile Bumper to Bumper Warranty (Ford/GM)
Power Train - 5 years/60,000 miles (Ford/GM)
Chassis Corrosion warranty - 5 years/ unlimited miles (Ford/GM)

Body Conversion warranty - 3 years/36,OOO miles (Coach & Equipment)
Body Structure warranty - 5 years/75,OOO miles (Coach & Equipment)
Air Conditioning (add on unit) - 24 months (ProAair ACT System )
Tire Warranty - 50,000 miles

Wheelchair lift - 5 years Limited Waranty (Braun)

DELIVERY: Approximatel 120 daF from receipt of chassis

TERMS: Pa ent to vendor must be made wlthln 30 da of acce

Light Transit Vehicle seating arrangements:

Item/Diagram number and base price

nce of vehicle sl n off on ins ct. form .

A2 Wheelchair lift vehicle - side-rear location; 6 foward facing passenger seats,

double foldaway bench seat with 2 wheelchair/mobility aid device stations

FLOOR PLAN: See Tab label at bottom -A-2 FLOOR PLAN

$ 55,618.31



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 29 of 373

O ions:

Item #

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

Lettering: Specify SYSTEM NAME & PHONE NUMBER on order form
4" letters and numbers will be used on both sides of van

Logo - System must provide decal; price is for labor only.

Auxiliary Round Red LED Brake Lights - two round 7" brake lights; one on
each side of vehicle above OEM brake lights.

Auxiliary Amber Strobe light; located either above rear door or to the right of door.
Light shall be wired to illuminate when vehicle is stopped and front door is opened.
This strobe is not the same as standard strobe on top of vehicle.

6,0L GM Gas Powered Engine. Price includes Chevy Chassis

Diamond Donation Farebox, small aprox 8"x8Hx8"

Destination sign-Transign D-3114, electric, furnished with minimum of
15 destinations: Front and side
*Destination sign Is only available for fixed mute and deviated route vehicles.

Passenger touch tape stop request

*Passenger signal is only avallable for fixed route vehicles.

REI P.A. System/AWFWCD with 4 speakers meets ADA
*PA system Is only available for fixed route or devlated fixed route vehicles.

Bike Rack - Stainless Steel bike rack mounted on front of bus

( agency must have budgeted appropriate amount in application to order this option.

however this option can be ordered as non-parücpating option if system did not budget for it)

Telma brake retarder for mountain areas only

( agency must have budgeted appropriate amount in application to order this option.

Additional Emergency Window Exits - order up to 3 more on vehicle

Non-PartIclpatIng Options (local cost only)

NOTE: THE FOLLOWING OPTIONS ARE NOT ELIGIBLE FOR STATE/FEDERAL PARTICIPATION.

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 29 of 373

179.00

67.00 ea.nogo

281.00

188.00

| 290.00

193.00

2.509.oo

158.00

435.00

1.324.oo

6,782.00

45.00 ea.

6.919.oo

95.00

13.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

Ford Chassis Service /Parts manual

GWChevrolet Chassis Service/Parts manual

Alternative Fuel - Propane Bi-Fuel Conversion Kit Option (Ford)

Hubometer

Paint, trim, two-tone, and logo options: *pdces listed an maximum costs; please contact vendor for quote for your system.
a) Striping - Includes paint and labor; indicate color and location on vehicle
b) Striping - includes vinyl trim and labor; indicate color and location on vehicle
c) Two-tone - includes paint and labor; indicate color(s) and location on vehicle
d) Two-tone - includes vlnyltrim and labor; indicate color(s) and location on vehicle $

e) Logo - includes paint and labor; provide design copy and location on vehicle
*Stiping (1 color) and Tu-tone (2 colors) Option: contact vendor for details.

Additional 24" seat belt extender (*note 2-24" are included with each vehicle)

Additional QStraint Quick Straps. (6 Quick straps are std. with vehicle)

Twin Vision Digital MobiLite Electronic desfination sign:

Diamond NV Farebox with extra vault

Genfare Pacemaker Farebox with extra vault

GFI Odyssey Validating Electronic Farebox

REI P.A. system (2 speakers) meets ADA

Front

Side

763.00

763.00

961.00

961.00

128.00

21.00 each

5.00 each

2.34600

1.852.oo

1.327.oo

$ 16.005.oo

432.00



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 30 of 373

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

Clever Devices AVA

Pull Cord, stop request signat system

Fogmaker suppression system

Jomarr Fire suppression system

Amerex Fire suppression system

USSC G-2E-LP adjustable driver's seat with arm rest

USSC G-2E-LP adjustable driver's seat with arm rest and air suspension

Recaro Ergo LXS adjustable driver's seat

Freedman Double Three step-foldaway bench seats in lieu of a
permanent forward facing seat

Freedman Integrated Child Seat (ICS) that replaces forward facing bench seat

Freedman Featherweight High Back seats in lieu of standard mid back

permanent foruard facing seats (includes appropriate foldaway seats).

Upgraded LTV door frame to 14 ga. stainless steel

Upgraded LTV stepwell to 14 ga. stainless steel with 10 ga. steps

Seon Wireless 4 Cameras/DVR system - Seon Trooper TL4

HawkEye warning System - alarm detects objects behind vehicle

Upgraded automatic heated side mirrors w/ tum signal- Rosco

OEM engine block heater option

Extended Warranty Option Plan

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 30 of 373

574.00

3.609.OQ

2.833.oo

2.295.oo

977.00

1,769.00

870.00

313.00

601.00

197.00

467.00

243.00

2.162.oo

587.00

238.00

95.00

NIA

Exterior Color: The basic body of the Coach & Equipment Phoenix is white.

Seat Fabric and Color: Interior panels will be a light gray. Seating is available in either vinyl or cloth;
selections are listed below. Choose one and indicate selection on order form. Include type. color and code number.

http://vmw.freedmanseatinq.com/fabrics/level 31

Vin Coverin Colors

Level 3 - Predictions & Cameo
(607) Predictions Claret

(588) Cameo Ivy
(595) Predicüons Silversurf

(600) Clipper Blue

(610) Predictions Misty Bay
612 Predictions Indi o

Fabric Coverin Colors

Level 3 - Reqions Fabric (Solid Color)

(48301) Pacific Rosa (48303) Pacific Navy
(48302) Pacific Dk. Blue (48304) Pacific Green

Level 3 - Reqions Fabric (Tweed Fabrics)

(48701) Midwest Merlot (48802) Midwest Pippin
(48803) Midwest Bluette (48306) Pacific Grey
48804 Midwest Blackber



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 31 of 373

911

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 31 of 373

ITEM

LEE COUNTY AGENDA ABSTRACT 11. G.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
(Use the Down Of Up Arrows to move between fields of the Form)

MEETING DATE: August 19, 2019

SUBJECT: Renewal of ATNI Machine Located at the Lee County Courthouse

DEPARTMENT:

CONTACT PERSON: Whitney Parrish/J0hn Cfumpton

TYPE: Consent Agenda Action Item Public Hearing Information

REQUEST

BUDGET IMPACT
XITACHMENTS

To consider the renewal of the ATM machine located at the Lee County
Courthouse

1 New lease a eement2 lease eement from 2007

PRIOR BOARD ACTION The Board of Commissioners has a roved such lease since 2007

To approve the lease agreement with the State Employees Credit Union asRECOIvm1ENDATION
resented and authorize the Chair to si

SUNMARY
In 2007, the Lee County Board of Commissioners approved an original lease agreement with the State Employees

Credit Union for the ATM machine located in the lower parking lot at the Lee County Courthouse. This lease has
continued since 2007. The 2007 lease agreement allowed for three-three year tenn extensions and those

extensions will expire this year. The Credit Union is now requesting a five year term with two renewal opdons of
five years. The rental payment will be one dollar a year beginning September 1, 2019 and ending August 31, 2022.
We have requested a termination clause that will allow the County to terminate the lease giving sixty days' notice.

Form Updated August 2, 2017 Page 1 of 1



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 32 of 373

BOC Agenda
Au u t 19, 2019

Re ut r Meeting

32 of 373p

NORTH CAROLINA:

LEE COUNTY:

LEASE AGREEMENT

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT, made and entered into this 1ST day of, SEPTEMBER , 200 and

between, LEE COUNTY, hereinafter referred to as "Lessor"; and STATE EMPLOYEES' DIT
UNION, a North Carolina corporation, hereinafter referred'to as "Lessee";

WITNESSETH:

That subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set out, said Lessor does hereby let and le s unto

said Lessee, and said Lessee does hereby accept as tenant of Lessor that certain tract or parce ,

located, 1408 S. HORNER BLVD., SANFORD, County ofLEE, State ofNorth Carolina.

The terms and conditions of this Lease are as follows:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

The term of this Lease shall be for a period of THREE (3) years beginning on the FIRS
SEPTEMBER, 2007, and ending on the LAST day of AUGUST, 2010, unless ext
terminated under the other provisions of this Lease.

Lessor shall provide space to the Lessee rent-free for the tem of this lease. Provision
extension of this Lease are set forth in Item #12.

Lessee shall use and occupy the premises for the purpose of maintaining a kiosk AT
connection thereto, shall comply with all laws, ordinances, orders, or regulations of

authority having jurisdiction over the premises and the use thereof.

It is understood and agreed that Lessee shall be responsible for construétion of the AT
the upkeep, repair, and maintenance of said structure during the term of this Leas

extension hereof. At the expiration of the term of this Lease, or the prior terminatio

Lease as herein provided, Lessee shall be responsible for removing said ATM from the
and restoring the premises to theii present condition.

During the term of this Lease, Lessee shall maintain comprehensive general liability ins

an occurence basis with maximum limits of liability in the amount of Three Hundred

Dollars ($300,000.00) for property damage, bodily injury, personal injury or death to

person; Lessee shall also maintain excess liability coverage with a per occurrence lim

Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00); and Lessee shall keep the kiosk structure on the

premises together with the equipment in said building insured against loss •or damage
other casualties.

land

Y of,
d or

r the

nd in

: awful

d for

r any

f said

ises

ce on

usand

y one

f One
d mised

y' reor

Lessee shall neither use nor occupy the demised premises or any part thereof for any un a I or

ultrahazardous business purpose nor operate or conduct its business in a manner cons i ting a

nuisance of any kind.

Lessee shall pay prior to delinquency all taxes and assessments of every kind and na . which

may be imposed or assessed upon or with respect to the structure and equipment placed* n the
premises by Lessee.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 33 of 373

BOC Agenda
Au u t 19, 2019

Re u r Meeting

33 of 373p

If the premises are wholly or partially destroyed by fire or other casualty, rental shall b te in
proportion to the loss of use thereof, and Lessee shall, at its own expense, promptly re o. the

premises to substantially the same condition as existed before damage or destruction, whul upon
full rental shall resume.

If the whole of the premises, or such portion thereof as will make the premises unsuitabl r use

contemplated hereby, shall be taken under the power of eminent domain (includi any

conveyance in lieu then the term hereof shall cease as of the date possession f is

taken by the condemnor, and rental shall be accounted for as between Lessor and Less as of

that date.

All applications in connection with necessary utility services on the demised premises h II be

1

8)

9)

10)

11)

12)

13)

14)

15)

made in the name of Lessee only, and Lessee shall be solely liable for utility charges a
become due, including those for electricity, gas, water, sewer, and telephone services.

Lessee shall be in exclusive control and possession of the demised premises, and Lessor

be liable for any injury or darnages to any property or to any person on or about the e

premises nor for any injury or damage to any properw of Lessee. Lessee shall defend, in

and hold harrnless the Lessor from and against any claims, damages, or expenses ( • cl

reasonable attomey's fees), whether due to damage to the premises, claims for injuries to

or property, or adminisfrative or criminal action by govemmental authority, where such

damages, or expenses result from the negligence, misconduct or breach of any provisio

Lease Agreement by Lessee, its agents, employees or invitees.

Lessor hereby grants unto Lessee the option to extend the tenn of this Lease for an ad

THREE-THREE year periods commencing at the expiration of the primary term he
extensions are to be granted to an agreed upon monthly rental rate of $0.00 per month.

shall provide to Lessor at least ninety (90) days prior to the expiration of the primary term
notice of its intention to extend.

It is expressly understood and agreed that if any monthly installment of rent as herein c I

shall remain overdue and unpaid for ten (10) days, Lessor may, at its option, at any tim d
such default, declare this Lease terrninated and canceled and take possession of said p

they

I not

ised

ify

ing

ons

ims,

this

•onal

, all

see

•tten

for

ises,

and require the Lessee to remove the stucture from the premises and restore the premises to their
former condition.

If Lessee shall pay the rent and perfom and observe all the other covenants and conditioqs o be

performed and observed by it hereunder, Lessee shall at all during the term hereof Hal the

peaceable and quiet enjoyment of the premises without interference from Læssor or any rson

lawfully claiming through Lessor.

All notices provided for in this Lease Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed o ve

been given when sent by registered or certified mail addressed to Lessor at:

LEE COUNTY GOVERNMENT CENTER
ATTN: DICK HOYLE
106 HILLCREST DRIVE
SANFORD, NC 27330

and to I-zssee at:



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 34 of 373

BOC Agenda
Aug t 19, 2019

Reg I r Meeting

Pa 34 of 373

16)

17)

18)

19)

State Employees' Credit Union

P. O. Box 27665
Raleigh, N. C. 27611

This Lease Agreement shall be consuued and enforced in accordance with the laws of the

North Carolina.

This Lease Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parti

and their respective successors and assigns.

te of

ereto

This Lease contains the complete agreement of the parties regarding the terms and cond• i ns of

the lease of the premises, and there are no oral or written conditions, terms, warr ties,

understandings or other ageements pertaining thereto which have not been incorporate h in.

•This Lease Agreement may be modified only by written instrument duly executed by both p •es

or their respective successors in interest.

If any provision of this Lease shall be declared invalid or unenforceable, the remainde ; f the

Lease shall continue in full force and effect.

THIS PORTION INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 35 of 373

BOC Agenda
Au t 19, 2019

Re ar Meeting

P g 35 of 373

TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Lease Agreement to be execu as of

the day and year first above written.

LESSOR:
LEE COUNTY

ATTEST:

CLERK

corporate

SEAL

ATTEST: •

ASSISTANT • P&ORATE SECRETARY

NORTH CAROLINA:
WAKÉ COUNTY:

This the day of

BY:

airm

LESSEE:

STATE E

Lee Coun Board of Commission

LOYEESt CREDIT UNION

SENIOR vrc -P SIDENT, FACILITIES SE V

2M before me,
a Notary Public, personally came Pat Munns, who, being duly swom
President, Facilities Services of STATE EMPLOYEES' CREDIT

s that she is Seni i ice-

d that the seal affxe o the

foregoing instument in is the corporate seal of the said corporation, and that said writ ri was

signed and sealed by her in behalf of the said corporation by its authority duly given and the Seni 1i ice-

President, Facilities Services acknowledged the said wHting to be the act and deed of said corpora .

r)
Witness my hand and notarial seal, this the day of a...a.e

NO Y PUBLIC

My Commission Expires:



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 36 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 36 of 373



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 37 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 37 of 373

NORTH CAROLINA

LEE COUNTY

LEASE AGREEMENT

This Lease Agreement made and entered into this 26th day of July 2019 by and between Lee
County, hereinafter referred to as "Lessor"; and State Employees' Credit Union, a North
Carolina credit union, hereinafter referred to as "Lessee".

WITNESSETH:

That subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set out, said Lessor does hereby let and
lease unto said Lessee, and said Lessee does hereby accept as tenant of Lessor that certain
tract or parcel of land located at 1408 S. Horner Blvd., Sanford, County of Lee, State of North
Carolina.

The terms and conditions of this Lease are as follows:

1)

2)

3)

4)

The term of this Lease shall be for a period of three (3) year(s) beginning on the first day
of September 2019 and ending on the last day of August 2024, unless extended or

terminated under the other provisions of this Lease by providing ninety (90) days' prior
written notice to the other.

As rental for said premises, Lessee shall pay to Lessor at the address noted below, and
without notice or demand therefore, the sum of One Dollar ($1.00) payable ANNUALLY.
The rental payments shall be made payable to Lee County and sent to the following
address PO Box 1968, Sanford, NC 27331.

Lessee Shail use and occupy the premises for the purpose of maintaining a kiosk ATM,
and in connection thereto, shall comply with all laws, ordinances, orders, or regulations
of any lawful authority having jurisdiction over the premises and the use thereof.

Lessor shall be responsible for the repairs and/or maintenance of the parking lot area of
the described property (collectively, the "Leased Premises") of reasonable wear and
tear, potholes and landscaping such as shrubs and trees in close proximity of the said
ATM located on the 'Leased Premises". Upon a thirty (30) day written notice from
Lessee to Lessor for any repairs and/or maintenance described above on the "Leased
Premises" and if Lessor fails to perform any repairs and/or maintenance required of
Lessee (to cure or a reasonable time thereafter if such repairs and/or maintenance

cannot reasonably be completed in thirty (30) days and are commenced within such
period and thereafter diligently pursued to completion), then Lessee has the option to
provide a thirty (30) day written notice of its intent to terminate this Lease Agreement.

Lessor and Lessee shall share the responsibility of maintaining the surrounding area in
close proximity of the said ATM. Lessee will be responsible for the construction of the

said ATM such as upkeep, repairs and maintenance of said ATM and structure during
the term of this Lease Agreement or any extension hereof. Upon termination of the
Lease Agreement, Lessee will be responsible for removing said ATM and the structure
from the "Leased Premises" and will restore the premises back to its original condition.

114



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 38 of 373

5)

6)

7)

8)

9)

10)

11)

12)

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 38 of 373

During the term of this Lease, Lessee shall maintain comprehensive general liability

insurance on an occurrence basis with minimum limits of liability in the amount of Three

Hundred Thousand Dollars ($300,000.00) for property damage, bodily injury, personal
injury or death to any one person; Lessee shall also maintain excess liability coverage
with a per occurrence limit of at least One Million Dollars ($1 and Lessee

shall keep the kiosk structure on the demised premises together with the equipment in
said building insured against loss or damage by fire or other casualties.

Lessee shall neither use nor occupy the demised premises or any part thereof for any
unlawful or hazardous business purpose nor operate or conduct its business in a
manner constituting a nuisance of any kind.

Lessee shall pay prior to delinquency all taxes and assessments of every kind and
nature which may be imposed or assessed upon or with respect to the structure and
equipment placed on the premises by Lessee.

If the Leased Premises are wholly or partially destroyed by fire or other casualty, rental
shall abate in proportion to the foss of use thereof, and Lessee shall, at its own expense,
promptly restore the Leased Premises to substantially the same condition as existed
before damage or destruction, whereupon full rental shall resume. Should Lessee elect
not to repair or replace the ATM, then Lessee shall provide to Lessor at least ninety (90)
days written notice of its intent to terminate this Lease Agreement. Upon such
termination, Lessee shall diligently repair the Leased Premises to its original condition
prior to the installation of the ATM. After the Leased Premises are repaired, Lessee and
Lessor shall not have any responsibility to each other under the terms of the Lease
Agreement.

If the whole of the Leased premises, or such portion thereof as will make the Leased
premises unsuitable for use contemplated hereby, shall be taken under the power of
eminent domain (including any conveyance in lieu thereof), then the term hereof shall
cease as of the date possession thereof is taken by the condemnor, and rental shall be
accounted for as between Lessor and Lessee as of that date.

All applications in connection with necessary utility services on the demised premises
shall be made in the name of Lessee only, and Lessee shall be solely liable for utility
charges as they become due, including those for electricity, gas, water, sewer, and
telephone services.

Lessee shall be in exclusive control and possession of the demised premises, and

Lessor shall not be liable for any injury or damages to any property or to any person on
or about the demised premises nor for any injury or damage to any property of Lessee.
Lessee shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Lessor from and against any
claims, damages, or expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees), whether due to
damage to the premises, claims for injuries to persons or property, or administrative or
criminal action by govemmental authority, where such claims, damages, or expenses
result from the negligence, misconduct or breach of any provision of this Lease
Agreement by Lessee, its agents or employees.

No Renewal Options.

214



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 39 of 373

13)

14)

15)

16)

17)

18)

19)

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 39 of 373

It is expressly understood and agreed that if any monthly installment of rent as herein

called for shall remain overdue and unpaid for ten (10) days, Lessor may, at its option, at
any time during such default, declare this Lease terminated and canceled and take
possession of said premises, and require the Lessee to remove the structure from the
premises and restore the premises to their former condition.

If Lessee shall pay the rent and perform and observe all the other covenants and

conditions to be performed and observed by it hereunder, Lessee shall at all times

during the term hereof have the peaceable and quiet enjoyment of the premises without
interference from Lessor or any person lawfully claiming through Lessor.

All notices provided for in this Lease Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed
to have been given when sent by registered or certified mail addressed to Lessor at:

Lee County
PO Box 1968
Sanford, NC 27331

And to Lessee at:

State Employees' Credit Union
PO Box 26807
Raleigh, NC 27611

This Lease Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of
the State of North Carolina.

This Lease Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties
hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

This Lease contains the complete agreement of the parties regarding the terms and
conditions of the lease of the premises, and there are no oral or written conditions,

terms, warranties, understandings or other agreements pertaining thereto which have
not been incorporated herein. This Lease Agreement may be modified only by written
instrument duly executed by both parties or their respective successors in interest.

if any provision of this Lease shall be declared invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of
the Lease shall continue in full force and effect.

THIS SPACE INTENTIONALL Y LEFT BLANK

314



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 40 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 40 of 373

In Testimony Whereof, the parties have caused this Lease Agreement to be executed as of the
day and year first above written.

ATTEST:

SIGNATURE / TITLE

SEAL

ATTEST:

SECU Assistant Corporate Secretary

NORTH CAROLINA:
WAKE COUNTY:

This is the day of

LESSOR:
Lee County

BY:

TITLE:

LESSEE:

State Employees' Credit Union

BY:

Senior Vice-Presid Facilities Services

2019, before me ÅdzQLPi.eLce—
a Notary Public, personally e Karen High, who, being duly sworn, says that she is Senior
Vice-President, Facilities Services of State Employees' Credit Union and that the seal affixed to
the foregoing instrument in writing is the corporate seal of the said corporation, and that said

writing was signed and sealed by her in behalf of the said corporation by its authority duly given
and the Senior Vice-President, Facilities Services acknowledged the said writing to be the act
and deed of said corporation.

Witness my hand and notarial seal, this

My Commission Expires:

2019.

ffhkcoha
Notary Public

AJBOO

48, COUO..\O
414



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 41 of 373

cÅgov

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 41 of 373

ITEM

LEE COUNTY AGENDA ABSTRACT II. H.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
(Use the Down or Up Aff0WS to move between fields of the Form)

MEETING DATE: August 19, 2019

SUBJECT: North Carolina Alliance of Public Health Agencies Contract (NCAPHA)

DEPARTMENT: Health

CONTACT PERSON: William H. Cain, Health Director

TYRE: Consent Agenda Acdon Item Public Hearing Informadon

REQUEST

BUDGET IMPACT
ATTACHMENTS
PRIOR BOARD ACTION

RECONNfENDATION

This is a request to the County Commissioners to approve the North Carolina
Alliance for Public Health encies Contract CAPHA .
Infant Mortali Reduction State Funds $55,190 no Coun match

1 ; North Carolina Alliance of Public Health ncies eement — 13 es

The Health Departrnent respectfully requests the Board of Commissioners to
a rove the attached staffin a eement.

Sl-J1vnvfARY

NCAPHA will provide a Health Education Specialist for 1 year. This position will act as our Infant
Mortality Reduction Coordinator which will facilitate education classes at the health department with

moms to be and new moms by working with our Maternal Health and WIC clients. This position will
attend health fairs and community events to bring awareness ot baby safe sleep practices. This
position will provide Safety Car Seat checks in approved venues.

The Board of Health voted to approve July 1 7th, 2019

Form Updated August 2, 2017 Page 1 ofl



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 42 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 42 of 373

NCAPHA

North Carolina Alliance of Public Health Agencies (NCAPHA)
Staffing Agreement

North Carolina Alliance of Public Health Agencies, Inc., entered into effective as of

July 1, 2019,with its principal office located at 222 North Person Street, Suite 208, Raleigh,

North Carolina 27601 ("Agency"), and Lee County Health Department, with its principal
office located at 106 Hillcrest Drive, Sanford, NC 27330 ("Client") agree to the terms and
conditions set forth in this Staffing Agreement (the "Agreement").

1. Agency Duties and Responsibilities

Agency will:

a.

b.

c.

d.

e.

Recruit, screen, interview, hire, and assign its employees ("Assigned Employees")
to perform tasks in accordance with Client's specifications as described to

Agency in writing for staffing under Client 's supervision and will be the common
law employer of Assigned Employees;

Pay each Assigned Employee's wages and provide them with the benefits that
Agency offers to them;

Pay, withhold, and transmit payroll taxes; provide unemployment insurance

and workers' compensation benefits; and handle unemployment and workers'

compensation claims involving Assigned Employees;

Require Assigned Employees to sign ayeements (in the form of Exhibit A)

acknowledging that they are not entitled to holidays, vacations, paid time off,

disability benefits, insurance, pensions, or retirement plans, or any other benefits
offered or provided by Client;

Comply with federal, state and local labor and employment laws applicable to
Assigned Employees, including the Immigration Reform and Control Act of

1986; the Internal Revenue Code ("Code"); the Employee Retirement Income

Security Act ("ERISA"); the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act

("HIPAA"); the Family Medical Leave Act; Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of

1964; the Americans with Disabilities Act; the Fair Labor Standards Act; the

Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act ("COBRA"); the Uniformed
Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994.

In compliance with Section 420.302(b) of the Medicare regulations, until the

expiration of four years after the furnishing of services provided under this

Agreement, Agency will make available to the Secretary, U.S. Department of
Health and Human Services, the U.S. Comptroller General, and their
representatives, this Agreement and all books, documents and records necessary
to certify the nature and extent of the costs of those services;



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 43 of 373

h.

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting

Obtain and keep on file all documentation required by the U.S. Immat 43 of ä73
Naturalization Service to prove legal status to work and reside in the United
States;

At Client's request, provide certificates evidencing general liability and
professional liability insurance coverage.

1.2 Right to Control

In addition to Agency's duties and responsibilities set forth in paragraph 1, Agency, as

the common law employer, has the right to review and address, unilaterally or in coordination
with Client, Assigned Employee work performance issues and to enforce Agency's employment
policies relating to Assigned Employee conduct at the worksite. The work assignment of

Assigned Employee will be terminated by Agency upon receipt of Client's written request given
to Agency at least fifteen (15) days in advance; provided, however, that Client may immediately
terminate an Assigned Employee's work assignment for cause. If Assigned Employee's work
assignment is terminated for cause, Client shall provide Agency with a written statement
specifying the cause in reasonable detail promptly following such termination.

2. Client Duties and Responsibilities
Client will:

a.

b.

d.

Properly supervise Assigned Employee's work performance and be responsible
for Client's business operations, products, services, and intellectual property;

Properly supervise, control, and safeguard its premises, processes, and systems,

and not permit Assigned Employees to operate any vehicle or mobile equipment,

or entrust them with unattended premises, cash, checks, keys, credit cards,

merchandise, confidential or trade secret information, negotiable instruments, or

other valuables without Agency 's express prior written approval or as strictly
required by the job description provided to Agency;

Provide Assigned Employee with a safe work site and provide appropriate

information, training, and safety equipment with respect to any hazardous

substances or conditions to which Assigned Employee may be exposed at the
work site;

Not change Assigned Employee's job duties without Agency 's express prior
written approval;

Exclude Assigned Employees from Client's benefit plans, policies, and practices,

and not make any offer or promise relating to Assigned Employees' compensation
or benefits;

Reimburse Agency for advertising conducted with respect to recruiting specific
personnel, when advertising is done at the request of Client;

Comply with OSHA Bloodbome Pathogen Exposure Control regulations found
under OSHA Standard 29 C.F.R.e.1910. Client certifies that it has developed and
follows an Exposure Control Plan in conformance with those regulations. At the

2



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 44 of 373

h.

i.

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

time of initial assignment to tasks where occupational exposure maywfr

Standard 29 C.F.R.e. 1910. Client agrees to provide post exposure evaluation and

follow-up pursuant to OSHA Standard 29 C.F.R.e. 1910, if an exposure incident
occurs to any Assigned Employee and to provide copies of all records of post-

exposure care to Agency. Client agrees to orient Assigned Employee to Client's

policies, procedures, operations and OSHA/Infection Control procedures, and

inform the Agency of training dates and any changes in the Client's policies and

procedures;

Designate a representative to report to Agency all time worked by each Assigned
Employee on a mutually agreed schedule;

Be responsible for compliance with all relevant safety and health laws and
regulations during the period of the Assigned Employee's assignment under

Client's supervision, including but not limited to JCAHO regulations relating to
orientation and evaluation and HIPAA regulations.

Payment Terms, Bill Rates, and Fees

3.

4.

Client will pay Agency for its performance as set forth on Exhibit B and will also pay any
additional costs or fees set forth in this Agreement. Agency will invoice Client for

services provided under this Agreement on a semi-monthly basis, Payment is due on

receipt of invoice. Invoices will be supported by the pertinent time sheets or other agreed

system for documenting time worked by the Assigned Employees. Information appearing
on the invoice shall be deemed accurate and affirmed by Client, however Client retains

the right to contest any invoice if it notifies the Agency in writing within five business

days of date of discovery and the writing will specify the particular error(s), omission(s),

or objection(s). Agency may impose a finance charge of one and one-half (1 h) percent
per month to all outstanding amounts unpaid by for thirty (30) days or more after date of
the invoice. If a portion of any invoice is disputed, Client will pay the undisputed portion.

In addition to the rates specified in Exhibit B of this Agreement, Client will pay Agency
the amount of all new or increased labor costs associated with Client's Assigned

Employees that Agency is legally required to pay-such as wages, benefits, payroll taxes,
social program contributions, or charges linked to benefit levels-until the parties agree on
new rates.

Confidential Information

5. Both parties may receive information that is proprietary to or confidential to the other
party or its affliated companies and their clients. Both parties agree to hold such

information in strict confidence and not to disclose such information to third parties or to

use such information for any purpose whatsoever other than performing under this

Agreement or as required by law. No knowledge, possession, or use of Client's
confidential information will be imputed to Agency as a result of Assigned Employees'
access to such information.

3



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 45 of 373Cooperafion

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 45 of 373

The parties agree to cooperate fully and to provide assistance to the other party in the6.

investigation and resolution of any complaints, claims, actions, or proceedings that may
be brought by or that may involve Assigned Employees.

Term of Agreement

7. The tenn of this Agreement will be for an entire fiscal year, which runs from July I
through June 30, for the year of the effective date of this Agreement. The Agreement

may be terminated by either party upon thirty (30) days wHtten notice to the other party,
except that, if a party becomes bankrupt or insolvent, discontinues operations, or fails to

make any payments as required by the Agreement, either party may terminate the
Agreement upon written notice.

Miscellaneous

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

While Agency follows the guidelines described in Exhibit C and will give each Assigned
Employee safety and standards online training relating to safety, universal precautions,

occupational exposure to bloodbome pathogens, other safety issues and HIPAA
regulations, Client will provide each Assigned Employee with all necessary site-specific

training, orientation and evaluations that may be required by federal, state or local
occupational safety laws or rules, including JCAHO and HIPAA, for members of Client's
workforce. Further, Client will only assign Assigned Employee to work in the clinical
specialty areas in which they are professionally qualified and oriented to work. In the

event of any actual or threatened claim arising out of or relating to the acts of omissions

of the Assigned Employee, Client shall provide Agency written notice of such claim
promptly and, in no event, later than 30 days after Client knew, or reasonably should
have known of such claim

The parties acknowledge that they are equal opportunity employers and agree that they
do not and will not discriminate against, harass, or retaliate against any employee or job

applicant on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, disability, veteran

status, sexual orientation, gender identity, or any other status or condition protected by
applicable federal, state or local laws. Client agrees that it will promptly investigate

allegations of discrimination, harassment, and retaliation. Client further agrees that it

will report to Agency any suspected discrimination, harassment and/or retaliation either

by or against Assigned Employee immediately.

Provisions of this Agreement, which by their terms extend beyond the termination or
nonrenewal of this Agreement, will remain effective after termination or nonrenewal.

No provision of this Agreement may be amended or waived unless ayeed to in a writing
signed by the parties.

Each provision of this Agreement will be considered severable, such that if any one

provision or clause conflicts with existing or future applicable law or may not be given
full effect because of such law, no other provision that can operate without the conflicting
provision or clause will be affected.

4



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 46 of 373

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 46 of 373

This Agreement and the exhibits attached to it contain the entire understanding oetween

the parties and supersede all prior agreements and understandings relating to the subject
matter of the Agreement.

The provisions of this Agreement will inure to the benefit of and be binding on the parties

and their respective representatives, successors, and assigns.

The failure of a party to enforce the provisions of this Agreement will not be a er of

any provision or the right of such party thereafter to enforce each and every provision of

this Ayeement.

Client will not transfer or assign this Agreement without Agency's wiitten consent.

All notices, demands, requests or other instruments which may be or are required to be
given hereunder shall be in writing and sent to the addresses set forth below, by hand
delivery, certified mail — retum receipt requested, or via overnight courier, postage
prepaid.

AGENCY:

CLIENT:

NC Alliance of Public Health Agencies, Inc.
222 N. Person street, Ste. 208

Raleigh, NC 27601

Lee County Health Department
106 Hillcrest Drive

Sanford, NC 27330

The addresses provided herein are conclusively deemed to be valid, and notice given in

compliance with this paragraph shall be conclusively presumed to be proper and

adequate, unless a written change of address is provided to all Parties.

This Agreement will be govemed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the

State of North Carolina, without reference to any conflicts of law principles thereof.

[Signatures on next page]

5



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 47 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Pa e47 of 373

Authorized representatives of the parties have executed this Staffing Agreement belowgto express
the parties' agreement to its terms.

Lee County Health Department

Signature

Printed Name

Title

Date

North Carolina Alliance of Public Health

Agencies, Inc.

Signature

Printed Name

Title

Date

THIS Agreement has been pre-audited in the manner required by the local Government Budget
and Fiscal Control Act.

Client Finance Offcer:

Printed Name

Title

Date

6



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 48 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 48 of 373

EXHIBIT A
BENEFITS WAIVER FOR ASSIGNED EMPLOYEES

AGREEMENT AND WAIVER

In consideration of my assignment to Client by Staffing Firm, I agree that I am solely an
employee of Staffing Firm for benefits plan purposes and that I am eligible only for such benefits
as Staffing Firm may offer to me as its employee. I further understand and agree that I am not
eligible for or entitled to participate in or make any claim upon any benefit plan, policy, or
practice offered by Client, its parents, affiliates, subsidiaries, or successors to any of their direct
employees, regardless of the length of my assignment to Client by Staffing Firm and regardless
of whether I am held to be a common-law employee of Client for any purpose; and therefore,
with full knowledge and understanding, I hereby expressly waive any claim or right that I may
have, nor or in the future, to such benefits and agree not to make any claim for such benefits.

EMPLOYEE

Signature

Printed Name

Date

WITNESS

Signature

Printed Name

Date

7



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 49 of 373EXHIBIT B

COMPENSATION

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 49 of 373

A. SCHEDULE OF RATES. Hourly rates are as set forth below or as otherwise determined
by Agency and Client in writing plus a 33% administrative fee. For Salaried Assigned
Employee whose annual salary, excluding the administrative fee, is less than $100,000,
and works a fixed schedule and receives the same salary each pay period, an

administrative fee of 24% will apply after 90 days of employment . For Salaried

Assigned Employee whose annual salary, excluding the administrative fee, total more
than $100,000, an administrative fee of 19% will apply. Travel and work-related
expenses will be based on the approved county travel reimbursement rate. Environmental

Health professionals will be compensated for travel, meals and lodging at the approved

county travel reimbursement rate. Travel and work-related expenses are exempt from the
administrative fee.

B. OVERTIME. This Paragraph is only applicable to Assigned Employee who are eligible
to receive overtime compensation pursuant to applicable law. Agency will charge Client
special rates for premium work time only when an Assigned Employee's work on
assignment to Client, viewed by itself, would legally require premium pay and Client has
authorized, directed, or allowed the Assigned Employee to work such premium work
time. Client's special billing rate for premium hours will be the same multiple of the

regular billing rate as Agency is required to apply to the Assigned Employee's regular
pay rate. Client will be billed one and one-half (1.5) times the rate set by the Client for

time worked by Assigned Employee for all hours worked more than forty (40) hours per
week and in accordance with state and federal wage and hours laws. If, during the terms

of this Agreement or at any time, any applicable law requires Agency to pay overtime to
its Assigned Employee based on any standard other than 40 hours per week, Agency shall

bill the overtime rate pursuant to the applicable law. Agency may comply with Client's
policies regarding overtime when they follow state and/or federal wage and hours laws
and are communicated at the time of the contract or communicated to Agency at least
ninety (90) days prior to the effective date of such changes.

C. EXPENSES. Travel and other expenses incurred by an Assigned Employee in providing
services to Client under this Agreement may be included on the Assigned Employee's
applicable time sheet and reimbursed to the Assigned Employee through the Assigned

Employee's paycheck from, Agent at Client's expense.

D. ACA COMPLIANCE. Agency shall comply with all provisions of the Patient Protection
and Affordable Care Act ("ACA") applicable to Assigned Employees, including the
employer shared responsibility provisions relating to the offer of "minimum essential
coverage" to "full-time" employees (as those terms are defined in Code S4980H and

related regulations) and the applicable employer information reporting provisions under

Code 56055 and {6056 and related regulations applicable to Assigned Employee,

including the employer shared responsibility provisions relating to the offer of "minimum
essential coverage" to "full-time" employees (as those terms are defined in Code {4980H

and related regulations) and the applicable employer information reporting provisions

under Code {6055 and "056 and related regulations. Ifthe Assigned Employee does not
report to work for illness or some other reason outside of Client's control, Client will not

be billed for these hours except in the case of salaried Assigned Employee, with leave

concession addressed at time of hire.

8



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 50 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular MeetingEXHIBIT C
Page 50 of 373

REQUIREMENT GUIDELINES
REOUIRED:

Hepatitis B

MMR (Measles,
Mumps, Rubella)

Varicella (chicken

pox)

HIGHLY
RECOMMENDED:

Influenza

Tetanus, diphtheria,

pertussis

Tuberculosis Skin

Test Screening

State license,

registration or

certification (when

required)

Schedule

2 doses, 4 weeks apart; 3rd
dose, 5 months after 2nd'

booster not necessary

2 doses, 4 weeks apart

2 doses, 4 weeks apart

[Not Required]

Annual influenza vaccine

Td booster every 10 years
after one Tdap

Upon Hire —Two step
TST; Annual TB skin test
for settings classified as

medium risk for HCWs
who have the potential for
exposure to M.
Tuberculosis through air

space shared with persons

with TB disease
Per state board of nursing

or other licensing agency

Interpretation

Agency's policy follows CDC recommendations.
Documentation of 3 doses of Hepatitis B vaccination (at
appropriate intervals), serologic proof of immunity or
declination of the series of vaccines signed by the
healthcare worker.

Agency's policy follows CDC recommendations for
healthcare personnel (HCP) born in 1957 or later without

serologic evidence of immunity or prior vaccination give 2

doses of MMR, 4 weeks apart. For HCP born prior to
1957, is considered acceptable evidence of measles,

mumps and rubella immunity, however Agency follows
CDC recommendation that a HCP get a titer but it is not
required (unless a work site requirement.)

Agency follows CDC recommendation all HCP who have
no serologic proof of immunity, prior vaccination, or

history of varicella disease, give 2 doses of varicella

vaccine, 4 weeks apart; all HCP be immune to varicella
with proof of Titer.

Employee must obtain if required bp their work site.

Highly recommended by Agency (must be obtained if
required by employee's work site.)

Agency follows CDC recommendation all HCP get a Td
booster does every 10 years, following the completion of

the primary 3-dose series. Also, All HCP younger than 65
get a I-time does of Tdap, if they have direct patient
contact.

Agency's policy for Tuberculosis screening follows CDC
recommendations.

Agency contacts the State Board or other licensing agency
prior to the Assigned Employee's start date to confirm that

the license, registration or certification is active and in

good standing. Agency will not knowingly employ a
professional that has an action against their license.

9



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 51 of 373BCLS (CPR)

Criminal

Background Check

OIG Sanctions
Check

1-9

AGENCY
participates in E-

Verify

(As required by

law.)

Current Card

Performed upon hire

Upon application

Upon hire and if

documents expire

Upon hire

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Agency accepts current BCLS certi g •ther

AHA, Red Cross, or hospital issued cards as long as they
are the standard requirements for Assigned Employee.

Agency's policy is to conduct Criminal Background

Checks upon hire on all Assigned Employee unless

otherwise instructed by client. If there is a gap in

employment or the Assigned Employee leaves the

company for more than 6 months, a criminal background
check will need to be updated prior to the start of the next

assignment.

Agency has a check procedure in place. Each applicant is

checked against the OIG database upon application.

Agency collects a completed 1-9 and the appropriate INS

required documentation on every Assigned Employee
member prior to their start date.

Agency will provide the Social Security Administration

(SSA) and, if necessary, the Department of Homeland
Security (DHS), with information from each new
employee's Form 1-9 to confirm work authorization.
IMPORTANT: If the Government cannot confirm that a
new hire is authorized to work, this employer is required to
give new hires written instructions and an opportunity to
contact DHS and/or the SSA before taking adverse action
against you, including terminating their employment,

Agency will not use E-Verify to pre-screen job applicants
and may not limit or influence the choice of documents
new hires present for use on the Form 1-9. To determine
whether Form 1-9 documentation is valid, Agency uses E-
Verify's photo matching tool to match the photograph

appearing on some pennanent resident cards, employment
authorization cards, and U.S. passports with the official

U.S. government photograph. E-Verify also checks data

from driver's licenses and identification cards issued by
some states.

10



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 52 of 373

éCOtLvr

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 52 of 373

ITEM

LEE COUNTY AGENDA ABSTRACT II. I.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
(Use the Down or Up Arrows to move between fields of the Form)

MEETING DATE: August 19, 2019

SUBJECT: Request for approval of purchase of Sand Pro 5040 and Attachments.

DEPARTMENT: General Services

CONTACT PERSON: Russel Spivey, General Services Director

TYPE: C] Consent Agenda Action Item Public Hearing Information

REQUEST

BUDGET IMPACT

ATTACHMENTS
PRIOR BOARD ACTION

Approve purchase of Sand Pro 5040 Equipment and Attachments for ballfields
from Smith Turf and Irri tion.

Funds of $25,000 were approved in the 2019-2020 Capital Outlay $5,000 and
above General Services Bud et
1 E ui ment uotadon

Approve purchase of Sand Pro 5040 Equipment and Attachments for ballfields
from Stnith Tuff and Irri

Tie new Sand Pro 5040 will replace a 1998 Sand Pro due to age and maintenance costs. This equipment will

be used to maintain and prep all county ballfields. Purchase will be made according to NC State Contract
Pricing.

Form Updated August 2, 2017
Page 1 ofl



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 53 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting

g

SMITH TURF & IRRIGATION
Quoted To:

Mr. Wayne Broome

Lee County General Services

1

1

1

1

1

1

Model

08705

08735

08713

08712

08732

08731

08751

08757

08756

08782

30035

EQUIPMENT QUOTATION

STI
1925

Account Executive:

Descri tion

Sand Pro 5040
Carbide Tine Toolbar

Fiex Blade

Front Lift Frame Assembly
Weeder Tine Toolbar
Mid-Mount Assem bly

Tooth Rake

Steel Drag Mat

Drag Mat Carrier System

Front Remote Hydraulics
400 Hour Filter Maintenance Kit

Quoted From:

Charlotte Office

4355 Golf Acres Dr

Charlotte, NC 28208

Matt Sorrel!

919-207-7909

Unit Price

$16,319.56

$1,133.12

$828.14

$1 ,453.74

$789.04

$1,187.86

$1,195.68

$233.82

$1 ,101.84

$530.98

$99.66

Total-

Extended

$16,319.56

$1,133.12

$828.14

$1 ,453.74

$789.04

$1,187.86

$1,195.68

$233.82

$1,101.84

$530,98

$99.66

$24,873.42

Payment Terms: Net 10th Prox (Upon Credit Approval)

Prices And Payment Terms Shown Will Be Valid For 30 Days From Date
Quoted. After This Period, We Reserve The Right To Make Any Necessary
Adjustments To Prices And/Or Payment Terms.

NC State Contract Pricing
Prices Do Not Include Sales Tax

Sub Total

Est. Sales Tax

Total

Quote Prepared By:

Quote Accepted By:

Matt Sorrell Date:

Date:

6/25/2019



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 54 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 54 of 373

ITEM

11. J.

LEE COUNTY AGENDA ABSTRACT
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING

(Use the Down Of Up Arrows to move between fields of the Form)

MEETING DATE: August 19, 2019

SUBJECT: Audit contract amendment

DEPARTMENT: Finance

CONTACT PERSON: Lisa G. Minter, Assistant County Manager/ Finance Director

TYPE: Consent Agenda Action Item Public Hearing Informadon

REQUEST

BUDGET IMPACT
ATTACHMENTS

Approve an amendment to our contract with Thompson, Price, Scott,
Adams & Co., P.A. to audit accounts.
$5,500 in FY 19-20 budget — funds are in the budget to cover this cost.

Letter from Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A. dated July 22, 2019,
amendment to contract to audit accounts and revised engagement letter from
Thom son, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A.

PRIOR BOARD ACTION BOC approved the audit contract for the fiscal ended June 30, 2019 on
6, 2019.

RECOMMENDATION Approve the amendment to the audit contract with Thompson, Price, Scott,
Adams & Co., P.A.

SUMMARY
For the year ended June 30, 2018, the Office of the State Auditor required coundes to have a separate agreed upon

procedures engagement on Medicaid files that included a separate report being issued. At the time, Thompson, Price,

Scott, Adams & Co., P.A. submitted the contract to audit accounts for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, it was
assumed that the State would be the same process this year; however, the firm was notified in May that the
State wants the same procedures done this year but not the report. The firm is asking for a $5,500 increase in the

contract to cover the procedures that were covered in the separate engagement last year. The separate engagement
last year cost $7,500.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 55 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 55 of 373

Rev. 10/2018Amended AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS

Whereas Pnmary Government Unit

and

and

LEE COUNTY

Discretely Presented Component Unit (DPCU) (if applicable)

Auditor

TH01sQSON, PRICE, SCOTT, ADAMS & CO, PA,

entered into a contract in which the Auditor agreed to audit the accounts of the Primary
Govemment Unit and DPCU (if applicable)

Fiscal Year Ending
for

06/30/19
Audit Report Due Date

and originally due on
10/31/19

hereby agree that it is now necessary that the contract be modified as follows

Original due dateO Modification to due date:
10/31/19

Original fee
Modification to fee:

$ 35,500

Modified due date

Modified fee

$ 41,000

EXPLANATION OF MODIFIED CONTRACT TERMS

Please provide an explanation for the modification of terms. Ifthe amendment is submitted to extend due date,
ease indicate he ste sthe unit and take to revent/atefi/in ofaudifs'n subse uent ars.

When the origmal contracts were prepared for the audit, the Offce of the State Auditor had mdlcated
that the Medicaid portion of the audit would be a separate engagement as it was for the prior year,
However, after the contracts were issued and approved, additional correspondence was received fiom

the Office of the State Auditor that indicated that they were not going to require a separate report as they
had for the year ending June 30, 2018, but we still had to do the same procedures to perform our audit
engagement, We are amending the contract to add $5,500 to account for this Medicaid testing that was
onginally goang to billed as a separate engagement.

By their signatures on the following pages, the Auditor, the Primary Govemment Unit, and
the DPCU (if applicable), agree to these modified terms,

Page 1 of 3



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 56 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 56 of 373

Rev. 10/2018
LGC-205 Amended

Audit Firm

AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS

SIGNATURE PAGE

AUDIT FIRM

THOMPSON, PRICE, SCOTT, ADAMS & CO, P.A.
Authorized Firm Representative (typed or pnnted) Sig
ALAN THOMPSON
Date

07/22/19

Governmental unit

LEE COUNTY

mail A ess

alanthompson@tpsacpas.com

GOVERNMENTAL UNIT

Date Pnmary Government Unit Governing Board Approved Audit Contract (Ret G.s orcs 115C-447(a»

Mayor/Chairperson (typed or printed)
AMY DALRYNPLE
Date

Chair of Audit Commitee (tmd or printed,

Date

Signature

Email Address

ADALRYMPLE@LEECOUNTYNC.GDV

Signature

Email Address

GOVERNMENTAL UNIT - PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICATE
*ONLY REQUIRED IF FEES ARE MODIFIED IN THE AMENDED CONTRACT*

(Pre-audit certificate not required for charter schools or hospitals)

Required by G-S. 159-28(a1) or G.s. 115C-441(a1)

This nstvment has been pæ-audited in the mannertequired by The Local Govemment
Budget and Fiscal Control Act or by the School Bu&et and Fiscal Confr01Act.

Primary Governmental Unit Finance Officer Signature

LISA G. MINTER

Date of Pre-Audrt Certificate Email Address

LMINTER@LEECOUNTYNC.GOV

Page 2 of 3



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 57 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 57 of 373

Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A.
P.O. Bex 398

S Madisojl Sv•cek

mc 28473

Fux

Alan W. Thompson. CPA
R. Bryon Scott. CPA

Gregory S. Adams. CPA
••ULkiG ACCOUNTAC U N •2 U LTANTS NO AOVI'-

July 22, 2019

Mrs. Lisa Minter

Lee County
PO Box 1968
408 Summit Drive
Sanford, NC 27331-1968

RE: Amended Contract for Medicaid Testing

Dear Mrs. Minter,

As you are aware, for the year ended June 30, 2018 the State Auditor removed the Medicaid
direct payments from the SEFSA. This created a significant amount of additional testing for local
auditors involving other programs to meet the required dollar amount threshold. The State Auditor
also asked the local auditors to increase the number of Medicaid cases to test, and to attest to
those procedures in an agreed upon procedures report for the State Auditor. The fee for that
additional report for the State Auditor was $7,500. Our firm was notified in May, this after the audit
contracts were sent to the Counties, that the State Auditor wanted local auditors to do the same
procedures as last year except they do not want a report. Our firm kept your entity's fee the same
anticipating our firm would bill for the additional report as last year.

We respectfully request an increase in our contract, since the work is the same as last year except
for the report. Since we are no longer required to issue the report to the State Auditor, we are
asking for an increase of $5,500 to the previously approved audit contract. Please realize that this
is a $2,000 decrease from the previous year's audit fees.

An amended contract (including the engagement letter) has been attached for approval by the
Board. Once you have board approval, please send us one copy of the signed contract, and we
will remit the changes to the LGC. The other copy is for you to keep for your records.

Should you have any additional questions or concerns, please let me know. Thank you for your
consideration.

Thank y

an W. Thompson, CPA

Members
AinertcaLi Institute ot'CPAs - N.C. Assnciation of - .\ICPA Di'& isior of Firms



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 58 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 58 of 373

Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co, P.A.
P.O. Box 398

1626 S Machson Street

NC 28412
Tclephone (910) 64221

Fax 0) 642-5958

Ajan W, "Cnompsom CPA
R. Boon Scott CPA

Gregory S. Adams. CPA

REVISED ENGAGEMENT LETTER
CERTIFIED PUBLte ACOOUNTANtgCONSULTANTS AND TAX

July 22, 2019

Lee County
PO Box 1968
Sanford, NC 27331-1968

To Management and Those Charged With Governance:

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide Lee County for the year ended June
30, 2019. We will audit the financial statements of the govemmental activities, business-type activities, each major
find, and the aggregate remaining fund information, including the related notes to the financial statements, which

collectively comprise the basic financial statements, of Lee County as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019.

Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States provide for cemin required supplementary

information (RSI), such as management's discussion and analysis (MD&A), to supplement Lee County's basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As part of our
engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to Lee County's RSI in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. These limited procedures will consist of inquiries of

management regarding the methods of preparing the infomation and comparing the information for consistency

with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of basic financial statements. We will not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or

provide any assurance. The following RSI is required by generally accepted accounting principles and will be
subjected to certain limited procedures, but will not be audited:

l. Management's discussion and analysis.

2. Law Enforcement Offcers' Special Separation Allowance
3. Other Postemployment Benefits Schedules

4. Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Asset and Schedule of Contributions LGERS
5. Schedule of the Proportionate Share ofthe Net Pension Asset and Schedule of Contributions — ROD

We have also been engaged to report on supplementary information other than RSI that accompanies Lee County's
financial statements. We will subject the following supplemenmry information to the auditing procedures applied in
our audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such

information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the

financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally

accepted in the United States of America and will provide an opinion on it in relation to the financial statements as a
whole:

1. Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards.

2. Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements, Budgetary Schedules, and Other Schedules

Our responsibility for other information included in documents containing the entity's audited financial statements

and auditors' report does not extend beyond the financial information identified in the report. We have no
responsibility for determining whether such other information contained in these documents is properly stated.

Members

American Institute of('PAs - N.C. Sssor,iaüon of CPAs AIC'.PA Dlvisi01' of Firm;



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 59 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 59 of 373

Audit Objectives

The objective of our audit is åe expression of opinions as to whether your financial statements are fairly presented,
in all material respects, in conformity With US. generally accepted accounting principles and to report on the
faimess of the supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when considered In relation to the
financial statements as a whole. The objective also includes reporting on-

Intemal control related to the financial statements and compliance With the provisions of laws, regulations,

contacts, and gant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial
statements m accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Intemal connoi over compliance related to major programs and an opinion (or disclaimer of opinion) on
compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions offedaal awards that could have

a direct md material effect on each major program in accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of
1996 and Title 2 US. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200. Umform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Plinciples, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Umfom Guidance).

The Government Auditing Standards report on Internal control over financial reportmg and on compliance and other

matters will include a paragraph that states (1) that the purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of testing

of internal conü•ol and compliance and the results of that testmg, and not. •to provide an opinion on the effectiveness

of the entity's internal control or on compliance, and (2) that the leport is an integrai part of an audit performed in

accordance with Government Auditing Standards m considering the entity's internal control and compliance. The
Uniform Guidance report on mtemal control over compliance will mclnde a paragraph that states that the purpose of

the report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control over

compliance and the results of that testing based on fre requirementq of the Umform Guidance. Both reports will
state that the report is not suitable for any other purpose,

Our audit will be conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in üne United SUtes of

America; the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United Smtes; the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996; and the provisions of the Uniform

Guidance, and will include tests of accounting records, a detennination of major program(s) in accordance with the

Uniform Guidance, and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such opinions. We will
issue written reports upon completion of our Single Audit. Our reports will be addressed to the Board of

Commissioners and management of Lee County. We cannot provide assurance that unmodified opinions will be
expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modi$' our opmions or add emphasis-of-
matter or other-matter paragraphs If our opinions on the financial statements or the Single Audit compliance

opinions are other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance, If circumstances OCCLU related

to the condition of your records, the availability of suffcient appropriate audit evidence, or the existence of a

significant risk of matenal misstatement of the financial statements caused by error, fraudulent financial reporting,

OJ misappropriation of assets, which in our professional judgment prevent us from completing the audit or forming

an opmion on the financial statements, we retain the right to take any course of action permitted by professional
standards, including declining to express an opmion or issue a report., or withdraw:ng from the engagement.

Audit Procedures-General

An audit includes examining, on test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial

stdements, therefore, our audit Will Involve judgment about the number of transactions to be examined and the areas

to be tested. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounång policies used and the

reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the financial statements. We will plan and perform the audit to obtain Igasonable rather &lan
absolute assurance about whether the finanezal statements are of maternal misstatement, whether from (1) errors,

(2) fraudulent reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws ot governmental

regulations that are ambutable to the entity or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the entity,
Because the detemination of abuse is subjective, Govermnent Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to provide
reasonable assurance ofdetecting abase.

Because of the Inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of intemal control, and

because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, thee is a risk that material misstatements or
noncompliance may exist and not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and perfomed in



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 60 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 60 of 373

accordance with US. generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards. In addition, an

audit IS not designed to detect immatertal misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do

not have a direct and material effect on the financial statements or major programs However, we will inform the

appropriate level of management of any material errors: any fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of
assets that come to our attention. We will also Inform the appropriate level of management of any violations of laws
01 governmental regulations that come to our attention. unless clearly inconsequential, and of any material abuse
that comes to our attention. We will include such matters in the reports required for a Single Audit. Our

responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any later periods for
whieh we are not engaged as auditors.

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the accounts, and
may include tests of the physical existence of inventories (if material), and direct confirmation of receivables and
certain other assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, and

financial institutions. We will request umitten representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement, and
they may bill you for responding to th1S Inquiry At the conclusion of our audit, we will also require certain written
representations fix.nn you about your responsibilities for the financial statements', schedule of expenditures of federal

awÜd$ federal award progams, compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and pant ageements; and other
responsibilities required by generally accepted auditmg standards,

Audit Procedures-Internal Controls

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment* including internal control,
suffclent to assess the risks of matenal misstatement of the financial statements and to design the nature, timing,

and extent of further audit procedures. Test of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of certain
confrols that we consider relevant to preventmg and detecting enors and fraud that are material to the financial
statements and to preventing and detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance

matters that have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. Our tests, if performed, Will be less in
scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on intemal control and, accordingly, no opinion will be
expressed in cur report on intemal confrol issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standads.

As required by åe Uniform Guidance, we will perform tesG of controls over compliance to evaluate the
effectiveness of the design and operation of controls that we consider relevant to pyeventing or detecting material
noncompliance with compliance requirements applicable to each major federal award program. However, our tests
will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on those controls and, accordingly, no opinion
will be expressed in our report on internal control Issued pursuant to the Uniform Guidance.

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identifr significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses. Accordingly, we will express no such opinion. However, during the audit, we will communicate to
management and those charged with govemance internal control related matters that are required to be

communicated under AICPA professional standards, Government AuditingStandards, and the Uniform Guidance.

Audit Procedures-Compliance

As part of obnining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement,
we will perform tesß of Lee County's compliance with provisions of applicable laws, regulations, corfracts, and
ageement5, Including grant agreements. However, the objective of those procedures Will not be to provide an
opmron on overall compliance and we will not express such an opinion in our report on compliance issued pursuant
to Government Auditing Standards.

The Uniform Guidance requires that we also plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the auditee has complied with federal statutes regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards

applicable to major programs. Our procedures will consist of tests of transactions and other applicable procedures

described in the OMB Compliance Supplement for the types compliance requirements that could have a direct and

material effect on each of Lee County's maJor programs, The purpose of these procedures will be to express an

opinion on Lee County's compliance with requirements applicable to each of its major programs in our report on
compliance issued pursuant to the uniform Guidance.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 61 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 61 of 373

Other Services

We will also assist in preparing the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards, and
related notes of Lee County in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting pnnciples and åe Uniform
Guidance based on information provided by you. These nonaudit services do not constitute an audit under
Government Auditing Standards and such services will not be conducted in accordance With Government Auditmg

Standards. We will perform the services in accordance with applicable professional standards„ The other services
are limited to the financral statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and related notes services

previously defined We, in our sole professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to perfom any procedure or
take any action that could be construed as assuming management responsibilities.

Management Responsibilities

Management is responsible for (l) designing. implementing, and maintaining effective internal controls relevant to
the preparation and fair pesentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due io

fiaud or eror, including internal confrols over federal and State awards, and for evaluating and monitoring ongoing

activities, to help ensure that appropnate goals and objectives are met; (2) following laws and regulations (3)

ensuring that there is leasonable assurance that govemment programs are administered in compliance with

compliance requirements; and (J) ensuring that management and financial information IS reliable and properly

reported, Management is also responsible for implementing systems desißled to achieve comphance with
applicable laws, contracts, and grant agreements. You are also responsible for the selection and
application of accounting principles; for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements. schedule of

expenditures of federal and State awards, and all accompanying information m conformity With U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles: and for compliance with applicable laws and regulations (Including federal statutes)

and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements (including award agreements). Your responsibilities also

include identifring significant contractor relationships in which the contractor has responsibility for program
compliance and for the accuracy and completeness of that Information.

Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information available to us and for the

accuracy and completeness of that information. You are also responsible for providing us with (l) access to all
information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the finanenal

statements, (2) access to personnel, accounts, books, records, supporting documentation, and other infomation as

needed to perform an audit under the Uniform Guidance, (3) additional information that we may request for the
purpose of the audit, and (4) unresticted access to persons within the government from whom we determine it
necessaiY to obtain audit evidence.

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material nusstatements and confirming to

us in the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during

the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the
aggegate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

You are responsible for the desiY1 and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and for
informing us about all known or suspected fraud or illegal acts affecting the government involving (I) management,
(2) employees who have significant roles in intemal control, and (3) others where the fraud or illegal acts could have
a material effect on the financial statements. You responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any
allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the government received in communications from employees,

former employees, gantors, regulators, or others. In addition. you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that

the entity complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts. agreements, and grants. Management is also

responsible for taking timely and appropnate steps to remedy fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws,

regulations, contracts. and grant agreements. or abuse that we report. Additionally, as required by the Uniform

Guidance, it is management's responsibility to evaluate and momtor noncompliance with federal statutes,

regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards; take prompt action when instances of noncompliance

are Identified including noncompliance Identified in audit findings; promptly follow up and take corrective action on

reported audit findings; and prepare a summary schedule of prior audit findings and a separate corrective action
plan. The summary schedule of prior audit findings should be-available for our review by May 15, 2019.

You are responsible for identifying all federal and State awards received and understanding and complying with the
compliance requirements and for the preparation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards (ineluding notes

and noncash assistance received) in confomity with the Uniform Guidance, You agree to include our report on the



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 62 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting

Paae 640f 373
schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards in any document that contains and indicates thal we ave

reported on the schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards. You also agree to make the audited financial
statements readily available to untended users of schedules of expenditures of federal and State awards no later

the date the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is issued with our report thereon Your responsibilities

include acknowledging to us in the written representation letter that (l) you are responsible for presentation of the

schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards in accordance with the Unifom Guidance; (2) you believe the
schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards, Including its form and content, is stated fairly in accordance

with the Uniform Guidance; (3) the methods of measurement or presenution have not changed from those used in

the pnor period (or, if they have changed, the reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us any

sigmficant assumptions or Interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the schedule of
expenditures of federal and State awards

You are also responsible for the preparation of the other supplemenmry information, which we have been engaged to
report on, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. You agree to include our report on the
supplementary information in any document that contams and indicates that we have reported on the supplementary
information. You also agee to make the audited financial statements readily available to users otthe supplementary
information no later than the date the information is issued with our repojt thereon. Your

responsibilities include acknowledgmg to us m the written representation lettel that (l) you are responsible for
presentation of the supplementary mtormafion in accordance with GAAP; (2) you believe the supplementary
information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with GAAP; (3) the methods of
measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period (or- if they have changed. the

reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or interpretations underlymg
the measurement or presentation of the supplementary information.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for Üacking the status of audit findings and

recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report copies of previous financial
audits, attestation engagements, performance or other studies related to the objectives discussed in the Audit

Objectives section of this letter This responsibility Includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to address

significant findings and recommendations resulting from those audits„ attestation engagements, performance audits.

or studies, You are also responsible for providing management's views on our current findings. conclusions, and
recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions, for the teport. and for the timing and format for

providing that information. With regard to using the auditors' report, you understand that you must obtain our prior

consent to reproduce or use our report in hond offering official statements or other documents. With regard

to electronic dissemination of audited financial statements, including financial statements published electronically

on your website, you understand that electronic sites are a means to distribute information and, therefore, we are not
required to read the information contained in these sites or to consider the consistency of information in the

elecb•onic site with the original document.

You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial statements, schedules of expenditures
of federal and State awards, related notes, and any other nonaudit services we provide. You Will be required to
acknowledge in the management representation letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements,
schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards, and related notes prior to their issuance and have accepted

responsibility for them. Further, you agree to oversee the nonaudit services by designating an individual, (Lisa

Mmter), who possesses suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of those services;
and accept responsibility for them.

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other

We may from time to time, and depending on the circumstances, use third-party sennce providers in servmg your
account. We may share confidential mformation about you With these service providers, but remain committed to
maintaining the confidentiality and security of your informatiom Accordingly, we maintain intemal policies,
procedures, and safeguards to protect the confidentiality of your personal informauon. In addition. we will secure
confidentiality agreements with all service providers to mamtain the confidentiality of your information and we will
take reasonable precauåons to detennme that they have appropriate procedures in place to prevent the unauthorized

release of your confidential information to others. In the event that we are unable to secure an appropriate

confidentiahty agreement. you will be asked to provide your consent prior to the sharing of your confidential

information with the third-party service provider. Furthermore, we will remain responsible for the work provided by
any such third-party service providers.

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash. accounts receivable, or other confirmations we request and
will locate any documents selected by us for testing. We will schedule the engagement based in part on deadlines,
working conditions, and the availability of your key personnel, We will plan the engagement based on tne



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 63 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 63 of 373

assumption that your personnel Will cooperate and provide assistance by performing tasks such as preparmg

requested schedules, retrieving supporting documents, and preparing confirmations, If for whatever reason your

personnel are unavailable to provide the necessary assistance in a timely manna. it may substantially increase the
work we have to do to complete the engagement within the estabhshed deadlines, resulting in an increase in fees
over our original fee estimate. We will not undertake any accounting services (including but not limited to
reconciliation of accounts and preparation of requested schedules) without obtainmg approval tnrough a written
chmge order or additional engagement letter for such additionai work.

At the conclusion of the engagement, we Will complete the appropriate sections of the Data Collection Fonn that
summanzes our audit findings. It is management's responsibility to submit the reporting package (including

financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards. summary schedule of prior audit findings, auditors'
reports, and corrective action plan) along with the Data Collection Form to the federal audit clearinghouse. We will
coordinate with you the electronic submission and certification. If applicable, we will provide copies of our report
for you to include With the reporting package you will submit to pass-through entitles. The Data Collection Form

and the reporting package must be submitted witnin the earlier of 30 days after receipt of the auditors' report or nme
months after the end of the audit period, unless a longer period is agreed to in advance by the cognizant or oversight
agency for audits.

We will provide copies of our reports to the Board; however, management is responsible for distribution of the
reports and the financial smements. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing privileged and confidential
information, copies of our reports are to be made available for public inspection,

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of nompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., PA and
constitutes confidential information. However. subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and

appropriate individuals will be made available upon request in a timely manner to Oversight Agencies (or its
designee), a federal agency provided direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. Government Accounting Offce for

purposes ofa quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities. We will
notiö' you of any such request, If requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under the

supervision of Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A. personnel. Furthermore. upon request, we may provide
copies of selected audit documentation to the aforementioned parties. These parities may Intend, or decide, to
disü•ibute the copes or Information contained therein to others, Including other govemmental agencies.

The audit documentaåon for this engagement Will be retained for a minimum of five years after the report release or
for any additional period requested by the federal cognimnt agency If we are aware that a federal awarding agency,
pass-through entity, or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we Will contact the party contesting the audit finding
for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation.

We expect to begin our audit by approximately May 14, 2019 and to issue our reports no later than October 31,
2019. Alan Thompson is the engagement parmer• and is responsible for supervising the engagement and signing the
reports or authorizing another individual to sign them.

Our fee for these services will be at our standard hourly rates plus out-of-pocket costs (such as report reproduction.

word processmg. postage, travel, copies, telephone, etc.) except that we agree that our gross fee, including expenses,
should not exceed $41,000. Also, any excessive additional fees incurred in obtaining required audit evidence (i.e

bank confirmations) will be billed directly to the Board. Our standard hourly rates vary according tc the degree of

responsibility Involved and the experience level of the personnel assigned to your audit. Our invoices for these fees
will be rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation. In accordance with our firm

policies, work may be suspended If your account becomes 60 days or more overdue and may not be resumed until
your account is paid in full. If' we elect to terminate our services fot• nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to
have been completed upon written notification of termination, even if we have not eompleted our report(s). You
Will be obligated to compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket cosG ffrough the

date of termination. The above fee is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that
unexpected circumstances will not be encountered durmg the audit

Office of State Auditors has requested significant changes in the Single Audit process ta include removing

direct benefits from the Schedule of Federal and State Awards, Since this will be a new process for everyone, we
cannot adequately estimate the amount of additional time that may be required to perform Single Audit testing under
the new guidelines. If additional programs are required to be tested that have not been identified as maJor programs
for testing in previous years; additional fees may be charged at hourly rates. If significant additional time is

necessary, we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs.
However, we believe that our contract as it is will be sufficient to cover but we do want to reserve the right to
discuss this Issue.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 64 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 64 of 373

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Lee County and believe this letter accurately summarizes the
sigtificant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us know. If you ayee with the terns of
our engagement as described in this letter please sign the enclosed copy and return it to us.

Very truly

Thompson, CPA
Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams P.A.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 65 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 65 of 373

RESPONSE:

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Lee County.

Management signature:

Title,

Date:

Governance signature:

Title:

Date.

CC: Board of Commissioners



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 66 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 66 of 373

ITEM

LEE COUNTY AGENDA ABSTRACT 11. K.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
(Use the Down or Up Arrows to move between fields of the Form)

MEETING DATE: August 19, 2019

SUBJECT: Resolution for the Lee County Government Section 125 Plans for Flexible Benefits

DEPARTMENT: Human Resources

CONTACT PERSON: Joyce McGehee, IPMA-SCP, SHRM-SCP, SPHR

TYPE: Consent Agenda Action Item Public Hearing Information

REQUEST
BUDGET IMPACT
ATrACHMENTS

A foval of Resoludon for U datin the Section 125 Plan Document
N/A
Resolution - Summ Plan Descri tion and Flexible Benefit Plan

PRIOR BOARD ACTION N/A
RECOMMENDATION A rove Resolution for U the Section 125 Ian

Sinvn,fARY

Currently Lee County offers the employees the option of having certain benefits deductions taken prior to the

employees' income being taxed. Those benefits are health insurance, dependent care dental insurance, vision,
cancer, accident and hospital indemnity.

All endües that offer the option of pre-tax deductions must have a Section 125 Plan. Gilsbar the current vendor

will no longer offer Administration for Section 125 Plans. Flexible Benefits Administrators, Inc. will now
administer our Health Care Flexible Spending Account and Dependent Care Flexible Sending Account. Thus, the
need for a revised Section 125 Plan.

Form Updated August 2, 2017 Page 1 of 1



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 67 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 67 of 373

LEE COUNTY GOVERNMENT
FLEXIBLE BENEFIT PLAN

SUMMARY PLAN DESCRIPTION



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 68 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 68 of 373

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ELIGIBILITY

When can I become a participant in the Plan9

What are the eligibility requirements for our Plan? ... ......

When is my entry dateo

Are there any employees who are not eligible?

What must J do to enroll in the Plan?

How does this Plan operate? ..........

11

OPERATION

111

CONTRIBUTIONS

How much of my pay may the Employer redirect? ........

What happens to contributions made to the Plan?..........

When must I decide which accounts vant to useO

When is the election period for our Plan? ...

May I change my elections during the Plan Year? ...........

May I make nev'r elections in future Plan Years9

BENEFITS

Health Flexible Spending Account

Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account

Premium Expense Account....... ..

May I direct Plan contributions to my Health Savings Account?....

BENEFIT PAYMENTS

When will I receive payments from my accounts?

What happens if I dont spend all Plan contributions during the Plan Year!)

Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA)

Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (U SERRA) ...

Yvhat happens if I terminate employmentQ.

Will my Social Security benefits be affected9

HIGHLY COMPENSATED AND KEY EMPLOYEES

Do limitations apply to highly compensated employees? .....

PLAN ACCOUNTING

Periodic Statements



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 69 of 373

VIII

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT OUR PLAN

General Plan

Employer Information ...

Plan Administrator Information

Service of Legal Process.............. ..

Type of Administration ........................

Claims Submission

ADDITIONAL PLAN INFORMATION

Claims Process................

CONTINUATION COVERAGE RIGHTS UNDER COBRA

What is COBRA continuation coverage9

Who can become a Qualified BeneficiaryO

lö'hat is a Qualifying Event? ..... .....

What factors should be considered when determining to elect COBRA continuation coverage9

is the procedure for obtaining COBRA continuation coverageo

What is the election period and how long must it lasto

Is a covered Employee or Qualified Beneficiary responsible for informing the Plan Administrator of the
occurrence ofa Qualifring Event?............

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 69 of 373

10

10

10.

11.

12.

13.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Is a uaiver before the end of the election period effective to end a Qualified Beneficiary's election rights?..

Is COBRA coverage available if a Qualified Beneficiary has other group health plan coverage or Medicare?........

When may a Qualified Beneficiary's COBRA continuation coverage be terminated? ...

What are the maximum coverage periods for COBRA continuation coverage?

Under what circumstances can the maximum coverage period be expanded? .....

How does a Qualified Beneficiary become entitled to a disability extension?

Does the Plan require payment for COBRA continuation coverage?

Must the Plan allow payment for COBRA continuation coverage io be made in monthly installmen1sO

What is Timely Payment for COBRA continuation coverage?

Must a Qualified Beneficiary be given the right to enroll in a conversion health plan at the end of the maximum
coverage period for COBRA continuation coverage? .........

How is my participation in the Health Flexible Spending Account affected? ...

SUMMARY

.12

12

12

12

.12

12

12



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 70 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 70 of 373

LEE COUNTY GOVERNMENT
FLEXIBLE BENEFIT PLAN

INTRODUCTION

We have amended the "Flexible Benefits Plan" that previously established for you and other eligible employees. Under this Plan,

you will be able to choose among certain benefits that we make available. The benefits that you may choose are outlined in this Summary
Plan Description. We will also tell you about other important information conceming the amended Plan, such as the rules you must satisfr
before you can join and the laws that protect your rights.

One of the most important features of our Plan is that the benefits being offered are generally ones that you are already paying for, but
normally with money that has first been subject to income and Social Security taxes. Under our Plan, these same expenses 'Åill be paid for
with a portion of your pay before Federal and State income or Social Security taxes are withheld. This means that you will pay less tax and
have more money to spend and save.

Read this Summary Plan Description carefully so that you understand the provisions ofour amended Plan and the benefits you will
receive. This SPD describes the Plan's benefits and obligations as contained in the legal Plan document, which governs the operation of the
Plan. The Plan document is written in much more technical and precise language. Ifthe non-technical language in this SPD and the
technical, legal language of the Plan document conflict, the Plan document always govems. Also, if there is a conflict between an insurance

contract and either the Plan document or this Summary Plan Description, the insurance contract will control. If you wish to receive a copy
of the legal Plan document, please contact the Administrator.

This SPD describes the current provisions of the Plan which are designed to comply with applicable legal requirelnents. The Plan is
suhject to federal laws, such as the Internal Revenue Code and other federal and state laws which may affect your rights. The provisions of
the Plan are subject to revision due to a change in laws or due to pronouncements by the Intemal Revenue Service (IRS) or other federal

agencies. We may also amend or terminate this Plan. Ifthe provisions of the Plan that are described in this SPD change, we will notify you.

We have attempted to answer most of the questions you may have regarding your benefits in the Plan. If this SPD does not answer all
of your questions, please contact the Administrator (or other plan representative). The name and address of the Administrator can be found
in the Article of this SPD entitled "General Information About the Plan. "

1

ELIGIBILITY

1. When can I become a participant in the Plan?

Before you become a Plan member (referred to in this Summary Plan Description as a "Participant"), there are certain rules which you
must satisfy. First. you must meet the eligibility requirements and be an active employee. After that, the next step is to actually join the

Plan on the "entry date" that we have established for all employees. fie "entry dale" is defined in Question 3 below. You will also be
required to complete certain application forms before you can enroll in the Plan.

2. What are the eligibility requirements for our Plan?

You will be eligible to join the Plan the first of the month once you have completed 30 days of employment. Of course, if you were
already a participant before this amendment, you will remain a participant.

3. When is my entry date?

Once you have met the eligibility requirements, your entry date will be the first day of the month coinciding with or follouing the date
you met the eligibility requirements.

4. Are there any employees who are not eligible?

Yes, there are certain employees who are not eligible to join the Plan. They are:

-- Employees who are part-time. A part-time employee is someone who works, or is expected to work, less than 30 hours a week.

5. What must I do to enroll in the Plan?

Before you can join the Plan, you must complete an application to participate in the Plan. The application includes your personal

choices for each of the benefits which are being offered under the Plan. You must also authorize us to set some of your earnings aside in
order to pay for the benefits you have elected.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 71 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 71 of 373

11

OPERATION

1. How does this Plan operate?

Before the start of each Plan Year. you will be able to elect to have solne of your upcoming pay contributed to the Plan, These

amounts will be used to pay for the benefits you have chosen. The portion of your pay that is paid to the Plan is not subject to Federal and

State income or Social Security taxes. In other words, this allows you to use tax-free dollars to pay for certain kinds of benefits and

expenses 'öhich you normally pay for with out-of-pocket, taxable dollars. However, if you receive a reimbursement for an expense under

the Plan, you cannot claim a Federal income tax credit or deduction on your return. (See the Article entitled "General Information About
Our Plan" for the definition of "Plan Year. ")

111

CONTRIBUTIONS

How much of my pay may the Employer redirect?

Each year, you may elect to have us contribute on your behalf enough of your compensation to pay for the benefits that you elect
under the Plan. These amounts will be deducted from your pay over the course of the year.

2. What happens to contributions made to the Plan?

Before each Plan Year begins, you will select the benefits you uant and how much of the contributions should go touard each benefit.
It is very ilnportant that you make these choices carefully based on what you expect to spend on each covered benefit or expense during the
Plan Year. Later, they will be used to pay for the expenses as they arise during the Plan Year.

3. When must decide which accounts I want to use?

You are required by Federal law to decide before the Plan Year begins, during the election period (defined be10'B). You must decide
two things. First, which benefits you and, second, how much should go toward each benefit.

4. When is the election period for our Plan?

You will make your initial election on or before your entry date. (You should review Section I on Eligibility to better understand the
eligibility requirements and entry date.) Then, for each following Plan Year, the election period is established by the Administrator and

applied uniformly to all Participants. It will normally be a period of time prior to the beginning of each Plan Year. The Administrator will

inform you each year about the election period. (See the Article entitled "General Information About Our Plan" for the definition of Plan
Year.)

5. May I change my elections during the Plan Year?

Generally. you cannot change the elections you have made after the beginning of the Plan Year. However, there are certain limited

situations when you can change your elections. You are permitted to change elections if you have a "change in status" and you make an
election change that is consistent with Lhe change in status. Currently, Federal law considers the following events to be a change in status:

-- Marriage, divorce, death ofa spouse, legal separation or annulment;

— Change in the number of dependents, including birth, adoption, placement for adoption, or death ofa dependent;

Any of the following events for you, your spouse or dependent: termination or commencement of employment, a strike or lockout,
commencement or retum from an unpaid leave of absence, a change in worksite, or any other change in employment status that affects
eligibility for benefits;

-- One of your dependents satisfies or ceases to satisfy the requirements for coverage due to change in age, student status, or any
similar circumstance; and

-- A change in the place of residence of you, your spouse or dependent that would lead to a change in status, such as moving out of a
coverage area for insurance.

In addition, if you are participating in the Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account. then there is a change in status if your dependent
no longer meets the qualifications to be eligible for dependent care.

However, with respect to the Health Savings Account. you may modifr or rei oke your elections without having to have a change in
status.

nere are detailed rules on when a change in election is deemed to be consistent with a change in status. In addition, there are laws
that give you rights to change health coverage for you, your spouse, or your dependents, If you change coverage due to rights you have

2



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 72 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 72 of 373

under the law, then you can make a corresponding change in your elections under the Plan. If any of these conditions apply to you, you
should contact the Administrator.

Ifthe cost ofa benefit provided under the Plan increases or decreases during a Plan Year, then we will automatically increase or
decrease, as the case may be, your salary redirection election. Ifthe cost increases significantly, you will be permitted to either make
corresponding changes in your payments or revoke your election and obtain coverage under another benefit package option with similar
coverage, or revoke your election entirely.

Ifthe coverage under a Benefit is significantly curtailed or ceases during a Plan Year, then you may revoke your elections and elecl to
receive on a prospective basis coverage under another plan with similar coverage. In addition, if we add a new coverage option or eliminate
an existing option, you may elect the newly-added option (or elect another option if an option has been eliminated) and make

corresponding election changes to other options providing similar coverage. If you are not a Participant, you may elect to join the Plan.
There are also certain situations when you may be able to change your elections on account ofa change under the plan of your spouse's,
former spousers or dependent's employer.

These rules on change due to cost or coverage do not apply to the Health Flexible Spending Account, and you may not change your
election to the Health Flexible Spending Account if you make a change due to cost or coverage for insurance or if you decide to participate
in the Health Savings Account.

You may not change your election under the Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account if the cost change is imposed by a dependent
care provider who is your relative.

You may revoke your coverage under the employer's group health plan outside of our open enrollment period. if your employment
status changes from working at least 30 hours per week to less than 30 hours. This is regardless of whether the reduction in hours has
resulted in loss of eligibility. You must show intent to enroll in another health plan.

You may also revoke your coverage under our Employer sponsored group health plan if you are eligible to obtain coverage through
the health exchanges.

6. May I make new elections in future Plan Years?

Yes, you may. For each new Plan Year, you may change the elections that you previously made. You may also choose not to
participate in the Plan for the upcoming Plan Year. If you do not make new elections during the election period before a new Plan Year
begins, we will consider that to mean you have elected not to participate for the upcoming Plan Year.

BENEFITS

1. Health Flexible Spending Account

The Health Flexible Spending Account enables you to pay for expenses allowed under Sections 105 and 213(d) of the Intemal

Revenue Code which are not covered by our insured medical plan and save taxes al the same time. The Health Flexible Spending Account

allows you to be reimbursed by the Employer for expenses incurred by you and your dependents.

However, if you participate in a HSA. you can only be reimbursed by the Employer for out-of-pocket dental, vision or preventive care
expenses incurred by you and your dependents.

If you are a HSA participant, drug costs. including insulin, may be reimbursed if they are considered for dental. vision or preventive
care expenses.

You may be reimbursed for 'lover the counter" drugs only if those drugs are prescribed for you. You may not, however, be reimbursed
for the cost of other health care coverage maintained outside of the Plan, or for long-term care expenses. A list of cm ered expenses is
available from the Administrator.

For 2019, the most you can contribute is $2,700. After 2019, the dollar limit may increase for cost of living adjustments. The
minimum amount that you may contribute to the Health Flexible Spending Account each Plan Year is Sl 20.00.

In order to be reimbursed for a health care expense, you must submit to the Administrator an itemized bill from the service provider.

We will also provide you with a debit or credit card to use to pay for medical expenses. The Administrator will provide you with further
details. Amounts reimbursed from the Plan may not be claimed as a deduction on your personal income tax return. Reimbursement from
the fund shall be paid at least once a month. Expenses under this Plan are treated as being "incurred" when you are provided with the care

that gives rise to the expenses, not when you are formally billed or charged, or you pay for the medical care.

You may be reimbursed for expenses for any child until the end of the calendar year in which the child reaches age 26. A child is a
natural child, slepchild. foster child, adopted child, or a child placed with you for adoption. If a child gains or regains eligibility due to
these new rules, that qualifies as a change in status to change coverage.

3



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 73 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 73 of 373

Newborns' and Mothers' Health Protection Act: Group health plans generally may not, under Federal law, restrict benefits for any
hospital length of stay in connection with childbirth for the mother or newborn child to less than 48 hours following a vaginal delivery, or

less than 96 hours following a cesarean section. However, Federal law generally does not prohibit the mother's or newbornts attending

provider, after consulting with the mother, from discharging the mother or her newbom earlier than 48 hours (or 96 hours as applicable). In
any case, plans and issuers may not, under Federal law, require that a provider obtain authorization from the plan or the issuer for
prescribing a length of stay not in excess of 48 hours (or 96 hours).

Woments Health and Cancer Rights Act: This plan, as required by the Women's Health and Cancer Rights Act of 1998, will reimburse
up to plan limits for benefits for mastectomy-related services including reconstruction and surgery to achieve symmetry between the

breasts, prostheses, and complications resulting from a mastectomy (including lymphedema). Contact your Plan Administrator for more
infomation.

2. Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account

The Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account enables you to pay for out-of-pocket, work-related dependent day-care cost with

pre-tax dollars. If you are married, you can use the account if you and your spouse both work or, in some situations, if your spouse goes to
school full-time. Single employees can also use the account.

An eligible dependent is someone for 'Whom you can claim expenses on Federal Income Tax Form 2441 "Credit for Child and
Dependent Care Expenses." Children must be under age 13. Other dependents must be physically or mentally unable to care for
themselves. Dependent Care arrangements which qualiöt include:

(a) A Dependent (Day) Care Center. provided that if care is provided by the facility for more than six individuals. the facility
complies with applicable state and local laws:

(b) An Educational Institution for pre-school children. For older children, only expenses for non-school care are eligible; and

(c) An "Individual" uho provides care inside or outside your home: The "Individual" may not be a child of yours under age 19 or
anyone you claim as a dependent for Federal tax purposes.

You should make sure that the dependent care expenses you are currently paying for qualiö' under our Plan.

The law places limits on the amount of money that can be paid to you in a calendar year from your Dependent Care Flexible Spending
Account. Generally, your reimbursements may not exceed the lesser of: (a) $5,000 (if you are married filing ajoint return or you are head
ofa household) or $2,500 (if you are married filing separate returns); (b) your taxable compensation; (c) your spouse's actual or deemed
earned income (a spouse who is a full time student or incapable of caring for himself/herselfhas a monthly earned income of $250 for one
dependent or $500 for two or more dependents).

Also, in order to have the reimbursements made to you from this account be excludable from your income, you must provide a
statement from the service provider including the name, address, and in most cases, the taxpayer identification nulnber of the service

provider on your tax form for the year, as well as the amount of such expense as proof that the expense has been incurred. In addition,

Federal tax laws permit a tax credit for certain dependent care expenses you may be paying for even ifyou are not a Participant in this Plan.
You may save more money if you take advantage of this tax credit rather than using the Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account under
our Plan. Ask your tax adviser which is better for you.

3. Premium Expense Account

A Premium Expense Account allows you to use tax-free dollars to pay for certain premium expenses under various insurance
programs that we offer you. These premium expenses include:

-- Health care premiums under our insured group medical plan.

-- Dental insurance premiums.

-- Cancer insurance premiums.

-- Vision insurance premiums.

Other insurance coverage that we may provide.

Under our Plan, we witl establish sub-accounts for you for each different type of insurance coverage that is available. Also, certain
limits on the amount of coverage may apply.

The Administrator may terminate or modify Plan benefits al any time, suhiecl to the provisions of any insurance contracts providing
benefits described above. We will not be liable to you if an insurance company fails to provide any of the benefits described above. Also,
your insurance will end when you leave employment, are no longer eligible under the terms of any insurance policies, or when insurance
terminates.

4



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 74 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 74 of 373

Any benefits to be provided by insurance will be provided only after (1 ) you have provided the Administrator the necessary
information to apply for insurance, and (2) the insurance is in effect for you.

If you cover your children up to age 26 under your insurance, you can pay for that coverage through the Plan.

4. May I direct Plan contributions to my Health Savings Account?

Yes. Any monies that you do not apply toward available benefits can be contributed to your Health Savings Account, which enables
you to pay for expenses which are not covered by our insured medical plan and save taxes at the same time. Please see your Plan
Administrator for further details.

BENEFIT PAYMENTS

1. When will I receive payments from my accounts?

During the course of the Plan Year, you may submit requests for reimbursement of expenses you have incurred. Expenses are
considered "incurred" when the service is performed, not necessarily when it is paid for. The Administrator will provide you with

acceptable forms for submitting these requests for reimbursement. Ifthe request qualifies as a benefit or expense that the Plan has agreed to

pay, you will receive a reimbursement payment soon thereafter. Remember, these reimbursements which are made from the Plan are

generally not subject to federal income tax or withholding. Nor are they subject to Social Security taxes. Requests for payment of insured
benefits should be made directly to the insurer. You will only be reimbursed from the Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account to the
extent that there are sufficient funds in the Account to cover your request.

2. happens if I don't spend all Plan contributions during the Plan Year?

Any monies left at the end of the Plan Year will be forfeited, except for amounts contributed to your Health Savings Account.
Obviously, qualifying expenses that you incur late in the Plan Year for which you seek reimbursement after the end of such Plan Year will

be paid first before any amount is forfeited. For the Health Flexible Spending Account, you must submit claims no later than 90 days after

the end of the Plan Year. For the Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account, you must submit claims no later than 90 days after the end of
the Plan Year. Because it is possible that you might forfeit amounts in the Plan if you do not fully use the contributions that have been

made, it is important that you decide how much to place in each account carefully and conservatively. Remember, you must decide which
benefits you want to contribute to and how much to place in each account before the Plan Year begins. You want to be as certain as you can
that the amount you decide to place in each account will be used up entirely.

3. Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA)

If you take leave under the Family and Medical Leave Act, you may revoke or change your existing elections for health insurance and the
Health Flexible Spending Account. If your coverage in these benefits terminates, due to your revocation of the benefit while on leave or due to

your non-payment of contributions, you will be permitted to reinstate coverage for the remaining part of the Plan Year upon your return. For

the Health Flexible Spending Account, you may continue your coverage, or you may revoke your coverage and resume it when you return.
You can resume your coverage at its original level and make payments for the time that you are on leave. For example, if you elect $1 for

the year and are out on leave for 3 months, then return and elect to resume your coverage at that level, your remaining payments will be

incteased to cover the difference from $100 per month to $150 per month. Alternatively, your maximum amount will be reduced
proportionately for the time that you were gone. For example, if you elect $1 ,200 for the year and are out on leave for 3 months, your amount

will be reduced to $900. The expenses you incur during the time you are not in the Health Flexible Spending Account are not reimbursable.

If you continue your coverage during your unpaid leave, you may pre-pay for the coverage, you may pay for your coverage on an after-tax
basis while you are on leave, or you and your Employer may arrange a schedule for you to "catch up" your payments when you retum.

4. Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA)

If you are going inlo or returning from military service, you may have special rights to health care coverage under your Health Flexible
Spending Account under the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994. These rights can include extended
health care coverage. If you may be affected by this law, ask your Administrator for further details.

5. What happens if I terminate employment?

If you terminate employment during the Plan Year, your right to benefits will be determined in the following manner:

(a) You will remain covered by insurance. but only for the period for which premiums have been paid prior to your termination of
employment.

(b) You will still be able to request reimbursement for qualifying dependent care expenses incurred prior to your date of termination
from the balance remaining in your dependent care account at the time of termination of employment. However, no further salary

redirection contributions will be made on your behalf after you terminate. You must submit claims within 30 days after termination.

5



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 75 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 75 of 373

(c) Your Health Savings Account amounts will remain yours even after your termination ofemployment.

(d) For health benefit cm erage and Health Flexible Spending Account coverage on termination of employment, please see the
Article entitled "Continuation Coverage Rights Under COBRA." Upon your termination of employment, your participation in the
Health Flexible Spending Account will cease, and no further salary redirection contributions will be contributed on your behalf.

However, you will be able to submit claims for health care expenses that were incurred before the end of the period for which

payments to the Health Flexible Spending Account have already been made. Your further participation will be governed by
"Continuation Coverage Rights Under COBRA. "

6. Will my Social Security benefits be affected?

Your Social Security benefits may be slightly reduced because when you receive tax-free benefits under our Plan, it reduces the
amount of contributions that you make to the Federal Social Security system as well as our contribution to Social Security on your behalf.

HIGHLY COMPENSATED AND KEY EMPLOYEES

J. Do limitations apply to highly compensated employees?

Under the Internal Revenue Code, highly compensated employees and key employees generally are Participants are officers,

shareholders or highly paid. You will be notified by the Administrator each Plan Year whether you are a highly compensated employee or a
key employee.

If you are within these categories, the amount of contributions and benefits for you may be limited so that the Plan as a whole does not
unfairly favor those who are highly paid, their spouses or their dependents. Federal tax laws state that a plan will be considered to unfairly
favor the key employees if they as a group receive more than 25% of all of the nontaxable benefits provided for under our Plan.

Plan experience will dictate Mhether contribution limitations on highly compensated employees or key employees will apply. You will
be notified of these limitations if you are affected.

PLAN ACCOUNTING

Periodic Statements

The Administrator will provide you with a statement of your account periodically during the Plan Year that shows your account

balance. It is important to read these statements carefully, so you understand the balance remaining to pay for a benefit. Remember, you
v.ant to spend all the money you have designated for a particular benefit by the end of the Plan Year.

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT OUR PLAN

This Section contains certain general information which you may need to know about the Plan.

1. General Plan Information

Lee County Government Flexible Benefit Plan is the name of the Plan.

Your Employer has assigned Plan Number 501 to your Plan.

The provisions of your amended Plan become effective on August 1, 2019. Your Plan was originally effective on August 1, 2007.

Your Plan's records are maintained on a twelve-month period of time. This is known as the Plan Year. The Plan Year begins on
August I and ends on July 31.

2. Employer Information

Your Employer's name, address, and identification number are:

Lee County Government
408 Summit Drive

Sanford. North Carolina 27330

56-6000313

6



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 76 of 373

3.

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 76 of 373

Plan Administrator Information

The name, address and business telephone number of your Plants Administrator are:

Lee County Government

408 Summit Drive

Sanford, North Carolina 27330

(919) 718-4615

The Administrator keeps the records for the Plan and is responsible for the administration of the Plan. The Administrator will also

answer any questions you may have about our Plan. You may contact the Administrator for any further information about the Plan.

4.

5.

6.

1.

Service of Legal Process

The name and address of the Plan's agent for service of legal process are:

Lee County Government

408 Summit Drive

Sanford, North Carolina 27330

Type of Administration

The type of Administration is Employer Administration.

Claims Submission

Claims for expenses should be submitted to:

Flexible Benefit Administrators, Inc.

Post Office Drawer 8188

Virginia Beach, VA 23450

ADDITIONAL PLAN INFORMATION

Claims Process

You should submit all reimbursement claims during the Plan Year. For the Health Flexible Spending Account, you must submit
claims no later than 90 days after the end of the Plan Year. However. if you terminate employment during the Plan Year, you must submit

your Health Flexible Spending Account claims within 30 days after your termination of employment. For the Dependent Care Flexible

Spending Account, you musl submit claims no later than 90 days after the end of the Plan Year. However. if you terminate employment

during the Plan Year, you must submit your Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account claims within 30 days aner your termination of
employment. Any claims submitted after that time "ill not be considered.

Claims that are insured will be handled in accordance with procedures contained in the insurance policies. All olher general requests

should be directed to the Administrator ofour Plan. If a dependent care or medical expense claim under the Plan is denied in whole or in

part, you or your beneficiary will receive written notification. The notification will include the reasons for the denial. with reference to the

specific provisions ofthe Plan on which the denial v,as based, a description of any additional information needed to process the claim and

an explanation of the claims revie'B procedure. Within 60 days after denial, you or your beneficiary may submit a written request for
reconsideration of the denial to the Administrator.

Any such request should be accompanied by documents or records in support of your appeal. You or your beneficiary may review
pertinent documents and submit issues and comments in writing. The Administrator will review the claim and provide, within 60 days, a

written response to the appeal. (This period may be extended an additional 60 days under certain circumstances.) Jn this response. the
Administrator will explain the reason for the decision, with specific reference to the provisions of the Plan on which the decision is based.

The Administrator has the exclusive right to interpret the appropriate plan provisions. Decisions of the Administrator are conclusive and

binding.

x
CONTINUATION COVTRAGE RIGHTS UNDER COBRA

Under federal law. the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985 (COBRA), certain employees and their fami}ies
covered under health benefits under this Plan will be entitled to the opportunity 10 elect a temporary extension of health coverage (called

"COBRA continuation coverage") where coverage under the Plan would otherwise end. This notice is intended to inform Plan Participants
and beneficiaries, in summary fashion, of their rights and obligations under the continuation coverage provisions of COBRA, as amended
and reflected in final and proposed regulations published by the Department of the Treasury. This notice is intended to reflect the lau and
does not grant or lake away any rights under the law.

7



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 77 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 77 of 373

The Plan Administrator or its designee is responsible for administering COBRA continuation coverage. Complete instructions on
COBRA, as well as election forms and other information, will be provided by the Plan Administrator or its designee to Plan Participants
who become Qualified Beneficiaries under COBRA. While the Plan itself is not a group health plan, it does provide health benefits.
Whenever "Plan" is used in this section, it means any of the health benefits under this Plan including the Health Flexible Spending
Account.

l. What is COBRA continuation coverage?

COBRA continuation coverage is the temporary extension of group health plan coverage that must be offered to certain Plan
Participants and their eligible family members (called 'Qualified Beneficiaries") at group rates. The right to COBRA continuation coverage
is triggered by the occurrence ofa life event that results in the loss of coverage under the terms of the Plan (the "Qualifying Event"). The

coverage must be identical to the coverage that the Qualified Beneficiary had immediately before the Qualifring Event, or if the coverage

has been changed, the coverage must be identical to the coverage provided to similarly situated active employees who have nol experienced
a Qualifying Event (in other words, similarly situated non-COBRA beneficiaries).

There may be other options available when you lose group health coverage. For example, you may be eligible to buy an individual
plan through the Health Insurance Marketplace. By enrolling in coverage through the Marketplace, you may qualify for lower costs on your
monthly premiums and lower out-of-pocket costs. Additionally, you may qualify for a 30-day special enrollment period for another group
health plan for which you are eligible (such as a spouse's plan), even if that plan generally doesnt accept late enrollees.

2. Who can become a Qualified Beneficiany?

In general. a Qualified Beneficiary can be:

(a) Any individual who. on the day before a Qualifring Event, is covered under a Plan by virtue of being on that day either a covered
Employee, the Spouse ofa covered Employee. or a Dependent child ofa covered Employee. Jf, however, an individual who otherwise
qualifies as a Qualified Beneficiary is denied or not offered coverage under the Plan under circumstances in which the denial or failure

to offer constitutes a violation of applicable law, then the individual '*ill be considered to have had the coverage and will be

considered a Qualified Beneficiary if that individual experiences a Qualifying Event.

(b) Any child who is born to or placed for adoption with a covered Employee during a period of COBRA continuation coverage, and
any individual who is covered by the Plan as an alternate recipient under a qualified medical support order. If, however, an individual
who othemise qualifies as a Qualified Beneficiary is denied or not offered coverage under the Plan under circumstances in which the
denial or failure to offer constitutes a violation of applicable law, then the individual will be considered to have had the coverage and

will be considered a Qualified Beneficiary if that individual experiences a Qualifring Event.

The term "covered Employee" includes any individual who is provided coverage under the Plan due to his or her performance of
services for the employer sponsoring the Plan. er, this provision does not establish eligibility of these individuals. Eligibility for Plan
coverage shall be determined in accordance uith Plan Eligibility provisions.

An individual is not a Qualified Beneficiary if the individualts status as a covered Employee is attributable to a period in which the
individual was a nonresident alien who received from the individualts Employer no earned income thal constituted income from sources
within the United States. If. on account of the preceding reason. an individual is not a Qualified Beneficiary, then a Spouse or Dependent

child of the individual will also not be considered a Qualified Beneficiary by virtue of the relationship to the individual. A domestic partner
is not a Qualified Beneficiary.

Each Qualified Beneficiary (including a child who is bom to or placed for adoption with a covered Employee during a period of
COBRA continuation coverage) must be offered the opportunity to make an independent election to receive COBRA continuation
coverage.

3. What is a Qualifying Event?

A Qualifying Event is any of the following if the Plan provided that the Plan participant would lose coverage (i.e., cease to be covered
under the same terms and conditions as in effect immediately before the Qualifying Event) in the absence of COBRA continuation
coverage:

(a) The death ofa covered Employee.

(b) The termination (other than by reason of the Employee's gross misconduct), or reduction of hours, ofa covered Employeers
employment.

(c) The divorce or legal separation ofa covered Employee from the Employee's Spouse. Ifthe Employee reduces or eliminates the

Employee's Spouse's Plan coverage in anticipation ofa divorce or legal separation, and a divorce or legal separation later occurs, then

the divorce or legal separation may be considered a Qualifying Event even though the Spousets coverage was reduced or eliminated
before the divorce or legal separation.

8



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 78 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 78 of 373

(d) A covered Employee's enrollment in any part of the Medicare program.

(e) A Dependent child's ceasing to satisö' the Plan's requirements for a Dependent child (for example, attainment of the maximum
age for dependency under the Plan).

Ifthe Qualiö'ing Event causes the covered Employee, or the covered Spouse or a Dependent child of the covered Employee, to cease

to be covered under the Plan under the same terms and conditions as in effect immediately before the Qualifying Event, the persons losing

such coverage become Qualified Beneficiaries under COBRA if all the other conditions of COBRA are also met. For example, any increase
in contribution that must be paid by a covered Employee, or the Spouse, or a Dependent child of the covered Employee, for coverage under
the Plan that results from the occurrence of one of the events listed above is a loss of coverage.

The taking of leave under the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993, as amended ("FMLA") does not constitute a Qualifring Event.
A Qualifying Event will occur, however, if an Employee does not return to employment at the end of the FMLA leave and all other
COBRA continuation coverage conditions are present. If a Qualifying Event occurs, it occurs on the last day ofFMLA leave and the
applicable maximum coverage period is measured from this date (unless coverage is lost at a later date and the Plan provides for the
extension of the required periods, in which case the maximum coverage date is measured from the date when the coverage is lost.) Note
that the covered Employee and family members will be entitled to COBRA continuation coverage even if they failed to pay the employee
portion of premiums for coverage under the Plan during the FMLA leave.

4. What factors should be considered when determining to elect COBRA continuation coverage?

When considering options for health coverage, Qualified Beneficiaries should consider:

Premiums: This plan can charge up to 102% of total plan premiums for COBRA coverage. Other options, like coverage on a
spouse's plan or through the Marketplace, may be less expensive. Qualified Beneficiaries have special enrollment rights under
federal law (HIPAA). They have the right to request special enrollment in another group health plan for which they are otherwise

eligible (such as a plan sponsored by a spouse's employer) within 30 days aner Plan coverage ends due to one of the Qualifying
Events listed above.

Provider Networks: If a Qualified Beneficiary is currently getting care or treatment for a condition, a change in health coverage

may affect access to a particular health care provider. You may "ant to check to see if your current health care providers
participate in a network in considering options for health coverage.

Drug Formularies: For Qualified Beneficiaries taking medication, a change in health coverage may affect costs for medication —
and in some cases, the medication may not be covered by another plan. Qualified beneficiaries should check to see if current
medications are listed in drug formularies for other health coverage.

Severance payments: If COBRA rights arise because the Employee has lost his job and there is a severance package available
from the employer, the former employer may have offered to pay some or all oflhe Employee's COBRA payments for a period
of time. This can affect the timing of coverage available in the Marketplace. In this scenario, the Employee may want to contact
the Department of Labor at I -866-444-3272 to discuss options.

Medicare Eligibility: You should be aware of how COBRA coverage coordinates with Medicare eligibility. If you are eligible
for Medicare at the time of the Qualifying Events or if you will become eligible soon after the Qualifying Event, you should knovv

that you have 8 months to enroll in Medicare after your employment —related health coverage ends. Electing COBRA coverage
does not extend this 8-month period. For Inore information, see

Service Areas: If benefits under the Plan are limited 10 specific service or coverage areas, benefits may not be available to a
Qualified Beneficiary who moves out of the area.

Other Cost-Sharing: In addition to premiums or contributions for health coverage, the Plan requires participants to pay

copayments, deductibles, coinsurance, or other amounts as benefits are used. Qualified beneficiaries should check to see what the

cost-sharing requirements are for other health coverage options. For example, one option may have much lower monthly
premiums, but a much higher deductible and higher copayments.

Are there other coverage options besides COBRA Continuation Coverage? Yes. Instead of enrolling in COBRA continuation
coverage, there may be other coverage options for Qualified Beneficiaries through the Health Insurance Marketplace, Medicaid, or other
group health plan coverage options (such as a spouse's plan) through what is called a "special enrollment period." Some of these options
may cost less than COBRA continuation coverage. You can learn more about many of these options at wuu.healthcare.gov.

5. What is the procedure for obtaining COBRA continuation coverage?

The Plan has conditioned the availability of COBRA continuation coverage upon the timely election of such coverage. An election is
timely if it is made during the election period.

9



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 79 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 79 of 373

6. What is the election period and how long must it last?

The election period is the time period "ithin which the Qualified Beneficiary must elect COBRA continuation coverage under the
Plan. The election period must begin no later than the date the Qualified Beneficiary would lose coverage on account of the Qualifring

Event and ends 60 days after the later of the date the Qualified Beneficiary would lose coverage on account of the Qualifring Event or the

date notice is provided to the Qualified Beneficiary of her or his right to elect COBRA continuation coverage. If coverage is not elected
within the 60 day period. all rights to elect COBRA continuation coverage are forfeited.

Note: If a covered Employee who has been terminated or experienced a reduction of hours qualifies for a trade readjustlnent a110"ance
or alternative trade adjustment assistance under a federal law called the Trade Act of 2002, as extended by the Trade Preferences Extension

Act of 2015, and the employee and his or her covered dependents have not elected COBRA erage within the normal election period, a

second opportunity to elect COBRA coverage will be made available for themselves and certain family members, but only within a limited
period of 60 days or less and only during the six months immediately after their group health plan coverage ended. Any person who
qualifies or thinks that he or she and.'or his or her family members may qualify for assistance under this special provision should contact the
Plan Administrator or its designee for further information about the special second election period. If continuation coverage is elected

under this extension, it will not become effective prior to the beginning of this special second election period.

Is a covered Employee or Qualified Beneficiary responsible for informing the Plan Administrator of the occurrence of a7.

Qualifying Event?

The Plan will offer COBRA continuation coverage to Qualified Beneficiaries only after the Plan Administrator or its designee has
been timely notified that a Qualifring Event has occurred. The Employer (if the Employer is not the Plan Administrator) will notiö' the

Plan Administrator or its designee of the Qualifring Event within 30 days following the date coverage ends when the Qualifring Event is:

(a) the end of employment or reduction of hours of employment,

(b) death of the employee,

(c) commencement ofa proceeding in bankruptcy with respect to the Employer, or

(d) entitlement of the employee to any part of Medicare.

IMPORTANT:

For the other Qualifring Events (divorce or legal separation of the employee and spouse or a dependent child's losing

eligibility for coverage as a dependent child), you or someone on your behalf must notify the Plan Administrator or its designee in

writing within 60 days after the Qualifying Event occurs, using the procedures specified below. If these procedures are not followed

or if the notice is not provided in writing to the Plan Administrator or its designee during the 60-day notice period, any spouse or

dependent child who loses coverage will not be offered the option to elect continuation coverage. You must send this notice to the
Plan Administrator or its designee.

NOTICE PROCEDURES:

Any notice that you provide must be in writing. Oral notice, including notice by telephone, is not acceptable. You must mail, fax
or hand-deliver your notice to the person. department or firm listed belou, at the following address:

Lee County Government
408 Summit Drive

Sanford, North Carolina 27330

If mailed, your notice must be postmarked no later than the last day of the required notice period. Any notice you provide must state:

the name of the plan or plans under which you lost or are losing coverage,
the name and address of the employee covered under the plan,

the name(s) and address(es) of the Qualified Beneficiary(ies), and

the Qualifying Event and the date it happened.

Ifthe Qualifring Event is a divorce or legal separation, your notice must include a copy of the divorce decree or the legal

separation agreement.

Be aware that there are other notice requirements in other contexts, for example. in order to qualify for a disability extension.

Once the Plan Administrator or its designee receives timely notice that a Qualifying Event has occurred, COBRA continuation
coverage will be offered 10 each of the qualified beneficiaries. Each Qualified Beneficiary will have an independent right to elect

COBRA continuation coverage. Covered employees may elect COBRA continuation coverage for their spouses, and parents may e lect

10



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 80 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 80 of 373

COBRA continuation coverage on behalfoftheir children. For each Qualified Beneficiary who elects COBRA continuation coverage,
COBRA continuation coverage will begin on the date that plan coverage would otherwise have been lost. If you or your spouse or
dependent children do not elect continuation coverage within the 60-day election period described above, the right to elect continuation
coverage will be lost.

8. Is a waiver before the end of the election period effective to end a Qualified Beneficiary's election rights?

If, during the election period, a Qualified Beneficiary waives COBRA continuation coverage, the waiver can be revoked at any time
before the end of the election period. Revocation of the waiver is an election of COBRA continuation coverage. However, if a waiver is
later revoked, coverage need not be provided retroactively (that is, from the date of the loss of coverage until the waiver is revoked).

Waivers and revocations of waivers are considered made on the date they are sent to the Plan Administrator or its designee, as applicable.

9. Is COBRA coverage available if a Qualified Beneficiary has other group health plan coverage or Medicare?

Qualified Beneficiaries who are entitled to elect COBRA continuation coverage may do so even if they are covered under another
group health plan or are entitled to Medicare benefits on or before the date on "hich COBRA is elected. However, a Qualified
Beneficiary's COBRA coverage will terminate automatically if, after electing COBRA, he or she becomes entitled to Medicare or becomes
covered under other group health plan coverage.

10. When may a Qualified Beneficiary's COBRA continuation coverage be terminated?

During the election period, a Qualified Beneficiary may waive COBRA continuation coverage. Except for an interruption of coverage
in connection with a waiver, COBRA continuation coverage that has been elected for a Qualified Beneficiary must extend for at least the
period beginning on the date of the Qualifying Event and ending not before the earliest of the following dates:

(a) The last day of the applicable maximum coverage period.

(b) The first day for which Timely Payment is not made to the Plan with respect to the Qualified Beneficiary.

(c) The date upon which the Employer ceases to provide any group health plan (including a successor plan) to any employee.

(d) The date, after the date of the election, that the Qualified Beneficiary first becomes entitled to Medicare (either part A or part B,
whichever occurs earlier).

(e) In the case ofa Qualified Beneficiary entitled to a disability extension, the later of:

(1) (i) 29 months after the date of the Qualifying Event, or (ii) the first day of the month that is more than 30 days after the date

ofa final determination under Title II or XVI of the Social Security Act that the disabled Qualified Beneficiary whose disability
resulted in the Qualified Beneficiarys entitlement to the disability extension is no longer disabled, whichever is earlier; or

(2) the end of the maximum coverage period that applies to the Qualified Beneficiary without regard to the disability extension.

The Plan can terminate for cause the coverage of a Qualified Beneficiary on the same basis that the Plan terminates for cause the

coverage of similarly situated non-COBRA beneficiaries, for example. for the submission ofa fraudulent claim.

In the case of an individual who is not a Qualified Beneficiary and who is receiving coverage under the Plan solely because of the
indÄ idual's relationship to a Qualified Beneficiary, if the Plan's obligation to make COBRA continuation coverage available to the
Qualified Beneficiary ceases, the Plan is not obligated to make coverage available to the individual who is not a Qualified Beneficiary.

11. What are the maximum coverage periods for COBRA continuation coverage?

The maximum coverage periods are based on the type of the QualiWing Event and the status of the Qualified Beneficiary, as shown
below.

(a) In the case ofa Qualifying Event that is a termination of employment or reduction of hours of employment, the maximum
coverage period ends 18 months after the Qualifring Event if there is not a disability extension and 29 months after the Qualifying
Event if there is a disability extension.

(b) In the case ofa covered Employee's enrollment in the Medicare program before experiencing a Qualifying Event that is a

termination of employment or reduction of hours of employment, the maximum coverage period for Qualified Beneficiaries ends on
the later of:

(1) 36 months after the date the covered Employee becomes enrolled in the Medicare program. This extension does not apply to

the covered Employee; or

(2) 18 months (or 29 months, if there is a disability extension) after the date of the covered Employee's termination of
employment or reduction of hours of employment.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 81 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 81 of 373

(c) In the case ofa Qualified Beneficiary who is a child born to or placed for adoption with a covered Employee during a period of
COBRA continuation coverage, the maximum coverage period is the maximum coverage period applicable to the Qualifying Event
giving rise to the period of COBRA continuation coverage during which the child was bom or placed for adoption.

(d) In the case of any other Qualifying Event than that described above, the maximum coverage period ends 36 months after the
Qualifring Event.

12. Under what circumstances can the maximum coverage period be expanded?

If a Qualifying Event that gives rise to an 18-month or 29-month maximum coverage period is f0110'öed, within that 18- or 29-month
period, by a second Qualifring Event that gives rise to a 36-months maximum coverage period, the original period is expanded to 36
months, but only for individuals who are Qualified Beneficiaries at the time of and with respect to both Qualifying Events. In no
circumstance can the COBRA maximum coverage period be expanded to more than 36 months after the date of the first Qualifring Event.
The Plan Administrator must be notified of the second qualifying event within 60 days of the second qualifring event. This notice must be

sent to the Plan Administrator or its designee in accordance with the procedures above.

13. How does a Qualified Beneficiary become entitled to a disability extension?

A disability extension will be granted if an individual (whether or not the covered Employee) who is a Qualified Beneficiary in
connection with the Qualifring Event that is a termination or reduction of hours of a covered Employee's employment, is determined under

Title II or XVI of the Social Security Act to have been disabled at any time during the first 60 days of COBRA continuation coverage. To
quali$' for the disability extension, the Qualified Beneficiary must also provide the Plan Administrator with notice of the disability

determination on a date that is both within 60 days after the date of the determination and before the end of the original 18-month

maximum coverage. This notice must be sent to the Plan -Administrator or its designee in accordance with the procedures above.

14. Does the Plan require payment for COBRA continuation coverage?

For any period of COBRA continuation coverage under the Plan, Qualified Beneficiaries who elect COBRA continuation coverage
may required to pay up to 1020/0 of the applicable premium and up to 150% of the applicable premium for any expanded period of
COBRA continuation coverage covering a disabled Qualified Beneficiary due to a disability extension. Your Plan Administrator will
inform you of the cost. The Plan will terminate a Qualified Beneficiary's COBRA continuation coverage as of the first day of any period for
which timely payment is not made.

15. Must the Plan allow payment for COBRA continuation coverage to be made in monthly installments?

Yes. The Plan is also permitted to allow for payment at other intervals.

16. What is Timely Payment for COBRA continuation coverage?

Timely Payment means a payment made no later than 30 days after the first day of the coverage period. Payment that is made to the
Plan by a later date is also considered Timely Payment ifeither under the terms of the Plan, cmered Employees or Qualified Beneficiaries

are allowed until that later date to pay for their coverage for the period or under the terms of an arrangement between the Employer and the

entity that provides Plan benefits on the Employerts behalf, the Employer is allowed until that later date to pay for coverage of similarly
situated non-COBRA beneficiaries for the period.

Notwithstanding the above paragraph, the Plan does not require payment for any period of COBRA continuation coverage for a
Qualified Beneficiary earlier than 45 days after the date on which the election of COBRA continuation coverage is made for that Qualified
Beneficiary. Payment is considered made on the date on which it is postmarked to the Plan.

If Timely Payment is made to the Plan in an amount that is not significantly less than the amount the Plan requires to be paid for a
period of coverage, then the amount paid will be deemed to satisfy the Plan's requirement for the amount to be paid, unless the Plan notifies

the Qualified Beneficiary of the amount of the deficiency and grants a reasonable period of time for payment of the deficiency to be made.

A "reasonable period of time" is 30 days after the notice is provided. A shortfall in a Timely Payment is not significant if it is no greater
than the lesser of $50 or of the required amount.

17. Must a Qualified Beneficiary be given the right to enroll in a conversion health plan at the end of the maximum coverage
period for COBRA continuation coverage?

If a Qualified Beneficiary's COBRA continuation coverage under a group health plan ends as a result of the expiration of the applicable
maximum coverage period, the Plan will. during the 180-day period that ends on that expiration date, provide the Qualified Beneficiary
with the option of enrolling under a conversion health plan if such an option is otherwise generally available to silnilarly situated non-

COBRA beneficiaries under the Plan. If such a conversion option is not otherwise generally available, it need not be made available to
Qualified Beneficiaries.

18. How is my participation in the Health Flexible Spending Account affected?

12



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 82 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 82 of 373

You can elect to continue your participation in the Health Flexible Spending Account for the remainder of the Plan Year, subject to
the following conditions. You may only continue to participate in the Health Flexible Spending Account if you have elected to contribute
more money than you have taken out in claims. For example, if you elected to contribute an annual amount of $500 and, at the time you
terminate employment, you have contributed $300 but only claimed $150, you may elect to continue coverage under the Health Flexible
Spending Account. Ifyou elect to continue coverage, then you would be able to continue to receive your health reimbursements up to the

$500. However, you must continue to pay for the coverage, just as the money has been taken out of your paycheck. but on an after-tax
basis. Ihe Plan can also charge you an extra amount (as explained above for other health benefits) to provide this benefit.

IF YOU HAVE QUESTIONS

If you have questions about your COBRA continuation coverage, you should contact the Plan Administrator or its designee. For more
information about your rights under ERISA, including COBRA. the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA), and
other laws affecting group health plans, contact the nearest Regional or District Offce of the U.S. Departrnent of Labor's Employee

Benefits Security Adlninistration (EBSA). Addresses and phone numbers of Regional and District EBSA Offices are available through
EBSAls website at www.dol.govebsa.

KEEP YOUR PLAN ADMINISTRATOR INFORMED OF ADDRESS CHANGES

In order to protect your familyts rights, you should keep the Plan Administrator informed of any changes in the addresses of family

members. You should also keep a copy, for your records, of any notices you send to the Plan Administrator or its designee.

SUMMARY

lhe money you eam is important to you and your family. You need it to pay your bills, enjoy recreational activities and save for the
future. Our flexible benefits plan will help you keep more of the money you earn by lowering the amount of taxes you pay. ne Plan is the
result of our continuing efforts to find ways to help you get the most for your eamings.

If you have any questions, please contact the Administrator.

13



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 83 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 83 of 373

LEE COUNTY GOVERNMENT
FLEXIBLE BENEFIT PLAN



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 84 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 84 of 373

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE 1
DEFINITIONS

ARTICLE 11
PARTICIPATION

ELIGIBILITY ...... .... .. ....

22 EFFECTIVE DATE OF PARTICIPATION ... .

APPLICATION TO PARTICIPATE

2.4 TERMINATION OF PARTICIPATION .....

25 CHANGE OF EMPLOYMENT STATUS

2.6 TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT ....................

2.7

ARTICLE
CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE PLAN

3.1 SALARY REDIRECTION

3.2 APPLICATION OF CONTRIBUTIONS

3.3

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.6

4.8

4.9

5.1

...... 10

PERIODIC CONTRIBUTIONS

BENEFIT OPTIONS

ARTICLE
BENEFITS

4.4

4.10

6.1

6.2

HEALTH FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNT BENEFIT

DEPENDENT CARE FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNT BENEFIT............

HEALTH INSURANCE BENEFIT

DENTAL INSURANCE BENEFIT

CANCER INSURANCE BENEFIT ................. ..

VISION INSURANCE BENEFIT

OTHER INSURANCE BENEFIT

HEALTH SAVINGS ACCOUNT BENEFIT ........

NONDISCRIMINATION REQUIREMENTS

ARTICLE V
PARTICIPANT ELECTIONS

INITIAL ELECTIONS ..........

SUBSEQI JENT ANNUAL ELECTIONS

FAILURE TO ELECT

CHANGE IN STATUS

ARTICLE VI
HEALTH FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNT

ESTABLISHMENT OF PLAN ............................

DEFINITIONS ..

FORFEITURES..........

LIMITATION ON ALLOCATIONS

.. 10



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 85 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 85 of 373

10

6.6
..... 10

6.8

7.1

7.3

7.5

7.6

7.7

FORFEITURES

7.9

8.1

11.3

11.4

11.5

NONDISCRIMINATION REQUIREMENTS

COORDINATION 'MTH CAFETERIA PLAN

HEALTH FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNT CLAIMS

DEBIT AND CREDIT CARDS...................

7.10

7.11

7.12

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

10.1

10.2

11.1

11.2

II.6

ARTICLE VII
DEPENDENT CARE FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNT

ESTABLISHMENT OF ACCOUNT

DEFINITIONS ... .... ..

DEPENDENT CARE FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNTS ................... ..

INCREASES IN DEPENDENT CARE FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNTS

DECREASES JN DEPENDENT CARE FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNTS ..........

ALLOWABLE DEPENDENT CARE REIMBURSEMENT ... ..... .

ANNUAL STATEMENT OF BENEFITS......... .

LIMITATION ON PAYMENTS

NONDISCRIMINATION REQUIREMENTS ..

COORDINATION WITH CAFETERIA

DEPENDENT CARE FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACC01D•qT CLAIMS .................

ARTICLE VIII
BENEFITS AND RIGHTS

CLAIM FOR BENEFITS ................

APPLICATION OF BENEFIT PLAN SURPLUS

ARTICLE
ADMINISTIUTION

PLAN ADMINISTRATION

EXAMINATION OF RECORDS....... .

PAYMENT OF EXPENSES ..... .... .... .. ..

INSURANCE CONTROL CLAUSE

INDEMNIFICATION OF ADMINISTRATOR........

ARTICLE X
AMENDMENT OR TERMINATION OF PLAN

AMENDMENT

TERMINATION

ARTICLE
MISCELLANEOUS

PLAN INTERPRETATION ... ..

GENDER, NUMBER AND TENSE

WRITTEN DOCUMENT

EXCLUSIVE BENEFIT ......................... ...

PARTICIPANT'S RIGHTS

ACTION BY 11--1E EMPLOYER

11

.12

12

12

.13

13

.13

13

13

13

.13

13

14

14

15

15

........... 16

16

.16

.. .. ..... ..... ....... 16

.17

17

17

17

. 17

......... 17

17

17



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 86 of 373

EMPLOYER'S PROTECTIVE CLAUSES ............

9

.14

.15

16

17

11.20

11.21

11.22

1 1.23

11.8 NO GUARANTEE OF TAX CONSEQUENCES

11.

11.10

11.11

11.12

11.13 CAPTIONS......................

11

11

11.18

11.19

INDEMNIFICATION OF EMPLOYER BY PARTICIPANTS

FUNDING

GOVERNING LAW.......

SEVERABILITY

CONTINUATION OF COVERAGE (COBRA)

FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT (FMLA)

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT (HIPAA)

UNIFORMED SERVICES EMPLOYMENT AND REEMPLOYMENT RIGHTS ACT (USERRA) .

COMPLIANCE I-IIPAA PRIVACY STANDARDS ..... ......

COMPLIANCE WITH HIPAA ELECTRONIC SECURITY STANDARDS

MENTAL HEALTH PARITY AND ADDICTION EQUITY ACT

GENETIC INFORMATION NONDISCRIMINATION ACT .

WOMENS HEALTH AND CANCER RIGHTS ACT ..... ... ... ......

NEWBORNS' AND MOTHERS' HEALTH PROTECTION ACT

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 86 of 373

17

18

18

18

18

.18

18

.18

18

18

.18

.19

20

20

. 20

20

20



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 87 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 87 of 373

LEE COUNTY GOVERNMENT
FLEXIBLE BENEFIT PLAN

INTRODUCTION

The Employer has amended this Plan effective August I , 2019, to recognize the contribution made to the Employer by its
Employees. Its purpose is to reward them by providing benefits for those Employees who shall qualify hereunder and their Dependents and
beneficiaries. The concept of this Plan is to allow Employees to choose among different types of benefits based on their own particular
goals, desires and needs. This Plan is a restatement ofa Plan which was originally effective on August 1 , 2007. The Plan shall be known as
Lee County Government Flexible Benefit Plan (the "Plan").

ne intention of the Employer is that the Plan qualify as a "Cafeteria Plan" within the meaning of Section 125 of the Intemal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and that the benefits which an Employee elects to receive under the Plan be excludable from the

Employee's income under Section 125(a) and other applicable sections of the Internal Revenue Code of ] 986, as amended.

ARTICLE 1
DEFINITIONS

1.1 "Administrator" means the Employer unless another person or entity has been designated by the Employer pursuant
to Section 9.1 to administer the Plan on behalf of the Employer. Ifthe Employer is the Administrator, the Employer may appoint any
person, including, but not limited to, the Employees of the Employer, to perform the duties of the Administrator. Any person so appointed
shall signify acceptance by filing written acceptance with the Employer. Upon the resignation or removal of any individual performing the
duties of the Administrator, the Employer may designate a successor.

1.2 "Affiliated Employer" means the Employer and any corporation which is a member of a controlled group of
corporations (as defined in Code Section 414(b)) which includes the Employer; any trade or business (whether or not incorporated) which

is under common control (as defined in Code Section 414(c)) with the Employer; any organization (whether or not incorporated) which is a
member of an affiliated service group (as defined in Code Section 414(m)) which includes the Employer; and any other entity required to
be aggregated with the Employer pursuant to Treasury regulations under Code Section 414(o).

1.3 "Benefit" or "Benefit Options" means any of the optional benefit choices available to a Participant as outlined in
Section 4.

1.4 "Cafeteria Plan Benefit Dollars" means the amount available to Participants to purchase Benefit Options as provided
under Section 4.1. Each dollar contributed to this Plan shall be converted into one Cafeteria Plan Benefit Dollar.

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended or replaced from time to time.1.5

1.6
' 'Compensation" means the amounts received by the Participant from the Employer during a Plan Year.

1.7 "Dependent" means any individual who qualifies as a dependent under an Insurance Contract for purposes of
coverage under that Contract only or under Code Section 152 (as modified by Code Section 105(b)).

"Dependent" shall include any Child ofa Participant who is covered under an Insurance Contract, as defined in the
Contract, or under the Health Flexible Spending Account or as allowed by reason of the Affordable Care Act.

For purposes ofthe Health Flexible Spending Account, a Participant's "Child" includes his•'her natural child, stepchild,

foster child, adopted child, or a child placed with the Participant for adoption. A Participantrs Child will be an eligible Dependent until
reaching the limiting age of 26, without regard to student status, marital status, financial dependency or residency status with the Employee

or any other person. When the child reaches the applicable limiting age, coverage will end at the end of the calendar year.

The phrase "placed for adoption" refers to a child whom the Participant intends to adopt, whether or not the adoption has become final, who
has not attained the age of 18 as of the date of such placement for adoption. The tem "placed" means the assumption and retention by such
Employee ofa legal obligation for total or partial support of the child in anticipation of adoption of the child. The child must be available
for adoption and the legal process must have commenced.

1.8

1.9

"Effective Date" means August l, 2007.

"Election Period" means the period immediately preceding the beginning of each Plan Year established by the

Administrator, such period to be applied on a uniform and nondiscriminatory basis for all Employees and Participants. However, an
Employee's initial Election Period shall be determined pursuant to Section 5.1 .

1.10 "Eligible Employee" means any Employee who has satisfied the provisions of Section 2.1.

An individual shall not be an "Eligible Employee" if such individual is not reported on the payroll records of the
Employer as a common law employee. In particular, it is expressly intended that individuals not treated as common law employees by the

1



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 88 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 88 of 373

Employer on its payroll records are not "Eligible Employees" and are excluded from Plan participation even if a court or administrative
agency determines that such individuals are common law employees and not independent contractors.

However, any Employee who is a "part-time" Employee shall not be eligible to participate in this Plan. A "part-time"
Employee is any Employee who works, or is expected to work on a regular basis, less than 30 hours a week and is designated as a part-time
Employee on the Employer's personnel records.

1.11 "Employee" means any person who is employed by the Employer. The term Employee shall include leased employees
within the meaning of Code Section 414(n)(2).

1.12 "Employer" means Lee County Government and any successor which shall maintain this Plan; and any predecessor
which has maintained this Plan. In addition, where appropriate, the term Employer shall include any Participating, Affiliated or Adopting

Employer.

1.13

1.14

"Insurance Contract" means any contract issued by an Insurer underwriting a Benefit.

"Insurance Premium Payment Plan" means the plan of benefits contained in Section 4.1 of this Plan, which provides
for the payment of Premium Expenses.

1.15

1.16

1.17

"Insurer" means any insurance company that under"Tites a Benefit under this Plan.

"Key Employee" means an Employee described in Code Section 416(i)(1) and the Treasury regulations thereunder.

"Participant" means any Eligible Employee who e}ects to become a Participant pursuant to Section 2.3 and has not
for any reason become ineligible to participate further in the Plan.

1.18 "Plan" means this instrument, including all amendments thereto.

1.19 "Plan Year" means the 12-month period beginning August 1 and ending July 31. The Plan Year shall be the erage

period for the Benefits provided for under this Plan. In the event a Participant commences participation during a Plan Year, then the initial

coverage period shall be that portion of the Plan Year commencing on such Participant's date of entry and ending on the last day of such
Plan Year.

1.20

1.21

"Premium Expenses" or "Premiums" mean the Participant's cost for the Benefits described in Section 4.1.

"Premium Expense Reimbursement Account" means the account established for a Participant pursuant to this Plan
to which part of his Cafeteria man Benefit Dollars may be allocated and from which Premiums of the Participant may be paid or
reimbursed. If more than one type of insured Benefit is elected, sub-accounts shall be established for each type of insured Benefit.

1.22 "Salary Redirection" means the contributions made by the Employer on behalf of Participants pursuant to Section
3.1. These contributions shall be converted to Cafeteria Plan Benefit Dollars and allocated to the funds or accounts established under the

Plan pursuant to the Participants' elections made under Article V.

I .23
' 'Salary Redirection Agreement" means an agreement between the Participant and the Employer under which the

Participant agrees to reduce his Compensation or to forego all or part of the increases in such Compensation and to have such amounts

contributed by the Employer to the Plan on the Participant's behalf. The Salary Redirection Agreement shall apply only to Compensation

that has not been actually or constructively received by the Participant as of the date of the agreement (afier taking this Plan and Code
Section 125 into account) and, subsequently does not become currently available to the Participant.

2.1

1.24 "Spouse" means spouse as determined under Federal law.

ARTICLE 11
PARTICIPATION

ELIGIBILITY

Any Eligible Employee shall be eligible to participate hereunder the first of the month once you have completed 30 days of
employment with the Employer. However, any Eligible Employee who was a Participant in the Plan on the effective date of this
amendment shall continue to be eligible to participate in the Plan.

2.2 EFFECTIVE DATE OF PARTICIPATION

An Eligible Employee shall become a Participant effective as ofthe first day of the month coinciding with or next following the
date on which he met the eligibility requirements of Section 2.1 .

2



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 89 of 373

2.3

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 89 of 373

APPLICATION TO PARTICIPATE

An Employee who is eligible to participate in this Plan shall, during the applicable Election Period, complete an application to
participate in a manner set forth by the Administrator. The election shall be irrevocable until the end of the applicable Plan Year unless the
Participant is entitled to change his Benefit elections pursuant to Section 5.4 hereof.

An Eligible Employee shall also be required to complete a Salary Redirection Agreement during the Election Period for the Plan
Year during which he wishes to participate in this Plan. Any such Salary Redirection Agreement shall be effective for the first pay period
beginning on or after the Employee's effective date of participation pursuant to Section 2.2.

2.4

2.5

TERMINATION OF PARTICIPATION

A Participant shall no longer participate in this Plan upon the occurrence of any of the following events:

(a) Termination of employment. fie Participant's termination of employment, suhiect to the provisions of
Section 2.6;

Change in employment status. The end ofthe Plan Year during which the Participant became a limited
Participant because ofa change in employment status pursuant to Section 2.5;

(c) Death. The Participant's death. subject to the provisions of Section 2.7; or

(d) Termination of the plan. The termination of this Plan, subject to the provisions of Section 10.2.

CHANGE OF EMPLOYMENT STATUS

If a Participant ceases to be eligible to participale because ofa change in employment status or classification (other than through
termination of employment), the Participant shall become a limited Participant in this Plan for the remainder of the Plan Year in v,'hich such

change of employment status occurs. As a limited Participant, no further Salary Redirection may be made on behalf of the Participant, and,
except as othenGse provided herein, all further Benefit elections shall cease, subject to the limited Participant's right to continue coverage

under any Insurance Contracts. However, any balances in the limited Participant's Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account may be used
during such Plan Year to reimburse the limited Participant for any allowable Employment-Related Dependent Care incurred during the

Plan Year. Subject to the provisions of Section 2.6, if the limited Participant later becomes an Eligible Employee, then the limited

Participant may again become a full Participant in this Plan, provided he otherwise satisfies the participation requirements set forth in this
Article II as if he were a new Employee and made an election in accordance with Section 5.1.

2.6 TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT

If a Participant's employment with the Employer is terminated for any reason other than death, his participation in the Benefit

Options provided under Section 4.1 shall be governed in accordance with the following:

2.7

Insurance Benefit. With regard to Benefits which are insured, the Participant's participation in the Plan shall(a)

cease. suhject to the Participanlts right to continue coverage under any Insurance Contract for which premiums have already been

paid.

(b) Dependent Care FSA. With regard to the Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account, the Participant's
participation in the Plan shall cease and no further Salary Redirection contributions shall be made. However, such Participant

may submit claims for employment related Dependent Care Expense reimbursements for claims incurred up to the date of
termination and submitted within 30 days after termination, based on the level of the Participant's Dependent Care Flexible
Spending Account as of the date of termination.

(c) COBRA applicability. With regard to the Health Flexible Spending Account, the Participant may submit
claims for expenses that were incurred during the portion of the Plan Year before the end of the period for which payments to the

Health Flexible Spending Account have already been made. Thereafter, the health benefits under this Plan including the Health

Flexible Spending Account shall be applied and administered consistent with such further rights a Participant and his Dependents

may be entitled to pursuant to Code Section 4980B and Section I .14 of the Plan.

DEATH

If a Participant dies, his participation in the Plan shall cease. However, such Participantrs spouse or Dependents may submit
claims for expenses or benefits for the remainder of the Plan Year or until the Cafeteria Plan Benefit Dollars allocated to each specific

benefit are exhausted. In no event may reimbursements be paid to someone who is not a spouse or Dependent. Ifthe Plan is subject to the
provisions of Code Section 4980B, then those provisions and related regulations shall apply for purposes of the Health Flexible Spending
Account.

3



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 90 of 373

3.1

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 90 of 373

ARTICLE 111
CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE PLAN

SALARY REDIRECTION

Benefits under the Plan shall be financed by Salary Redirections sufficient to support Benefits that a Participant has elected

hereunder and to pay the Participant's Premium Expenses. The salary administration program of the Employer shall be revised to allow
each Participant to agree to reduce his pay during a Plan Year by an amount determined necessary to purchase the elected Benefit Options.

The amount of such Salary Redirection shall be specified in the Salary Redirection Agreement and shall be applicable for a Plan Year.

Notwithstanding the above, for new Participants, the Salary Redirection Agreement shall only be applicable from the first day of the pay
period following the Employee's entry date up to and including the last day of the Plan Year. These contributions shall be converted to

Cafeteria Plan Benefit Dollars and allocated to the funds or accounts established under the Plan pursuant to the Participants' elections made
under Article I V.

Any Salary Redirection shall be determined prior to the beginning ofa Plan Year (subject to initial elections pursuant to Section
5. l) and prior to the end of the Election Period and shall be irrevocable for such Plan Year. However, a Participant may revoke a Benefit
election or a Salary Redirection Agreement after the Plan Year has commenced and make a new election with respect to the remainder of
the Plan Year, if both the revocation and the new election are on account of and consistent with a change in status and such other perrnitted
events as determined under Article V of the Plan and consistent with the rules and regulations of the Department of the Treasury. Salary
Redirection amounts shall be contributed on a pro rata basis for each pay period during the Plan Year. All individual Salary Redirection

Agreements are deemed to be part of this Plan and incorporated by reference hereunder.

3.2 APPLICATION OF CONTRIBUTIONS

As soon as reasonably practical after each payroll period, the Employer shall apply the Salary Redirection to provide the Benefits
elected by the affected Participants. Any contribution made or withheld for the Health Flexible Spending Account or Dependent Care
Flexible Spending Account shall be credited to such fund or account. Amounts designated for the Participant's Premium Expense

Reimbursement Account shall likewise be credited to such account for the purpose of paying Premium Expenses.

3.3 PERIODIC CONTRIBUTIONS

Notwithstanding the requirement provided above and in other Articles of this Plan that Salary Redirections be contributed to the

Plan by the Employer on behalfofan Employee on a level and pro rata basis for each payroll period, the Employer and Administrator may
implement a procedure in which Salary Redirections are contributed throughout the Plan Year on a periodic basis that is not pro rata for

each payroll period. However, with regard to the Health Flexible Spending Account, the payment schedule for the required contributions
may not be based on the rate or amount of reimbursements during the Plan Year.

4.1

ARTICLE
BENEFITS

BENEFIT OPTIONS

Each Participant may elect any one or more of the following optional Benefits:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

Health Flexible Spending Account

Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account

Insurance Premium Payment Plan

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Health Insurance Benefit

Dental Insurance Benefit

Cancer Insurance Benefit

Vision Insurance Benefit

Other Insurance Benefit

Health Savings Account Benefit

HEALTH FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNT BENEFIT

Each Participant may elect to participate in the Health Flexible Spending Account option, in which case Article VI shall apply.

4



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 91 of 373

4.3

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 91 of 373

DEPENDENT CARE FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNT BENEFIT

Each Participant may elect to participate in the Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account option, in which case Article VII
shall apply.

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

HEALTH INSURANCE BENEFIT

(a) Coverage for Participant and Dependents. Each Participant may elect to be covered under a health
Insurance Contract for the Participant, his or her Spouse, and his or her Dependents.

(b) Employer selects contracts. The Employer may select suitable health Insurance Contracts for use in
providing this health insurance benefit, which policies v,ill provide uniform benefits for all Participants electing this Benefit.

(c) Contract incorporated by reference. The rights and conditions with respect to the benefits payable from
such health Insurance Contract shall be determined therefrom, and such Insurance Contract shall be incorporated herein by
reference.

DENTAL INSURANCE BENEFIT

(a) Coverage for Participant and/or Dependents. Each Participant may elect to be covered under the
Employer's dental Insurance Contract. In addition, the Participant may elect either indii idual or family coverage under such
Insurance Contract.

(b) Employer selects contracts. The Employer may select suitable dental Insurance Contracts for use in
providing this dental insurance benefit, which policies will provide uniform benefits for all Participants electing this Benefit.

(c) Contract incorporated by reference. The rights and conditions with respect to the benefits payable from

such dental Insurance Contract shall be determined therefrom, and such dental Insurance Contract shall be incorporated herein by
reference.

CANCER INSURANCE BENEFIT

(a) Coverage for Participant and/or Dependents. Each Participant may elect to be covered under the
Employer's cancer Insurance Contract. In addition, the Participant may elect either individual or family coverage.

(b) Employer selects contracts. The Employer may select suitable cancer Insurance Contracts for use in
providing this cancer insurance benefit. which policies will provide uniform benefits for all Participants electing this Benefit.

(c) Contract incorporated by reference. The rights and conditions with respect to the benefits payable from
such cancer Insurance Contract shall be determined therefrom, and such cancer Insurance Contract shall be incorporated herein

by reference.

VISION INSURANCE BENEFIT

(a) Coverage for Participant and/or Dependents. Each Participant may elect to be covered under the
Employer's vision Insurance Contract. In addition. the Participant may elect either individual or family coverage.

(b) Employer selects contracts. The Employer may select suitable vision Insurance Contracts for use in
providing this vision insurance benefit, which policies will provide unifonn benefits for all Participants electing this Benefit.

(c) Contract incorporated by reference. fie rights and conditions with respect to the benefits payable from

such vision Insurance Contract shall be determined therefrom, and such vision Insurance Contract shall be incorporated herein by
reference.

OTHER INSURANCE BENEFIT

(a) Employer selects contracts. The Employer may select additional health or other policies allowed under
Code Section 125 or allow the purchase of additional health or other policies by and for Participants, which policies will provide
uniform benefits for all Participants electing this Benefit.

(b) Contract incorporated by reference. The rights and conditions with respect to the benefits payable from

any additional Insurance Contract shall be determined therefrom, and such Insurance Contract shall be incorporated herein by
reference.

HEALTH SAVINGS ACCOUNT BENEFIT

Each Participant may elect to have a portion of his Salary Redirections contributed to a Health Savings Account, as defined in
Code Section 223. The amounts contributed shall be suhiect to the terms of the Health Savings Account as established.

5



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 92 of 373

4.10

5.1

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 92 of 373

NONDISCRIMINATION REQUIREMENTS

(a) Intent to be nondiscriminatory. It is the intent of this Plan to provide benefits to a classification of

employees which the Secretary of the Treasury finds not to be discriminatory in favor of the group in whose favor discrimination
may not occur under Code Section 125.

(b) 25% concentration test. It is the intent of this Plan not to provide qualified benefits as defined under Code
Section 125 to Key Employees in amounts that exceed 250.6 of the aggregate of such Benefits provided for all Eligible Employees
under the Plan. For purposes of the preceding sentence, qualified benefits shall not include benefits which (without regard to this
paragraph) are includible in gross income.

(c) Adjustment to avoid test failure. Ifthe Administrator deems it necessary to avoid discrimination or possible

taxation to Key Employees or a group of employees in whose favor discrimination may not occur in violation of Code Section
125, it may, but shall not be required to, reject any election or reduce contributions or non-taxable Benefits in order to assure

compliance with the Code and regulations. Any act taken by the Administrator shall be carried out in a uniform and
nondiscriminatory manner. With respect to any affected Participant who has had Benefits reduced pursuant to this Section, the
reduction shall be made proportionately among Health Flexible Spending Account Benefits and Dependent Care Flexible
Spending Account Benefits, and once all these Benefits are expended, proportionately among insured Benefits. Contributions
vehich are not utilized to provide Benefits to any Participant by virtue of any administrative act under this paragraph shall be
forfeited and deposited into the benefit plan surplus.

ARTICLE V
PARTICIPANT ELECTIONS

INITIAL ELECTIONS

An Employee who meets the eligibility requirements of Section 2.1 on the first day of, or during, a Plan Year may elect to
participate in this Plan for all or the remainder of such Plan Year, provided he elects to do so on or before his effective date of participation
pursuant to Section 2.2.

5.2 SUBSEQUENT ANNUAL ELECTIONS

During the Election Period prior 10 each subsequent Plan Year, each Participant shall be given the opportunity to elect, on an

election of benefits form to be provided by the Administrator, which Benefit options he wishes to select. Any such election shall be
effective for any Benefit expenses incurred during the Plan Year which follows the end of the Election Period. With regard to subsequent
annual elections, the following options shall apply:

5.3

(a) A Participant or Employee "ho failed to initially elect to participate may elect different or new Benefits
under the Plan during the Election Period;

(b) A Participant may terminate his participation in the Plan by notifying the Administrator in writing during the
Election Period that he does not want to participate in the Plan for the next Plan Year, or by not electing any Benefit options;

(c) An Employee who elects not to participate for the Plan Year following the Election Period will have to wait
until the next Election Period before again electing to participate in the Plan, except as provided for in Section 5.4.

FAILURE TO ELECT

Any Participant failing to complete an election of benefits form pursuant to Section 5.2 by the end of the applicable Election
Period shall be deemed to have elected not to participate in the Plan for the upcoming Plan Year. No ftrther Salary Redirections shall
therefore be authorized for such subsequent Plan Year.

5.4 CHANGE IN STATUS

(a) Change in status defined. Any Participant may change a Benefit election after the Plan Year (to which such
election relates) has commenced and make new elections with respect to the remainder of such Pian Year if, under the facts and
circumstances, the changes are necessitated by and are consistent with a change in status which is acceptable under rules and

regulations adopted by the Department of the Treasury, the prm isions ofvvhich are incorporated by reference. Notwithstanding
anything herein to the contrary, if the rules and regulations conflict, then such rules and regulations shall control.

In general, a change in election is not consistent if the change in status is the Participantrs divorce. annulment or legal

separation from a Spouse, the death ofa Spouse or Dependent, or a Dependent ceasing to satisfy the eligibility requirements for

coverage, and the Participant's election under the Plan is to cancel accident or health insurance coverage for any individual other than

the one involved in such event. In addition, if the Participant, Spouse or Dependent gains or loses eligibility for coverage, then a

Participant's election under the Plan to cease or decrease coverage for that individual under the Plan corresponds with that change in

status only if coverage for that indi's idual becomes applicable or is increased under the family member plan.

6



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 93 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 93 of 373

Regardless of the consistency requirement, if the individual, the individual's Spouse, or Dependent becomes eligible for

continuation coverage under the Employer's group health plan as provided in Code Section 4980B or any similar state law, then the
individual may elect to increase payments under this Plan in order to pay for the continuation coverage. However, this does not apply
for COBRA eligibility due to divorce, annulment or legal separation.

Any new election shall be effective at such time as the Administrator shall prescribe, but not earlier than the first pay
period beginning after the election form is completed and retumed to the Administrator. For the purposes of this subsection, a change

in status shall only include the following events or other events permitted by Treasury regulations:

Legal Marital Status: events that change a Participant's legal marital status, including marriage, divorce, death

ofa Spouse, legal separation or annulment;

(2) Number of Dependents: Events that change a Participant's number of Dependents, including birth. adoption,
placement for adoption, or death ofa Dependent;

(3) Employment Status: Any of the following events that change the employment status of the Participant, Spouse,
or Dependent: termination or commencement of employment, a strike or lockout, commencement or return from an unpaid

leave of absence, or a change in worksite. In addition, if the eligibility conditions of this Plan or other employee benefit

plan of the Employer of the Participant, Spouse, or Dependent depend on the employment status of that individual and

there is a change in that individualts employment status with the consequence that the individual becomes (or ceases to be)

eligible under the plan, then that change constitutes a change in employment under this subsection;

(4) DerM1dent satisfies or ceases to satisfr the eligibility requirements: An event that causes the Panicipantts
Dependent to satisw or cease to satisfr the requirements for coverage due to attainment of age, student status, or any
similar circumstance; and

(5) Residency: A change in the place of residence of the Participant, Spouse or Dependent, that would lead to a
change in status (such as a loss of HMO coverage).

For the Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account, a Dependent becoming or ceasing to be a "Qualifring Dependent" as
defined under Code Section 21 (b) shall also qualify as a change in status.

Notwithstanding anything in this Section to the contrary, the gain of eligibility or change in eligibility ofa child, as

allowed under Code Sections 105(b) and 106. and guidance thereunder, shall qualify as a change in status.

(b) Special enrollment rights. Notwithstanding subsection (a), the Participants may change an election for
group health coverage during a Plan Year and make a election that corresponds with the special enrollment rights prm ided
in Code Section 9801 (f), including those authorized under the provisions of the Children's Health Insurance Program

Reauthorization Act of 2009 (SCHIP): provided that such Participant meets the sixty (60) day notice requirement imposed by

Code Section 9801 (f) (or such longer period as may be pennitted by the Plan and communicated to Participants). Such change
shall take place on a prospective basis, unless otherwise required by Code Section 9801 (f) to be retroactive.

(c) Qualified Medical Support Order. Notwithstanding subsection (a), in the event of a judgment. decree, or

order (including approval ofa property settlement) ("order") resulting from a divorce. legal separation, annulment, or change in
legal custody which requires accident or health coverage for a Participant's child (including a foster child who is a Dependent of
the Participant):

The Plan may change an election to provide coverage for the child if the order requires coverage under the
Participant's plan; or

(2) The Participant shall be permitted to change an election to cancel coverage for the child if the order requires

the former Spouse to provide coverage for such child, under that individual's plan and such coverage is actually

provided.

(d) Medicare or Medicaid. Notwithstanding subsection (a), a Participant may change elections to cancel accident
or health coverage for the Participant or the Participalfs Spouse or Dependent if the Participant or the Participant's Spouse or

Dependent is enrolled in the accident or health coverage of the Employer and becomes entitled to coverage (i.e., enrolled) under Part

A or Part B of the Title X Mll of the Social Security Act (Medicare) or Title XIX of the Social Security Act (Medicaid), other than
coverage consisting solely of benefits under Section 1928 of the Social Security Act (the program for distribution of pediafric

vaccines). Ifthe Participant or the Participant's Spouse or Dependent who has been entitled to Medicaid or Medicare coverage loses
eligibility. that individual may prospectively elect coverage under the Plan if a benefit package option under the Plan provides similar
coverage.

(e) Cost increase or decrease. Ifthe cost ofa Benefit provided under the Plan increases or decreases during a

Plan Year, then the Plan shall automatically increase or decrease, as the case may be, the Salary Redirections of all affected
Participants for such Benefit. Alternatively, if the cost ofa benefit package option increases significantly, the Administrator shall

permit the affected Participants to either make corresponding changes in their payments or revoke their elections and, in lieu

7



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 94 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 94 of 373

thereof, receive on a prospective basis coverage under another benefit package option with similar coverage, or drop coverage

prospectively if there is no benefit package option with similar coverage.

A cost increase or decrease refers to an increase or decrease in the amount of elective contributions under the Plan,
whether resulting from an action taken by the Participants or an action taken by the Employer.

(f) Loss of coverage. Ifthe coverage under a Benefit is significantly curtailed or ceases during a Plan Year,

affected Participants may revoke their elections of such Benefit and, in lieu thereof, elect to receive on a prospective basis
coverage under another plan with similar coverage. or drop coverage prospectively if no similar coverage is offered.

(g) Addition ofa new benefit. If, during the period of coverage, a new benefit package option or other coverage
option is added, an existing benefit package option is significantly improved, or an existing benefit package option or other

coverage option is eliminated, then the affected Participants may elect the newly-added option, or elect another option if an
option has been eliminated prospectively and make corresponding election changes with respect to other benefit package options
providing similar coverage. In addition, those Eligible Employees who are not participating in the Plan may opt to become
Participants and elect the new or newly improved benefit package option.

(h) Loss of coverage under certain other plans. A Participant may make a prospective election change to add
group health coverage for the Participant, the Participant's Spouse or Dependent if such individual loses group health coverage

sponsored by a governmental or educational institution, including a state childrenrs health insurance program under the Social

Security Act, the Indian Health Service or a health program offered by an Indian tribal government, a state health benefits risk

pool, or a foreign government group health plan.

Change of coverage due to change under certain other plans. A Participant may make a prospective
election change that is on account of and corresponds with a change made under the plan ofa Spouse's, former Spouse's or
Dependent's employer if (1) the cafeteria plan or other benefits plan of the Spouse's, former Spouse's or Dependent's employer

permits its participants to make a change; or (2) the cafeteria plan permits participants to make an election for a period of
coverage that is different from the period of coverage under the cafeteria plan ofa Spouse's, former Spouse's or Dependent's

employer.

Change in dependent care provider. A Participant may make a prospective election change that is on
account of and corresponds with a change by the Participant in the dependent care provider. The availability of dependent care

services from a nevv childcare provider is similar to a nev,' benefit package option becoming available. A cost change is allowable
in the Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account only if the cost change is imposed by a dependent care provider who is not
related to the Participant, as defined in Code Section through (8).

(k) Health FSA cannot change due to insurance change. A Participant shall not be permitted to change an
election 10 the Health Flexible Spending Account as a result ofa cost or coverage change under any health insurance benefits.

Health Savings Account changes. With regard to the Health Savings Account Benefit specified in Section
4.9, a Participant who has elected to make elective contributions under such arrangement may modify or revoke the election
prospectively, provided such change is consistent with Code Section 223 and the Treasury regulations thereunder.

(m) Changes due to reduction in hours or enrollment in an Exchange Plan. A Participant may prospectively
coverage under the group health plan (that is not a health Flexible Spending Account) which provides minimum essential

coverage (as defined in Code provided the following conditions are met:

Conditions for revocation due to reduction in hours of service:

(1) The Participant has been reasonably expected to average at least 30 hours of service per week and there is a

change in that Participants status so that the Participant will reasonably be expected to average less than 30 hours of

service per week after the change, even if that reduction does not result in the Participant ceasing to be eligible under
the group health plan; and

(2) The revocation of coverage under the group health plan corresponds to the intended enrollment of the

Participant, and any related individuals who cease coverage due to the revocation, in another plan that provides
minimum essential coverage with the new coverage effective no later than the first day of the second month following
the month that includes the date the original coverage is revoked.

The Administrator may rely on the reasonable representation of the Participant who is reasonably expected to have an average of
less than 30 hours of service per week for future periods that the Participant and related individuals have enrolled or intend to

enroll in another plan that provides minimum essential coverage for new coverage that is effective no later than the first day of
the second month following the month that includes the date the original coverage is revoked.

Conditions for revocation due to enrollment in a Qualified Health Plan:

(1) The Participant is eligible for a Special Enrollment Period to enroll in a Qualified Health Plan through a

Marketplace (federal or state exchange) pursuant to guidance issued by the Depaflment of Health and Human Services

8



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 95 of 373

6.1

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 95 of 373

and any other applicable guidance, or the Participant seeks to enroll in a Qualified Health Plan through a Marketplace

during the Marketplacets annual open enrollment period; and

(2) The revocation of the election of coverage under the group health plan corresponds to the intended

enrollment of the Participant and any related individuals who cease coverage due to the revocation in a Qualified
Health Plan through a Marketplace for new coverage that is effective beginning no later than the day immediately
following the last day of the original coverage that is revoked.

The Administrator may rely on the reasonable representation ofa Participant who has an enrollment opportunity for a Qualified
Health Plan through a Marketplace that the Participant and related individuals have enrolled or intend to enroll in a Qualified

Health Plan for new coverage that is effective beginning no later than the day immediately following the last day of the original
coverage that is revoked.

ARTICLE
HEALTH FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNT

ESTABLISHMENT OF PLAN

This Health Flexible Spending Account is intended to qualifr as a medical reimbursement plan under Code Section 105 and shall
be interpreted in a manner consistent with such Code Section and the Treasury regulations thereunder. Participants who elect to participate
in this Health Flexible Spending Account may submit claims for the reimbursement of Medical Expenses. All amounts reimbursed shall be
periodically paid from amounts allocated to the Health Flexible Spending Account. Periodic payments reimbursing Participants from the

Health Flexible Spending Account shall in no event occur less frequently than monthly. There is an additional "limited FSA'I designed to

coordinate with a Health Savings Account and high deductible health plan.

6.2 DEFINITIONS

For the purposes of this Article and the Cafeteria Plan, the terms below have the following meaning:

(a) "Health Flexible Spending Account" means the account established for Participants pursuant to this Plan to

which part of their Cafeteria Plan Benefit Dollars may be allocated and from which all allowable Medical Expenses incurred by a
Participant, his or her Spouse and his or her Dependents may be reimbursed.

"Highly Compensated Participant" means, for the purposes of this Article and determining discrimination
under Code Section 105(h), a participant who is:

(1) one of the 5 highest paid officers;

(2) a shareholder who owns (or is considered to own applying the rules of Code Section 3 18) more than 10
percent in value of the stock of the Employer; or

(3) among the highest paid 25 percent of all Employees (other than exclusions permitted by Code Section
for those individuals who are not Participants).

(c) "Medical Expenses" means any expense for medical care within the meaning of the term "medical care" as

defined in Code Section 213(d) and the rulings and Treasury regulations thereunder, and not otherwise used by the Participant as

a deduction in determining his tax liability under the Code. "Medical Expenses" can be incurred by the Participant, his or her

Spouse and his or her Dependents. "Incurred" means, with regard to Medical Expenses, when the Participant is provided with the
medical care that gives rise to the Medical Expense and not when the Participant is formally billed or charged for, or pays for, the
medical care.

A Participant who contributes to a Health Savings Account may only be reimbursed for medical expenses that are
considered to be for dental, vision or preventive care expenses as allowed under Code Section 223.

A Participant may not be reimbursed for the cost of any medicine or drug that is not "prescribed" within the meaning of
Code Section 106(f) or is not insulin.

A Participant may not be reimbursed for the cost ofother health coverage such as premiums paid under plans
maintained by the employer of the Participant's Spouse or individual policies maintained by the Participant or his Spouse or

Dependent.

A Participant may not be reimbursed for "qualified long-term care services" as defined in Code Section 7702B(c).

(d) The definitions of Article I are hereby incorporated by reference to the extent necessary 10 interpret and apply
the provisions of this Health Flexible Spending Account.

9



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 96 of 373

6.3

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 96 of 373

FORFEITURES

The amount in the Health Flexible Spending Account as of the end of any Plan Year (and after the processing of all claims for

such Plan Year pursuant to Section 6.7 hereof) shall be forfeited and credited to the benefit plan surplus. In such event, the Participant shall
have no further claim to such amount for any reason, subject to Section 8.2.

6.4

6.5

6.6

LIMITATION ON ALLOCATIONS

(a) Notwithstanding any provision contained in this Health Flexible Spending Account to the contrary, the

maximum amount of salary reductions that may be allocated to the Health Flexible Spending Account by a Participant in or on
account of any Plan Year is the statutory amount under Code Section 125(i)(2), as adjusted for increases in the cost of living. The
cost of living adjustment in effect for a calendar year applies to any Plan Year beginning with or within such calendar year. The

dollar increase in effect on January I of any calendar year shall be effective for the Plan Year beginning with or within such

calendar year. For any short Plan Year, the limit shall be an amount equal to the limit for the calendar year in which the Plan

Year begins multiplied by the ratio obtained by dividing the number of full months in the short Plan Year by twelve (12).

(b) The minimum amount that may be allocated to the Health Flexible Spending Account by a Participant in or
on account of any Plan Year is $120.00.

(c) Participation in Other Plans. All employers that are treated as a single employer under Code Sections

414(b), (c), or (m), relating to controlled groups and affiliated service groups, are treated as a single employer for purposes of the

statutory limit. If a Participant participates in multiple cafeteria plans offering health flexible spending accounts maintained by

members ofa controlled group or affiliated service group, the Participantts total Health Flexible Spending Account contributions

under all of the cafeteria plans are limited to the statutory limit (as adjusted). a Participant employed by two or more

employers that are not members of the same controlled group may elect up to the statutory limit (as adjusted) under each
Employer's Health Flexible Spending Account.

NONDISCRIMINATION REQUIREMENTS

(a) Intent to be nondiscriminatory. It is the intent of this Health Flexible Spending Account not to discriminate
in violation of the Code and the Treasury regulations thereunder.

(b) Adjustment to avoid test failure. Ifthe Administrator deems it necessary to avoid discrimination under this

Health Flexible Spending Account, it may, but shall not be required to, reject any elections or reduce contributions or Benefits in

order to assure compliance with this Section. Any act taken by the Administrator under this Section shall be carried out in a
uniform and nondiscriminatory manner. Ifthe Administrator decides to reject any elections or reduce contributions or Benefits, it

shall be done in the following manner. First, the Benefits designated for the Health Flexible Spending Account by the member of
the group in whose favor discrimination may not occur pursuant to Code Section 105 that elected to contribute the highest
amount to the fund for the Plan Year shall be reduced until the nondiscrimination tests set forth in this Section or the Code are

satisfied, or until the.amount designated for the fund equals the amount designated for the fund by the next member of the group
in whose favor discrimination may not occur pursuant to Code Section 105 who has elected the second highest contribution to the
Health Flexible Spending Account for the Plan Year. This process shall continue until the nondiscrimination tests set forth in this

Section or the Code are satisfied. Contributions which are not utilized to provide Benefits to any Participant by virtue of any
administrative act under this paragraph shall be forfeited and credited to the benefit plan surplus.

COORDINATION WITH CAFETERIA PLAN

All Participants under the Cafeteria Plan are eligible to receive Benefits under this Health Flexible Spending Account. The

enrollment under the Cafeteria Plan shall constitute enrollment under this Health Flexible Spending Account. In addition, other matters

concerning contributions, elections and the like shall be governed by the general provisions of the Cafeteria Plan.

6.7 HEALTH FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNT CLAIMS

(a) Expenses must be incurred during Plan Year. All Medical Expenses incurred by a Participant, his or her

Spouse and his or her Dependents during the Pian Year shall be reimbursed during the Plan Year subject to Section 2.6, even

though the submission of such a claim occurs after his participation hereunder ceases; but provided that the Medical Expenses

were incurred during the applicable Plan Year. Medical Expenses are treated as having been incurred when the Participant is
provided with the medical care that gives rise to the medical expenses, not when the Participant is formally billed or charged for,
or pays for the medical care.

(b) Reimbursement available throughout Plan Year. The Administrator shall direct the reimbursement to each

eligible Participant for all allowable Medical Expenses, up to a maximum of the amount designated by the Participant for the
Health Flexible Spending Account for the Plan Year. Reimbursements shall be made available to the Participant throughout the
year without regard to the level of Cafeteria Plan Benefit Dollars which have been allocated to the fund at any given point in

lime. Furthermore, a Participanl shall be entitled 10 reimbursements only for amounts in excess of any payments or other

reimbursements under any health care plan ering the Participant and/or his Spouse or Dependents.

10



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 97 of 373

6.8

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 97 of 373

(c) Payments. Reimbursement payments under this Plan shall be made directly to the Participant. However, in

the Administratorrs discretion, payments may be made directly to the service provider. The application for payment or
reimbursement shall be made to the Administrator on an acceptable form within a reasonable time of incurring the debt or paying
for the service. The application shall include a written statement from an independent third party stating that the Medical Expense

has been incurred and the amount of such expense. Furthermore, the Participant shall provide a written statement that the Med ical
Expense has not been reimbursed or is not reimbursable under any other health plan coverage and, if reimbursed from the Health

Flexible Spending Account, such amount will not be claimed as a tax deduction. The Administrator shall retain a file of all such

applications.

(d) Claims for reimbursement. Claims for the reimbursement of Medical Expenses incurred in any Plan Year

shall be paid as soon after a claim has been filed as is administratively practicable; provided however, that if a Participant fails to

submit a claim within 90 days after the end of the Plan Year, those Medical Expense claims shall not be considered for

reimbursement b) the Administrator. However, if a Participant terminates employment during the Plan Year, claims for the

reimbursement of Medical Expenses must be submitted within 30 days after termination of employment.

DEBIT AND CREDIT CARDS

Participants may, subject to a procedure established by the Administrator and applied in a uniform nondiscriminatory manner,

use debit and/or credit (stored value) cards ("cards") provided by the Administrator and the Plan for payment of Medical Expenses, subject
to the following terns:

(a) Card only for medical expenses. Each Participant issued a card shall certify that such card shall only be
used for Medical Expenses. The Participant shall also certify that any Medical Expense paid with the card has not already been

reimbursed by any other plan covering health benefits and that the Participant will not seek reimbursement from any other plan

covering health benefits.

(b) Card issuance. Such card shall be issued upon the Participant's Effective Date of Participation and reissued
for each Plan Year the Participant remains a Participant in the Health Flexible Spending Account. Such card shall be

automatically cancelled upon the Participant's death or termination of employment, or if such Participant has a change in status

that results in the Participant's from the Health Flexible Spending Account.

(c) Maximum dollar amount available. The dollar amount of coverage available on the card shali be the
amount elected by the Participant for the Plan Year. The maximum dollar amount of coverage available shall be the maximum
amount for the Plan Year as set forth in Section 6.4.

(d) Only available for use with certain service providers. The cards shall only be accepted by such merchants

and service providers as have been approved by the Administrator following IRS guidelines.

(e) Card use. The cards shall only be used for Medical Expense purchases al these providers, including. but not
limited to, the follouing:

(1) Co-payments for doctor and other medical care;

(2) Purchase ofdrugs prescribed by a health care provider, including, if permitted by the Administrator, over-the-
counter medications as allowed under IRS regulations;

Purchase ofmedical items such as eyeglasses, syringes, crutches, etc.(3)

(f) Substantiation. Such purchases by the cards shall be suhiect to substantiation by the Administrator, usually

by submission ofa receipt from a service provider describing the service, the date and the amount. The Administrator shall also

follou the requirements set forth in Revenue Ruling 2003-43 and Notice 2006-69. All charges shall be conditional pending
confirmation and substantiation.

(g) Correction methods. If such purchase is later determined by the Administrator to not qualify as a Medical

Expense, the Administrator, in its discretion, shall use one of the following correction methods to make the Plan whole. Until the
amount is repaid, the Administrator shall take further action to ensure that further violations of the terms of the card do not occur,
up to and including denial of access to the card.

Repayment of the improper amount by the Participant;(1)

(2) Withholding the improper payment from the Participant's wages or other compensation 10 the extent
consistent with applicable federal or slate law;

(3) Claims substitution or offset of future claims until the amount is repaid; and

(4) if subsections (1) through (3) fail to recover the amount, consistent with the Employer's business practices,

the Employer may treat the amount as any other business indebtedness.

11



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 98 of 373

7.1

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 98 of 373

ARTICLE VII
DEPENDENT CARE FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNT

ESTABLISHMENT OF ACCOUNT

This Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account is intended to quafify as a program under Code Section 129 and shall be

interpreted in a manner consistent ith such Code Section. Participants who elect to participate in this program may submit claims for the
reimbursement of Employment-Related Dependent Care Expenses. All amounts reimbursed shall be paid from amounts allocated to the

Participant's Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account.

7.2

7.3

DEFINITIONS

For the purposes of this Article and the Cafeteria Plan the terms below shall have the following meaning:

(a) "Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account" means the account established for a Participant pursuant to
this Article to which part of his Cafeteria Plan Benefit Dollars may be allocated and from which Employment-Related Dependent
Care Expenses of the Participant may be reimbursed for the care of the Qualifying Dependents of Participants.

(b) "Earned Income" means earned income as defined under Code Section 32(c)(2), but excluding such
amounts paid or incurred by the Employer for dependent care assistance to the Participant.

"Employment-Related Dependent Care Expenses" means the amounts paid for expenses ofa Participant
for those services which if paid by the Participant would be considered employment related expenses under Code Section
21 (b)(2). Generally, they shall include expenses for household services and for the care ofa Qualifying Dependent, to the extent

that such expenses are incurred to enable the Participant to be gainfully employed for any period for which there are one or more

Qualifying Dependents with respect to such Participant. Employment-Related Dependent Care Expenses are treated as having

been incurred when the Participant's Qualifring Dependents are provided with the dependent care that gives rise to the
Employment-Related Dependent Care Expenses, not when the Participant is formally billed or charged for, or pays for the
dependent care. The determination of whether an amount qualifies as an Employment-Related Dependent Care Expense shall be

made subject to the following rules:

If such amounts are paid for expenses incurred outside the Participant's household, they shall constitute

Employment-Related Dependent Care Expenses only if incurred for a Qualifying Dependent as defined in Section

7.2(d)(1) (or deemed to be, as described in Section 7.2(d)(1) pursuant to Section 7.2(d)(3)), or for a Qualifying

Dependent as defined in Section 7.2(d)(2) (or deemed to be, as described in Section 7.2(d)(2) pursuant to Section

7.2(d)(3)) who regularly spends at least 8 hours per day in the Participantls household;

(2) Ifthe expense is incurred outside the Participant's home at a facility that prmides care for a fee. payment, or
grant for more than 6 individuals who do not regularly reside at the facility, the facility must comply with all applicable
state and locai laws and regulations, including licensing requirements, if any; and

Employment-Related Dependent Care Expenses ofa Participant shall not include amounts paid or incurred to(3)

a child of such Participant who is under the age of 19 or to an individual who is a Dependent of such Participant or such
Participant's Spouse.

(d)

(1)

(2)

"Qualifying Dependent" means, for Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account purposes.

a Participant's Dependent (as defined in Code Section 152(a)(1)) who has not attained age 13;

a Dependent or the Spouse ofa Participant who is physically or mentally incapable of caring for himself or
herself and has the same principal place of abode as the Participant for more than one-half of such taxable year; or

a child that is deemed to be a Qualifying Dependent described in paragraph (l) or (2) above, whichever is(3)

appropriate, pursuant to Code Section 21

The definitions of Article I are hereby incorporated by reference to the extent necessary to interpret and apply
the provisions of this Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account.

DEPENDENT CARE FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNTS

The Administrator shall establish a Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account for each Participant who elects to apply Cafeteria
Plan Benefit Dollars 10 Dependenl Care Flexible Spending Account benefits.

12



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 99 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 99 of 373

INCREASES IN DEPENDENT CARE FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNTS

A Participant's Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account shall be increased each pay period by the portion of Cafeteria Plan
Benefit Dollars that he has elected to apply toward his Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account pursuant to elections made under

V hereof.

7.5 DECREASES IN DEPENDENT CARE FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNTS

A Participant's Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account shall be reduced by the amount of any Employment-Related
Dependent Care Expense reimbursements paid or incurred on behalf ofa Participant pursuant to Section 7.12 hereof.

7.6 ALLOWABLE DEPENDENT CARE REIMBURSEMENT

Subject to limitations contained in Section 7.9 of this Program, and to the extent of the amount contained in the Participant's

Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account, a Participant who incurs Emp10Y1nent-Related Dependent Care Expenses shall be entitled to
receive from the Employer full reimbursement for the entire amount of such expenses incurred during the Plan Year or portion thereof
during v.hich he is a Participant.

7.7 ANNUAL STATEMENT OF BENEFITS

On or before January 31 st of each calendar year, the Employer shall furnish to each Employee who was a Participant and
received benefits under Section 7.6 during the prior calendar year, a statement of all such benefits paid to or on behalf of such Participant

during the prior calendar year. This statement is set forth on the Participant's Form W-2.

7.8 FORFEITURES

The amount in a Participant's Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account as of the end of any Plan Year (and after the

processing of all claims for such Plan Year pursuant to Section 7.12 hereof) shall be forfeited and credited to the benefit plan surplus. In

such event, the Participant shall have no further claim to such amount for any reason.

7.9

7.10

7.11

LIMIT-\TION ON PAYMENTS

(a) Code limits. Notwithstanding any provision contained in this Article to the contrary, amounts paid from a
Participant's Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account in or on account of any taxable year of the Participant shall not exceed

the lesser of the Earned Income limitation described in Code Section 129(b) or $5,000 ($2,500 if a separate tax return is filed by a

Participant who is married as determined under the rules of paragraphs (3) and (4) of Code Section 21 (e)).

NONDISCRIMINATION REQUIREMENTS

(a) Intent to be nondiscriminatory. It is the intent of this Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account that

contributions or benefits nol discriminate in favor of the group of employees in whose favor discrimination may not occur under
Code Section 129(d).

(b) 25% test for shareholders. It is the intent of this Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account that not more
than 25 percent of the amounts paid by the Employer for dependent care assistance during the Plan Year will be prmided for the

class of individuals who are shareholders or owners (or their Spouses or Dependents), each of whom (on any day of the Plan
Year) ovms more than 5 percent of the stock or oflhe capital or profits interest in the Employer.

(c) Adjustment to avoid test failure. Ifthe Administrator deems it necessary to avoid discrimination or possible

taxation to a group of employees in whose favor discrimination may not occur in violation of Code Section 129 it may, but shall
not be required to, reject any elections or reduce contributions or non-taxable benefits in order to assure compliance vtith this

Section. Any act taken by the Administrator under this Section shall be carried out in a uniform and nondiscriminatory manner. If
the Adlninistrator decides to reject any elections 0T reduce contributions or Benefits, it shall be done in the following manner.

First, the Benefits designated for the Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account by the affected Participant that elected to

contribute the highest amount to such account for the Plan Year shall be reduced until the nondiscrimination tests set forth in this

Section are satisfied, or until the amount designated for the account equals the amount designated for the account of the affected

Participant who has elected the second highest contribution to the Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account for the Plan Year.
lhis process shall continue until the nondiscrimination tests set forth in this Section are satisfied. Contributions which are not

utilized to provide Benefits to any Participant by virtue of any administrative act under this paragraph shall be forfeited.

COORDINATION WITH CAFETERIA PLAN

All Participants under the Cafeteria Plan are eligible 10 receive Benefits under this Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account.

The enrollment and termination of participation under the Cafeteria Plan shall constitute enrollment and termination of participation under

this Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account. Jn addition, other matters concerning contributions, elections and the like shall be

governed by the general provisions of the Cafeteria Plan.

13



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 100 of 373

7.12

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 100 of 373

DEPENDENT CARE FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNT CLAIMS

The Administrator shall direct the payment of all such Dependent Care claims to the Participant upon the presentation to the
Administrator of documentation of such expenses in a form satisfactory to the Administrator. However, in the Administratorrs discretion,

payments may be made directly to the service provider. In its discretion in administering the Plan, the Administrator may uti lize forms and
require documentation of costs as may be necessary to verifr the claims submitted. At a minimum, the form shall include a statement from
an independent third party as proof that the expense has been incurred during the Plan Year and the amount of such expense. In addition,

the Administrator may require that each Participant who desires to receive reimbursement under this Program for Employment-Related
Dependent Care Expenses submit a statement which may contain some or all of the following information:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

The Dependent or Dependents for whom the services were performed;

The nature of the services performed for the Participant, the cost of which he wishes reimbursement;

The relationship, if any, of the person performing the services to the Participant;

Ifthe services are being performed by a child of the Participant, the age of the child;

A statement as to where the services were performed;

If any of the services were performed outside the home. a statement as to whether the Dependent for whom

8.1

such services were performed spends at least 8 hours a day in the Participant's household:

Ifthe services were being performed in a day care center, a statement:

(1) that the day care center complies with all applicable las•ÅS and regulations of the state of residence.

(2) that the day care center provides care for more than 6 individuals (other than individuals residing at the

center), and

(3) of the amount of fee paid to the provider.

(h) Ifthe Participant is married, a statement containing the following:

(1) the Spouses salary or wages if he or she is employed, or

(2) T the Participant's Spouse is not employed, that

he or she is incapacitated, or

(ii) he or she is a full-time student attending an educational institution and the months during the year
which he or she attended such institution.

Claims for reimbursement. If a Participant fails to submit a claim within 90 days after the end of the Plan

Year, those claims shall not be considered for reimbursement by the Administrator. However, if a Participant terminates

employment during the Plan Year, claims for reimbursement must be submitted within 30 days after termination of employment.

ARTICLE
BENEFITS AND RIGHTS

CLAIM FOR BENEFITS

(a) Insurance claims. Any claim for Benefits underwritten by Insurance Contract(s) shall be made to the
Insurer. Ifthe Insurer denies any claim, the Participant or beneficiary shall follow the Insurer's claims review procedure.

(b) Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account or Health Flexible Spending Account claims. Any claim for
Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account or Health Flexible Spending Account Benefits shall be made to the Administrator.
For the Health Flexible Spending Account, if a Participant fails to submit a claim within 90 days aner the end of the Plan Year,

those claims shall not be considered for reimbursement by the Administrator. However, if a Participant terminates employment

during the Plan Year, claims for the reimbursement of Medical Expenses must be submitted within 30 days after termination of

employment. For the Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account, if a Participant fails to submit a claim within 90 days after the

end of the Plan Year, those claims shall not be considered for reimbursement by the Administrator. However, if a Participant

terminates employment during the Plan Year, claims for reimbursement must be submitted within 30 days after termination of

employment, Ifthe Administrator denies a claim, the Administrator may provide notice 10 the Participant or beneficiary, in
writing, within 90 days after the claim is filed unless special circumstances require an extension of time for processing the claim.

The notice ofa denial ofa claim shall be uritten in a manner calculated to be understood by the claimant and shall set forth:

14



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 101 of 373

(2)

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 101 of 373

specific references to the pertinent Plan provisions on which the denial is based;

a description of any additional material or information necessary for the claimant to perfect the claim and an

explanation as to why such information is necessary; and

(3) an explanation of the Plan's claim procedure.

(c) Appeal. Within 60 days after receipt of the above material, the claimant shall have a reasonable opportunity

to appeal the claim denial to the Administrator for a full and fair review. The claimant or his duly authorized representative may:

(2)

(3)

(d)

request a review upon written notice to the Administrator;

review pertinent documents; and

submit issues and colnments in writing.

Review of appeal. A decision on the review by the Administrator 'Will be made not later than 60 days after

8.2

receipt ofa request for review, unless special circumstances require an extension of time for processing (such as the need to hold
a hearing), in which event a decision should be rendered as soon as possible, but in no event later than 120 days after such

receipt. The decision of the Administrator shall be written and shall include specific reasons for the decision, written in a manner

calculated to be understood by the claimant, with specific references to the pertinent Plan provisions on which the decision is
based.

(e) Forfeitures. Any balance remaining in the Participant's Health Flexible Spending Account or Dependent
Care Flexible Spending Account as of the end of the time for claims reimbursement for each Plan Year shall be forfeited and

deposited in the benefit plan surplus of the Employer pursuant to Section 6.3 or Section 7.8, whichever is applicable, unless the

Participant had made a claim for such Plan Year, in writing, which has been denied or is pending; in which event the amount of
the claim shall be held in his account until the claim appeal procedures set forth above have been satisfied or the claim is paid. If

any such claim is denied on appeal, the amount held beyond the end of the Plan Year shall be forfeited and credited to the benefit

plan surplus.

APPLICATION OF BENEFIT PLAN SURPLUS

Any forfeited amounts credited to the benefit plan surplus by virtue of the failure ofa Participant to incur a qual ified expense or
seek reimbursement in a timely manner may, but need not be, separately accounted for after the close of the Plan Year (or after such further

time specified herein for the filing of claims) in which such forfeitures arose. In no event shall such amounts be carried over to reimburse a

Participant for expenses incurred during a subsequent Plan Year for the same or any other Benefit available under the Plan; nor shall

amounts forfeited by a particular Participant be made available to such Participant in any other form or manner, except as permitted by
Treasury regulations. Amounts in the benefit plan surplus shall be used to defray any administrative costs and experience losses or used to
provide additional benefits under the Plan. No amounts attributable to the Health Savings Account shall be suhiecl to the benefit plan
surplus.

9.1

ARTICLE
ADMINISTRATION

PLAN ADMINISTRATION

The Employer shall be the Administrator, unless the Employer elects otherwise. The Employer may appoint any person,
including, but not limited to, the Employees of the Employer, to perform the duties of the Administrator. Any person so appointed shall
signify acceptance by filing acceptance in writing (or such other form as acceptable to both parties) with the Employer. Upon the
resignation or removal of any individual performing the duties of the Adminisfrator, the Employer may designate a successor.

Ifthe Employer elects, the Employer shall appoint one or more Administrators. Any person, including, but not limited to, the
Employees of the Employer, shall be eligible to serve as an Administrator. Any person so appointed shall signify acceptance by filing
acceptance in "Titing (or such other form as acceptable to both parties) with the Employer. An Administrator may resign by delivering a
resignation in writing (or such other form as acceptable to both parties) to the Employer or be removed by the Employer by delivery of
notice of removal (in writing or such other fom as acceptable to both parties), to take effect at a date specified therein, or upon delivery to
the Administrator if no date is specified. The Employer shall be empowered to appoint and remove the Administrator from time to time as

it deems necessary for the proper administration of the Plan to ensure that the Plan is being operated for the exclusive benefit of the

Employees entitled to participate in the Plan in accordance with the terms of the Plan and the Code.

The operation of the Plan shall be under the supervision of the Administrator. It shall be a principal duty of the Administrator 10

see thal the Plan is carried out in accordance with its terms, and for the exclusive benefit of Employees entitled 10 participate in the Plan.

lhe Administrator shall have full power and discretion to administer the Plan in all of its details and determine all questions arising in

connection with the administration, interpretation, and application of the Plan. The Administrator may establish procedures, correct any
defect, supply any information, or reconciles any inconsistency in such manner and to such extent as shall be deemed necessary or

15



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 102 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 102 of 373

advisable to carry out the purpose of the Plan. The Administrator shall have all powers necessary or appropriate to accomplish the

Administrator's duties under the Plan. The Administrator shall be charged with the duties of the general administration of the Plan as set

forth under the Plan, including, but not limited to, in addition to all other powers provided by this Plan:

(a) To make and enforce such procedures, rules and regulations as the Administrator deems necessary or proper
for the efficient administration of the Plan;

(b) To interpret the provisions of the Plan, the Administrator's interpretations thereof in good faith to be final and
conclusive on all persons claiming benefits by operation of the Plan;

(c) To decide all questions concerning the Plan and the eligibility of any person to participate in the Plan and to
receive benefits provided by operation of the Plan;

(d) To reject elections or to limit contributions or Benefits for certain highly compensated participants if it deems
such to be desirable in order to avoid discrimination under the Plan in iolation of applicable provisions of the Code;

(e) To provide Employees with a reasonable notification of their benefits available by operation of the Plan and
to assist any Participant regarding the Participant's rights, benefits or elections under the Plan;

(f) To keep and maintain the Plan documents and all other records pertaining to and necessary for the
administration of the Plan;

(g) To review and settle all claims against the Plan, to approve reimbursement requests, and to authorize the
payment of benefits iflhe Administrator determines such shall be paid if the Administrator decides in its discretion that the

applicant is entitled to them. Illis authority specifically permits the Administrator to settle disputed claims for benefits and any

other disputed claims made against the Plan;

(h) To appoint such agents, counsel, accountants, consultants, and other persons or entities as may be required to
assist in administering the Plan.

Any procedure, discretionary act, interpretation or construction taken by the Administrator shall be done in a nondiscriminatory
manner based upon uniform principles consistently applied and shall be consistent with the intent that the Plan shall continue to comply
with the terms of Code Section 125 and the Treasury regulations thereunder.

9.2 EXAMINATION OF RECORDS

The Administrator shall make available to each Participant Eligible Employee and any other Employee of the Employer such
records as pertain to their interest under the Plan for examination at reasonable times during normal business hours.

9.3 PAYMENT OF EXPENSES

Any reasonable administrative expenses shall be paid by the Employer unless the Employer determines that administrative costs
shall be borne by the Participants under the Plan or by any Trust Fund which may be established hereunder. The Administrator may impose
reasonable conditions for payments, provided that such conditions shall not discriminate in favor of highly compensated employees.

9.4 INSURANCE CONTROL CLAUSE

In the event ofa conflict between the terms ofthis Plan and the tenns of an Insurance Contract ofan independent third party

Insurer whose product is then being used in conjunction with this Plan, the terms of the Insurance Contract shall control as to those

Participants receiving coverage under such Insurance Contract. For this purpose, the Insurance Contract shall control in defining the

persons eligible for insurance, the dates of their eligibility, the conditions which must be satisfied to become insured, if any, the benefits
Participants are entitled to and the circumstances under which insurance terminates.

9.5 INDEMNIFICATION OF ADMINISTRATOR

The Employer agrees to indemnify and to defend to the fullest extent permitted by law any Employee serving as the

Administrator or as a member ofa committee designated as Administrator (including any Employee or former Employee who previously
served as Administrator or as a member of such committee) against all liabilities, damages, costs and expenses (including attorney's fees
and amounts paid in settlement of any claims approved by the Employer) occasioned by any act or omission to act in connection with the
Plan, if such act or omission is in good faith.

16



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 103 of 373

10.1

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 103 of 373

ARTICLE X
AMENDMENT OR TERMINATION OF PLAN

AMENDMENT

The Employer, at any time or from time to time, may amend any or all of the provisions of the Plan without the consent of any
Employee or Participant. No amendment shall have the effect of modifring any benefit election of any Participant in effect at the time of
such amendment, unless such amendment is made to comply with Federal, stale or local lays, statutes or regulations.

10.2 TERMINATION

The Employer reserves the right to terminate this Plan, in whole or in part, at any time. Jn the event the Plan is terminated, no

further contributions shall be made. Benefits under any Insurance Contract shall be paid in accordance with the terms of the Insurance
Contract.

No further additions shall be made to the Health Flexible Spending Account or Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account. but
all payments from such fund shall continue to be made according to the elections in effect until 90 days after the termination date of the
Plan. Any amounts remaining in any such fund or account as of the end of such period shall be forfeited and deposited in the benefit plan
surplus after the expiration of the filing period,

11.1

ARTICLE Xl
MISCELLANEOUS

PLAN INTERPRETATION

All provisions of this Plan shall be interpreted and applied in a uniform, nondiscriminatory manner. This Plan shall be read in its

entirety and not severed except as provided in Section 1 1.12.

11.2 GENDER, NUMBER AND TENSE

Wherever any words are used herein in one gender, they shall be construed as though they were also used in all genders in all

cases where they would so apply; whenever any words are used herein in the singular or plural form, they shall be construed as though they

were also used in the other form in all cases where they would so apply; and whenever any words are used herein in the past or present

tense. they shall be construed as though they were also used in the other form in all cases where they would so apply.

11.3 WRITTEN DOCUMENT

This Plan, in conjunction with any separate written document which may be required by law, is intended to satisfy the written
Plan requirement of Code Section 125 and any Treasury regulations thereunder relating to cafeteria plans.

11.4

11.5

EXCLUSIVE BENEFIT

This Plan shall be maintained for the exclusive benefit of the Employees who participate in the Plan.

PARTICIPANT'S RIGHTS

This Plan shall nol be deemed to constitute an employment contract between the Employer and any Participant or to be a

consideration or an inducement for the employment of any Participant or Employee. Nothing contained in this Plan shall be deemed to give
any Participant or Employee the right to be retained in the service of the Employer or to interfere with the right of the Employer to

discharge any Participant or Employee at any time regardless of the effect which such discharge shall have upon him as a Participant of this
Plan.

11.6 ACTION BY THE EMPLOYER

Whenever the Employer under the terms of the Plan is permitted or required to do or perform any act or matter or thing, it shall

be done and performed by a person duly authorized by its legally constituted authority.

EMPLOYER'S PROTECTIVE CLAUSES11.7

(a) Insurance purchase. Upon the failure of either the Participant or the Employer to obtain the insurance
contemplated by this Plan (whether as a result of negligence, gross neglect or otherwise), the Participant's Benefits shall be

limited to the insurance premium(s), if any, that remained unpaid for the period in question and the actual insurance proceeds. if

any, received by the Employer or the Participant as a result of the Participant's claim.

(b) Validity of insurance contract. "Ihe Employer shall not be responsible for the validity of any Insurance

Contract issued hereunder or for the failure on the part of the Insurer to make payments provided for under any Insurance

17



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 104 of 373

11.8

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 104 of 373

Contract. Once insurance is applied for or obtained, the Employer shall not be liable for any loss which may result from the
failure to pay Premiums to the extent Premium notices are not received by the Employer.

NO GUARANTEE OF TAX CONSEQUENCES

Neither the Administrator nor the Employer makes any commitment or guarantee that any amounts paid to or for the benefit of a
Participant under the Plan will be excludable from the Participant's gross income for federal or state income tax purposes, or that any other

federal or state tax treatment will apply to or be available to any Participant. It shall be the obligation of each Participant to determine

whether each payment under the Plan is excludable from the Participant's gross income for federal and state income tax purposes, and to

notify the Employer if the Participant has reason to believe that any such payment is not so excludable. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the

rights of Participants under this Plan shall be legally enforceable.

11.9 INDEMNIFICATION OF EMPLOYER BY PARTICIPANTS

If any Participant receives one or more payments or reimbursements under the Plan that are not for a permitted Benefit, such

Participant shall indemnify and reimburse the Employer for any liability it may incur for failure to withhold federal or state income tax or
Social Security tax from such payments or reimbursements. However, such indemnification and reimbursement shall not exceed the

amount of additional federal and state income tax (plus any penalties) that the Participant would have owed if the payments or

reimbursements had been made to the Participant as regular cash compensation, plus the Participant's share of any Social Security tax that
would have been paid on such compensation, less any such additional income and Social Security tax actually paid by the Participant.

11.10 FUNDING

Unless otherwise required by la'Å. contributions to the Plan need not be placed in trust or dedicated to a specific Benefit, but may
instead be considered general assets of the Employer. Furthermore, and unless otherwise required by law, nothing herein shall be construed

to require the Employer or the Administrator to maintain any fund or segregate any amount for the benefit of any Participant, and no

Participant or other person shall have any claim against, right to, or security or other interest in, any fund, account or asset of the Employer

from which any payment under the Plan may be made.

11.11 GOVERNING LAW

This Plan is governed by the Code and the Treasury regulations issued thereunder (as they might be amended from time to time).

In no event shall the Employer guarantee the favorable tax treatment sought by this Plan. To the extent not preempted by Federal law, the
provisions of this Plan shall be construed, enforced and administered according to the laws of the State of North Carolina.

11.12 SEVERABILITY

If any provision of the Plan is held invalid or unenforceable, its invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions
of the Plan, and the Plan shall be construed and enforced as if such provision had not been included herein.

11.13 CAPTIONS

The captions contained herein are inserted only as a matter of convenience and for reference, and in no way define, limit, enlarge
or describe the scope or intent of the Plan, nor in any way shall affect the Plan or the construction of any provision thereof.

11.14 CONTINUATION OF COVERAGE (COBRA)

Not"'ilhstanding anything in the Plan to the contrary, in the event any benefit under this Plan suhiect to the continuation coverage

requirement of Code Section 4980B becomes unavailable, each Participant will be entitled to continuation coverage as prescribed in Code

Section 4980B, and related regulations. This Section shall only apply if the Employer employs at least twenty (20) employees on more than
50% of its typical business days in the previous calendar year.

11.15 FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT (FMLA)

Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the contrary, in the event any benefit under this Plan becomes subject to the requirements

of the Family and Medical Leave Act and regulations thereunder, this Plan shall be operated in accordance with Regulation I .125-3.

11.16 HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY 'ND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT (HIPAA)

Notwithstanding anything in this Plan to the contrary, this Plan shall be operated in accordance eith HIPAA and regulations
thereunder.

11.17 UNIFORMED SERVICES EMPLOYMENT AND REEMPLOYMENT RIGHTS ACT (USERRA)

Notwithstanding any provision of this Plan to the contrary. contributions, benefits and service credit with respect to qualified military

service shall be provided in accordance with the Unifonn Services Employment And Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA) and the
regulations thereunder.

18



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 105 of 373

11.18

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 105 of 373

COMPLIANCE WITH HIPAA PRIVACY STANDARDS

(a) Application. If any benefits under this Cafeteria Plan are subject to the Standards for Privacy of Individually

Identifiable Health Information (45 CFR Part 164, the "Privacy Standards"), then this Section shall apply.

(b) Disclosure of PHI. The Plan shall not disclose Protected Health Information to any member of the
Employer's workforce unless each of the conditions set out in this Section are met. "Protected Health Information" shall have the

same definition as set forth in the Privacy Standards but generally shall mean individually identifiable information about the past,
present or future physical or mental health or condition of an individual, including genetic information and information about

treatment or payment for treatment.

(c) PHI disclosed for administrative purposes. Protected Health Information disclosed to members of the
Employer's workforce shall be used or disclosed by them only for purposes of Plan administrative functions. The Plants

administrative functions shall include all Plan payment functions and health care operations. The terms "payment" and "health

care operations" shall have the same definitions as set out in the Privacy Standards, but the term "payment" generally shall mean

activities taken to determine or fulfill Plan responsibilities with respect to eligibility, coverage, provision of benefits, or

reimbursement for health care. Protected Health Information that consists of genetic information not be used or disclosed for

underwriting purposes.

(d) PHI disclosed to certain workforce members. The Plan shall disclose Protected Health Information only to
members of the Employer's workforce who are designated and authorized to receive such Protected Health Information, and only
to the extent and in the minimum amount necessary for that person to perform his or her duties with respect to the Plan.
"Members of the Employer's workforce" shall refer to all employees and other persons under the control of the Employer. "Ihe
Employer shall keep an updated list of those authorized to receive Protected Health Information.

(1) An authorized member of the Employer's workforce who receives Protected Health Information shall use or
disclose the Protected Health Information only to the extent necessary to perform his or her duties with respect to the

Plan.

(2) In the event that any member of the Employer's workforce uses or discloses Protected Health Information
other than as permitted by this Section and the Privacy Standards. the incident shall be reported to the Plan's privacy

official. The privacy official shall take appropriate action, including:

investigation of the incident to determine whether the breach occurred inadvertently, through

negligence or deliberately; whether there is a pattem of breaches; and the degree of harm caused by the

breach;

(ii) appropriate sanctions against the persons causing the breach which, depending upon the nature of

the breach, may include oral or written reprimand, additional training, or termination of employment;

(iii) mitigation of any harm caused by the breach. to the extent practicable; and

(iv) documentation of the incident and all actions taken to resohe the issue and mitigate any damages.

Certification. The Employer must provide certification to the Plan that it agrees to:

Not use or further disclose the information other than as permitted or required by the Plan documents or as

required by law;

Ensure that any agent or subcontractor, to whom it provides Protected Health Information received from the(2)

Plan, agrees to the same restrictions and conditions that apply to the Employer with respect to such information;

(3) Not use or disclose Protected Health Information for employment-related actions and decisions or in

connection with any other benefit or employee benefit plan of the Employer,

(4) Report to the Plan any use or disclosure of the Protected Health Information of which it becomes aware that

is inconsistent with the uses or disclosures permitted by this Section, or required by law;

(5) Make available Protected Health Information to individual Plan members in accordance with Section 164.524
of the Privacy Standards;

(6) Make available Protected Health Information for amendment by individual Plan members and incorporate
any amendments to Protected Health Information in accordance with Section 164.526 oflhe Privacy Standards;

Make available the Protected Health Information required to provide an accounting of disclosures 10(7)

individual Plan members in accordance with Section 164.528 of the Privacy Standards;

19



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 106 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 106 of 373

(8) Make its internal practices, books and records relating to the use and disclosure of Protected Health
Information received from the Plan available to the Departinent of Health and Human Services for purposes of
determining compliance by the Plan with the Privacy Standards;

(9) If feasible, return or destroy all Protected Health Information received from the Plan that the Employer still

maintains in any form, and retain no copies of such information when no longer needed for the purpose for which
disclosure was made. except that, if such return or destruction is not feasible, limit further uses and disclosures to those
purposes that make the return or destruction of the information infeasible; and

(10) Ensure the adequate separation between the Plan and members of the Employer's workforce, as required by
Section 164.504(f)(2)(iii) of the Privacy Standards and set out in (d) above.

11.19 COMPLIANCE WITH HIPAA ELECTRONIC SECURITY STANDARDS

Under the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected Health Information (45 CFR Part 164.300 et. seq., the
"Security Standards"):

11.20

11.21

11.22

1998.

11.23

(a) Implementation. The Employer agrees to implement reasonable and appropriate administrative, physical and
technical safeguards to protect the confidentiality, integrity and availability of Electronic Protected Health Information that the

Employer creates, maintains or transmits on behalf of the Plan. "Electronic Protected Health Information" shall have the same

definition as set out in the Security Standards, but generally shall mean Protected Health Information that is transmitted by or
maintained in electronic media.

(b) Agents or subcontractors shall meet security standards. The Employer shall ensure that any agent or
subcontractor to whom it provides Electronic Protected Health Information shall agree, in to implement reasonable and

appropriate security measures 10 protect the Electronic Protected Health Information.

(c) Employer shall ensure security standards. The Employer shall ensure that reasonable and appropriate
security measures are implemented to comply with the conditions and requirements set forth in Section 1 1.18.

MENTAL HEALTH PARITY AND ADDICTION EQUITY ACT

Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the confrary, the Plan will comply with the Mental Health Parity and Addiction Equity Act.

GENETIC INFORMATION NONDISCRIMINATION ACT (GINA)

Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the contrary, the Plan will comply with the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act.

WOMEN'S HEALTH AND CANCER RIGHTS ACT

Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the contrary, the Plan will comply with the Women's Health and Cancer Rights Act of

NEWBORNS' AND MOTHERS' HEALTH PROTECTION ACT

Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the contrary. the Plan will comply with the Newborns' and Mothers' Health Protection Act.

20



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 107 of 373

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. this Plan document is hereby executed this

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 107 of 373

day of

Lee County Government

By
EMPLOYER

WIDOESSES AS TO EMPLOYER

21



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 108 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 108 of 373

ADOPTING RESOLUTION

The undersigned authorized representative of Lee County Government (the Employer) hereby certifies that the following

resolutions were duly adopted by the Employer on and that such resolutions have not been modified or rescinded

as of the date hereof:

RESOLVED, that the form of amended Cafeteria Plan including a Health Flexible Spending Account and Dependent Care Flexible
Spending Account effective August 1 2019. presented to this meeting is hereby approved and adopted and that an authorized

representative of the Employer is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver to the Administrator of the Plan one or more
counterparts of the Plan.

The undersigned further certifies that attached hereto as Exhibits A and B, respectively, are true copies of Lee County
Government Flexible Benefit Plan as amended and restated, and the Summary Plan Description approved and adopted in the foregoing
resolutions.

Date:

Signed:

[print name/titlel



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 109 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 109 of 373

ITEM

LEE COUNTY AGENDA ABSTRACT 11. L.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
(Use the Down or Up Arrows to move between fields of the Form)

MEETING DATE: August 19, 2019

SUBJECT: Resolution for the Lee County Government Section 125 Plans for Health Reimbursement
Account

DEPARTMENT: Human Resources

CONTACT PERSON: Joyce NIcGehee, IPMA-SCP, SHRM-SCP, SPHR

TYPE: Consent Agenda C] Acdon Item Public Hearing Information

REQUEST
BUDGET IMPACT
ATTACHMENTS
PRIOR BOARD ACHON

A roval of Resoludon for U datin the Section 125 Plan Document
N/A
Resolution, Summ - Plan Descri tion and Health Reimbursement Plan

Approve Resoluüon for Implementing the Section 125 plan for the Health
Reimbursement Plan

SUMMARY
Currently post -65 employees are not permitted to have contributions made to the Health Savings Account CISA)
due to being eligible for Medicare Part A (which is hospital insurance). Implementation of the Health

Reimbursement Account (HRA) will enable contributions into an employee account that will supplement the High
Deducüble Plan.

Flexible Benefits Administrators, Inc. will administer our Health Reimbursement Account. Thus, the need for a

Section 125 Plan that includes a Health ReimbursementPlan Document and a Summary Plan Description.

Form Updated August 2, 2017 Page 1 of 1



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 110 of 373

BOC Agenda
19

Regula/ Meet g

eage•lljo_ 3

Health Reimbursement Arrangements

Plan Documents

Lewd



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 111 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 111 of 373

What is an HRA?

Health Reimbursement Accounts or Health Reimbursement Arrangements (H RAs) are employer-funded,

tax-advantaged employer health benefit plans that reimburse employees for out-of-pocket medical
expenses and individual health insurance premiums.

The employer sets aside a specific amount of pre-tax dollars for employees to pay for health care

expenses on an annual basis. Based on the plan design, HRAs can generate significant savings in overall
health benefits. The primary requirements for an HRA are that (1 ) the plan must be funded solely by the
employer and cannot be funded by salary reducjon, and (2) the HRA must be integrated with a group
health plan if providing reimbursement for qualified medical expenses, HRAs may be designed in many
fashions to suit the specific needs of employer and employees alike. It is one of the most flexible types of

employee benefiE plans, making it very attractive to most employers.

H RAs may be established to cover dental and/or vision expenses as well. These types of HRA plans are
excepted from the ACA's market reform provisions as long as the dental and/or vision plans are provided
under separate policies and not pan of a group health plan.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 112 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

eeting

Page 11 of 373Types of HRA Plan design:

Integrated HRA

An integrated HRA is the most widely-known type of HRA health plan design. With an integrated HRA the
business purchases a high deductible health plan to achieve savings with lower premiums (for example,

they switch from a $500 deductible to a $2,500 deductible). The employer sets up an integrated HRA to
reimburse employees for freir additional medical expenses associated with raising the deductible.

Following the example above, the integrated HRA would cover the difference between the old and new
deducible ($2,000 annually). This type of HRA is generally designed to only reimburse out-of-pocket
medical expenses related to fre higher deducible and does not cover individual insurance premiums.

Cost-Sharing HRA

A cost-sharing HRA is designed for the business and employees to share in üle cost of the benefit. This
type of HRA health plan design can be incorporated into an integrated HRA or defined conMbution HRA.
The employer can add an HRA deductible, where employees are required to pay out-of-pocket a certain
amount before the benefit kicks in. The employer can also add an HRA co-insurance, where the employer
reimburses a portion of all eligible medical expenses, such as 80% of insurance premiums.

Dental and/or Vision HRA

Employers can provide dental and/or vision benefits through an HRA as long as there is no current
coverage provided under the group healtl plan. These type of HRAs are typically established when
is no underlying group dental and/or vision plan. This type of HRA allows employers to provide some
benefit for these type of expenses.

Retiree HRA

A retiree HRA health plan is designed to reimburse employees only after reirement. The employer
decides what types of medical expenses to reimburse. Eligibility for the HRA health plan is limited to
retired employees. A retiree HRA allows an employer to provide an extended and less expensive
altemafive to COBRA health insurance, and can help older employees witl early retirement.

Wellness HRA

The health of employees is more important than ever. Employers are always searching for ways to help

motivate employees to get healtlY. With a Wellness HRA, employers can provide tax-free money to pay for

qualified medical expenses for employees that complete specific activifies. For example, they might give

employees $100 into an HRA for getting a physical or $50 for taking a Health Risk Assessment

FlexWeBenefit
ADMINISTRATORS

Flexible Benefit Administrators, Inc.

800437-3539

info@flex-admin.com



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 113 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting

age O

flexlbleBenefit

Lee County Government
Lee County Government

408 Summit Drive
Sanford, NC 27330

Lee County Government HRA Plan

Summary Plan Description

Effective August 01, 2019



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 114 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 114 of 373TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION

l. ELIGIBILITY

01. What Are the Eligibility Requirements for this HRA?

02. When is My Entry Date?

03. Are There Any Employees Who Are Not Eligible?

II. BENEFITS

01.

02.

03.

04.

05.

06.

07.

08.

What Benefits Are Available?

What is the "Plan Year"?

What is the "Coverage Period"?

How are payments made from the HRA?

What Happens If I Terminate Employment?

Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA)

Newborn and Mothers Health Protection Act

Qualified Medical Child Support Order

Ill. GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT OUR HRA

01.

02.

03.

04.

05.

06.

General HRA Information

Employer Information

Plan Administrator Information

Agent for Service of Legal Process

Type of Administration

Claims Administrator Information



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 115 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 115 of 373

IV. ADDITIONAL HRA INFORMATION

01. How Claims Are Submitted

V. CONTINUATION COVERAGE RIGHTS UNDER COBRA

01.

02.

03.

04.

05.

06.

07.

08.

09.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

What is COBRA Continuation Coverage?

Are there other coverage options?

Who Can Become a Qualified Beneficiary?

What is a Qualifying Event?

What Factors Should Be Considered When Determining to Elect COBRA Continuation Coverage?

What is the Procedure for Obtaining COBRA Continuation Coverage?

What is the Election Period and How Long Must It Last?

Is a Covered Employee or Qualified Beneficiary Responsible for Informing the HRA Administrator of
the Occurrence of a Qualifying Event?

Is a Waiver Before the End of the Election Period Effective to End a Qualified Beneficiarys Election
Rights?

Is COBRA Coverage Available If a Qualified Beneficiary Has Other Group Health HRA Coverage or
Medicare?

When May a Qualified Beneficiary's COBRA Continuation Coverage Be Terminated?

What Are the Maximum Coverage Periods for COBRA Continuation Coverage?

Under What Circumstances Can the Maximum Coverage Period Be Expanded?

How Does a Qualified Beneficiary Become Entitled to a Disability Extension?

Does the Arrangement Require Payment for COBRA Continuation Coverage?

Must the Arrangement Allow Payment for COBRA Continuation Coverage to Be Made in Monthly
Installments?

What is Timely Payment for Payment for COBRA Continuation Coverage?

Must a Qualified Beneficiary Be Given the Right to Enroll in a Conversion Health HRA at the End of
the Maximum Coverage Period for COBRA Continuation Coverage?



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 116 of 373INTRODUCTION

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 116 of 373

This is the Summary Plan Description (the "SPD") for the Lee County Government HRA Plan, a Health Reimbursement
Arrangement (the "HRA"). This SPD summarizes your rights and obligations as a participant (or beneficiary) in the HRA

Read this SPD carefully so that you understand the provisions of our HRA and the benefits you will receive. You should direct
any questions you have to the Plan Administrator. There is a plan document on file, which you may review if you desire. In the
event there is a conflict between this SPD and the plan document, the plan document will control.

r. ELIGIBILITY

01. What Are the Eligibility Requirements for this HRA?

You will be automatically enrolled in the HRA when you enroll in the Employer's group medical
plan, unless you have opted out of the HRA.

02. When is My Date?

Your entry date is the date you satisfy the eligibility requirements of and enroll in the Employer's
group medical plan.

Your entry date is the first day of the next month after the eligibility requirements were satisfied.

03. Are There Any Employees WbQ Are Not Eligible?

Yes, employees who are not eligible to receive medical benefits under the group medical plan, or
who are not enrolled in that plan, are not eligible to join the HRA



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 117 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
17 of 373

11. BENEFITS

01. What Benefits Are Available?

The HRA allows for reimbursement for expenses as described in the Appendices of this document.
The expenses that qualify are those permitted by Section 213(d) of the Internal Revenue Code.

The amounts provided to the HRA by your employer will be made available on the first day of the
plan year.

If you are a new hire and enter the plan mid-year, the HRA amount provided to you will be
prorated on a monthly basis.

Expenses are considered "incurred" when the service is performed, not necessarily when it is paid
for. Any amounts reimbursed under the HRA may not be claimed as a deduction on your personal
income tax return or reimbursed by other health plan coverage.

If the maximum amount available for reimbursement for a Coverage Period is not utilized in its
entirety, refer to Appendix A for information on how these funds will be handled.

02. What is the "Plan Year"?

The "Plan Year" begins August 01 and ends July 31.

03. What is the "Coverage Period"?

The period of the current "Coverage Period" in which the individual is an eligible employee on or
after his or her plan entry date.

04. Hou are payments made fom the HRA?

You may submit requests for reimbursement of expenses you have incurred during the course of a
Coverage Period in accordance with the instructions of the Plan Administrator. We will also provide
you with a debit or credit card to use to pay for Qualified Medical Expenses as described in
Appendix A. The Plan Administrator will provide you with further details. However, you must make
your requests for reimbursements no later than 90 days after the end of the Coverage Period (that
is, no later than 10/29). In addition, you must submit to the Plan Administrator, in accordance with
the instructions of the Plan Administrator, proof of the expenses you have incurred and that they
have not been paid by any other health plan coverage. If the request qualifies as a benefit or
expense that the HRA has agreed to pay, you will receive a reimbursement payment soon
thereafter.

Remember, reimbursements made from the HRA are generally not subject to federal income tax or
withholding. Nor are they subject to Social Security taxes.

05. What Happens If I Terminate Employment?

If your employment is terminated during the Plan Year for any reason, your participation in the HRA
will cease on the date of your termination, and you will not be eligible to be reimbursed for any
expenses incurred past that date. You must submit claims for any expenses incurred prior to your
termination of employment within 30 days after you terminate employment. Any unused amounts
will be forfeited.

06. Uniformed Seryices Employment and Reemployment Bights Act (USERRA)

If you are going into or returning from military service, the Uniformed Services Employment and
Reemployment Rights Act of 1994 may give you special rights to health care coverage under the
HRA. These rights can include extended health care coverage. USERRA continuation coverage is
concurrent with COBRA continuation coverage. If you may be affected by this law, ask your Plan
Administrator for further details.

07. rn and hers H Prot tion A

Group health plans generally may not, under Federal law, restrict benefits for any hospital length
of stay in connection with childbirth for the mother or newborn child to less than 48 hours following
a vaginal delivery, or less than 96 hours following a cesarean section. However, Federal law
generally does not prohibit the motherls or newborn's attending provider, after consulting with the
mother, from discharging the mother or her newborn earlier than 48 hours (or 96 hours as
applicable). In any case, plans and issuers may not, under Federal law, require that a provider
obtain authorization from the HRA or the issuer for prescribing a length of stay not in excess of 48
hours (or 96 hours).

08. Qualifie—j.ca.l-ChiCSuQ2Q.cerdsr



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 118 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting

A medical child support order is a judgment, decree or order (including approval of a prome 118 Of 373
settlement) made under state law that provides for child support or health coverage for the child of
a participant. The child becomes an "alternate recipient" and can receive benefits under the health
plans of the Employer, if the order is determined to be "qualified." You may obtain, without charge,
a copy of the procedures governing the determination of qualified medical child support orders
from the Plan Administrator.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 119 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
19 of 373

Ill. GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT OUR HRA

This Section contains certain general information, which you may need to know about the HRA.

01. General HRA Information

"Lee County Government HRA Plan" is the name of the Plan.

Your Employer has assigned Plan Number 502 to your Plan.

The company has adopted this Plan effective August 01, 2019.

Your Plan's records are maintained on the basis of a period of time known as the "Plan Year." The
Plan Year begins on August 01 and ends July 31 (the "Plan Year").

02. Emaloy.er Information

Your Employer's name, address, and identification number are:

Lee County Government
408 Summit Drive
Sanford, NC 27330
EIN: 56-6000313

03. Plan Administrator Information

The name and address of your Plan Administrator are:

Lee County Government
408 Summit Drive
Sanford, NC 27330

The Plan Administrator will also answer any questions you may have about our HRA. The Plan
Administrator has the exclusive right to interpret the appropriate HRA provisions. Decisions of the
Plan Administrator are conclusive and binding. You may contact the Plan Administrator for any
further information about the HRA

04. Agent fnr_ Service Qf Legal Process

Should it ever be necessary, you or your personal representative may serve legal process on the
agent for service of legal process for the HRA. The HRA Agent of Service is:

Lee County Government
408 Summit Drive
Sanford, NC 27330

Legal process may also be served on the Plan Administrator.

05. I.ype Qf Administration

The HRA is a health reimbursement arrangement. The HRA is not funded or insured. Benefits are
paid from the general assets of the Employer.

06. Claims Administrator Information

The name and address of your Claims Administrator are:

Flexible Benefit Administrators, Inc.

Post Office Drawer 8188
Virginia Beach, VA 23450

The Claims Administrator keeps the claims records for the HRA and is responsible for the claims
administration of the HRA. The Claims Administrator will also answer any claims-related questions
you may have about the HRA.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 120 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
O of 373

'V. ADDITIONAL HRA INFORMATION

01. How claims are submitted

When you have a Claim to submit for payment, you must:

1. File the claim in accordance with the instructions of the Plan Administrator.

2. Submit copies of all supporting receipts and/or Explanation of Benefits (EOB) from your
insurance carrier for which you are requesting reimbursement.

A Claim is defined as any request for a HRA benefit, made by a claimant or by a representative of a
claimant that complies with the HRAIs reasonable procedure for making benefit Claims. The times
listed are maximum times only. A period of time begins at the time the Claim is filed. Unless
otherwise specified, decisions will be made within a reasonable period of time appropriate to the
circumstances. "Days" means calendar days.

Notification of whether claim is accepted or denied

Extension due to matters beyond the control of the Plan

Insufficient information on the claim:

Notification of

Response by Participant

Review of claim denial

30 days

15 days

15 days

45 days

60 days

The Claims Administrator will provide written or electronic notification of any Claim denial, The
notice will state:

1. Information sufficient to identify the claim involved, including the date of service, the health
care provider, the claim amount (if applicable), the diagnosis code and its corresponding
meaning, and the treatment code and its corresponding meaning.

2. The specific reason or reasons for the adverse determination.

3. Reference to the specific HRA or Welfare Program provisions on which the determination is
based.

4. A description of any additional material or information necessary to perfect the claim and an
explanation of why such material or information is necessary.

5. A description of the HRAIs internal review procedures and time limits applicable to such
procedures, available external review procedures, as well as the claimant's right to bring a
civil action following a final appear.

6. Upon request and free of charge, a copy of any internal rule, guideline, protocol or other
similar criterion that was relied upon in making the adverse determination regarding the
claim, and an explanation of the scientific or clinical judgment for a determination that is
based on a medical necessity, experimental treatment or other similar exclusion or limit.

7. In the case of a claim involving urgent care, a description of the expedited review process
applicable to such claim.

8. The availability of and contact information for an applicable office of health insurance
consumer assistance or ombudsman established under PHS Act Section 2793.

When you receive a denial, you will have 180 days following receipt of the notification in which to
appeal the decision to the Claims Administrator. You may submit written comments, documents,
records, and other information relating to the Claim. If you request, you will be provided, free of
charge, reasonable access to, and copies of, all documents, records, and other information
relevant to the Claim.

The period of time within which a denial on review is required to be made will begin at the time an
appeal is filed in accordance with the procedures of the HRA. This timing is without regard to
whether all the necessary information accompanies the filing.

A document, record, or other information shall be considered relevant to a Claim if it:

1. was relied upon in making the Claim determination;

2. was submitted, considered, or generated in the course of making the Claim determination,



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 121 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
without regard to whether it was relied upon in making the Claim determination; Page 121 of 373

3. demonstrated compliance with the administrative processes and safeguards designed to
ensure and to verify that Cfaim determinations are made in accordance with HRA documents
and HRA provisions have been applied consistently with respect to all claimants;

4. or constituted a statement of policy or guidance with respect to the HRA concerning the
denied Claim.

The review will take into account all comments, documents, records, and other information
submitted by the claimant relating to the Claim, without regard to whether such information was
submitted or considered in the initial Claim determination. The review will not afford deference to
the initial denial and will be conducted by a fiduciary of the HRA who is neither the individual who
made the adverse determination nor a subordinate of that individual.

After receiving notice of an adverse benefit determination or a final internal adverse benefit
determination, a claimant may file with the HRA a request for an external review. A claimant may
request from the Plan Administrator additional information describing the HRAis external review
procedure.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 122 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
2 of 373

V. CONTINUATION COVERAGE RIGHTS UNDER COBRA

Under federal law, the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985 (COBRA), certain
employees and their families covered under this HRA will be entitled to the opportunity to elect a
temporary extension of health coverage (called "COBRA continuation coverage") where coverage under
the HRA would otherwise end. This notice is intended to inform Participants and beneficiaries, in
summary fashion, of their rights and obligations under the continuation coverage provisions of COBRA,
as amended and reflected in final and proposed regulations published by the Department of the
Treasury. This notice is intended to reflect the law and does not grant or take away any rights under the
law.

The Plan Administrator or its designee is responsible for administering COBRA continuation coverage.
Complete instructions on COBRA, as well as election forms and other information, will be provided by
the Plan Administrator or its designee to Participants who become Qualified Beneficiaries under COBRA.
The HRA itself can provide group health benefits and may also be used to provide health benefits
through insurance.

01. What Is COBRA contlnuation Coverage?

COBRA continuation coverage is the temporary extension of group health plan coverage that must
be offered to certain Participants and their efigible family members (called "Qualified
Beneficiaries") at group rates. The right to COBRA continuation coverage is triggered by the
occurrence of a life event that results in the loss of coverage under the terms of the Arrangement
(the 'Qualifying Event"), The coverage must be identical to the coverage that the Qualified
Beneficiary had immediately before the Qualifying Event, or if the coverage has been changed, the
coverage must be identical to the coverage provided to similarly situated active employees who
have not experienced a Qualifying Event (in other words, similarly situated non-COBRA
beneficiaries). When you become eligible for COBRA, you may also become eligible for other
coverage options that may cost less than COBRA continuation coverage.

02. Are there other coverage options?

You may have other options available to you when you lose group health coverage. For example,
you may be eligible to buy an individual plan through the Health Insurance Marketplace, which
coverage began effective January 1, 2014. By enrolling in coverage through the Marketplace, you
may qualify for lower costs on your monthly premiums and lower out-of-pocket costs. You may be
eligible for Medicaid. Additionally, you may qualify for a 30-day special enrollment period for
another group health plan for which you are eligible (such as a Spouse's plan), even if that plan
generally doesn't accept late enrollees. For more information about health insurance options
available through the Health Insurance Marketplace, and to locate an assister in your area who you
can talk to about the different options, visit www.HealthCare.gov.

03. Who Can Become a Qualified

In general, a Qualified Beneficiary can be:

1. Any individual who, on the day before a Qualifying Event, is covered under the HRA by virtue
of being on that day either a covered Employee, the Spouse of a covered Employee, or a
Dependent child of a covered Employee. If, however, an individual who otherwise qualifies as
a Qualified Beneficiary is denied or not offered coverage under the HRA under circumstances
in which the denial or failure to offer constitutes a violation of applicable law, then the
individuaf will be considered to have had the coverage and will be considered a Qualified
Beneficiary if that individual experiences a Qualifying Event.

2. Any child who is born to or placed for adoption with a covered Employee during a period of
COBRA continuation coverage, and any individual who is covered by the HRA as an alternate
recipient under a qualified medical support order. If, however, an individual who otherwise
qualifies as a Qualified Beneficiary is denied or not offered coverage under the HRA under
circumstances in which the denial or failure to offer constitutes a violation of applicable law,
then the individual will be considered to have had the coverage and will be considered a
Qualified Beneficiary if that individual experiences a Qualifying Event.

The term "covered Employee" includes any individual who is provided coverage under the HRA due
to his or her performance of services for the employer sponsoring the HRA. However, this provision
does not establish eligibility of these individuals. Eligibility for HRA coverage shall be determined in
accordance with HRA Eligibility provisions.

An individual is not a Qualified Beneficiary if the individual's status as a covered Employee is
attributable to a period in which the individual was a nonresident alien who received from the
individual's Employer no earned income that constituted income from sources within the United
States. If, on account of the preceding reason, an individual is not a Qualified Beneficiary, then a
Spouse or Dependent child of the individual will also not be considered a Qualified Beneficiary by
virtue of the relationship to the individual. A domestic partner is not a Qualified Beneficiary.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 123 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Each Qualified Beneficiary (including a child who is born to or placed for adoption with a Of 373
Employee during a period of COBRA continuation coverage) must be offered the opportunity to
make an independent election to receive COBRA continuation coverage.

04. What is a Qualifying Event?

A Qualifying Event is any of the following if the Arrangement provided that the participant would
lose coverage (i.e., cease to be covered under the same terms and conditions as in effect
immediately before the Qualifying Event) in the absence of COBRA continuation coverage:

1. The death of a covered Employee.

2. The termination (other than by reason of the Employeels gross misconduct), or reduction of
hours, of a covered Employee's employment.

3, The divorce or legat separation ofa covered Employee from the Employee's Spouse. If the
Employee reduces or eliminates the Employee's Spouse's HRA coverage in anticipation of a
divorce or legal separation, and a divorce or legal separation later occurs, then the divorce or
legal separation may be considered a Qualifying Event even though the Spouse's coverage
was reduced or eliminated before the divorce or legal separation.

4. A covered Employee's enrollment in any part of the Medicare program.

5. A Dependent child's ceasing to satisfy the HRA's requirements for a Dependent child (for
example, attainment of the maximum age for dependency under the Arrangement).

If the Qualifying Event causes the covered Employee, or the covered Spouse or a Dependent child
of the covered Employee, to cease to be covered under the HRA under the same terms and
conditions as in effect immediatety before the Qualifying Event (or in the case of the bankruptcy of
the Employer, any substantial elimination of coverage under the HRA occurring within 12 months
before or after the date the bankruptcy proceeding commences), the persons losing such coverage
become Qualified Beneficiaries under COBRA if all the other conditions of COBRA are also met. For
example, any increase in contribution that must be paid by a covered Employee, or the Spouse, or
a Dependent child of the covered Employee, for coverage under the HRA that results from the
occurrence of one of the events listed above is a loss of coverage.

The taking of leave under the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 ("FMLA") does not constitute a
Qualifying Event. A Qualifying Event will occur, however, if an Employee does not return to
employment at the end of the FMLA leave and all other COBRA continuation coverage conditions
are present. If a Qualifying Event occurs, it occurs on the last day of FMLA leave and the applicable
maximum coverage period is measured from this date (unless coverage is lost at a later date and
the HRA provides for the extension of the required periods, in which case the maximum coverage
date is measured from the date when the coverage is lost.) Note that the covered Employee and
family members will be entitled to COBRA continuation coverage even if they failed to pay the
employee portion of premiums for coverage under the HRA during the FMLA leave.

05. Factors Should Be Considered When Determining to Elect COBRA CQntjnuatiQ0
Coverage?

Enrolling in another Group Health Plan. You should take into account that you have special
enrollment rights under federal law (HIPAA). You have the right to request special enrollment in
another group health plan for which you are otherwise eligible (such as a plan sponsored by your
Spouse's employer) within 30 days after HRA coverage ends due to a Qualifying Event listed
above. You will also have the same special right at the end of COBRA continuation coverage if you
get COBRA continuation coverage for the maximum time available to you.

COBRA vs. Marketplace. Other factors to consider when weighing your coverage options include:
premium costs, whether a change in coverage will affect your access to certain providers, service
areas or drug formularies and whether the coverage change will affect your cost sharing (i.e., new
deductibles, etc.). See the discussion above under "Are there other coverage options?" for more
information on your options for Marketplace coverage.

06. Election for Qbtaining COBRA Continuation Coverage?

The HRA has conditioned the availability of COBRA continuation coverage upon the timely election
of such coverage. An election is timely if it is made during the election period.

07. What is the Election Period and How Long Does It Last?

The election period is the time period within which the Qualified Beneficiary must elect COBRA
continuation coverage under the HRA. The election period must begin not later than the date the
Qualified Beneficiary would lose coverage on account of the Qualifying Event and must not end
before the date that is 60 days after the later of the date the Qualified Beneficiary would lose
coverage on account of the Qualifying Event or the date notice is provided to the Qualified
Beneficiary of her or his right to elect COBRA continuation coverage.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 124 of 37308. dB n ia Ra vere m sible fee or u

Administrator of the Occurrence of a Qualifying Event?

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
in t P e 124 of 373

The HRA will offer COBRA continuation coverage to Qualified Beneficiaries only after the Plan
Administrator or its designee has been timely notified that a Qualifying Event has occurred. The
Employer will notify the Plan Administrator or its designee of the Qualifying Event within 30 days
following the date coverage ends when the Qualifying Event is:

1. the end of employment or reduction of hours of employment,

2. the death of the employee,

3. commencement of a proceeding in bankruptcy with respect to the Employer, or enrollment of
the employee in any part of Medicare.

IMPORTANT:

Fpr the Qtber Qualifying Events (divorce or legal sepa&tlon of the employee and
Spouse or a dependent child's losing eligibility for cQverage as a deaendent child). YQ"
or spmeone on your behalf must notify the Plan Administrator or its designee in writing
within EQ days after the Qualifying Event occurs. using the procedures specified below,
If these procedurgs are not followed or If the notice is not provided in writing to the
Plan Admin'stratpr or its designee during the 60-day notice neriod, any. Spouse
dependent child whQ loses coverage will not be offered the optiQn tQ elect cqntinuatiqn
coverage. You must send this notice to the Plan Administrator or its designee.

NOTICE PROCEDURES:

Any notice that you provide must be in wrlting. Oral notice, including notice by telephone, is not
acceptable. You must mail, fax or hand-deliver your notice to the person, department or firm listed
below, at the following address:

Interactive Medical Systems
Post Office Box 1349
Wake Forest, NC 27588

If mailed, your notice must be postmarked no later than the last day of the required notice period.
Any notice you provide must state:

• the name of the plan or plans under which you lost or are losing coverage,

• the name and address of the employee covered under the plan,

• the name(s) and address(es) of the Qualified Beneficiary(ies), and

the Qualifying Event and the date it happened.

If the Qualifying Event is a divorce or legal separation, your notice must include a copy of the
divorce decree or the legal separation agreement.

Be aware that there are other notice requirements jn other contexts, for example, in order to
qualify for a disability extension.

Once the Plan Administrator or its designee receives timely nQtice that a Qualifying Event has
occurred, COBRA continuation coverage will be offered to each of the qualified beneficiaries. Each
Qualified Beneficiary will have an independent right to elect COBRA continuation coverage.
Covered employees may elect COBRA continuation coverage for their Spouses, and parents may
elect COBRA continuation coverage on behalf of their children. For each Qualified Beneficiary who
elects COBRA continuation coverage, COBRA continuation coverage will begin on the date of the
Qualifying event that coverage would otherwise have been lost. The COBRA period begins on the
date of the Qualifying Event, even though coverage actually ends at the end of the month. If you or
your Spouse or dependent children do not elect continuation coverage within the 60-day election
period described above, the right to elect continuation coverage will be lost.

09. Is a Waiver Before the End of the Election Period Effective to End a Qualified
Beneficiary's Election Rights?

If, during the election period, a Qualified Beneficiary waives COBRA continuation coverage, the
waiver can be revoked at any time before the end of the election period. Revocation of the waiver
is an election of COBRA continuation coverage. However, if a waiver is later revoked, coverage
need not be provided retroactively (that is, from the date of the loss of coverage until the waiver is
revoked). Waivers and revocations of waivers are considered made on the date they are sent to the
Plan Administrator or its designee, as applicable.

10. Is COBRA Coverage Availaåle If a Qualified Beneficiary Has Qtber Grgup Health HBA
Coverage or Medicare?



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 125 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting

Qualified Beneficiaries who are entitled to elect COBRA continuation coverage may do Of 373
they are covered under another group health plan or are entitled to Medicare benefits on or before
the date on which COBRA is elected. However, a Qualified Beneficiary's COBRA coverage will
terminate automatically if, after electing COBRA, he or she becomes entitled to Medicare or
becomes covered under other group health plan coverage.

II. When May a Qualifled Beneficiary's COBRA Continuation CQyerage Be Terminated?

During the election period, a Qualified Beneficiary may waive COBRA continuation coverage.
Except for an interruption of coverage in connection with a waiver, COBRA continuation coverage
that has been elected for a Qualified Beneficiary must extend for at least the period beginning on
the date of the Qualifying Event and ending not before the earliest of the following dates:

1. The last day of the applicable maximum coverage period.

2. The first day for which Timely Payment is not made to the Arrangement with respect to the
Qualified Beneficiary.

3. The date upon which the Employer ceases to provide any group health plan (including a
successor plan) to any employee.

4, The date, after the date of the election, that the Qualified Beneficiary first becomes covered
under any other HRA that does not contain any exclusion or limitation with respect to any
pre-existing condition, other than such an exclusion or limitation that does not apply to, or is
satisfied by, the Qualified Beneficiary.

5. The date, after the date of the election that the Qualified Beneficiary first enrolls in the
Medicare program (either part A or part B, whichever occurs earlier).

6. In the case of a Qualified Beneficiary entitled to a disability extension, the later of:

a. (i) 29 months after the date of the Qualifying Event, or (ii) the first day of the month that
is more than 30 days after the date of a final determination under Title II or XVI of the

Social Security Act that the disabled Qualified Beneficiary whose disability resulted in
the Qualified Beneficiary's entitlement to the disability extension is no longer disabled,
whichever is earlier; or

b. the end of the maximum coverage period that applies to the Qualified Beneficiary
without regard to the disability extension.

The HRA can terminate for cause the coverage of a Qualified Beneficiary on the same basis that
the HRA can terminate for cause the coverage of similarly situated non-COBRA beneficiaries, for
example, for the submission of a fraudulent claim.

In the case of an individual who is not a Qualified Beneficiary and who is receiving coverage under
the HRA solely because of the individual's relationship to a Qualified Beneficiary, if the HRA's
obligation to make COBRA continuation coverage available to the Qualified Beneficiary ceases the
HRA is not obligated to make coverage available to the individual who is not a Qualified
Beneficiary.

12. What Are the Maximum Coverage Periods for COBRA Cæntinuation Coverage?

The maximum coverage periods are based on the type of the Qualifying Event and the status of the
Qualified Beneficiary, as shown below.

1. In the case of a Qualifying Event that is a termination of employment or reduction of hours of
employment, the maximum coverage period ends 18 months after the Qualifying Event if
there is not a disability extension and 29 months after the Qualifying Event if there is a
disability extension.

2. In the case of a covered Employee's enrollment in the Medicare program before experiencing
a Qualifying Event that is a termination of employment or reduction of hours of employment,
the maximum coverage period for Qualified Beneficiaries other than the covered Employee
ends on the later of:

a. 36 months after the date the covered Employee becomes enrolled in the Medicare
program; or

b. 18 months (or 29 months, if there is a disability extension) after the date of the covered
Employees termination of employment or reduction of hours of employment.

3. In the case ofa Qualified Beneficiary who is a child born to or placed for adoption with a
covered Employee during a period of COBRA continuation coverage, the maximum coverage
period is the maximum coverage period applicable to the Qualifying Event giving rise to the
period of COBRA continuation coverage during which the child was born or placed for
adoption.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 126 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
4. In the case of any other Qualifying Event than that described above, the maximum coPag9el 26 Of 373

period ends 36 months after the Qualifying Event.

13. Under Wh•t Circumstances Can the Maximum Coverage Period Be Extended?

If a Qualifying Event that gives rise to an 18-month or 29-month maximum coverage period is
followed, within that 18- or 29-month period, by a second Qualifying Event that gives rise to a 36-
months maximum coverage period, the original period is extended to 36-months, but only for
individuals who are Qualified Beneficiaries at the time of and with respect to both Qualifying
Events. In no circumstance can the COBRA maximum coverage period be extended to more than
36-months after the date of the first Qualifying Event.

The Plan Administrator must be notified of the second qualifying event within 60 days of the
second qualifying event. This notice must be sent to the Plan Administrator or its designee and in
accordance with the procedures above.

14, How Doe lified B n Entit Ex nsion'

A disability extension will be granted if an individual (whether or not the covered Employee) who is
a Qualified Beneficiary in connection with the Qualifying Event that is a termination or reduction of
hours of a covered Employee's employment, is determined under Title II or XVI of the Social
Security Act to have been disabled at any time during the first 60 days of COBRA continuation
coverage. To qualify for the disability extension, the Qualified Beneficiary must also provide the
HRA Administrator with notice of the disability determination on a date that is both within 60 days
after the date of the determination and before the end of the original 18-month maximum
coverage. This notice must be sent to the Plan Administrator or its designee and in accordance
with the procedures above.

15. Does the HRA Require Payment for COBRA Continuation Coverage?

For any period of COBRA continuation coverage under the HRA, Qualified Beneficiaries who elect
COBRA continuation coverage may be required to pay up to 102% of the applicable premium and
up to 150% of the applicable premium for any extended period of COBRA continuation coverage
covering a disabled Qualified Beneficiary due to a disability extension. Your Plan Administrator will
inform you of any costs. The Arrangement will terminate a Qualified Beneficiary's COBRA
continuation coverage as of the first day of any period for which timely payment is not made.

16. Must the HRA Allow Payment for COBRA Continuation Coverage to Be Made in Monthly
Installments?

Yes. The health coverage is also permitted to allow for payment at other intervals.

17. What is Timely Payment fQr COBRA Continuation Coverage?

"Timely Payment" means a payment made no later than 30 days after the first day of the coverage
period. Payment that is made to the HRA on a later date is also considered Timely Payment if
either (i) under the terms of the HRA covered employees or Qualified Beneficiaries are allowed to
pay for their coverage for the period on that later date, or (ii) under the terms of an arrangement
between the Employer and the entity that provides benefits on the Employer's behalf the Employer
is allowed to pay for coverage of similarly situated non-COBRA beneficiaries for the period on that
later date.

Notwithstanding the above paragraph, the HRA does not require payment for any period of COBRA
continuation coverage for a Qualified Beneficiary earlier than 45 days after the date on which the
election of COBRA continuation coverage is made for that Qualified Beneficiary. Payment is
considered made on the date on which it is postmarked to the HRA.

If Timely Payment is made to the HRA in an amount that is not significantly less than the amount
the HRA requires to be paid for a period of coverage, then the amount paid will be deemed to
satisfy the HRAIs requirement for the amount to be paid, unless the HRA notifies the Qualified
Beneficiary of the amount of the deficiency and grants a reasonable period of time for payment of
the deficiency to be made. A "reasonable period of time" is 30 days after the notice is provided. A
shortfall in a Timely Payment is not significant if it is no greater than the lesser of $50 or 10% of
the required amount.

18. Must a Qualified Beneficiary Be Given the Right to Enroll in a Conversion Health HRA at
the End of the Maximum Coverage Period for COBRA Continuation Coyerage?

If a Qualified Beneficiaryts COBRA continuation coverage under a group health plan ends as a
result of the expiration of the applicable maximum coverage period, the HRA will, during the 180
day period that ends on that expiration date, provide the QuaJified Beneficiary with the option of
enrolling under a conversion health plan if such an option is otherwise generally available to
similarly situated non-COBRA beneficiaries under the HRA. If such a conversion option is not
otherwise generally available, it need not be made available to Qualified Beneficiaries.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 127 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 127 of 373

IF YOU HAVE QUESTIONS

If you have questions about your COBRA continuation coverage, you should contact the Plan Administrator or its designee.

For more information about health insurance options available through the Health Insurance Marketplace, and to locate an
assister in your area who you can talk to about the different options, visit www.HealthCare.gov.

KEEP YOUR PLAN ADMINISTRATOR INFORMED OF ADDRESS CHANGES

In order to protect your family's rights, you should keep the Plan Administrator informed of any changes in the addresses of
family members. You should also keep a copy, for your records, of any notices you send to the Plan Administrator or its
designee.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 128 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 128 of 373Appendix A - HRA Plan Benefit

Employee Class
• All Classes

Qualified beneflts

• All Expenses Under Section 213(d)
• Including Qualified Individual Insurance premiums

Reimbursement Schedule
• The HRA will pay $700.00 of qualifying expenses up to a max benefit limit of $700.00.

Unused HRA Funds
• Unused benefits at the end of the coverage period shall be carried forward to the next coverage period.

Wellness Max Contribution
• $300.00

Wellness Plan Description

• Administrated by Central Carolina Hospital. Wellness screenings include weight check, blood draw and on-line
assessments.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 129 of 373SAMPLE NOTICE for Eligible Employees

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 129 of 373

Must be provided 90 days in advance of beginning of plan year to each eligible employee, or when newly eligible.

This notice is intended to inform you of the Health Reimbursement Arrangement provided by
eligible employees as of the new benefit year,

Company for

The Reimbursement Amount for the

Employee

Employee & Spouse

Employee & Child(ren)

Family

benefit year is:

A Participant must submit a claim and appropriate documentation (e.g. explanation of benefits, itemized bill) for out-of-pocket,
Medical, Dental, Vision expenses before he/she can be reimbursed.

Pursuant to IRS regulations, a Participant/Employee must notify the Marketplace, Health Insurance exchange or state-based
exchange for any employee applying for advance payment of premium assistance tax credit of this benefit information.

Details of this benefit will be included in the Employee's W-2 provided by the Employer and as required, will be reported to the
IRS for each employee covered under the benefit.

Important Notice to Participants/EmpIoyees: If an employee is not covered under minimum essential coverage for any month
during this benefit year, the participant may be subject to tax under Section 5000A of IRC, for such month and reimbursements
under the HRA arrangement may be includible in gross income.

This benefit is subject to the terms of the Employer's Health Reimbursement Arrangement, as amended from time to time, shall
be governed by and construed in accordance with applicable laws.

For more information about health insurance options available through the Health Insurance Marketplace, and to locate an
assister in your area who you can talk to about the different options, visit www.HealthCare.gov.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 130 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting

age

ADM!NISTRATORS

Lee County Government
Lee County Government

408 Summit Drive
Sanford, NC 27330

Lee County Government HRA Plan

Plan Document

Effective August 01, 2019



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 131 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 131 of 373TABLE OF CONTENTS

l. ARTICLE - DEFINITIONS

01.

02.

03.

04.

05.

06.

07.

08.

09.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

"PLAN ADMINISTRATOR"

"CODE"

"COVERAGE PERIOD"
"DEPENDENT"

"EFFECTIVE DATE"

"ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEE"

"EMPLOYEE"

"EMPLOYER"

"EMPLÖYER CONTRIBUTION"
IIHRA"

"PARTICIPANT"

"PLAN YEAR"

"PREMIUMS"

"QUALIFYING MEDICAL EXPENSES"

II. ARTICLE - PARTICIPATION

01.

02.

03.

ELIGIBILITY

EFFECTIVE DATE OF PARTICIPATION
TERMiNATlON OF PARTICIPATION

Ill. ARTICLE - BENEFITS

01,

02.

03.

04.

ESTABLISHMENT OF HRA
DEBIT CARÖS

NONDISCRiMlNATlON REQUIREMENTS
HEALTH REIMBUÅSEMENT ARRANGEMENT CLAIMS

IV. ARTICLE - ADMINISTRATION

01.

02.

03.

HRA ADMINISTRATION
EXAMINATION OF RECORDS
INDEMNIFICATION OF ADMINISTRATOR

V. ARTICLE - AMENDMENT OR TERMINATION OF HRA

01.

02.

AMENDMENT
TERMINATION

VI. ARTICLE - MISCELLANEOUS

01.

02.

03.

04.

05.

06.

07.

08.

09.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

18.

ADOPTION BY OTHER EMPLOYERS
äRA INfrERPRETATlON
GENDER AND NUMBER
WRITT€N DOCUMENT
EXCLUSIVE BENEFIT

NOT EMPLOYMENT CONTRÅCT
ACTION BY THE EMPLOYER
NO GUARANTEE OF TAX CONSEQUENCES
INDEMNIFICATION OF EMPCåYER BY PARTICIPANTS
FUNDING
GOVERNING LAW
SEVERABILITY

HEADINGS
CONTINUATION OF COVERAGE
HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
UNIFORMED SERVICES EMPLOYMENT AND REEMPLOYMENT RIGHTS ACT
HIPAA PRIVACY STANDARDS
ÅIPAA ELECTRONEC SECURITY STANDARDS



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 132 of 373Appendix A

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting

Page4320f 373



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 133 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 133 of 373Lee County Government HRA Plan

INTRODUCTION

Lee County Government hereby establishes effective August 01, 2019, a health reimbursement arrangement, known as the Lee
County Government HRA Plan (the I'HRA"), the terms of which are set forth in this document. The HRA provides for the
reimbursement of expenses as described in the Appendices of this document that have been incurred by Eligible Employees,
their spouses and certain eligible Dependents of such Employees.

't is intended that the HRA meet the requirements for qualification under Code Section 105 with respect to Employees, and that
benefits paid Employees hereunder be excludible from their gross incomes pursuant to Code Section 105(b).

1. ARTICLE - DEFINITIONS

As used in this HRA, the following words and phrases shall have the meanings set forth herein unless a
different meaning is clearly required by the context:

"Plan Administrator" means the individual(s) or committee appointed by the Employer to carry01.

out the administration of the HRA. In the event the Administrator has not been appointed, or
resigns from an appointment, the Employer shall be deemed to be the Administrator.

02. "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

03. "Coverage Period" means the period of the current plan year in which the individual is an eligible
employee on or after his or her plan entry date.

"Dependent" means any individual who qualifies as a dependent under Code Section 152 (as04.

modified by Code Section 105(b)). Any child of a Participant who is an "alternate recipient" under a
qualified medical child support order shall be considered a Dependent under this Arrangement.

05. "Effective Pate" means August 01, 2019.

"Eligible Employee" means an Employee who is eligible to participate in the Employer's group06.

medical plan. An individual shall not be an "Eligible Employee" if such individual is not eligible for
the Employer's group medical plan.

The term "Eligible Employee" shall exclude the following:

• Union Members
Non-resident Aliens

Leased Employees

"Employee" means any person who is employed by the Employer and is regularly scheduled to07.

work a minimum of 30 hours per week.

08. "Employer" means Lee County Government , a Government Entity or any successor which shall
maintain this HRA and any predecessor which has maintained this HRA. In addition, unless the
context requires otherwise, the term "Employer" shall include any Participating Employer which
shall adopt this HRA.

"Employer Contribution" means the amounts contributed to the HRA by the Employer.09.

10. "BRA" means the Lee County Government HRA Plan as adopted by the Employer, including ali
amendments thereto.

"Participant" means any Eligible Employee who has satisfied the requirements of the Section11.

titled: "Eligibility" and has not for any reason become ineligible to participate further in the HRA.

12. 2.E.la.n-Y.eaL' means the 12-month period beginning August 01 and ending July 31.

13. "Premiums" mean the Participant's cost for any health plan coverage.

14. "Qualifying Medical Expenses" means any expenses as described in the Appendices of this
document that meets the definition of "qualified medical expenses" (within the meaning of Code
Section 213(d) and as allowed under Code Section 105 and the rulings and Treasury regulations
thereunder) of the Participant, the Participant's spouse or a Dependent and that are not otherwise
used by the Participant as a deduction in determining the Participant's tax liability under the Code
or reimbursed under any other health coverage, including a health Flexible Spending Account. If
the Employer provides Health Savings Accounts for Participants, Qualifying Medical Expenses
reimbursed shall be limited to those allowed under Code Section 223.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 134 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
4 of 373

II. ARTICLE - PARTICIPATION

01. Eligibility

Any Eligible Employee shall be eligible to participate hereunder on the date such Employee is
enrol[ed in the Employer's group medical plan.

02. Effectiye-D.a.te-Q.f-P—Lipatjon

An Eligible Employee who has satisfied the conditions of eligibility pursuant to the Section titled:
"Eligibility" shall become a Participant effective on the date that conditions of eligibility have been
met.

An Eligible Employee who has satisfied the conditions of eligibility pursuant to the Section titled
"Eligibility" shall become a Participant effective on the first day of the following month after the
eligibility requirements have been met.

03. Termination of Participation

Terminated Employees may not continue to participate jn the HRA, and any unused amounts shall
be forfeited. In the case of the death of the Participant, any remaining balances may only be paid
out as reimbursements for Qualifying Medical Expenses as stated in the Section titled: "Health
Reimbursement Arrangement Claims" under the Article titled: "Benefits" and shall not constitute a
death benefit to the Participant's estate and/or the Participant's beneficiaries. A Participant shall
be permitted at least annually to opt out of the HRA and waive future reimbursements from the
HRA. This Section shall be applied and administered consistent with any rights a Participant and
the Participant's Dependents may be entitled to pursuant to Code Section 4980B or the Section of
the HRA titled: "Continuation of Coverage".



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 135 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
35 of 373

Ill. ARTICLE - BENEFITS

01. Establishment of HRA

a. The HRA is intended to qualify as a Health Reimbursement Arrangement under Code Section
105 and shall be interpreted in a manner consistent with such Code Section and the Treasury
regulations thereunder.

b. Participants in this Health Reimbursement Arrangement may submit claims for the
reimbursement of Qualifying Medical Expenses as defined under the HRA.

c. The Employer shall make available to Participant an Employer Contribution in the amounts
listed in the Appendices of this document.

The amounts provided to the HRA by The Employer will be made available on the first day of
the plan year.

d. This HRA shall not be coordinated or otherwise connected to the Employer's cafeteria plan (as
defined in Code Section 125), except as permitted by the Code and the Treasury regulations
thereunder in order for this HRA to be maintained as a Health Reimbursement Arrangement.
No salary reduction contributions may be made to this Health Reimbursement Arrangement.

e. If the Employer maintains Health Savings Accounts for Participants, this Arrangement shall be
operated in accordance with the restrictions under Code Section 223.

02. Debit Cards

Participants may, subject to a procedure established by the Administrator and applied in a uniform
nondiscriminatory manner, use debit and/or credit (stored value) cards ("cards") provided by the
Administrator and the HRA for payment of Qualifying Medical Expenses, as described under the
Definition titled: "Qualifying Medical Expenses", subject to the following terms:

a. Card only for medical expenses. Each Participant issued a card shall certify that such card
shall only be used for Qualifying Medical Expenses, as described under the Definition titled:
"Qualifying Medical Expenses". The Participant shall also certify that any Qualifying Medical
Expense paid with the card has not already been reimbursed by any other plan covering
health benefits and that the Participant will not seek reimbursement from any other plan
covering health benefits.

b. Card issuance. Such card shall be issued on the Participant's Effective Date of Participation
and reissued for each Plan Year the Participant remains a Participant in the HRA. Such card
shall be automatically cancelled upon the Participant's death or termination of employment,
or if such Participant has a change in status that results in the Participant's withdrawal from
the HRA.

c. Maximum dollar amount available. The maximum dollar amount of coverage available shall
be the maximum amount for the Plan Year as set forth in the Appendices of this document.

d. Only available for use with certain service providers. The cards may only be used at such
merchants and service providers as have been approved by the Administrator.

e. Card use. The cards may only be used for Qualifying Medical Expenses, as described under
the Definition titled: "Qualifying Medical Expenses". A Participant may not use the card to
purchase any medicine or drug that is not "prescribed" within the meaning of Code Section
106(f) or is not insulin, or for any other purpose.

f. Substantiation. All purchases with the cards shall be subject to substantiation by the
Administrator, usually by submission of a receipt from a provider describing the product or
service, the date and the amount. The Administrator shall also follow the requirements set
forth in Revenue Ruling 2003-43 and Notice 2006-69. All charges shall be conditional pending
confirmation and substantiation.

g. Correction methods. If a purchase is later determined by the Administrator to not qualify as a
Qualifying Medical Expense, as described under the Definition titled: Qualifying Medical
Expenses, the Administrator, in its discretion, shall use one of the following correction
methods to make the HRA whole, Until the amount is repaid, the Administrator may take
further action to ensure that further violations of the terms of the card do not occur, up to and
including denial of access to the card. Correction methods include:

1. Repayment of the improper Amount by the Participant;

2. Withholding the improper payment from the Participant's wages or other compensation
to the extent consistent with applicable federal or state law;



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 136 of 3733. Claims substitution or offset of future claims until the amount is repaid; and

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 136 of 373

4, If subsections (1) through (3) fail to recover the amount, consistent with the Employer's
business practices, the Employer may treat the amount as any other business
indebtedness.

03. Requirements

a. It is the intent of this Health Reimbursement Arrangement to not discriminate in violation of
the Code and the Treasury regulations thereunder.

b. If the Administrator deems it necessary in order to avoid discrimination under this Health
Reimbursement Arrangement, it may, but shall not be required to reduce benefits provided
to "highly compensated individuals" (as defined in Code Section 105(h)) in order to assure
compliance with this Section. Any act taken by the Administrator under this Section shall be
carried out in a uniform and nondiscriminatory manner.

04. Health Reimbursement Arrangement Claims

a. The Administrator shall direct the reimbursement to each eligible Participant of all Qualifying
Medical Expenses. Qualifying Medical Expenses shall be reimbursed, even though the
submission of such a claim occurs after participation hereunder ceases, provided that the
Qualifying Medical Expenses were incurred during a Coverage Period. In order to claim
reimbursement, claims must include receipts or documentation that the expense being
incurred is eligible for reimbursement, Expenses may be reimbursed in a subsequent
Coverage Period, subject to subsection (b) below. However, a Participant may not submit
claims incurred prior to beginning participation in the HRA and/or the Effective Date of the
HRA, whichever is earlier.

b. Claims for the reimbursement of Qualifying Medical Expenses incurred in any Coverage Period
shall be paid as soon after a claim has been filed as is administratively practicable. However,
if a Participant fails to submit a claim within 90 days immediately following the end of the
Coverage Period (that is, by 10/29), those Medical Expense claims shall not be eligible for
reimbursement by the Administrator.

c. Reimbursement payments under this HRA shall be made directly to the Participant or the
Provider, as requested.

d, If the maximum amount available for reimbursement for a Coverage Period is not utilized in
its entirety, refer to Appendix A for information on how these funds witl be handfed.

e. Reimbursement requests for Terminated Employees must be received within 30 days
following the date of termination, or remaining funds will be forfeited.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 137 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
37 of 373

IV. ARTICLE - ADMINISTRATION

01. HRA AdministratiQn

The operation of the HRA shall be under the supervision of the Administrator. It shall be a principal
duty of the Administrator to see that the HRA is carried out in accordance with its terms, and for
the exclusive benefit of Eligible Employees entitled to participate in the HRA. The Administrator
shall have full power to administer the HRA in all of its details. The Administrator's powers shall
include, but shall not be limited to the following authority, in addition to all other powers provided
by this HRA:

a. To make and enforce such rules and regulations as the Administrator deems necessary or
proper for the efficient administration of the HRA;

b. To interpret the HRA, the Administrators interpretations thereof in good faith to be final and
conclusive on all persons claiming benefits under the HRA;

c. To decide all questions concerning the HRA and the eligibility of any person to participate in
the HRA and to receive benefits provided under the HRA;

d. To limit benefits for certain highly compensated individuals if it deems such to be desirable in
order to avoid discrimination under the HRA in violation of the applicable provisions of the
Code;

e. To approve reimbursement requests and to authorize the payment of benefits;

f. To appoint such agents, counsel, accountants, consultants, and actuaries as may be required
to assist in administering the HRA; and

Any procedure, discretionary act, interpretation or construction taken by the Administrator shall be
done in a nondiscriminatory manner based upon uniform principles consistently applied and shall
be consistent with the intent that the HRA shall continue to comply with the terms of Code Section
105(h) and the Treasury regulations thereunder.

02. Examination of Records

The Administrator shall make available to each Participant, Eligible Employee and any other
Employee of the Employer, for examination at reasonable times during normal business hours,
such records as pertain to that person's interest under the HRA.

03. Indemnification of Administrator

The Employer agrees to indemnify and to defend to the fullest extent permitted by law any
Employee serving as the Administrator or as a member of a committee designated as
Administrator (including any Employee or former Employee who previously served as Administrator
or as a member of such committee) against all liabilities, damages, costs and expenses (including
attorney's fees and amounts paid in settlement of any claims approved by the Employer)
occasioned by any act or omission to act in connection with the HRA, if such act or omission is or
was in good faith.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 138 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
38 of 373

V. ARTICLE - AMENDMENT OR TERMINATION OF HRA

01. Amendment

The Employer, at any time or from time to time, may amend any or all of the provisions of the HRA
without the consent of any Employee or Participant.

02. Termination

The Employer is establishing this HRA with the intent that it will be maintained for an indefinite
period of time. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Employer reserves the right to terminate the
HRA, in whole or in part, at any time. In the event the HRA is terminated, no further
reimbursements shall be made.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 139 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
39 of 373

VI. ARTICLE - MISCELLANEOUS

01. Adoption by Other Employers

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, and with the consent of the Employer, any other
corporation or entity, whether an affiliate or subsidiary or not, may adopt this HRA and all of the
provisions hereof, and participate herein and be known as a "Participating Employer", by a
properly executed document evidencing said intent and will of such Participating Employer.

02. HRA Interpretation

All provisions of this HRA shall be interpreted and applied in a uniform, nondiscriminatory manner.
This HRA shall be read in its entirety and not severed except as provided in the Section titled:
"Severability".

03. Gender and Number

Wherever any words are used herein in the masculine, feminine or neuter gender, they shall be
construed as though they were also used in another gender in all cases where they would so apply,
and whenever any words are used herein in the singular or plural form, they shall be construed as
though they were also used in the other form in all cases where they would so apply.

04. Written Document

This HRA, in conjunction with any separate written document which may be required by law, is
intended to satisfy the written HRA requirement of Code Section 105 and any Treasury regulations
thereunder.

05. Exclusive Benefit

This HRA shall be maintained for the exclusive benefit of the Employees who participate in the

06. Not Employment Cqntract

This HRA shall not be deemed to constitute an employment contract between the Employer and
any Participant or Employee, or to be a consideration or an inducement for the employment of any
Participant or Employee. Nothing contained in this HRA shall be deemed to give any Participant or
Employee the right to be retained in the service of the Employer or to interfere with the right of the
Employer to discharge any Participant or Employee at any time regardless of the effect which such
discharge shall have upon him as a Participant of this HRA.

07. Action by the Employer

Whenever the Employer under the terms of the HRA is permitted or required to do or perform any
act or matter or thing, it shall be done and performed by an authorized representative of the
Employer.

08,

Neither the Administrator nor the Employer makes any commitment or guarantee that any
amounts paid to or for the benefit of a Participant under the HRA will be excludable from the
Participant's gross income for federal or state income tax purposes, or that any other federal or
state tax treatment will apply to or be available to any Participant. It shall be the obligation of each
Participant to determine whether each payment under the HRA is excludable from the Participantas
gross income for federal and state income tax purposes, and to notify the Employer if the
Participant has reason to believe that any such payment is not so excludable. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the rights of Participants under this HRA shall be legally enforceable.

09. Indemnification of Employer by hrticipants

If any Participant receives one or more payments or reimbursements under the HRA that are not
for a permitted Medical Expense such Participant shall indemnify and reimburse the Employer for
any liability it may incur for failure to withhold federal or state income tax or Social Security tax
from such payments or reimbursements. However, such indemnification and reimbursement shall
not exceed the amount of additional federal and state income tax (plus any penalties) that the
Participant would have owed if the payments or reimbursements had been made to the Participant
as regular cash compensation, plus the Participant's share of any Social Security tax that would
have been paid on such compensation, less any such additional income and Social Security tax
actually paid by the Participant.

10. Funding

Unless otherwise required by law, amounts made available by the Employer need not be placed in



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 140 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
trust, but may instead be considered general assets of the Employer. Furthermore, and 140 of 373
otherwise required by law, nothing herein shall be construed to require the Employer or the
Administrator to maintain any fund or segregate any amount for the benefit of any Participant, and
no Participant or other person shall have any claim against, right to, or security or other interest
in, any fund, account or asset of the Employer from which any payment under the HRA may be
made.

11. Governing Law

This HRA and Trust shall be construed and enforced according to the Code and the laws of the
state of North Carolina, other than its laws respecting choice of law.

12. Severability

If any provision of the HRA is held invalid or unenforceable, its invalidity or unenforceability shall
not affect any other provisions of the HRA, and the HRA shall be construed and enforced as if such
provision had not been included herein.

13. Headings

The headings and subheadings of this HRA have been inserted for convenience of reference and
are to be ignored in any construction of the provisions hereof.

14. C9ntinu•tiQn of Coverage

Notwithstanding anything in the HRA to the contrary, in the event any benefit under this HRA
subject to the continuation coverage requirement of Code Section 4980B becomes unavailable,
each qualified beneficiary (as defined in Code Section 4980B) will be entitled to continuation
coverage as prescribed in Code Section 4980B.

15. Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act

Notwithstanding anything in this HRA to the contrary, this HRA shall be operated in accordance
with HIPAA and the regulations thereunder.

16. Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act

Notwithstanding any provision of this HRA to the contrary, contributions, benefits and service
credit with respect to qualified military service shall be provided in accordance with USERRA and
the regulations thereunder.

17. HIPAA Privacy Standards

a. If this HRA is subject to the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (45 CFR Part 164, the "Privacy Standards"), then this Section shall apply.

b. The HRA shall not disclose Protected Health Information to any member of Employer's
workforce unless each of the conditions set out in this Section is met. "Protected Health

Information" shall have the same definition as set forth in the Privacy Standards but generally
shall mean individually identifiable information about the past, present or future physical or
mental health or condition of an individual, including information about treatment or payment
for treatment.

c. Protected Health Information disclosed to members of Employer's workforce shall be used or
disclosed by them only for purposes of HRA administrative functions. The HRAIs
administrative functions shall include all HRA payment functions and health care operations.
The terms "payment" and "health care operations" shall have the same definitions as set out
in the Privacy Standards, but the term "payment" generally shall mean activities taken to
determine or fulfill HRA responsibilities with respect to eligibility, coverage, provision of
benefits, or reimbursement for health care.

d. The HRA shall disclose Protected Health Information only to members of the Employees
workforce who are authorized to receive such Protected Health Information, and only to the
extent and in the minimum amount necessary for that person to perform his or her duties
with respect to the HRA. "Members of the Employer's workforce" shall refer to alt Employees
and other persons under the control of the Employer. The Employer shall keep an updated list
of those authorized to receive Protected Health Information.

1. An authorized member of the Employers workforce who receives Protected Health
Information shall use or disclose the Protected Health Information only to the extent
necessary to perform his or her duties with respect to the HRA.

2. In the event that any member of the Employer's workforce uses or discloses Protected
Health Information other than as permitted by this Section and the Privacy Standards,
the incident shall be reported to the HRAts privacy officer. The privacy officer, or the
Employer, shall take appropriate action, including:



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 141 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
i. investigation of the incident to determine whether the breach occurred Page 141 of 373

inadvertently, through negligence or deliberately; whether there is a pattern of
breaches; and the degree of harm caused by the breach;

ii. appropriate sanctions against the persons causing the breach which, depending
upon the nature of the breach, may include oral or written reprimand, additional
training, or termination of employment;

iii. mitigation of any harm caused by the breach, to the extent practicable; and

iv. documentation of the incident and all actions taken to resolve the issue and

mitigate any damages.

e. The Employer must provide certification to the HRA that it agrees to:

1. Not use or further disclose Protected Health Information other than as permitted or
required by the HRA documents or as required by law;

2. Ensure that any agent or subcontractor to whom it provides Protected Health
Information received from the HRA, agrees to the same restrictions and conditions that
apply to the Employer with respect to such information;

3. Not use or disclose Protected Health Information for employment-related actions and
decisions or in connection with any other benefit or Employee benefit plan of the
Employer;

4. Report to the HRA any use or disclosure of the Protected Health Information of which it
becomes aware that is inconsistent with the uses or disclosures permitted by this
Section, or required by law;

5. Make available Protected Health Information to individual HRA members in accordance
with Section 164.524 of the Privacy Standards;

6. Make available Protected Health Information for amendment by individual HRA members
and incorporate any amendments to Protected Health Information in accordance with
Section 164.526 of the Privacy Standards;

7. Make available the Protected Health Information required to provide an accounting of
disclosures to individual HRA members in accordance with Section 164.528 of the
Privacy Standards;

8. Make its internal practices, books and records relating to the use and disclosure of
Protected Health Information received from the HRA available to the Department of
Health and Human Services for purposes of determining compliance by the HRA with the
Privacy Standards;

9. If feasible, return or destroy all Protected Health Information received from the HRA that
the Employer still maintains in any form, and retain no copies of such information, when
no longer needed for the purpose for which disclosure was made, or, if and only if such
return or destruction is not feasible, limit further uses and disclosures to those permitted
purposes that make the return or destruction of the information infeasible; and

10. Ensure adequate separation between the HRA and members of the Employer's
workforce, as required by Section 164,504(f)(2)(iii) of the Privacy Standards and set out
in (d) above.

18. HIPAA Electronlc Security Standards

If this HRA is subject to the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected Health
Information (45 CFR Part 164.300 et. seq., the "Security Standards"), then this Section shall apply
as follows:

a. The Employer agrees to implement reasonable and appropriate administrative, physical and
technical safeguards to protect the confidentiality, integrity and availability of Electronic
Protected Health Information that the Employer creates, maintains or transmits on behalf of
the HRA. "Electronic Protected Health Information" shall have the same definition as set out
in the Security Standards, but generally shall mean Protected Health Information that is
transmitted by or maintained in electronic media.

b. The Employer shall ensure that any agent or subcontractor to whom it provides Electronic
Protected Health Information shall agree, in writing, to implement reasonable and appropriate
security measures to protect the Electronic Protected Health Information.

c. The Employer shall ensure that reasonable and appropriate security measures are
implemented to comply with the conditions and requirements set forth in the Section titled:
"HIPAA Privacy Standards".



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 142 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
d. The HRA shall not disclose Protected Health Information to any member of Employer's page 142 of 373

workforce unless each of the conditions set out in this Section is met. "Protected Health
Information" shall have the same definition as set forth jn the Privacy Standards but generally
shall mean individually identifiable information about the past, present or future physical or
mental health or condition of an individual, including information about treatment or payment
for treatment.

e. Protected Health Information disclosed to members of Employer's workforce shall be used or
disclosed by them only for purposes of HRA administrative functions. The HRAts
administrative functions shall include all HRA payment functions and health care operations.
The terms "payment" and "health care operations" shall have the same definitions as set out
in the Privacy Standards, but the term "payment" generally shall mean activities taken to
determine or fulfill HRA responsibilities with respect to eligibility, coverage, provision of
benefits, or reimbursement for health care.

f. The HRA shall disclose Protected Health Information only to members of the Employer's
workforce, who are authorized to receive such Protected Health Information, and only to the
extent and in the minimum amount necessary for that person to perform his or her duties
with respect to the HRA. UMembers of the Employer's workforce" shall refer to all Employees
and other persons under the control of the Employer. The Employer shall keep an updated list
of those authorized to receive Protected Health Information.

1. An authorized member of the Employer's workforce who receives Protected Health
Information shall use or disclose the Protected Health Information only to the extent
necessary to perform his or her duties with respect to the HRA.

2. In the event that any member of the Employer's workforce uses or discloses Protected
Health Information other than as permitted by this Section and the Privacy Standards,
the incident shall be reported to the HRNs privacy officer. The privacy officer, or the
Employer, shall take appropriate action, including:

i. investigation of the incident to determine whether the breach occurred

inadvertently, through negligence or deliberately; whether there is a pattern of
breaches; and the degree of harm caused by the breach;

ii. appropriate sanctions against the persons causing the breach which, depending
upon the nature of the breach, may include oral or written reprimand, additional
training, or termination of employment;

iii. mitigation of any harm caused by the breach, to the extent practicable; and

iv. documentation of the incident and all actions taken to resolve the issue and
mitigate any damages.

g. The Employer must provide certification to the HRA that it agrees to:

1. Not use or further disclose Personal Health Information other than as permitted or
required by the HRA documents or as required by law;

2. Ensure that any agent or subcontractor, to whom it provides Protected Health
Information received from the HRA, agrees to the same restrictions and conditions that
apply to the Employer with respect to such information;

3. Not use or disclose Protected Health Information for employment-related actions and
decisions or in connection with any other benefit or Employee benefit plan of the
Employer;

4. Report to the HRA any use or disclosure of the Protected Health Information of which it
becomes aware that is inconsistent with the uses or disclosures permitted by this
Section, or required by law;

5. Make available Protected Health Information to individual HRA members in accordance
with Section 164.524 of the Privacy Standards;

6. Make available Protected Health Information for amendment by individual HRA members
and incorporate any amendments to Protected Health Information in accordance with
Section 164.526 of the Privacy Standards;

7. Make available the Protected Health Information required to provide an accounting of
disclosures to individual HRA members in accordance with Section 164.528 of the
Privacy Standards;

8. Make its internal practices, books and records relating to the use and disclosure of
Protected Health Information received from the HRA available to the Department of
Health and Human Services for purposes of determining compliance by the HRA with the



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 143 of 373Privacy Standards:

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 143 of 373

9. If feasible, return or destroy all Protected Health Information received from the HRA that
the Employer still maintains in any form, and retain no copies of such information when
no longer needed for the purpose for which disclosure was made, or, if and only if such
return or destruction is not feasible, limit further uses and disclosures to those permitted
purposes that make the return or destruction of the information infeasible; and

10. Ensure the adequate separation between the HRA and members of the Employer's
workforce, as required by Section 164.504(f)(2)(iii) of the Privacy Standards and set out
in (d) above.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 144 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 144 of 373

Appendix A - HRA Plan Benefit
Employee Class

• All Classes

Qualified benefits
• All Expenses Under Section 213(d)
• Including Qualified Individual Insurance premiums

Reimbursement Schedule
• The HRA will pay $700.00 of qualifying expenses up to a max benefit limit of $700.00.

Unused HU Funds
• Unused benefits at the end of the coverage period shall be carried forward to the next coverage period.

Wellness Max Contribution
• $300.00

Wellness Plan Descrlption
• Administrated by Central Carolina Hospital. Wellness screenings include weight check, blood draw and on-line

assessments.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 145 of 373

August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 145 of 373

Execution Agreement

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Lee County Government has caused its authorized officer to execute this Plan document as of
, the same to be effective August 01, 2019. unless otherwise indicated herein.

Lee County Government

By:

Name:

Title:



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 146 of 373CERTIFICATE OF RESOLUTION

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 146 of 373

The undersigned authorized representative of Lee County Government (the Employer) hereby certifies that the following
resolutions were duly adopted by the governing body of the Employer on and that such resolutions have
not been modified or rescinded as of the date hereof:

RESOLVED, that the form of Welfare Benefit Plan, effective August 01, 201 9, presented to this meeting (and a copy of which is
attached hereto) is hereby approved and adopted, and that the proper agents of the Employer are hereby authorized and
directed to execute and deliver to the Administrator of said Plan one or more counterparts of the Plan.

RESOLVED, that the Administrator shall be instructed to take such actions that the Administrator deems necessary and proper
in order to implement the Plan, and to set up adequate accounting and administrative procedures for the provision of benefits
under the Plan.

RESOLVED, that the proper agents of the Employer shall act as soon as possible to notify the employees of the Employer of
the adoption of the Plan and to deliver to each employee a copy of the Summary' Plan Description of the Plan, which Summary
Plan Description is attached hereto and is hereby approved.

The undersigned further certifies that attached hereto as Exhibits, are true copies of Lee County Government 's Benefit Plan
Document and Summary Plan Description approved and adopted at this meeting.

Lee County Government

By:

Name:

Title:



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 147 of 373

COUN

C A WOV

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 147 of 373

ITEM

LEE COUNTY AGENDA ABSTRACT 11. M.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
(Use the Dosvvn or Up Arrows to move between fields of the Form)

MEETING DATE: August 19, 2019

SUBJECT: Budget Amendment #08/19/19/2

DEPARTMENT: Finance

Lisa G. Minter, Assistant County Manager/ Finance Director

TYPE: Consent Agenda C] Action Item Public Hearing Information

RE UEST
BUDGET IMPACT
ATTAC1-nv1ENTS
PRIOR BOARD ACTION
RECOMMENDATION

A roval of Bud et Amendment #08/ 19/19/2

See Below

Bu et Amendment #08/ 19/19/2

N/A
A roval of Bu t Amendment #08/ 19/19/2

Sl-nßfARY

Budget Amendment #08/ 19/19/2 appropriates funds for the following departments:

Register of Deeds — To appropriate $5,505 to purchase a replacement plat scanner
General Services — To rollover $11,500 for the Spruce Street building demolition not completed by 6/30/19
EDC — To rollover $15,000 for the sign at the Womack Road entrance to CCEP from Deep River Road not
completed by 6/30/19
Planning — To rollover $2,230 by the City of Sanford's request to complete certain projects related to the
Community Homelessness project originally budgeted in FY 18-19
Social Services — To rollover $328,612 in restricted funds for various Social Services propms
Recreation — To rollover $14,500 for various projects not completed bv 6/30/19
Sheriff— To appropÅate $39,500 from Drug Seizure fund balance to cover equipment and supply purchases in the
FY 19-20 budget
Sheriff— To appropriate $14,784 from Drug Seizure fund balance to cover the price increase for two vehicles

after FY 19-20 budget approval
Airport — To appropriate $400,000 for the Airport loan

Page 1 of I
Form Updated August 2.2017



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 148 of 373

MEMO TO:

FROM:

SUBJECT:

DATE:

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 148 of 373

LEE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

JOHN A CRUMPTON, LEE COUNTY MANAGER

BUDGET 08/19/19/02

August 19, 2019

SECTION l. THE FOLLOWING GENERAL FUND (1100) REVENUE INCREASES ARE HEREBY APPROVED:

DEPARTMENT
General Fund Balance

General Fund Balance

ACCOUNT # DESCRIPTION

110C393c39770 other Revenue

1100-3990-39900 Fund Balance Appropriated

TOTAL CHANGES

CURRENT
BUDGET

1,927,714

SECTION II. THE FOLLOWING GENERAL FUND (1100) EXPENSE INCREASES ARE HEREBY APPROVED:

DEPARTMENT

Register of Deeds

Register of Deeds

General Services

EDC

Sheriff

SheriffSRO

Planning

Social Services Operations

Social Services Programs

Social Services Programs

Social Services Programs

Social Services Programs

Social Services Programs

Recreation

ACCOUNT #

1100418046400
1100-4262-46200

1100-427C43100

1100431046411

1100491244030
1100-5312-47034

1100-531347200

1100-5313-47210

1100-531347260

1100-5313-47570

1100-531347616

1100-6120-46800

DESCRIPTION

Maintenance-Equipment

Capital Outlay

Building Improvements

Professional Services

Capital outlay $5,000 & Above
Capital Outlay $5,000 & Above
Contracted Services S3 Connect
CEMC Donations
Day Care Refunds

Other Clearing Account

Fund for the Elderly

SA Refunds

Adoption Enhancement

Facility Development

TOTAL CHANGES

CURRENT
BUDGET

522,500

150,322

101,088

1,500

5,000

500

5,000

20,000

15,000

42,100

SECTION Ill. THE FOLLOWING DRUG SEIZURE FUND (2110) REVENUE INCREASES ARE HEREBY APPROVED:

DEPARTMENT
Sheriff

ACCOUNT # DESCRIPTION
CURRENT
BUDGET

2110-399C)-39900 Fund Balance Appropriated

TOTAL CHANGES

SECTION W. THE FOLLOWING DRUG SEIZURE FUND (2110) EXPENSE INCREASES ARE HEREBY APPROVED:

DEPARTMENT
Sheriff

Sheriff

Sheriff

Sheriff

Sheriff

Sheriff

Sheriff

ACCOUNT #

2110431044100
2110431044230
21104310-46400

2110431046412
21104310-46415

2110431046416
2110-980049500

DESCRIPTION

Office/Department Supplies

Officer Supplies

Capital Outlay

Tech Equipment $500-$4,999

Equipment < $500

Tech Equipment < $500

Miscellaneous Expense

TOTAL CHANGES

CURRENT

BUDGET

CHANGE

14,784

377,347

392,131

CHANGE

595

4,910

11,500

15,000

13,527

1,257

2,230

9

3,952

328

60,842

457

263,024

14,500

392,131

CHANGE

54,284

54,284

CHANGE

1,000

10,000

15,000

1,500

10,000

2,000

14,784

54,284

NEW
BUDGET

14,784

NEW
BUDGET

595

4,910

534,000

15,000

163,849

102,345

2,230

1,509

8,952

828

65,842

20,457

278,024

56,600

NEW
BUDGET

54,284

NEW
BUDGET

1,000

10,000

15,000

1,500

10,000

2,000

14,784



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 149 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 149 of 373

SECTION V. THE FOLLOWING EDC REVOLVING FUND (2120) REVENUE INCREASES ARE HEREBY APPROVED:

CURRENT
BUDGETDEPARTMENT

Airport

ACCOUNT #

212c3990-39900

DESCRIPTION

Fund Balance Appropriated

TOTAL CHANGES

SECTION VI. THE FOLLOWING EDC REVOLVING FUND (2120) EXPENSE INCREASES ARE HEREBY APPROVED:

CHANGE

400,000

400,000

CHANGE

400,000

400,000

NEW
BUDGET

400,000

NEW
BUDGET

400,000

DEPARTMENT

Airport

AMY M. DALRYMPLE, CHAIR

ACCOUNT #
CURRENT
BUDGETDESCRIPTION

Airport Loan

TOTAL CHANGES

JENNIFER GAMBLE, CLERK TO THE BOARD



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 150 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 150 of 373

ITEM

11. N.

LEE COUNTY AGENDA ABSTRACT
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING

(Use the Down or Up Arrows to move befiveen fields of the Form)

MEETING DATE: August 19, 2019

SUBJECT: State Aid Application Approval

DEPARTMENT:

CONTACT PERSON: Beth List

TYPE: Consent Agenda Acdon Item Public HeaHng Informaåon

REQUEST
BUDGET IMPACT

ATTACHMENTS
PRIOR BOARD ACTION
RECOMMENDATION

State Aid Program Objecüves:

A foval to submit the Lee Coun Libraries State Aid A lication for 2019-2020

The preliminary monthly payments for July- October 2019 'a-ill be $9,218. Once
the State Library budget is verified, T County Libraries will be notified of the

final total state aid allocation and we will receive our monthly payment amounts
for the remainder of the ear.

A lication for State Aid Packet includin a co of the State Aid Re ort.

A roval to submit Lee Coun Libraries State Aid A lication for 2019-2020.

SUMMARY

Since 1941, the NC General Assembly has appropriated money for public library service in North Carolina. State Aid
legislation stipulates that the appropriation known as "Aid to Public Libraries" Fund is intended to promote, aid, and

equalize public library service in North Carolina. (General Statute 125-7b). This appropriation is often simply
referred to as "State Aid".

State Aid Statues:

14, Chapter 153A of the NC State Statutes provides for NC public libraries to receive funds appropriated
annually by the State These grants are available to any public library, including municipal libraries, that

establishes its eligibility according to the Rules and Reguladons for the Allocation of State Aid to Public Libraries. The

State Libraryk role in State Aid is to determine eligibility annually. is specified in the North Carolina

Administradve Code 07 NCAC 021.0201 Qualifications for Grant Eligibility.

It is also charged with receiving this funding from the legislature and allocating it to all eligible libraries based upon a

formula approved by the North Carolina Library Commission. State Aid payments to eligible libraries are determined

Ävice a year, in October and April.

(from the North Carolina State Library Website: https://statelibrary.ncdcr.xov/ld/state-aid)



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 151 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 151 of 373

STATE LIBRARY
ofNORTH CAROLINA

State Aid Checklist

Please email this checklist with your other State Aid documents with the boxes

checked to show that your application for State Aid is complete.

LEE COUNTY LIBRARIESName of Library:

The following must be completed and submitted to complete the State Aid application:

Public Library Survey (Submitted through nc.countingopinions.com)

Application for State Aid to Public Libraries

Average Maintenance of Effort Form with total MOE amount

Maintenance of Effort and Declaration Form(s) from all local funders

Maintenance of Effort Worksheet

Assurance of Professional Salaries Funded with State Aid

Current Long-Range Plan

Bylaws for Library Board(s) of Trustees

Checklist

Submit application to sladmin@ncdcr.gov

Subject: State Aid

Deadline for Submission:

September 13, 2019

S] *ILD
Rev. 06/19



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 152 of 373

STATE LIBRARY
of NORTH CAROLINA

MAINTENANCE OF EFFORT WORKSHEET

State Fiscal Year 2019 - 2020

LEE COUNTY LIBRARIESThe

County / Ci

LEE COUNTY

Total

Name of Library

Budgeted and Available for Expenditure FY 2019-2020 TOTAL

County or City In-kind Contributions and Appropriations

Local AppropriationsIn-kind Contributions

$ 596482

$ 596482

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 152 of 373

Total

$ 596482

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$ 596482

The total for each line should reflect the amount declared on the Maintenance and Effort Report for each local

funder- The final total of all contributions and allocations is the number submitted on the Average Report for the

library.

Submit application to

sladmin@ncdcr.gov

Subject: State Aid

Please retain original for your files.

SL/LD

Rev. 06/19

e stATE*

Deadline for submission of

FY July 1, 2019 - June 30, 2020

State Aid application

September 13, 2019



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 153 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 153 of 373

STATE LIBRARY
of NORTH CAROI INA

AVERAGE MAINTENANCE OF EFFORT REPORT AND DECLARATION
State Fiscal Year 2019 - 2020

(Submit one form only)

Please submit this average summary form for the library system in addition to the individual

Maintenance of Effort forms from your local funding entities. This sheet shows the library system's

average appropriation from all of its local funding sources from the last three years. Please place the

total of all Maintenance of Effort forms for FY 2019-2020 in the FY 2019-2020 box.

In order to meet Maintenance of Effort, the total appropriation for FY 2019-2020 must equal or exceed
the average figure of the last three fiscal years.

This summary form requires only the library director's signature.

The other Maintenance of Effort forms for each funding entity must be completed and signed as usual.

LEE COUNTY LIBRARIES
Name of Library

AVERAGE

County and/or City Appropriations

Budgeted and Available for Expenditure

FY 2016-2017

FY 2017-2018

FY 2018-2019

(Excluding capital outlay and

State Aid appropriations)

$ 560,990

Signed:

Submit application to

sladmin@ncdcr.gov

Subject: State Aid

Please retain original for your files.

SLLD
Rev. 06/19

Library Director

TOTAL

County and/or City Appropriations

Budgeted and Available for Expenditure

FY 2019-2020

(Excluding capital outlay and

State Aid appropriations)

$ 596,482

Date:

Deadline for submission of

FY July 1, 2019 - June 30, 2020

State Aid application

September 13, 2019



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 154 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 154 of 373

STATE LIBRARY
of NORTH CAROLINA

MAINTENANCE OF EFFORT REPORT AND
DECLARATION State Fiscal Year 2019 - 2020
(Submit one form for each city/county local funder)

LEE COUNTY LIBRARIES
Name of Library

will maintain its local governmental support in order to receive State Aid funds in accordance with North

Carolina Administrative Code, Chapter 7, Subchapter 21, Section .0200.

Budgeted and Available for Expenditure FY 2019-2020

TOTAL Cou nty or City Appropriations (Excluding capital outlay and State Aid appropriations)

596,482Total $

Date the budget was approved by the Board of Commissioners / City Council

06/17/19

LEE COUNTY
Name of County / City

LEE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
I certify that the appropriation for FY 2019-2020 has been approved by

Board of Commissioners / City Council

is supported by official records, and is available for expenditure by the Library.

Signed:

for:

County / City Manager

LEE COUNTY

Signed:

Submit application to

sladmin@ncdcr.gov

Subject: State Aid

Please retain original for your files.

SL/LD

Rev. 06/19

County / City

Llbrary Director

Date:

Date:

Deadline for submission of

FY July 1, 2019 - June 30, 2020

State Aid application

September 13, 2019



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 155 of 373

STATE LIBRARY
of NORTH CAROLINA

ASSURANCE OF PROFESSIONAL LIBRARIANS
WHOSE SALARIES ARE FUNDED WITH STATE AID MONEY

State Fiscal Year 2017 • 2018

(Submit one form only)

LEE COUNTY LIBRARIES
Name of Library

Choose one:

Does not pay any professional salaries from State Aid funds

Does pay the following salaries in whole or in part from State Aid funds

Signed:

Library Director

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 155 of 373

Date

The following professional librarians* (minimum annual salary $38,125**) will be paid in full or in
part from State Aid funds:

Name:

Position:

Name:

Position:

Name:

Position:

Professional librarians have received a Masters Degree in Library and Information Science.

Salary:

Salary:

Sala ry:

** Pay salaries for professional positions funded from the Aid to Public Libraries Fund at least at the minlmum rate ofa salary grade of 69 as

established by the Office of State Personnel. Administrative Code, Title 7, Subchapter 21, Section .0201, Rule 7.

Submit application to

sladmin@ncdcr.gov

Subject: State Aid

Please retain original for your records.

SL'LD

Rev. 06/17

Deadline for submission of

FY July 1, 2017 -June 30, 2018

application is

September 15, 2017



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 156 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 156 of 373

STATE LIBRARY
of NORTH CAROLINA

APPLICATION FOR STATE AID TO PUBLIC LIBRARIES
State Fiscal Year 2019 - 2020

(Submit one form only)

The type of library and its governance determine the signature required on this document:

County Library: Chair of County Commissioners

Municipal Library: Chair of Town/City Council

I, AMY DALRYMPLE
Print Name

CHAIR OF COUNTY COMMISSIOENRS

Regional Library: Chair of Regional Board of Trustees

Independent County Library: Chair of Board of Trustees

Signature

LEE COUNTY LIBRARIEScertify that
Print Title Name of Library

meets the following requirements and hereby applies for funding from the Aid to Public Libraries Fund.

07 NCAC 021.0201 QUALIFICATIONS FOR GRANT ELIGIBILITY

Libraries requesting funding from the Aid to Public Libraries Fund shall submit annually to the State Library of North Carolina an application for State

Aid and supporting documentation including financial and statistical reports and shall meet the following eligibility requirements:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

{9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

Be established consistent with the provisions of Article 14, Chapter 153A of the North Carolina General Statutes.

Provide library services in compliance with applicable State and Federal law to all residents of the political subdivision(s) supporting the

library. Public library services shall be provided from at least one designated facility with a catalogued collection that is open to the public
a minimum of 40 hours per week.

Employ a full-time library director having or eligible for North Carolina public librarian certification. Full-time means working a minimum
of 35 hours per week.

Secure operational funds from local government sources at least equal to the average amount budgeted and available for expenditure

for the previous three years. A grant to a local library system from the Aid to Public Libraries Fund shall not be terminated but shall be
reduced proportionately by the Department if the amount budgeted and available for expenditure by local government is below the

average of the previous three fiscal years. State funds shall not replace local funds budgeted and available for expenditure for public
library operations.

Secure aggregate operational funds from local sources at least equaling state aid.

Expend funds as authorized in the budget adopted by the Board of Trustees of a Regional Library, a County, or a Municipality. Any library

having an unencumbered operational balance of more than 17 percent of the previous year's operating receipts shall have the difference
deducted from its state allocation.

Pay salaries for professional positions funded from the Aid to Public Libraries Fund at least at the minimum rate of a salary grade of GNIO
as established by the Office of State Personnel.

Provide to the State Library of North Carolina an annuaf audit of the political subdivision(s) funding the library consistent with generally

accepted accounting principles.

Submit annually to the State Library of North Carolina a copy of the bylaws of the library system's Board(s) of Trustees.

Submit annually a current long-range plan of service to the State Library of North Carolina. A long-range plan of service is a plan of at
least five years. Upon request, submit an assessment of a communitvs library needs to the State Library of North Carolina.
Submit a copy of the agreement establishing the library system, if composed of more than one local governmental unit.

Meet the following stipulations when establishing a new library or re-establishing eligibility for the Aid to Public Libraries Fund:

(a) meet all qualifications for the state aid to public libraries program on July 1 of the year prior to the fiscal year that the library plans to
receive State Aid,

(b) continue to meet all qualifications for the state aid to public libraries program from July 1 to June 30 of that year, which shall be
known as the demonstration year,

(c) file a full application for state aid by the June 30 deadline at the close of the demonstration year in order to receive state aid in the
next fiscal year.

Application Reviewed and Accepted:

Submit application to

sladmin@ncdcr.gov

Subject: State Aid

Please retain originafs for your files.

SL/LD

Rev. 06/19

20.

Date:

Deadline for submission of

FY July 1, 2019 - June 30, 2020

State Aid application

September 13, 2019



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 157 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 157 of 373

AMENDED BYLAWS
of the

BOARD OF TRUSTEES
of the

LEE COUNTY LIBRARIES

I) Membership and Attendance

a) The Library Board shall be made up of seven (7) manbers who shall apply to and be
appointed by the Board of County Commissions in a manner consistent with the

Commissioners' policies, ordinances and practices concerning appoinånents to County

Boards and pursuant to N.C. General Statutes Article 14, Chapter 153A 261-273, a copy

of which is attached.

b) There may be one (1) ex-offcio representative from the Board of County Commissiona•s
who shall have no voting rights.

c) The Board may recommend, by majority vote, the Commissioners appoint one or more of
the applicants,

d) Any member who fails to attend three (3) meetings of the Board's regular meetings, except

for excused illness or other extraordinary circumstances, during any one calendar year shall

be reported to the Commissioners to be removed by the Commissioners.

2) Officers

a) Board officers shall consist of a Chairman and Vice-Chairman each of whom shall be
elected at the annual meeting by a majority vote,

b) Officers will begin service in January.

c) When the Chairman is absent, the Vice-Chairman will preside.

d) The Library Director or Board approved will be the Board's Secretary and shall

keep a true and accurate account of all proceedings of Board me&gs; issue notices of all
meetings; have custody of the meetings and other records of the Board; shall notify the

Board of County Commissioners of any vacancies on the Board.

e) If for some reason the Director is not available, then the next person in charge will serve

as the Secretary and take minutes.

3) Meetings

a) The Board of Trustees shall meet on the first of each month at the main library

or at such a time and place designated by the Chaiman.

b) Special meetings may be called by the Chairman or upon a majority vote of the Board.
c) Board meetings shall be conducted in accordance to Robert's Rules of Order.

4) Quorum

a) A quorum for the transaction of business shall be a simple majority of the Board members.

2.7.2018 APPROVED LEE COUNTY LIBRARIES BOARD OF TRUSTEE BYLAWS Page lof3



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 158 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 158 of 373

AMENDED BYLAWS
of the

BOARD OF TRUSTEES
of the

LEE COUNTY LIBRARIES

5) Committees

a) The Nominating Committee is the only established standing committee.

b) Other committees may be established by the Board as needed, and special committees for

the study and investigation ofspecial problems may be appointed by the Chairman to serve
until they have completed the work for which they were appointed.

6) Library Personnel

a) As the Library is a division of county government, all employees, including the Library

Director shall be employed through the county and subject to the Lee County Personnel

Policy.

b) The Library Director shall attend all regular monthly meetings and shall be called upon to

report on the status of the library system.

c) Further reports from the Library Director and attendance at other meetings shall be

requested by thc Chairman as needed.

7) Powers and Limitations

a) No member of the Board or immediate relative of a Board member or Library Director
shall be considered for staff employment.

b) No member of the Board or any employee of the Library shall use the resources, business,
finances or contracts of the Library for personal use or profit.

c) The Library Board is vested with such powers as provided by the North Carolina General

Statutes and by ordinances or resolution by the County Commissioners for Lee County

relating to the development and operation of the system to be exercised subject to

all restrictions contained in the N.C. General Statutes Article 14 261-273 and the Lee

County Ordinances and Resolutions.

d) The Library Board shall have no authority to enter into contracts or incur any obligation

bindmg the Board of Commissioners other than for current obligations within the budget

made by the Board of Commissioners for Lee County pursuant to

Amended Library Ordinance approved by the Lee County Commissioners dated April 18,
2011.

e) The Library Board shall maintain, operate and supervise the facilities owned or controlled

by the Commissioners of Lee County or leased or loaned to the Board of Trustees for the

Lee County Library System by the owners thereof pursuant to N.C. General Statute 153A-

266 and Amended Library Ordinance approved by the Lee County Commissioners dated

April 18, 2011.

27.2018 APPROVED LEE COUNTY LIBRARfES BOARD OF TRUSTEE BYLAWS Page 2 of3



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 159 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 159 of 373

AMENDED BYLAWS
of the

BOARD OF TRUSTEES
of the

LEE COUNTY LIBRARIES

8) Gifts and Donations

a) The Board of Trustees may accept any öft, grant, bequest or donation of any personal
property offered or made for library purposes and with the approval of the Lee County

Commissioners may accept any grant, gift or devise of real estate.

9) Amendmalts

a) An amendment to these bylaws may be adopted by a Simple majority vote of the Board.
b) A written copy of the proposed amendment must be provided to eachmember offtheBoard

no later than one (1) month preceding the vote on that amendment.

Adopted this 2nd day of November, 1994

Amended this 6th day of January, 1990

Amended this 6th day of August, 2003

Amended this 23rd day of May, 2011

Amended this 1 st day of March, 2017

Amended this 7å day of February, 2018

Chairman

Vice-Chairman

2.7.2018 APPROVED LEE COUNTY LIBRARIES BOARD OF TRUSTEE BYLAWS Page 3 of 3



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 160 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 160 of 373

Lee County Library

Five Year Plan 2017-2022

1. To provide library services in compliance with applicable State and Federal taws to all residents of the
political subdivisions supporting the library namely communities in and around Lee County with regard to
the library Mission Statement.

a. To review annually demographic and service data from the various communities served by
the Lee County Library and Broadway branch, outreach services and web presence at
nmw.leecountync.qov/library

b. Review 2016-2017 Annual Statistical Reports with the Library Board of Trustees and Staff in
September each year (listed at http://statelibrary.ncdcr.gov/ld/about-libraries)

2. To submit board bylaws to the State Library of North Carolina on an annual basis and review board
bylaws at [east once every three years. County did a revised Ordinance and Board revised bylaws in
2017.

a. Every 3 years review existing bylaws for clarification of purpose, content, and consistency.
The Board Bylaws were revised in 2017.

3. To hold Board of Trustee meetings monthly except for July each year in accordance with the North
Carolina Open Meetings Law.

a. To create a monthly meeting date schedule at the beginning of each fiscal year. (2017-2022)
Currently, ISt Wednesday of the month at 5:15 p.m. except the Board does not meet in July.

4. To provide support for trustee training through various workshops and ongoing education programs
provided by the State Library, the North Carolina Library Association, or other relevant organizations.

a. Determine annually the needs and availability of such training. (2017-2022)
i. Encourage board members to participate in State Librarian webinars.

ii. Send documents to new appointees that relate to Lee County Library and Trustees
duties

iii. Meet face to face with each new Board Member individually or in groups after
appointment.

iv. Plan training session with State Library consultant in 2018.

5. To raise awareness of the library as an essential resource by fostering ongoing public dialog through
community assessment, strategic planning, and collaboration.

a. To gather regular input from Board members who serve also on other boards and community
groups. (2017-2022)

i. TBA during local Board meetings
b. The Library Director will continue to maintain extensive involvement with organizations,
agencies, boards and groups in Lee County and uses those interactions for literacy, library
advocacy, service awareness, needs assessment and feedback. (2017-2022)

i. Director's Activities Report updated and reported monthly at Board meetings.
Achieved Monthly

c. To provide regular communication with communities through newspapers, radio, social media,
i. To maintain a Facebook page, Twitter and other social media venues for Lee County
Library. (2017-2018)

ii. Increase Lee County Library's presence and postings on Facebook and Twitter using
county approved accounts

d. Develop and use list of media contacts for all programs and events

i. Place special news events in local newspaper and community websites once or twice
per month.

ii. Encourage staff to submit monthly input for library website and newsletter rerated to
their library activities

iii. Investigate having a monthly story time on public access cable channel (2017-2018)
iv. Do radio show several times a year on WDSG

6. To distribute financial information on a consistent and reliable basis.

a. To provide this data to Lee County as requested with an Annual Report following the end of the
fiscal year

1



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 161 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 161 of 373

b. The Library publishes its own annual report each year as a newsletter (2017-2018)
i. Financial reports provided at board meetings before the proposed library budget is

submitted to the county Manager, once the Commissioners approve the budget in august, and
updates on spending at six months during the year.

7. To encourage board members and friends to formally and informally advocate for library funding and
status with all elected and appointed officials who have fiscal and policy influence over the library.

a. To encourage increased membership in the Friends Group (2017-2018) Completed annually
i. Try to build membership with diverse members of the community from different parts
and towns in county when vacancies occur.

b. To continue to support the efforts of the Friends of Lee County Public Library. (2017-2018)
i. Provide assistance with book sate books and collaborate on initiatives Handled daily
and annually

c. To encourage a renewed effort among the Friends of the Lee County Public Library to try
different fund raisers. (2017-2018)

i. In process when annual meeting of FOL planned)
d. To encourage all board members and friends to participate annually in Library Legislative Day
at the local, state and national levels. To attend in person or participate virtually with emails,
phone calls and letters to legislative/government officials at all levels. (2017-2018) Done annualfy

8. To cultivate and empower volunteers witling to act as advocates for public libraries at the local, state,
and national levels and also help with library programs.

a. To work with the Friends of Library to develop a plan that will encourage volunteers to become
advocates and to honor their efforts. (2017-2022) Plan a thank you volunteer event.

9. To include a marketing plan that reflects community needs and interests as part of the public relations
program.

a. To create a written public relations/marketing plan including the new logo and marketing plan
(2017-2018) Build on promoting the new logo with stationary, on all library flyers, etc.
10. To designate staff member(s) to coordinate public relations activities within the library and between
the library and other local agencies.

a. To establish this role among the several staff members at library. (2017-2018) Completed
b. The Library Director will coordinate these efforts and support local community outreach. (2017-
2022)

i. A media contact list is used to publicize library events
ii. Identify staff to do publicity for children's YA and adult programming

c. Collaborate with other organizations on childhood literacy, workforce development, and lifelong
learning. Director is on Partnership for Children Board and Executive Director for the newly
formed Literacy Council.

1 1 . To develop a customer-friendly web and social media presence to provide access to library services
and information about them. Have control of the content so that it can be updated and maintained at any
time by library staff.

a. To review and assess the current website, modify and update as needed. (2017-2018) Version
was completed by January 2017

i. Repeat this annually. (2017-2022)
ii. Do weekly updates and needed
iii. implement new website design as part of the NC live project

12. To provide an easily accessible method for public feedback.
a. To develop a plan and process for implementing this strategy. (2017-2018)
b. Survey of customers periodically on services and programs

c. Suggestion box installed in 2016

13. Revise set of Lee County Library policies and procedures to govern library personnel, new Board of
Trustees training manual, operations and services as needed

a. Staff to review updated Lee County poficies and procedures

b. To develop and maintain a written set of policies and procedures that guide operations and
services at library.

2



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 162 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 162 of 373

c. To review the County and State Records Retention Policy for Libraries and comply. (2017-
2022)

d. To ensure that all library policies, goals and objectives are easily accessible by library staff,
public. Existing policies and procedures are on the website and revise ladd new as reviewed
revised and approved. (2017-2022)
e. Notebooks of printed policies are behind service desk

f. Staff training manual for evergreen procedures at circulation desk.

14. To communicate the library's goals and objectives (5 Year Plan), and progress toward meeting them,
regularly to the public, staff and to the library's governing authority. Speak to local service groups like the
Rotary Club, Lion's Club, Day Kiwanis Club and Evening Kiwanis Club.

a. To post long-range and annual goals and objectives on the website after Board discusses and
votes. (2017-2022) Goals reviewed annually.

b. Director report monthly using the Annual Plan as a guide, to Boards, FOL group and the
generaf public through regular board meetings, meetings of county and town councils, reports in
the local newspapers, monthly newsletter, and on the Regional Library website on activities and
achievements. (2017-2022)

c. To engage the community in the planning process.
i. To conduct a client survey annually (2017-2022)

ii. To provide a suggestion box at each library, a telephone
number and email where any suggestions, criticisms and
problems can be reported. (2017-2022)

iii. The Library Director will continuously monitor needs and accept feedback during board
meetings and other gatherings of community service groups and citizens and report on
progress at the library to achieve library mission. (2017-2022)

iv. Research ability of library to be open more nights and all day Saturday due to
community request.

d. To ensure the long-range plan is accessible to library staff and the public.
e. To post the current and revisions of the 5 Year Plan and annual plans
on the library website. 15.

15. To provide a clean well-designed interior in good repair that encourages self-directed and group use
of the library, supports staff efficiency, and promotes eco-friendly practices.

a. Current and ongoing operational policy reflecting keeping the library furnishings in good
condition. (2017-2022)

b. To engage local library staff and Board of Trustees in a dialog to determine the space and
utilization needs of each library as well as money required for upkeep, changes, and renewal.
(2017-2022)

c. Remove broken items form asset list and dispose of per county rules.
d. Use signage that offers information at the point of need and frames that information from the
customer perspective.

e. To review all signage in each library. (2017-2022)
f. To include signage review on an annual "to consider" checklist.

g. To review eco-friendly practices/green practices of Lee County and the Library and develop
written policy statements for the Library department to guide them. (2017-2022)
h. Policies to be written from current practices
i. Find low cost ways to freshen up the children's room

i. Replace or repair partitions that have tears

j. Facilities inspection of main library to be made quarterly and coordinate repairs with General
Services

i. In FY 2017-2019 investigate repair options and possibility of writing USDA facility grant
for skylight repair to find permanent solution to the rain leaks, sun glare and heat. Check
status on CIP list for FY 2017-2018. Skylight was removed from top of list of CIP in 2016-
2017.

16. Consideration of grounds and exterior committee to be formed to do an annual inspection in February
each year. tnput will be solicited at each spring Board meeting.

3



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 163 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 163 of 373

a. Crepe Myrtle tree on Hawkins street side was trimmed and cut back. New landscaping to be
completed on Hawkins St. side Spring 2017.

17. To meet current safety and fire codes, and be accessible to all members of the community,
conforming to American with Disabilities Act (ADA) Standards. In progress

a. To review each library for compliance. (2017-2022) Investigate ways to be ADA compliant
b. To fully meet the requirements of the ADA Standards. (2017-2022)
c. Main library and Broadway are in compliance with safety and fire codes in all areas.
d. A videophone for the deaf installed at the main library.
e. All Computers have features to increase font size aiding the visually impaired by hitting control
and turning the mouse wheel.
f. In progress the purchase of an ergonomic mouse and ADA keyboard for public computer area.
g. Library now owns enlarging machine for visually impaired and glasses for person with macular
degeneration.
h. Public men's bathroom enlarged for wheelchair access in 2017.

18. To provide, sustain, and refresh the library's technology plan each year and infrastructure to
appropriately support library operations and services.
a. Maintain Wi-Fi access points at main library (2017-2019) and Wi-Fi added to Broadway in 2016
b. Implement the three LSTA 2015-2016 grants as approved by the State Library of North
Carolina. (Laptop grant, public computers grant, and Self-Service kiosks grants)
c. Maintain the 15 new public access computers (2016-2020)
d. Maintain the permanent laptop lab teaching basic computer classes using Smartboard set up
in 2017.

e. Expand the Maker Space in the library and research grant funding to provide additional
resources for the schools and community such as digital media, robots, etc. (2017-2018))
f. Maintain devices and bandwidth to build, stimulate, and accommodate user demand to meet
the needs of the community.

g. Maintain minimum of 60 mbps bandwidth connectivity with Charter ensuring participation in
digital technology for all people.

h. To review current digital literacy options in each community and determine the extent to which
the library can fill knowledge and service gaps for all residents. (2017-2022)

i. Explore the whitespace left from analog televisions and programs using this space for
broadband Wi-Fi in a 5 mile radius to library.

j. Use Walmart funded purchase of 40 filament cartridges for teen programming with the 3 D
printer with public, private and homeschoolers.

k. Research viability and costs of having lendable Wi-Fi hot spots including equipment cost and

monthly charges.
19. To implement the Edge Initiative Action Plan to improve our grade on specific parts of the initial
survey http://www.ala.orq/pla/advocacy/edqe Began in the spring of 2015 and continuing as an ongoing
project. Some items on Action Plan have been accomplished and rest are an ongoing project. Lee County
Library took the Edge Survey in June 2017 for the third time. A new Action Plan can be developed.
20. To develop a long-range facility plan, (2017-2022) Two part long range plan -one for needs of current
facility and begin planning a needs assessment for wanted features of a future new library. To prepare a
long-range facility plan that addresses projected growth and changing community needs. See Director
Benning's New Library Planning document dated June 2017.

a. To review facility plan annually and revise plan at least every 5 years.
b. To be included with 5-year Plan (2017-2022)

21 . To ensure library staff have the necessary knowledge, computer literacy, and library skills to provide
exemplary library services and meet our mission statement objectives.

a. Offer State Library Is monthly free training opportunities to staff

b. Computer literacy added to all position descriptions
c. Provide 2-3 hours of webinars to increase skills and in person workshops
d. As funding allowed restored the two MLIS positions RIF'd in 2010 during the economic
downturn to the organizational chart.

i. Obtained permission in Spring 2017 to upgrade Outreach Specialist retiree position to a
MLIS positron AdultfTeen Programming Reference Librarian and continue to enhance
programs and services.

4



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 164 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 164 of 373

ii. Reclassified an existing full time Tech Support position to be degreed MI-IS librarian in
2016 and continue to build technology instruction for staff and patrons.

iii. In future budget year, request new Ft position so the library can be open 3 night s a
week and all day Saturday.

22. Each year on or before August 1 5th set new goals and update 5 year plan for the year prior to the
deadline time frame of sending in the State Aid packet. 5 Year Plan is part of the packet.
23. Training

a. To provide monthly staff team meetings at a minimum at which some aspect of library service
is learned or reinforced, especially new developments, services and available external programs.
(2017-2022 using the laptop lab if possible.)

b. To encourage staff participation in webinars on a monthly basis and other online learning
through such opportunities as Web Junction, Train Station and State Library sponsored
programs. (2017-2019) Email announcement of offerings sent monthly to staff.
c. Each staff member maintains a list of the courses/workshops/webinars they have attended for
themselves.

d. To take advantage of State Library ongoing education provided regionally. (2017-2022)
e. Some staff has attended several in person workshops (2017-2019)
f. To encourage participation in library and related professional conferences as appropriate.
(2017-2022) Several staff members will attend the Biennial NC Library Association conference on
October 2017 in Winston-Salem.

24. To develop a Plan and review regularly as part of the library's long range planning process.
a. To develop a written Collection Maintenance Plan not only for purchases but for maintaining
the collection on the shelves.

i. Find replacements from donations for bestselling author books that have become dirty
and worn. (2017-2019)
ii. to weed non-fiction of outdated materials
iii. purchase new nonfiction on topics of the weeded nonfiction

b. To provide assistance and training in the use of technologies necessary to access resources.
c. To review all technology and digital literacy efforts to determine the need for changes in current
service based on the 2016 user survey and input from current users. (2017-2022)

i. Investigate and draft a needs assessment for technology literacy and library
services in community

ii. Determine additional technology and digitat/information literacy needs.
2017-2019

iii. Meetings with Hispanic community to determine all literacy needs
including technology and digital/information. Fall 2017 and Spring 2018
and continued Outreach (2017-2019)

iv. To develop a comprehensive plan to provide such training and
education for patrons and staff as needed. (2017-2019)

v. To provide programs and services that support adult and childhood literacy for
both books and technology. Partner with the Literacy Council and Partnership for
Children, coalition for Families, Smart Start.

vi. To review all adult literacy programs and services to determine the
need for changes in current service based on user survey and

input from community and find ways to fund more materials (2017-2019).

vii. To develop a comprehensive plan to identify, purchase and provide adult
beginning reader materials to support these programs (2017-2019)
viii. Begin basic computer instruction classes for beginners in both

English and Spanish (2017-2019)
ix. Hold introductory programs for e-readers and tablets

25. Implement the Edge Initiative region wide http://www.ala.org/pla/advocacy/edge beginning
continuing to build on the mufti-year program of measuring/evaluating our technology
and creating an action plan. Retake the Edge Survey of Lee County Library Technology
periodically in June 2017 and annually thereafter.
26. To ensure efficient and effective customer service for all library users.

5



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 165 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 165 of 373

a. To support continuous improvement in public access technology services by sharing
expertise and best practices with other providers locally, regionally and nationally.

27. The Library Director to attend NCPLDA meetings that can fit into the budget. Monitor the
NCPLDA and State Library Listservs daily, and take advantage of online continuing education
opportunities as related to local library needs. Currently, Director only attends one of the
meetings (Durham) of the three NCPLDA meetings per year. The Wilmington and Mountain
meetings are cost prohibitive to amount of funding available in that line item for conferences and
travel. The Director participates in relevant webinars and in person workshops.
28. Develop additional, alternate, one time grant or permanent sources of extra funding for

purchase of equipment or items the library needs but cannot fit into the budget.
a. Investigate creating a 501 c 3 nonprofit Foundation in 2018 to raise funds for
equipment and materials to augment the donations from the Friends of the Library and
the public. The goal would be to have funding to buy items that cannot be squeezed in to
the regular annual budget of existing facility or a planned new library.. In these economic
times, having multiple sources of funding provides more success in reaching goals.

i. Attend Fundraising Summit held periodically in Charlotte
ii. Create database of potential donors

iii. Create list of fundraising ideas sharing with nonprofit Friends of the Library

iv. Research handling a P R campaign for endowments for Library Foundation if
created. Perhaps use Marlais Soderquist to help with publicity.
v. Ask Friends in FY 2017-2018 to fund 4 new narrower tables for the new laptop

lab, signage in library (fiction, nonfiction, large print, audio, children's), two lockable
display cabinets, two chairs that have the laptop arm from DAK in Carthage, end of row
paper signs that allow sign to be changed, the 10,000 copies of letter to parents for the
school id as a library card project, new sign for Broadway,

29. Create Training system so all library training is consistent

a. Notebook for new hires in 2017, transition checklist for various library positions
b. Computer skills proficiency/competency
c. Library staff training and development
d. When completed have all current staff review
e. More cross training to handle vacation and sickness times

30. Outreach to Hispanics, elderly, nursing homes, and homebound, Enrichment Center
a. Website and library brochures translated into Spanish

b. Distribute Flyers about Pronounciator handed out to Hispanic stores/churches
c. In addition to offering crate delivery to nursing homes and homebound patrons, offer
discarded/donated Large Print books to nursing homes
d. Build the collection of adult and children's books in Spanish

e.Have collection of Large Print books and self-service checkout at the Enrichment
Center

31, Facilities

Broadway Branch
a.

b.

c.

d.

e.

f.

Inspect premises and grounds annually and make list for maintenance

Change out book collections with regularity

Meet with Women's Club once a year

Participate in Broadway Our Way event

Maintain schedule of story times

Clean facility on regular basis

6



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 166 of 373

g.

h.

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 166 of 373

Increase size of DVD collection of Broadway as needed

Ask Friends to buy new sign

Increase hours of operation from 12 to 16 hours of operation weekly effective
9/1/2017

Main Branch

a.

b.

c.

d.

e.

f.

g.

h.

j.

k.

m.

Update landscaping 2017 of main branch (Hawkins street facing side and horseshoe
area by van parking space.

Prepare report of building issues and leaks for General Services and Mr. Crumpton
2017 and keep list updated.

Replace bench under the portico

Investigate a Joint Use Library with CCCC as part of a Capital Improvement Project
of the local community college and submit a list of considerations of pros and cons
including: Automation system NC Cardinal would allow a joint use of NC Cardinal,
Staff number, benefits, policies, Boards, materials, expenses, etc.

Tables and chairs need replacing. Carpet behind circulation desk needs replacing.

Chairs with laptop arms are needed

Circulation desk needs updating, Staff should sit at barstool to be same height as
patrons. General Services says they can add a new top to the desk for about 1-2K.

Wi Fi printing is needed

Investigate using analog tv white space to expand library's Wi-Fi signal to a five mile
radius

Have staff park behind library to save spaces for the public

Library hours at the main branch will increase effective 9/1/2017 to be open 10-5 pm
on Saturday.

The telephone polls need to be removed by the fire exit doors.

Get new bids for a $25,000 security system for the existing facility

7



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 167 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 167 of 373

8



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 168 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 168 of 373

ITEM

LEE COUNTY AGENDA ABSTRACT 11. o.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
(Use the Down or Up Arrows to move between fields of the Form)

MEETING DATE: August 19, 2019

SUBJECT: Appoint Senior Tar Heel Legislature Delegate and Alternate for Lee County

DEPARTMENT: Lee county Senior Services

CONTACT PERSON: Debbie Davidson

TYPE: Consent Agenda Action Item Public Hearing

REQUEST

BUDGET IMPACT
ATTACHMENTS
PRIOR BOARD ACTION

RECONMENDATION

Approve appointnents for Senior Tar Heel Legislature — Robert Will and Charles
Alexander

None

A lications for Dele te and Alternate

None

Approve appointments of Robert Will as delegate and Charles Alexander as
alternate dele te for the Senior Tar Heel Le •slature.

SlJ1vffCARY

Each county in North Carolina has a Delegate and an Alternate Delegate to the North Carolina
Senior Tar Heel Legislature that meets two times per year in Raleigh. This delegation discusses
Governmental issues regarding the field of aging and advocates for funding for local senior adult
programs and policies for local domiciliary care legislation. Both of our current delegates, Mary
Upchurch and Jim Payne have resigned their positions effective October 1, 2019. Mr. Will and Mr.
Alexander are currently active on the Enrichment Center of Lee County, Inc. Board of Directors and
involved in programming with Senior Services and in our community. Their applications with
qualifications are attached.

Fom Updated August 2, 2017 Page 1 ofl



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 169 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Meetin

9 of 373pag

Nomination Form
North Carolina Senior Tar Heel Legislature

( X ) Delegate or( ) Alternate

Name of Nominee: Robert Will

Mailing Address: 7513 Villanow Drive

Sanford NC 27332

County of Residence: Lee

Phone Number (including area code): 919-774-4284 Home
Cell - 919-770-7680

Fax Number (including area code):

E-mail Address: rwill@charter.ne!

Date ofBirth: 02-28-1939

Employment Status (working, retired, etc. and field of current or former
employment): Retired — Manufacturing Coordinator — Coty,
Inc.

In the space below, describe (nominee's) experience, background, and knowledge relative to issues
important to older adults:

Treasurer and Vice-Chair — The Enrichment Center, Inc. Board of Directors — Non-Profit entity to Lee
County Senior Services - Knowledge of the Home and Community Care Block grant services, Caregiver
services,

Finance Committee — Fund Raising Chair — The Enrichment Center, Inc.
Driver — Highway to Healing — Transit for Elderly and Disabled Cancer Patients
Helping Hands Low Income Clinic — Board of Directors
Senior Adult Grocery Delivery

Triangle J

Council of Governments



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 170 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Meetin

O of 373pag

In the space below, describe (the nominee's) participation in groups or organizations for older adults and

in councils or committees, which advise or oversee programs that have an impact on older persons:

Treasurer and Vice-Chair — The Enrichment Center, Inc. Board of Directors — Non-Profit entity to Lee
County Senior Services

Finance Committee — Fund Raising Chair — The Enrichment Center, Inc.
Driver — Highway to Healing — Transit for Elderly and Disabled Cancer Patients
Helping Hands Low Income Clinic — Board of Directors
Senior Adult Grocery Delivery

In the space below, describe any special skills or attributes (of the nominee) which would enhance his/her
effectiveness as a delegate to the North Carolina Senior Tar Heel Legislature:

Leadership training with Coty, Inc., National Guard OSC, Civic Membership in Elks, Moose, and
Kiwanis, Elder with the Methodist Church, Knowledge of the Home and Community Care Block Grant
Program through Board leadership with Lee County Senior Services

If not a self-nomination, please indicate the name, address and phone number of person or group
making nomination:

Name

Address

Phone Number (including area code)

Email

Triangle J

Council of Governments



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 171 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019
Regular Meetin

1 of 373pag

SIGNATURE OF NOMNEE

DATE

(Note: The signature is required for self-nominations as well as for nominations made by other individuals or
groups. This signature of the nominee serves as verification that the person being nominated consents to his/her

name being placed in nomination and indicates a commitment on the part of the nominee to participate frlly in the
orientation and training, the legislative sessions and other activities of the Senior Tar Heel Legislature if selected).

Return Form to: Mary Warren, Area Agency on Aging Director; 4307 Emperor Blvd,. Suite 110, NC
27703 (919 558-2707) mwaITen@tjcog.org

Triangle J

Council of Governments



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 172 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
O

In the space below, describe (the nominee's) participation in groups or organizations for older adults and

in councils or committees, which advise or oversee programs that have an impact on older persons:

In the space below, describe any special skills or atfributes (of the nominee) which would enhance his/her
effectiveness as a delegate to the North Carolina Senior Tar Heel Legislature:

If not a self-nomination, please indicate the name, address and phone number of person or group
making nomination:

Name

Address

Phone Number (including area code)

Email

SIGNATURE OF NOMNEE

DATE

(Note: The signature is required for self-nominations as well as for nominations made by other individuals or
goups. This signature of the nominee serves as verification that the person being nominated consents to his/her

name being placed in nomination and indicates a commitment on the part of the nominee to participate fully in the
orientation and training, the legislative sessions and other activities of the Senior Tar Heel Legislature if selected).

Return Form to: Mary Warren, Area Agency on Aging Director; 4307 Emperor Blvd,. Suite 110, NC
27703 (919 558-2707)

Triangle J

Council of Governments



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 173 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting

Nomination Form
North Carolina Senior Tar Heel Legislature

( ) Delegate or ( X ) Alternate

Name of Nominee: Charles J. Alexander

Mailing Address: 912 W. Garden Street
Sanford NC 27330

County of Residence: Lee

Phone Number (including area code): 919-776-6544

Fax Number (including area code):

E-mail Address: calexl 998@aol.com

Date of Birth: _ February 1, 1943

Employment Status (working, retired, etc. and field of current or fonner
employment): Retired — NC Public School Administrator Lee County School

System

In the space below, describe (nominee's) experience, background, and knowledge relative to issues
important to older adults:

Member of the Enrichment Center Inc. Board of Directors for free years. Non Profit for the Lee County
Senior Services program. Has knowledge of SHIIP, Home and Community Care Block Grant,
Fundraising for Senior Centers, and Caregiver programming.

Board member and Driver for Highway to Healing — service for cancer patients, mostly older adults
Board Member — Fletcher Rosser Bread Basket • - Soup kitchen for low income and homeless individuals
— many older adults
Board member for the United Way of Lee County

Triangle J

Council of Governments



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 174 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting

page 740

In the space below, describe (the nominee's) participation in groups or organizations for older adults and

in councils or committees, which advise or oversee programs that have an impact on older persons:

Member of Fair Promise A.M.E. Zion Church

Member of the Enrichment Center Inc. Board of Directors for three years. Non Profit for the Lee County
Senior Services prog•am. Has knowledge of Home and Community Care Block Grant,
Fundraising for Senior Centers, and Caregiver programming.

Board member and Driver for Highway to Healing — service for cancer patients, mostly older adults
Board Member — Fletcher Rosser Bread Basket — Soup kitchen for low income and homeless individuals
— many older adults
Board member for the United Way of Lee County
Sixteen-Year Member of the Central Carolina Community College Board of Trustees
Board of Directors Lee County Outreach Mission

Board of Directors — Coalition to Improve the Quality of Life in Lee County
Member of the Board — Christian United Outreach Calter
Founding Member — Boys and Girls Club
Founding Member — Habitat for Humanity of Lee County
30 year Member of Kiwanis Club of Sanford

In the space below, describe any special skills or attributes (of the nominee) which would enhance his/her
effectiveness as a delegate to the North Carolina Senior Tar Heel Legislature:

Leadership Skills and Listening Skills Classes

Several Classes with the UNC School of Govemment
33 years' experience in the Lee County Public School system — retired as school principal

Triangle J

Council of Governments



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 175 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Reqular Meeting

Page 750

Ifnot a self-nomination, please indicate the name, address and phone number of person or group
making nomination:

Name

Address

Phone Number (including area code)

Email

SIGNATURE OF NOMNEE

DATE

(Note: The signature is required for self-nominations as well as for nominations made by other individuals or
groups. This signature of the nominee serves as verification that the person being nominated consents to his/her

name being placed in nomination and indicates a commitment on the part of the nominee to participate fully in the
orientation and training, the legislative sessions and other activities of the Senior Tar Heel Legislature if selected).

Retum Form to: Mary Warren, Area Agency on Aging Director; 4307 Emperor Blvd,. Suite 110, NC
27703 (919 558-2707) mwan-en@ticog.crg

Triangle J

Council of Governments



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 176 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
p O

In the space below, describe (the nominee's) participation in goups or organizations for older adults and
in councils or committees, which advise or oversee programs that have an impact on older persons:

In the space below, describe any special skills or attributes (of the nominee) which would enhance his/her
effectiveness as a delegate to the North Carolina Senior Tar Heel Legislature:

If not a self-nomination, please indicate the name, address and phone number of person or group
making nominafion:

Name

Address

Phone Number (including area code)

Email

SIGNATURE OF NOMINEE

DATE

(Note: The signature is required for self-nominations as well as for nominations made by other individuals or
groups. This signature of the nominee serves as verification that the person being nominated consents to his/her

name being placed in nomination and indicates a commitment on the part nominee to participate filly in the

orientation and raining, the legislative sessions and other activities of the Senior Tar Heel Legislature if selected).

Return Form to: Mary Warren, Area Agency on Aging Director; 4307 Emperor Blvd,. Suite 110, NC
27703 (919 558-2707) mwarren(ötiggggg

Triangle J

Council of Governments



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 177 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 177 of 373

ITEM

LEE COUNTY AGENDA ABSTRACT 11. P.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
Use the Down or Up Arrows to move between fields of the Form)

MEETING DATE: August 19, 2019

SUBJECT: Disaster Debris Management and Removal Services

DEPARTMENT: General - solid Waste Division

CONTACT PERSON: Joseph T. Cherry, solid Waste Superintendent

TYPE: Consent Agenda Action Item Public Hearing Information

REQUEST

BUDGET IMPACT

ATTACHMENTS

PRIOR BOARD ACTION

RECOMMENDATION

Approve contract with CERES Environmental Services, Inc. for disaster debris
man ement services.

There are no immediate Of annual costs associated with this agreement. Costs will

be incurred only after services are rendered following a disaster. Costs incurred are

no less than 75% reimbursable by FEMA. Historically, the State of North
Carolina has covered the 25%.

Pfe-Event Contract for Disaster Debris Management Services

une 17 2019: Acce ted ro osal of CERES Environmental Services, Inc.
Approve contract with CERES Environmental Services, Inc. for disaster debHs
mana ment services.

Sl.nvßåARY

Contract, which covers services related to the management of debris resulting from a natural or manmade disaster,
will be for an initial term of 3 years with an option to renew for up to two additional one (I) year periods, upon
consent of all parties.

Form Updated August 2, 2017 Page 1 of 1



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 178 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 178 of 373

PRE-EVENT CONTRACT FOR DISASTER DEBRIS MANAGEMENT SERVICES

THIS CONTRACT entered into this 19th day of August, 2019 by and between Lee County North
Carolina, a political subdivision of the State of North Carolina (hereinafter referred to as the

"County"), and Ceres Environmental Services, Inc. hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor".

WHEREAS, it is in the public interest to provide for the expedient management of storm debris

within the County of Lee and to provide recovery Technical Assistance to the appointed and

elected officials resulting from a future natural or manmade disaster; and

WHEREAS, the County of Lee has in the past suffered the full force and effects of major storms

and the resulting destruction brought upon the County of Lee by such storms or events; and

WHEREAS, without being able to quickly remove storm debris, the Health and Safety of all the
citizens could be at serious risk; and

WHEREAS, the immediate economic recovery of the County of Lee and its citizens after a natural
or manmade disaster is a major concern and the primary priority for recovery; and

WHEREAS, the immediate availability of experienced prime disaster debris management
contractors may be severely limited during a natural or manmade disaster; and

WHEREAS, the Contractor has the experience, equipment, manpower, genera! ability, and

resources, as well as the necessary permits and licenses to perform all related debris and other
storm services; and

WHEREAS, the County of Lee and the Contractor have agreed to the Scope of Services, pricing

schedule, terms, conditions and technical specifications as set out in this competitive Contract;
and

THEREFORE, said parties do agree to the following stipulations, conditions and technical

specifications.

ARTICLE 1

TERM OF CONTRACT

This Contract shall be for a base period of three (3) years with an option to renew for up to two

additional one (1) year periods, upon consent of all parties. This Contract shall only be used on

an 'tas needed" basis as determined solely by the County. Should the term of this Contract expire

during an event where work has been commenced, but not completed, the terms and conditions

of this Contract shall continue until the completion of all work authorized prior to the expiration
of the term.

Page | 1



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 179 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 179 of 373

ARTICLE 2

NATURE OF RELATIONSHIP

The Contractor understands that it is an independent contractor and is not an employee,

subcontractor, agent, servant, partner nor joint venturer of the County and shall not represent

itself in any way as an agent of the County. The Contractor understands that it has the right to

use its best judgment and efforts to fulfill the terms and obligations of this Contract. The

Contractor further understands and acknowledges the following:

(1) That it will receive no compensation other than as outlined in this Contract and is not

subject to nor eligible for any benefits which may be offered by County to its

employees, including, but not necessarily limited to vacation pay, sick leave, insurance

coverage or retirement plan participation.

(2) Its Services provided in accordance with this Contract are an independent calling or

occupation.

(3) Contractor needs no training from County as to how to fulfill its duties and

responsibilities.

(4) Contractor furnishes its own equipment and supplies.

(5) To the extent Contractor must procure or maintain any insurance, license,

certification or trade membership, it must do so at its own cost.

ARTICLE 3

ANNUAL APPROPRIATIONS AND FUNDING

This agreement may be subject to the annual appropriation of funds by the Lee County Board of

Commissioners. Notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrary, in the event that funds

are not appropriated for this Agreement, then County shall be entitled to immediately terminate

this Agreement, without penalty or liability, except the payment of all contract fees due under

this Agreement up to and through the last day of service. Payment for services under contract

by this solicitation will be paid with federal funding. Funding is contingent upon compliance with

all terms and conditions of funding award. The selected Contractor shall comply with all

applicable federal laws, regulations, executive orders, FEMA requirements and the terms and
conditions of the funding award.

ARTICLE 4

SCOPE OF SERVICES

The primary purpose of this scope of work is to maintain the public health, safety, and

well-being of the County during the response to an emergency situation, as well as to restore the

public areas of the County to a normal condition. The Contractor understands and agrees that

Page J 2



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 180 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 180 of 373

debris removal in the most expeditious manner possible is of the utmost importance and it will

make every effort to complete all requirements of this Contract in the shortest time possible. The

work to be performed under this Contract shall consist of collection, removal, and disposal of the

debris caused by the disaster. The Contractor shall not be paid to remove, process or dispose of

debris that is unrelated to disaster damage. Direction by the County in this proposal shall also
mean direction by the Monitor.

The services which the Contractor shall provide include, but are not limited to, those described

or specified herein. The services described or specified shall not be deemed to constitute a

comprehensive specification having the effect of excluding services not specifically mentioned.

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

GEOGRAPHIC ASSIGNMENT

The geographic boundary for work by the Contractor shall be directed by the County and

will be limited to properties located within the CountVs legal jurisdiction.

EMERGENCY ROAD CLEARENCE

The Contractor will be responsible for the removal of debris from the primary

transportation routes as directed by the County. These debris "push" activities include,

but are not necessarily limited to the cutting, tossing, stacking and/or pushing of storm

debris from the primary transportation routes. The emergency road clearance operation

shall be for a period not to exceed 70 contract hours after a declared disaster event.

DEBRIS REMOVAL FROM PUBLIC PROPERTY

3.2.1 The Contractor will be responsible for the removal of vegetative debris,

construction and demolition debris ("C & D Debris"), or other eligible debris from public
rights-of-way and other public properties.

3.2.2 At the direction of the County trees, limbs and debris (including fallen trees) which

are located partially on or above public property or rights-of-way shall be cut at the right-

of-way line or property line, and the public portion only shall be removed under this
contract.

3.2.3 Contractor will also be responsible for the removal of debris beyond the limits of

public rights-of-way as necessary to abate imminent and/or significant threats to public

health and safety of the community, when directed by the County.

DEBRIS REMOVAL FROM PRIVATE PROPERTY

Removal of debris from private properties shall be directed by the County only when an
imminent threat to life, safety and health is present on private property. This item will

require prior approval of the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) and will be

Page | 3



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 181 of 373

4.5

4.6

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 181 of 373

monitored for strict compliance with federal regulations regarding eligibility for

reimbursement costs.

OWNERSHIP OF DEBRIS

Unless otherwise directed by COUNTY, titled or registered debris (such as vehicles or

boats) will not be loaded and removed by CERES and such titled or registered debris shall
not become property of CERES.

DEBRIS MANAGEMENT SITES (DMS)

4.6.1 The Contractor will identify, prepare and maintain a sufficient number of DMSs to
accept and process all eligible debris. The County shall assist in the identification

of DMSs. Preparation and maintenance of DMS shall include, but not necessarily
be limited to:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

The Contractor shall provide to the County a pre-use condition report to

include soil test, photos and other evidence of prior use and conditions;

All approach and interior haul roads;

Dump pads and lined temporary storage areas for household hazardous
waste, fuels and other materials that can contaminate soils, runoff or

groundwater; and,

An inspection tower sufficient for the monitoring of all incoming and

exiting traffic shall be built according to USACE specifications and shall

comply with standard OSHA requirements and local codes.
The Contractor shall maintain DMSs in accordance with appropriate use

standards, safety standards, and regulatory requirements.

The Contractor shall provide to the County all appropriate and required

permits from the NC Department of Environment and Natural Resources

or other regulatory agencies. If the Contractor, upon approval of the

County, elects to incinerate eligible debris the Contractor shall furnish to

the County copies of required burn permits from the local Fire Chief or

other regulatory agencies.

4.6.2 All debris shall be processed in accordance with local, state and federal law,

standards and regulations. Processing shall include, but not necessarily be limited

to: reduction by tub grinding or chipping and/or incineration when approved by
the County. Prior to reduction, all debris shall be segregated into the following

categories:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

Vegetative and clean, woody debris;
Construction and demolition debris;

White goods;

Recyclable debris; and,

Page | 4



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 182 of 373

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 182 of 373

(5) Household hazardous wastes.

4.6.3 Debris collected by Contractor at rights-of-way, at discretion of County, may be
hauled directly to the nearest lawfully permitted solid waste

management/recycling facility, bypassing the DMS.

4.6.4 The Contractor shall restore DMSs to pre-storm conditions using the pre-use
condition report as a basis and obtain appropriate releases from the NC

Department of Environment and Natural Resources or other regulatory agencies.

GENERATED HAZARDOUS WASTE ABATEMENT

The Contractor will be responsible for the abatement of hazardous waste identified by

the County in accordance with all applicable federal, state and local laws, standards and

regulations.

HAZARDOUS OR CONDEMNED STRUCTURES

The Contractor will be responsible for the demolition of hazardous or condemned

structures that are deemed by the County to be an imminent threat to life, safety and

public health according to FEMA Disaster Assistance Policy (DAP) 9523.4 Demolition of
Private Structures.

WHITE GOODS

The Contractor may expect to encounter white goods available for recycling. White goods
will constitute household appliances as defined in FEMA 325 Debris Management Guide.
The Contractor will handle the disposition of all white goods encountered in accordance

with applicable federal, state and local laws. Proper disposal of Freon is essential.

HAZARDOUS STUMPS

The Contractor shall remove all stumps according to FEMA Disaster Assistance Policy
(DAP) 9523.11 Hazardous Stump Extraction and Removal Eligibility.

STUMP ROOT BALL HOLES

The Contractor will be responsible for the backfilling of stump root ball holes upon

direction of the County. This clean fill dirt shall be compacted as directed by the County.

CANAL/WATERWAY DEBRIS REMOVAL

Contractor shall remove eligible storm debris from drainage canals, ditches and

waterways at direction of County.

page | 5



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 183 of 373

4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

4.18

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 183 of 373

STORM-DEPOSITED SOILS

The Contractor will be responsible for the loading and hauling of eligible storm-deposited

soils (e.g., sift, sand, or mud).

LOADING OF DEBRIS

No debris shall be loaded without the presence of a monitor issuing a proper load ticket

to document the origin of the load, date, contractor name, truck number, truck capacity,

point of debris collection, and loading departure time. All loads hauled shall be full and

well compacted. The loading of all debris onto transportation vehicles shall be done by
mechanical means.

DEBRIS DISPOSAL

The Contractor will be responsible for the disposal of all eligible debris, reduced debris,

ash residue and other products of the debris management process in accordance with alf
applicable federal, state and local laws, standards and regulations.

DOCUMENTATION AND INSPECTIONS

All debris shall be subject to inspection by the County. Inspections will be to insure

compliance with the contract and applicable local, state and federal laws. The Contractor

will, at all times, provide the County access to all work sites and disposal areas. The

Contractor and the County will have in place at the DMS personnel to verify and maintain
records regarding the contents and cubic yards of the vehicles entering and leaving the

DMS(s). The Contractor will assist the County in preparation of any required FEMA and

state reports for any potential reimbursement through the training of County employees

and the review of documentation prior to submittal. The Contractor will work closely with

the County to ensure that eligible debris collection and data documenting appropriately

address concerns of any likely reimbursement agencies including but not limited to the

North Carolina Division of Emergency Management, FEMA and other applicable state and
federal agencies.

WORK SITES

The County will establish and approve all sites that the Contractor will be allowed to use.

The Contractor will remove all eligible debris and leave the site from which debris was

removed in a clean and neat condition. The condition of the work site shall be equal to
the original condition of the site.

NON-DISASTER RELATED DEBRIS

The Contractor shall not be required or paid to remove, process or dispose of debris that
is unrelated to disaster damage,

Page | 6



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 184 of 373

4.19

5.1

5.2

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 184 of 373

TECHNICAL SUPPORT

Contractor shall provide to the County disaster recovery technical program management

assistance relating to reimbursement of eligible damage costs from federal and state
agencies when available.

ARTICLE 5

DOCUMENTATION AND REPORTING

Truck/Trailer Certification: All trucks and/or trailers to be used in debris removal

operations must be measured to determine capacity and documented on a Truck

Certification Form by a monitor assigned by the County and working independently of

the Contractor. The Truck Certification Form must include, but not necessarily limited
to the following information:

Capacity of hauling bed (CY)

License plate number

Truck identification number

Brief physical description of the truck/trailer

Photographs

Driver information

Owner information

Name of person completing measurements and form

Load Tickets: A "load ticket" will be utilized as the primary debris tracking document.

The form of the ticket shall be approved by the County and shall include at a minimum
the following information:

•

•

•

Ticket Number

Contract Number

Date

Contractor Name
Truck Number

Truck Capacity

Truck Driver Name

Loading Location

Loading Time

Unloading Location

Unloading Time

Debris Classification

Debris Quantity

Monitor Name(s) and Signature(s)

Page | 7



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 185 of 373

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

6.1

6.2

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 185 of 373

Load tickets shall be accepted by the County as the certified, original source documents

to account for the measurement and accumulation of the volume/tonnage of debris

delivered and processed at the debris management site. The ticketing system will also be

used in the event of additional debris handling for volume reduction and/or the possible

requirement for a debris transfer station(s). These load tickets will also be utilized for

debris haul out for final disposal. These tickets will be the basis of any electronic

generated billing and/or report(s).

Reports The Contractor shall submit to the County periodic written reports as

agreed upon by the parties to this Contract. The reports, documents, and data to be

provided shall represent an accurate assessment of the current status of the Project and

of the work remaining to be accomplished and it shall provide a sound basis for identifying

variances and problems and for making management decisions. It shall be prepared and

furnished to the County and shall accompany each pay request.

Additional Supporting Documentation The Contractor shall submit reports and/or

other documentation regarding, but not necessarily limited to debris loading, hauling,

disposal and load capacity measurements as may be required by the County and/or other
Governmental entities to support requests for debris project reimbursement from
external funding sources.

Report Maintenance Contractor will be subject to audit by federal, state and local

agencies pursuant to this Contract. The Contractor will maintain all reports, records, and

debris reporting tickets and contract correspondence for a period of not less than seven

(7) years.

Contract File Maintenance The Contractor will maintain this Contract and the invoices

that are generated for the contracted services for a period of seven (7) years or the period

of standard record retention of the County, whichever is longer.

ARTICLE 6

SUBCONTRACTORS

Definition A subcontractor is a person or organization who has a direct contract with
the Contractor to perform any of the work. Nothing contained in this Contract shall create

any contractual relationship between the County and any subcontractor.

Local Preference Contractor will make every effort to utilize and employ local

subcontractors whenever possible, provided that these local contractors hold proper

license and insurance credentials for the intended work. For purposes of this project, local

shall be defined to mean the jurisdictional boundaries of Lee County.

Page 8



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 186 of 373

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 186 of 373

Contractor shall be responsible for the compliance of all subcontracting parties with the

terms of this Contract and with any applicable local, State or federal laws or regulations.

Contractor shall not employ any subcontractors who are on any State and/or Federal
listing of debarred contractors. Contractor shall be solely responsible for timely paying

its subcontractors. The County reserves the right to reject the selection of any

subcontractor and to inspect the facilities and equipment of any subcontractor.

Contractor is encouraged to seek minority and women-owned business enterprises for

participation in subcontracting opportunities. If any subcontractor fails to perform or

make progress, as required by this Contract, and the replacement of such subcontractor

is necessary in order to complete the work hereunder in a timely fashion, Contractor shall

promptly replace such subcontractor, subject to the County's approval of the new
subcontractor.

Subcontractual Relations By an appropriate written agreement, the Contractor shall

require each subcontractor to the extent of the work to be performed by the

subcontractor, to be bound to the Contractor by the terms of the Contract Documents,

and to assume toward the Contractor all the obligations and responsibilities which the

Contractor by these Documents, assumes toward the County. Said agreements shall

preserve and protect the rights of the County under the Contract Documents with respect

to the Work to be performed by the subcontractor so that the subcontracting thereof will

not prejudice such rights. Where appropriate, the Contractor shall require each

Subcontractor to enter into similar agreements with his Sub-subcontractor.

The Contractor shall make available to each proposed Subcontractor, prior to the

execution of the Subcontract, copies of the Contract Documents to which the

Subcontractor will be bound and identify to the Subcontractor any terms and conditions

of the proposed Subcontract which may be at variance with the Contract Documents.

Each Subcontractor shall similarly make copies of such Documents available to his Sub-
subcontractors.

Subcontractor Interfacing The Contractor shall be the single point of interface with all

subcontractors for the County and all of its agents and representatives. He shall negotiate

all change orders, field orders and request for proposals, with all affected subcontractors

and shall review the costs of those proposals and advise the County of their validity and

reasonableness, acting in the Countyls best interest prior to requesting approval of each

change order from the County. Before any work is begun on any change order, a written

authorization from the County must be issued. However, when health and safety are

threatened, the Contractor shall act immediately to remove the threat to health and
safety.

Responsibilities for Acts and Omissions The Contractor shall be responsible to the

County for the acts and omissions of his employees and agents and his subcontractors,

their agents and employees, and all other persons performing any of the work or
supplying materials under a contract to the Contractor.

page | 9



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 187 of 373

6.7

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 187 of 373

Subcontracts to be provided The Contractor shall furnish to the County a list of all

subcontractors that it intends to utilize for the project and a copy of each subcontract,

including the general supplementary conditions no later than five (5) days after the Notice

to Proceed and every Tuesday and Friday during debris operations. Contractor shall also

include a clear description of the percentage of the work the contractor intends to
subcontract out.

ARTICLE 7

FUNDING OUT CLAUSE

In the event of a disaster, County may elect to remove debris with County forces, to activate this
Contract, or to contract separately for debris removal.

ARTICLE 8

CONDITIONS OF WORK

The Contractor must inform himself fully of the conditions relating to the execution of the project

and the employment of labor thereon. Failure to do so will not relieve the Contractor of his

obligation to furnish all material and labor necessary to carry out the provisions of this Contract.

Insofar, as possible the Contractor, in carrying out his work, must employ such methods or means

as will not cause any interruptions of or interference with the work of any other contractor(s).

ARTICLE 9

LAWS AND REGULATIONS

All applicable state laws, municipal ordinances, and the rules and regulations of all authorities

having jurisdiction over the scope of work of the project shall apply to this Contract throughout,

and they will be deemed to be included in the contract the same as though herein written out in
full.

ARTICLE 10

FORCE MAJEURE

It is mutually understood and agreed that the Contractor shall be waived of its obligations under

the contract during any period or periods of time when acts of God, war or public enemy render
impossible its performance under the contract. In such case, the Contractor shall give the County

prompt oral notification followed by written notice of the particulars and estimated duration of
said Force Majeure.

ARTICLE 11

PAYMENT TO CONTRACTOR

Page | 10



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 188 of 373

11.1

11.2

11.3

11.4

11.5

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 188 of 373

Contractor shall be paid for the Services rendered and accepted in accordance with the

unit prices specified in AITACHMENT A: "Contractor's Price Proposal" attached hereto for
eligible debris. To receive payment under this Contract, Contractor shall submit an invoice

to the County's Representative for the debris hauled to each disposal site, which shall be

calculated from load tickets that are issued by County representative at each site.

Contractor shall be paid solely on the tickets issued and verified by the Monitor for the

County at the disposal facilities. Alf loads hauled shall be full and well compacted. When
a load is delivered, the driver shall provide the CountVs Monitor with the load ticket. The

Monitor at the disposal site will rate each load as a % of fully loaded capacity as
predetermined through truck or trailer bed measurement by the Monitor. The capacity

of all trucks and/or trailer beds will be independently certified by the monitor designated

by the County prior to the commencement of debris hauling.

Contractor shall furnish and pay the cost of all the necessary materials and shall furnish

and pay for all the superintendents, labor, tools, equipment, transportation and perform

all other work required for the removal of all disaster debris, as defined herein, in strict

accordance with this Contract, and any amendments thereto and such supplemental

plans and specifications which may hereafter be approved.

Contractor acknowledges that the County will apply for FEMA and/or State assistance.
Therefore, Contractor represents that it will perform all Services hereunder in a manner,

time and place so as to insure and be consistent with such reimbursement by those

agencies to the County. County reserves the right to withhold amounts owed to County
by Contractor from any payments due to Contractor from County.

A1! invoices shall include at a minimum the following information:

Contractor's Name
Contract Number

Project Worksheet Number (PW #)
Disaster Number

Location and/or site of work

Category of Work (FEMA Categories A-G)
Period Covered

Brief description of type of work performed

Debris Quantities and Type

All invoices shall be delivered to the monitoring firm first for review. No invoice shall have

either multiple PW #'s or Category of Work or be for a period exceeding 30 days.

Contractor shall submit Applications for Payment to the County in a timeframe as agreed

upon by the parties to this Contract. Within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of each

Page | 11



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 189 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 189 of 373

Application for Payment, the County shall either: (1) indicate approval of the requested

payment; (2) indicate approval of only a portion of the requested payment, stating in

writing the reasons therefore; or (3) return the Application for Payment to the

Contractor's indicating, in writing, the reason for refusing to approve payment. In the

event of a total denial and return of the Application for Payment by the County, the

Contractor may make the necessary corrections and resubmit the Application for

Payment. The County shall, within thirty (30) calendar days after County approval of an

Application for Payment, pay the Contractor the amounts so approved: Provided,

however, in no event shall the County be obligated to pay an amount greater than that

portion of the Application for Payment approved by the County.

County shall retain five percent (5%) of the gross amount of each monthly payment

request or five percent (5%) of the portion thereof approved by the County for payment

whichever is less. The retained sum shall be accumulated and not released to Contractor

until final payment is due to insure against timely completion of the project and/or

undiscovered damage to public or private property. Any interim interest on such sums
shall accrue to County.

Monthly payments to Contractor shall in no way imply approval or acceptance of
Contractor's work.

Each Application for Payment shall be accompanied by Release and Affidavit showing that

all material, labor, equipment, and other bills associated with that portion of the Work

payment is being requested or have been paid in full. The County shall not be required to

make payment until and unless these affidavits are furnished by Contractor.

11.6 Contractor shall not be paid to handle, process, or dispose of debris that is unrelated to

disaster damage. Further, Contractor shall bill the County and be paid only for eligible
debris that originates within County.

11.7 The County does not guarantee Contractor a specific amount of work under this Contract
or a specific amount of compensation hereunder.

11.8 Contractor shall not charge any resident, business or institution for work performed

under this scope of work, nor shall Contractor or anyone employed or subcontracted by

Contractor accept any additional monies from any resident, business, or institution for

work performed under this scope of work.

11.9 Contractor shall clearly include the words "final invoice" on Contractor's final billing to

the County. This statement by Contractor shall constitute Contractor's certification that

all services have been properly and completely performed by Contractor and all charges

and costs have been properly invoiced to the County and that all such charges are for

Eligible Services. Since this account wilf thereupon be closed, any and all further charges

if not properly included on this final invoice shall be deemed waived by Contractor.

Page 12



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 190 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 190 of 373

ARTICLE 12

INSPECTION BY CONTRACTOR

Contractor represents that it has inspected the areas where Debris is to be collected and removed

and is familiar with the roadway system within the jurisdiction of the County, roadway widths,

and other factors that will affect the work to be performed and has not relied on any

representation of conditions made by any officer, agent or employee of the County.

Contractor understands that any information provided by the County is meant only to assist the

Contractor and Contractor agrees to rely on its own knowledge and investigation and not any

assistance provided by County. Contractor acknowledges that it is prepared for potentially

adverse working conditions including, but not limited to, limited fuef supplies, limiting housing

availability, limited food and water supplies, and wet and muddy conditions, and that these

factors were considered in determining the costs originally agreed upon by the parties.

ARTICLE 13

HOURS OF WORK

Contractor recognizes that, at the time this Request for Proposals was prepared, the time period

for reimbursement by FEMA for debris removal is limited. The Contractor shall operate during

daylight hours coordinating with landfills, unless otherwise directed by the County's designated

representative. Removal of debris shall be restricted to between the hours from dawn to dusk.

Contractor shall devote such time, attention and resources to the performance of Contractor's

services and obligations hereunder as shall be necessary to complete this project. Contractor

shall notify Monitor by close of business each Thursday whether weekend work is anticipated. If

a truck is loaded too late in the day to travel to the disposal site, a load ticket may be written for
a full load only.

ARTICLE 14

LOCAL PREFERENCE

In choosing materials related to its services under this Contract, the Contractor shall give

preference to materials grown, produced, prepared, made or manufactured in the State of North
Carolina. Contractor wilt make every effort to utilize and employ local subcontractors, equipment

rental, supplies and other locally available resources. For purposes of this project, local shall be

defined to mean the jurisdictional boundaries of Lee County.

15.1

ARTICLE 15

TIME OF THE ESSENCE

Contractor understands that the deadline for reimbu rsement by FEMA is limited, and that
time is of the essence in the performance of this Contract.

Page | 13



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 191 of 373

15.2

15.3

15.4

16.1

16.2

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 191 of 373

Contractor agrees to provide necessary performance bond, payment bond and insurance

certificates and commence the performance of services under this Contract no later than
seventy-two (72) hours after execution hereof.

Contractor agrees to work diligently to complete this Contract at the earliest possible

date; however, in no event shall the time period for Completion of this contract exceed

90 days from Notice to Proceed for complete performance in every respect under this

Contract, unless the County initiates additions or deletions to the Contract by written

change orders, in its sole discretion extends this period due to the progress of the debris

removal, or the Contract is terminated as provided herein.

Both parties pursuant to applicable federal, state and local law will equitably negotiate

subsequent changes and completion time.

ARTICLE 16

INSURANCE, INDEMNITY AND WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

Indemnity Contractor agrees to indemnify and save harmless the County, its officers,

agents, monitors, representatives, employees and attorneys from and against any and all

losses and claims, demands, payments, suits, actions and judgments of every kind,

including, without limitation, attorneys fees and expenses for the total cost of review and

defending same, that may be brought or recovered against them by reason of any action

or omission of the Contractor, its agents or employees (including those of any of his sub-

contractors) in the performance of work under this Contract.

Contractor's Insurance

16.2.1 The Contractor shall not commence any work in connection with this Agreement
until he has obtained all of the following types of insurance and such insurance

has been approved by the County, nor shall the Contractor allow any

subcontractor to commence work on his subcontract until all similar insurance

required of the subcontractor has been so obtained and approved. A1! insurance

policies shall be with insurers qualified and doing business in the State of North
Carolina.

16.2.2 Worker's Compensation Insurance Contractor shall provide Workers

Compensation Insurance and maintain at its expense during the term of this

Contract, in accordance with workers compensation laws of the State of North

Carolina, including occupational disease provisions, for all of the Contractor's

employees, and in case any work is sublet, Contractor shall require any such

subcontractor similarly to provide Workers Compensation Insurance, including

occupational disease provisions, for all of the subcontractor's employees unless

such employees are covered by the protection afforded by the Contractor. In case

employees engaged in hazardous work under this contract are not protected

Page | 14



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 192 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 192 of 373

under the Workers Compensation Law, the Contractor shall provide, and shall

cause each subcontractor to provide adequate and suitable insurance for the

protection of its employees not otherwise protected. Any uninsured

subcontractors are hereby deemed to be covered by the Contractorts workers
compensation coverage.

16.2.3 Contractor's Public Liability and Property Damage Insurance The

Contractor shall procure and maintain during the duration of this Contract,

Contractor's general public liability and property damage insurance, including

auto liability and employer's liability coverage, insuring Contractor from all claims

from personal injury, including death, and claims for destruction or damage to

property arising out of or in connection with any operations under this Contact,

whether such operations are by the Contractor or a subcontractor of the

Contractor, and said insurance shall name as additional insured, waive and hold

harmless the County and the Monitor. Insurance shall be written with limits of

liability of not less than the following:

(a) Debris Removal Manager(s Comprehensive

General Liability

Coverages, Bodily Injury & Property Damage
(b) Automobile Liability Coverages,

Bodily Injury & Property Damage

(c) Excess Liability, Umbrella Form

Each Occurrence,

Combined Single Limit

$1 Each Occurrence,

Combined Single Limit

$4,000,000 Each Occurrence,

Combined Single Limit

16.3

16.4

Insurance clause for both BODILY INJURY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE shall be
amended to provide coverage on an occurrence basis.

16.2.4 Subcontractor's Public Liability and Property Damage Insurance - The Contractor

shall require each of his subcontractors to procure and maintain during the life of

this subcontract, insurance of the type specified above or insure the activities of

his subcontractors in his policy, as specified above.

County's and Contractor's Protective Liability Insurance

The Contractor shall procure as a cost of the project and furnish a County and Contractor's

Protective Liability Insurance Policy with the following minimum limits:

(a) Bodily Injury Liability &
Property Damage Liability

IIXCU" {Explosion, Collapse, Underground Damage

$1,000,000 Each Occurrence

Combined Single Limit

Page | 15



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 193 of 373

16.5

16.6

16.7

16.8

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 193 of 373

The Contractor's Liability Policy shall provide "XCU'I coverage for those classifications in
which they are excluded.

Broad Form Property Damage Coverage. Products & Completed Operations Coverages

The Contractor's Liability Policy shall include Broad Form Property Damage Coverage,
Products and Completed Operations Coverages.

Contractual Liability Work Contracts

The Contractor's Liability Policy shall include Contractual Liability Coverage designed to

protect the Contractor for contractual liabilities assumed by the Contractor in the
performance of this Contract.

Indemnification Rider

16.7.1 The Contractor shalt indemnify and hold harmless the County and the Federal

Government and their agents and employees from and against alf claims,

damages, losses and expenses, including but not limited to attorney's fees, arising

out of or resulting from the performance of the Work, provided that any such

claim, damage, loss or expense (1) is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease

or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the Work

itself) including the loss of use resulting therefrom, and (2) is caused in whole or

in part by any negligent act or omission of the Contractor, any subcontractor,

anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or anyone for whose acts

any of them may be liable, regardless of whether or not it is caused in part by a

party indemnified hereunder. Such obligation shall not be construed to negate,

abridge, or otherwise reduce any other right to obligation of indemnity which

would otherwise exist as to any party or person described in this Article.

16.7.2 In any and all claims against the County and the Federal Government or any of

their agents or employees by any employee of the Contractor, any subcontractor,

anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or anyone for whose acts

any of them may be liable, the indemnification obligations under this Paragraph

shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of

damages, compensation or benefits payable by or for the Contractor or any

subcontractor under workers' or workmen's compensation acts, disability benefit
acts or other employee benefit acts.

Certificate of Insurance

The County shall be furnished proof of coverage of Insurance as follows:

Page | 16



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 194 of 373

16.9

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 194 of 373

Certificate of Insurance form will be furnished to the County along with the Contract

Documents. These shall be completed and signed by the authorized North Carolina

Resident Agent, and returned to the office of the General Services Director. This

Certificate shall be dated and show:

(1) The name of the insured Contractor, the specific job by name and job number, the
name of the insurer, the number of the policy, its effective date, and its termination
date.

(2) Statement that the Insurer will mail notice to the County at least fifteen (15) days

prior to any material changes in provisions or cancellation of the policy.

(3) Certificate of Insurance shall be in the form as approved by County Risk Manager

and such Certificate shall clearly state all the coverages required in this Section

commencing at 15.2 and ending with 15.9.4.

(4) Certificate of Insurance shall state that the County is listed as additional insured on

all appropriate policies.

(5) Copy of the endorsement or additional insured rider to the General Liability Policy.

(6) Date of Birth of authorized Resident Agent.

Waiver of Subrogation

16.9.1 The County and the Contractor waive all rights against each other, for damages

caused by perils covered by insurance provided under Article 15.2 to the extent

covered by such insurance except such rights as they may have to the proceeds of
such insurance held by the County and Contractor as trustees. The Contractor shall

require similar waivers from all subcontractors and their sub-subcontractors.

16.9.2 The County and Contractor waive all rights against each other for loss or damage

to any equipment used in connection with the Project and covered by any

property insurance. The Contractor shall require similar waivers from all

subcontractors and their sub-subcontractors.

16.9.3 The County waives subrogation against the Contractor on all property and

consequential loss policies carried by the County on adjacent properties and under

property and consequential loss policies purchased for the Project after its

completion.

16.9.4 If the policies of insurance referred to in this Article require an endorsement to

provide for continued coverage where there is a waiver of subrogation, the owner

Page | 17



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 195 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 195 of 373

of such policies will cause them to be so endorsed, failure to obtain proper

endorsement nullifies the waiver of subrogation.

ARTICLE 17

PERFORMANCE BONDS

Prior to beginning work, Contractor agrees to provide the County with performance bond payable

to, in favor of, or for the protection of the County for the work to be performed under this

Contract in an amount not less than 100% of the estimated contract amount, unconditioned for

the full and faithful performance of this Contract. All insurance or bonds required under the

terms of this Contract and General Conditions shall be issued by company licensed to do business
in the State of North Carolina.

ARTICLE 18

PAYMENT BOND

Prior to beginning work, Contractor agrees to provide the County with a payment bond

conditioned for the prompt payment of all persons supplying labor or material in the

performance of the work in an amount not less than the estimated contract amount.

19.1

19.2

ARTICLE 19

REMEDIES

Ri ght to Cover

If the Contractor fails to meet any completion date or resolution time set forth in this

Agreement, and it fails to cure such default within one (l) business day after receiving

written notice from the County of such failure, the County may take any of the following
actions with or without terminating this Agreement, and in addition to and without limiting
any other remedies it may have:

Employ such means as it may reasonably deem advisable and appropriate to perform
itself or obtain the Services form a third party until the matter is resolved and the

Contractor is able to resume performance under this Agreement; and,

Deduct any and all reasonable expenses incurred by the County in obtaining or

performing the Services from any money then due or to become due the Contractor

and, should the County's reasonable cost of obtaining or performing the services

exceed the amount due the Contractor, collect the difference from the Contractor.

Right to Withhold Pavment

Page | 18



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 196 of 373

19.3

19.4

20.1

20.2

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 196 of 373

If the Contractor materially breaches any provisions of this Agreement, the County shall
have a right to withhold all payments due to the Contractor with respect to the services that

are the subject of such breach until such breach has been fully cured.

Specific Performance and Injunctive Relief

The Contractor agrees that due to the potential impact on public health, monetary damages

may not be an adequate remedy for the Contractor's failure to provide the Services required
by this Agreement and monetary damages may not be the equivalent of the performance of
such obligation. Accordingly, the Contractor hereby agrees that the County may seek an
order granting specific performance of such obligations of the Contractor in a court of

competent jurisdiction within the State of North Carolina. The Contractor further consents

to the County seeking injunctive relief (including a temporary restraining order) to assure

performance in the event the Contractor breaches the Agreement in any material respect.

Other Remedies

Except as specifically set forth in the main body of this Agreement, the remedies set forth

above shall be deemed cumulative and not exclusive and may be exercised successively or
concurrently, in addition to any other remedy available.

ARTICLE 20

TERMINATION

Termination without Cause

The County may immediately terminate this Agreement at any time without cause by
giving written notice to the Contractor. If the County with written notice to Contractor

terminates this Contract, the Contractor shall be paid for the eligible work performed to
the time of termination.

Termination with Cause

Either party may terminate this Agreement upon the occurrence of one or more of the
following events:

(1) The other party violates or fails to perform any covenant, obligation, term or condition

contained in this Agreement, provided that, unless otherwise stated in this

Agreement, such failure or violation shall not be cause for termination if the following

conditions are satisfied: (i) such default is reasonably susceptibfe to cure; and (ii) the

other party cures such default within thirty days of receipt of written notice of default

from the non-defaulting party.

Page | 19



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 197 of 373

20.3

20.4

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 197 of 373

The termination of this Contract by the County for inadequate performance shall not

relieve Contractor of any obligations and liabilities that have accrued at the time of

such termination. If this Contract is so terminated, the County shall be liable only for

goods or services then delivered by Contractor and accepted by the County. Such

termination shall be effective as of the date and time designated by the County.

(2) The other party attempts to assign, terminate or cancel this Agreement contrary to
the terms hereof.

(3) The other party ceases to do business as a going concern, makes an assignment for

the benefit of creditors, admits in writing its inability to pay debts as they become

due, files a petition in bankruptcy or has an involuntary bankruptcy petition filed

against it.

Termination by Contractor

Contractor may terminate this Contract upon thirty (30) days written notice to the

County, provided, however, that during such thirty (30) days (or until earlier release by

the County), Contractor shall continue to diligently perform all of its duties hereunder.

Completion of Contract

This contract shall be deemed to have been completed in accordance with its terms when
the County notifies Contractor that all Debris has been removed to the satisfaction of the

County.

ARTICLE 21

PERSONNEL

Contractor represents and warrants to the County that Contractor has, or shall secure at its own
expense prior to the commencement of services hereunder, all necessary personnel required to
perform the services under this Contract. Such personnel shall not be deemed to be employees

or agents of the County or to have any contractual relationship with the County. All services

required of Contractor hereunder shall be performed by Contractor or under its supervision, and

all personnel engaged in performing such services shall be fully qualified, and if necessary,

authorized under applicable law to perform such services. Any changes or substitutions in

Contractor's key personnel must be approved in advance by the County. Contractor represents

and warrants to the County that all services shall be performed by skilled and competent

personnel to the highest professional standards in the field. Contractor shall remove from the

work described in this Contract any person the County deems to be incompetent, careless or

otherwise objectionable. Provide in the Contractor's Technical Proposal, the number of

personnel that will be secured to provide the services described herein broken into categories of

job titles.

Page 20



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 198 of 373

22.1

22.2

22.3

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 198 of 373

ARTICLE 22

SAFETY

Contractor understands and acknowledges that it will be working in congested areas.

Contractor shall employ flag men and other necessary measures to protect the public and
shall be fully responsible for implementing safety measures in performing its work under

this Contract. Contractor will provide necessary traffic control measures.

Contractor shall be responsible for the conduct and actions of all of its employees and

subcontractors. Contractor's employees and subcontractors shall not exhibit any pattern

of discourteous behavior to the public or otherwise act in a manner contrary to the best
interests of the County.

Contractor shall employ and utilize sufficient manpower and equipment to assure that

work zone safety is in keeping with all requirements established by the Federal Highway

Administration's Manual for Work Zone Safety. The County reserves the right to curtail

work efforts until unsafe practices are corrected. Contractor shall present to the County,

within 48 hours of the execution of this Contract, a copy of emergency procedures

designed to facilitate prompt notification of emergency response personnel in the event

of accidents or injuries to employees or other persons associated with or in proximity to

work zones. It shall be the responsibility of Contractor to make assurances that any and

all equipment and/or vehicles used in connection with the work hereunder meet

applicable federal, State, and local taws and regulations regarding the use of such vehicles

and equipment on public roadways.

ARTICLE 23

FEDERAL AND STATE TAXATION

Contractor shall be responsible for payment of its own and its share of its employee FICA and
Social Security benefits with respect to work performed under or contemplated by this Contract
and all other applicable taxes.

ARTICLE 24

SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

This Contract shall be binding upon the parties and their respective successors and assigns;

provided, however, that this Contract may not be assigned by Contractor without the prior
written consent of the County, which consent may be withheld at the sole and absolute discretion

of the County. No provision hereof shall be deemed to create any personal liability on the part of
any officer, agent, or Monitor for the County, nor shall this Contract be deemed to create any
rights or benefits to any person other than the County or Contractor.

ARTICLE 25

PROGRESS REPORTS

Page 21



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 199 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 199 of 373

Contractor shall provide progress reports to the County on a weekly basis or more frequently as

requested by the County. Such reports shall contain, at a minimum, total cubic yards collected,

daily totals, and description of the geographical areas being addressed by the Contractor.

ARTICLE 26

DEFAULT

Either party shall be in default hereunder upon the failure to perform any material provision

hereof. In the event of a default by the County, Contractor shall be entitled to exercise any and

all rights and remedies available under the laws of the State of North Carolina. In the event of a

default by Contractor, the County shall be entitled to exercise any or all of the following remedies,

alone or in conjunction with others: (a) the termination of this Contract; (b) the withholding of

the retainage specified herein to be applied to damages incurred by reason of such default; and

(c) the exercise of all other rights and remedies available under the laws of the State of North
Carolina.

ARTICLE 27

CREDIT

Contractor shall not pledge the County's credit or make the County a guarantor for payment or

surety for any contract, debt, obligation, judgment, lien, or any form of indebtedness. Contractor

further represents and warrants that it has no obligation or indebtedness that would impair its
ability to fulfill the terms of this Contract.

ARTICLE 28

PERFORMANCE

Contractor shall perform its obligations hereunder in a manner so as not to interfere with the

normal operations of the County, Such performance by Contractor shall be in compliance with

all applicable local, State and federal laws and regulations.

ARTICLE 29

DISCLOSURE AND OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

Contractor shall deliver to the County or its designated representative for approval and

acceptance, prior to the County's final payment hereunder, all documents and material prepared

and/or utilized by Contractor in connection with this Contract. All oral and written information

not in the public domain or not previously known, and alf information and data obtained,

developed or supplied by the County, or at its expense, will be kept confidential by Contractor

and will not be disclosed by Contractor to any other person or entity, either directly or indirectly,

without the County's prior written consent, unless otherwise required by lawful court order, after

a hearing at which the County is represented. All drawings, maps, sketches, programs, data bases,

reports and other data developed, produced, created or purchased under or pursuant to this

Contract for or at the County's expense shall be and remain the County's sole property and may

Page 22



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 200 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 200 of 373

be reproduced at the discretion of the County. All covenants, agreements, representations and

warranties made herein, or otherwise made in writing by any party pursuant hereto, including
but not limited to, any representations made relating to disclosure or ownership of documents
and information, shall survive the execution, delivery, and termination of this Contract.

ARTICLE 30

ACCESS AND AUDITS

Contractor shall maintain adequate records to justify all charges, expenses and costs incurred in

performing the Services for a period of at least seven (7) years following completion of this

Contract. The County and Monitor shall have full and complete access to all records, documents,

and information collected and/or maintained by Contractor in the course of the administration

and performance of this Contract. This information shall be made accessible at Contractor's local

place of business in County, for purposes of inspection, reproduction and audit without

restriction. If records are unavailable in County, it shall be Contractor's responsibility to insure

that all required records are provided to the County at Contractor's expense.

ARTICLE 31

NONDISCRIMINATION

Contractor represents and warrants that all of its employees are and shall be treated equally

during employment by Contractor without regard to race, color, religion, physical handicap, sex,
age or national origin.

ARTICLE 32

SEVERABILITY

If any term or provision of this Contract shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the

remainder of this Contract, or the application of such term or provision, to persons or

circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be

affected, and every other term and provision of this Contract shall be deemed valid and
enforceable to the extent permitted by law.

33.1

ARTICLE 33

MODIFICATIONS OF WORK

The County reserves the right to make changes in the Services, including alterations,

reductions or additions thereto. Upon receipt by Contractor of the County's notification

of a contemplated change, Contractor shall (a) if requested by the County, provide an

estimate for the increase or decrease in cost due to the contemplated change, (b) notify

the County of any estimated change in the completion date, and (c) advise the County in

writing if the contemplated change shall affect Contractor's ability to meet the

completion dates or schedules of this Contract. If the County instructs in writing,

Contractor shall suspend work on that portion of the services affected by a contemplated

Page 23



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 201 of 373

33.2

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 201 of 373

change, pending the County's decision to proceed with the change. If the County elects

to make the change, the County shall issue a contract amendment or change order and

Contractor shall not commence work on any such change until such written amendment
or change order has been issued and signed by both parties

Emergencies In any emergency affecting the safety of persons or property, the

Contractor shall act at his discretion, to prevent threatened damage, injury or loss. Any

increase in the Guaranteed Maximum Price or extension of time claimed by the

Contractor on account of emergency work shall be determined as provided in this article.

ARTICLE 34

MONITORING OF CONTRACT FOR DEBRIS REMOVAL

The County shall provide, and Contractor shall allow, monitoring and inspections as necessary to

determine contract performance, which may include, but is not limited to, on-site inspections,

metering of operations, and inspections of operating records during Contractor's operating

hours. Contractor will notify Monitor each evening of the number of work crews and disposal

sites that will need assigned monitors, 24 hours before crews arrive, to facilitate the proper

staffing for certification of truck volumes and issuance of load tickets. County may increase or
decrease the number of monitors provided to the Contractor to meet the needs of the debris

removal effort. The contractor shall construct an inspection tower at each Debris Management

Site (DMS) and disposal site specifically for this project, as described or approved equivalent. The

tower shall be of sound construction and of scaffolding, constructed according to USACE

specifications and shall comply with standard OSHA requirements and local codes. The tower is
for the purpose of a monitor to view and grade loads. FEMA and/or the County may occupy the
tower at their discretion for QA/QC purposes. Others may use the inspector tower to view loads
under special circumstances.

ARTICLE 35

NON-EXCLUSIVE CONTRACT

This Contract shall be non-exclusive and the County may procure the services contemplated
hereby from other sources at the County's discretion.

ARTICLE 36

CONTRACT LANGUAGE

Use of the masculine includes feminine and neuter, singular includes plural, and captions and

headings are inserted for convenience of reference and do not define, describe, extend or limit

the scope or intent of this Contract.

Page | 24



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 202 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 202 of 373

ARTICLE 37

INCORPORATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

The Contract between County and Contractor shall consist of this document and all exhibits

referenced herein, the Request for Proposal and the Contractors' Response to the Request for

Proposal. If the documents are in conflict, the order of precedence shall be as follows: Pre-Event

Contract for Disaster Debris Management Services with Exhibits, Request for Proposals for

Disaster Debris Management and Removal Services, then the Contractor's Response to the

Request for Proposals. None of the provisions, terms and conditions contained in this Contract

may be added to, deleted from, modified, superseded or otherwise changed, except by written
instrument executed by the parties hereto.

ARTICLE 38

AMENDMENTS

This Contract may not be amended except by written instrument duly executed by or on behalf
of all of the parties hereto.

ARTICLE 39

ARBITRATION

Any controversy or claim or dispute arising out of, or relating to this Contract, or its breach, venue

for any and all disputes shall be Lee County, North Carolina. This agreement shall be governed
by the laws of North Carolina.

ARTICLE 40

NOTICES

Any communications to be given hereunder by either Party to the other shall be deemed to be

duly given if set forth in writing and personally delivered or sent by mail, registered or certified,

postage prepaid with return receipt requested as follows:

Point of Contact for Lee County:

Joseph T. Cherry, Solid Waste Superintendent

Lee County Department of General Services

805 S. Fifth Street

Sanford, NC 27330
919-718-4622 ext. 5381

Email: joseph.cherry@leecountync.gov

Page | 25



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 203 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 203 of 373

Point of Contact for Contractor:

Michelle Kentula, Contracts Administrator

Ceres Environmental Services, Inc.

6968 Professional Parkway East

Sarasota, FL 34240

941-402-1147

Email: michelle.kentula@ceresenv.com

(Or such other person or address as Contractor shall have designated by

due notice to County).

Written notices hereunder delivered personally shall be deemed communicated as of actual

receipt, mailed notices shall be deemed communicated five (5) days after deposit in the mail,
postage prepaid, certified, in accordance with this Section.

ARTICLE 41

NON-WAIVER

Nothing set forth herein is intended nor shall be construed as a waiver of any immunity available

to County, its governing board or employees.

ARTICLE 42

GOVERNING LAW

The validity, interpretation and performance of this Contract and of its provisions shall be
governed by the laws of the State of North Carolina.

ARTICLE 43

COUNTY POLICY

The County of Lee opposes discrimination on the basis of race and sex and urges all of its

contractors to provide a fair opportunity for minorities and women to participate in their
workforce and subcontractors and vendors under County contracts.

ARTICLE 44

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

During the performance of this Contract, the Contractor agrees as follows:

44.1 The Contractor agrees to abide by the requirements of the following as applicable: Title

VI and VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended by the Equal Opportunity Act of

1972, Federal Executive Order 11246, the Federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended,

the Vietnam Era Veteran's Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974, Title IX of the Education

Page | 26



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 204 of 373

44.2

44.3

44.4

44.5

44.6

44.7

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 204 of 373

Amendments of 1972, the Age Act of 1975, and CERES agrees to abide by the
requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

The Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment

because of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, political affiliation or belief, age or

handicap. The Contractor shall take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are

employed and that employees are treated equally during employment, without regard to

race, color, religion, sex, national origin, political affiliation or belief, age or handicap.

Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading,

demotion, transfer, recruitment or advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other

forms of compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The

Contractor shall post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for

employment, notices setting forth these EEO provisions.

The Contractor shall in all solicitations or advertisement for employees placed by or on

behalf of the Contractor; state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for

employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin, political affiliation
or belief, age or handicap.

The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he

has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be

provided advising the said labor union or workers' representatives of the contractor's

commitments under this section, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places

available to employees and applicants for employment.

The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24,

1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.

The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246

of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or

pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the

adm inistering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain
compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders

In the event of the contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this

contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be
canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the Contractor may be
declared ineligible for further Government contracts or federally assisted construction

contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of

September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions as may be imposed and remedies invoked

as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or

order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.

Page | 27



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 205 of 373

44.8

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 205 of 373

The contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph

(1) and the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (7) in every subcontract or purchase

order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued

pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such

provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The contractor will take

such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering

agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for
noncompliance: Provided, however, That in the event a contractor becomes involved in,

or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such

direction by the administering agency the contractor may request the United States to
enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States."

ARTICLE 45

JOINT RESOLUTION JURISDICTION

Nothing herein shall prohibit this Contract from being utilized for performance of disaster related

activities by any political subdivision within the State of North Carolina.

ARTICLE 46

HAZARD MITIGATION GRANT INCENTIVE

The County agrees to allow the Contractor to complete any hazard mitigation projects for which

the Contractor has secured funding.

ARTICLE 47

FEDERAL CLAUSES

This Contract will be funded in whole or in part with federal funding. As such, federal laws,

regulations, policies and related administrative practices apply to said Contract. This Section

identifies the federal requirements that may be applicable to said Contract. The Contractor will

be responsible for complying with all applicable provisions, updates or modifications that occur

in the future relating to these clauses.

To the extent possible, the federal requirements contained in the most recent version of the

Uniform Administrative Requirements for Federal awards (Uniform Rules) codified at 2CFR Part

200, including any certifications and contractual provisions required by any federal statutes or

regulation referenced therein to be included in this contract are deemed incorporated into this

contract by reference and shall be incorporated into any subagreement or subcontract executed

by the Contractor pursuant to its obligations under this Contract. The Contractor and its sub-

contractors, if any, hereby represent and covenant that they have complied and shall comply in

the future with the applicable provisions of the original contract then in effect and with all

applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and rules and local policies and procedures,

as amended from time to time, relating to Work to be performed under this contract.

Page | 28



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 206 of 373

47.1

47.2

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 206 of 373

Rights to inventions made under a contract or agreement.

(1) Stafford Act Disaster Grants. This requirement does not apply to the Public Assistance,

Hazard Mitigation Grant Program, Fire Management Assistance Grant Program, Crisis

Counseling Assistance and Training Grant Program, Disaster Case Management Grant
Program, and Federal Assistance to Individuals and Households — Other Needs

Assistance Grant Program, as FEMA awards under these programs do not meet the
definition of "funding agreement."

(2) If the FEMA award meets the definition of 'funding agreement" under 37 C.F.R. S
401.2(a) and the non-Federal entity wishes to enter into a contract with a small

business firm or nonprofit organization regarding the substitution of parties,

assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or research work under

that 'funding agreement," the non-Federal entity must comply with the requirements

of 37 C. F.R. Part 401 (Rights to inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small

Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements),

and any implementing regulations issued by FEMA. See 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Appendix

II, F.

(3) The regulation at 37 C.F.R. 5 401.2(a) currently defines "funding agreement" as any

contract, grant, or cooperative agreement entered into between any Federal agency,

other than the Tennessee Valley Authority, and any contractor for the performance

of experimental, developmental, or research work funded in whole or in part by the

Federal government. This term also includes any assignment, substitution of parties,

or subcontract of any type entered into for the performance of experimental,

developmental, or research work under a funding agreement as defined in the first

sentence of this paragraph.

Contracting with small and minority businesses, women's business enterprises, and
labor surplus area firms.

(1)

(2)

In accordance with 2 C.F.R. 5 200.321, the Contractor shall take all necessary

affirmative steps to assure that minority businesses, women's business

enterprises, and labor surplus area firms are used when possible.

Affirmative steps for the prime contractor to take regarding subcontractors must

include:

(a) Placing qualified small and minority businesses and womenls business

enterprises on solicitation lists;

(b) Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women's business

enterprises are solicited whenever they are potentiat sources;

page 29



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 207 of 373

47.3

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 207 of 373

(c) Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or

quantities to permit maximum participation by small and minority businesses,
and women's business enterprises;

(d) Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which

encourage participation by small and minority businesses, and women's

business enterprises;

(e) Using the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as the

Small Business Administration and the Minority Business Development

Agency of the Department of Commerce.

(3) Contractor shall sign the Statement of Compliance Small and Minority

Businesses, Women's Business Enterprises, and Labor Surplus Area Firms.

Debarment and Suspension:

The County and the Contractor are subject to the debarment and suspension regulations

implementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension (1986) and Executive

Order 12689, Debarment and Suspension (1989) at 2 C.F.R. Part 3000 (Non- procurement

Debarment and Suspension).

(1) This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180 and 2 C.F.R. pt.

3000. As such the Contractor is required to verify that none of the contractor, its

principals (defined at 2 C.F.R. 5180.995), or its affiliates (defined at 2 C.F.R. 5180.905)

are excluded (defined at 2 C.F.R. 5 180.940) or disqualified (defined at 2 C.F.R, 5

180.935).

(2) The Contractor must comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000,

subpart C and must include a requirement to comply with these regulations in any

lower tier covered transaction it enters into.

(3) This certification is a material representation of fact relied upon by the Contractor. If

it is later determined that the Contractor did not comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart

C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C, in addition to remedies available to the County, the

Federal Government may pursue available remedies, including but not limited to
suspension and/ or debarment.

(4) The Contractor agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 C. F.R. pt. 180, subpart C

and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, sub-part C while this offer is valid and throughout the period of

any contract that may arise from this offer. The bidder or proposer further agrees to
include a provision requiring such compliance in its lower tier covered transactions.

Page | 30



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 208 of 373

47.4

47.5

47.6

47.7

47.8

47.9

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 208 of 373

Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment 31 U.S.C. 5 1352 (as amended)

Contractors who bid for an award of $100,000 or more shall file the required certification.
Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated

funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an

officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of
Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any
Federal contract, grant, or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 5 1352. Each tier shall

also disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with

obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier, up to the

recipient. Contractor shall sign the Byrd Anti Lobbying Certification for Contracts, Grants,

Loans, and Cooperative Agreements form.

DHS Seal, Logo, and Flags

The contractor shall not use the Department Homeland Security seal(s), logos, crests, or

reproductions of flags or likenesses of DHS agency officials without specific FEMA pre-
approval.

Compliance with Federal Law, Regulations, and Executive Orders

This is an acknowledgement that FEMA financial assistance will be used to fund the
contract only. The contractor will comply will all applicable federal law, regulations,

executive orders, FEMA policies, procedures, and directives.

No Obligation by Federal Government

The Federal Government is not a party to this contract and is not subject to any

obligations or liabilities to the non-Federal entity, contractor, or any other party

pertaining to any matter resulting from the contract.

Program Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements or Related Acts

The Contractor acknowledges that 31 U.S.C. Chap. 38 (Administrative Remedies for False

Claims and Statements) applies to the contractorls actions pertaining to this contract.

Procurement of Recovered Materials

The County and the Contractor must comply with section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal

Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. The requirements of

Section 6002 include procuring only items designated in guidelines of the Environmental

Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR part 247 that contain the highest percentage of

recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of

Page 31



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 209 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 209 of 373

competition, where the purchase price of the item exceeds $10,000 or the value of the

quantity acquired during the preceding fiscal year exceeded $10,000; procuring solid

waste management services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery;

and establishing an affirmative procurement program for procurement of recovered

materials identified in the EPA guidelines.

(1) In the performance of this contract, the Contractor shall make maximum use of
products containing recovered materials that are EPA designated items unless the

product cannot be acquired:

(i) Competitively within a timeframe providing for compliance with the contract

performance schedule;

(ii) Meeting contract performance requirements; or

(iii) At a reasonable price.

(2) Information about this requirement is available at EPA's Comprehensive Procurement

Guidelines web site, http://www.epa.gov/cpg/. The list of EPA-designate items is

available at http://www.epa.gov/cpg/products.htm."

47.10 FEMA Requirements

47.10.1 Change or Modification.

To be eligible for FEMA assistance under a FEMA grant or cooperative agreement, the

cost of a change, modification, change order, or constructive change must be allowable,

allocable, within the scope of the grant or cooperative agreement, and reasonable for the

completion of the project scope. Accordingly, the Contractor shall comply with the

following:

CHANGE IN THE WORK OR TERMS OF THE PROJECT DOCUMENTS

(1) Without invalidating the contract, the County reserves and shall have the right, from

time to time to make such increases, decreases or other changes in the character or

quantity of the work as may be considered necessary or desirable to complete fully
and acceptably the project in a satisfactory manner in accordance with the scope of

the FEMA grant or cooperative agreement. Any extra or additional Work within the
scope of this Project must be accomplished by means of appropriate Field Orders or

Change Orders.

(2) The Contract Administrator shall have the right to approve and issue Field Orders

setting forth written interpretations of the intent of the project documents and

ordering minor changes in work execution, providing the Field Order involves no

change in the Contract Price or the Contract Time.

Page 32



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 210 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 210 of 373

(3) Changes in the quantity or character of the Work within the scope of the Project which

are not properly the subject of Field Orders, including all changes resulting in changes

in the Contract Price, or the Contract Time, shall be authorized only by Change Orders

approved in advance and issued in accordance with the provisions of the County's

Procurement Code, as amended from time to time,

47.10.2 Access to Records

(1) All contractors and their successors, transferees, assignees, and subcontractors

acknowledge and agree to comply with applicable provisions governing Department

and FEMA access to records, accounts, documents, information, facilities, and staff.
See DRS Standard Terms and Conditions, v 3.0, if XXVI (2013).

(2) The contractor agrees to provide County, the FEMA Administrator, the Comptroller
General of the United States, or any of their authorized representatives, access to any

books, documents, papers, and records of the Contractor which are directly pertinent

to this contract for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and

transcriptions.

(3) The Contractor agrees to permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any

means whatsoever or to copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed.

(4) The contractor agrees to provide the FEMA Administrator or his authorized

representative access to construction or other work sites pertaining to the work being
completed under the contract.

47.11 Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act

A. Applicability: This requirement applies to all FEMA grant and cooperative agreement
programs.

B. Where applicable (see 40 U.S.C. S 3701), all contracts awarded by the non-Federal
entity in excess of $ 100,000 that involve the employment of mechanics or laborers must

include a provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. 3702 and 3704, as supplemented

by Department of Labor regulations at 29 C.F.R. Part 5. See 2 C.F.R. Part 200,

Appendix 11, E.

C. Under 40 U.S.C. 3702, each contractor must be required to compute the wages of
every mechanic and laborer on the basis of a standard work week of 40 hours. Work in
excess of the standard work week is pennissible provided that the worker is

compensated at a rate of not less than one and a halftimes the basic rate of pay for all

hours worked in excess of 40 hours in the work week.

page | 33



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 211 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 211 of 373

D. The requirements of 40 U.S.C. 3704 are applicable to construction work and provide

that no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings or under working

conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements do not

apply to the purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available on the

open market, or contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence.

E. The regulation at 29 C.F.R. 5.5(b) provides the required contract clause concerning

compliance with the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act:

"Compliance with the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act.

(1) Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part

of the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or
mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek

in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in

such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate

not less than one and one-halftimes the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in

excess of forty hours in such workweek.

(2) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any

violation of the clause set forth in this section the contractor and any

subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In

addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in

the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to

such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated

damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic,

including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in

this section, in the sum of $10 for each calendar day on which such individual was

required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours

without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in this
section.

(3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. The County shall upon its

own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the
Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable

on account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any such

contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any

other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety

Standards Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such sums as may be

determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or

subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause
set forth in this section.

Page | 34



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 212 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 212 of 373

(4) Subcontracts. The Contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the

clauses set forth in paragraph (1) through (4) of this section and also a clause

requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier

subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any

subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs

(1) through (4) of this section.

47.12 Clean Air and Federal Water Pollution Control Act

Contracts of amounts in excess of $150,000 must contain a provision that requires the

contractor to agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or regulations issued

pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 55 7401-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution

Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 55 1251-1387). Violations must be reported to FEMA
and the Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency. See 2 C.F.R. Part 200,

Appendix II, II G.

47.12.1 Clean Air Act

(1) The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations

issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 5 7401 et seq.

(2) The Contractor agrees to report each violation to County and understands and agrees

that County will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the

Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), and the appropriate Environmental
Protection Agency Regional Office.

(3) The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding

$150,000 financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FEMA.

47.12.2 Federal Water Pollution Control Act

(1) The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations

issued pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C.

1251 et seq.

(2) The Contractor agrees to report each violation to the County and understands and

agrees that the County, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification

to the Federal Emergency Management Agency, and the appropriate Environmental
Protection Agency Regional Office.

(3) The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding

$150,000 financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FEMA.

Page | 35



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 213 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 213 of 373

The undersigned have read the entire Agreement and accept the terms and conditions as shown
by their signatures below.

COUNTY OF LEE

By:

Amy Dalrympfe, Chairman
(SEAL)

Lee County Board of Commissioners

ATTEST:

Jennifer Gamble

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners

CERES ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC.

By: (SEAL)

Tia Laurie, Director of Administration

ATTEST:

By:

This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget
and Fiscal Control Act.

Date:

Lisa G. Minter

Page 36



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 214 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 214 of 373

BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING AMENDMENT

Contractors who apply or bid for an award of $100,000 or more shall file the required

certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal

appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence

an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress,
or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract,
grant, or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 5 1352. Each tier shall also disclose any lobbying

with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such

disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the recipient."

APPENDIX A, 44 C.F.R. PART 18 - CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements

(To be submitted with each bid or offer exceeding $100,000)

The undersigned [Contractor] certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or

employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal

contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into

of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or

modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any

person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a

Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee ofa Member of

Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement,

the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form- LLL, "Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the

award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and

contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall

certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making

or entering into this transaction imposed by 31, U.S.C. 5 1352 (as amended by the Lobbying

Disclosure Act of 1995). Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to
a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

page f 37



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 215 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 215 of 373

The Contractor, certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of each statement of its

certification and disclosure, if any. In addition, the Contractor understands and agrees that the

provisions of 31 U.S.C. 5 3801 et seq., apply to this certification and disclosure, if any.

Signature of Contractor's Authorized Official

Name and Title of Contractor's Authorized Official

Date

page 38



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 216 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 216 of 373

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE - SMALL AND MINORITY BUSINESSES, WOMEN'S
BUSINESS ENTERPRISES, AND LABOR SURPLUS AREA FIRMS

The undersigned CONTRACTOR hereby swears under penalty of perjury that CONTRACTOR took the
following affirmative steps to assure that minority businesses, women's business enterprises, and labor
surplus area firms were used when possible:

(a) Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises on solicitation lists;

(b) Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises are solicited whenever

they are potential sources;

(c) Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to permit

maximum participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises;

(d) Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage participation by
small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises;

(e) Using the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as the Small Business

Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce.

Dated

Contractor

By

(Signature)

By

(Name and Title)

STATE OF

COUNTY OF

20

) ss.

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of 2017, by
who is personally known to me or who has produced as

identification and who did/did not take an oath.

WITNESS my hand and official seal, this

(NOTARY SEAL)

(Signature)

(Print Name)

(Title)

My commission expires:

day of 20

Page 39



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 217 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 217 of 373

ITEM

LEE COUNTY AGENDA ABSTRACT 11. Q.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
(Use the Down or Up Arrows to move between fields of the Form)

MEETING DATE: August 19, 2019

SUBJECT: Consideradon of Reappointment of Charity Dodson to the Board of Health

DEPARTMENT: Governing Body

CONTACT PERSON: Jennifer Gamble, Deputy County Attorney/C1erk to the Board

TYPE: Consent Agenda Acåon Item Public Hearing Informadon

REQUEST

BUDGET IMPACT

ATTACHMENTS

PRIOR BOARD ACTION
RECONfffENDATION

Consider application from Charity Dodson for reappoinånent to the Board of
Health.

Copy of Application from Charity Dodson provided to the Board under a separate
cover.

Previousl a ointed to the Board of Health

Pleasure of the Board.

SUMNfARY
Charity Dodson was initially appointed to the Board of Health in June 2013 and subsequently reappointed in
June 2016. She has served as a Pharmacist representative on the Board of Health. Members can serve three
three year tern-is.

Page 1 ofl
Form Updated August 2, 2017



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 218 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 218 of 373

ITEM

LEE COUNTY AGENDA ABSTRACT Ill. A.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
(Use the Down or Up Arrows to move between fields of the Form)

MEETING DATE: August 19, 2019

SUBJECT: Proclamation celebrating Lee County Parks & Recreation 8U All-Stars Softball Team for their
SWAC State Championship Win

DEPARTMENT: Parks & Recreation

CONTACT PERSON: John Payne

TYPE: Consent Agenda Action Item Public Hearing Information

REQUEST

BUDGET IMPACT
ATTACHWLENTS
PRIOR BOARD ACTION

RECONLMENDATION

Approve proclamation declaring August 19 — 25, 2019 Lee County Parks &
8-and-Under All-Stars Youth Softball Team Week

None
N one
None

Approve proclamation declaring August 19-25, 2019 Lee County Parks and
Recreadon 8-and-Undef All-Stars Youth Softball Team Week.

SUNRvfARY

The Lee County Parks & Recreation 8U All-Stars Softball Team won the 2019 SWAC 8U State Championship in

Tarboro, NC on July 21st. This is the first SWAC state championship win for a Lee County 8U Softball Team.

The team was undefeated in the tournament and would like the proclamation to celebrate their championship win

and also all of their hard work and dedication throughout their season.

Form Updated August 2, 2017 Page 1 ofl



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 219 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 219 of 373

PROCLAMATION

WHEREAS, the Lee County Parks and Recreation (LCPR) 8-and-Under (8U) All-Stars Youth Softball Team

exhibited hard work, dedication, sportsmanship, talent and exceptional team chemistry in the State Wide

Athletic Committee (SWAC) 811 State Softball Tournament; and,

WHEREAS, the 8U All-Stars won the 2019 SWAC 8U State Championship in Tarboro, NC with wins over Onslow
County, Tar River, and Williamston; and,

WHEREAS, under the leadership and guidance of Head Coach Jeremy Isom and Assistant Coaches Jacob Dixon,

Josh Thomas, and Cathy Isom, the team was able to go undefeated with victories over Onslow, Williamston and

Tar River to advance to and win the championship game against Williamston; and,

WHEREAS, the Lee County Board of Commissioners recognizes the LCPR 81-J All-Stars Youth Softball Team

members Victoria Thomas, Laurel Isom, Kinsley Pugh, Karter Dixon, Izzabella Jordan, Joynette Sanchez, Jaycie

Rader, Lilly-Ann Walters, Savannah Gornto, Ashanti Frazier, Aubrey Gunter and Jaelynn Barnes for the

accomplishments they demonstrated over the past several months and for their commitment, perseverance and
love of the sport of softball; and,

WHEREAS, the 811 All-Stars represented Lee County admirably in the 2019 SWAC State Tournament to close out
a remarkable 2019 softball season.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Lee County Board of Commissioners proclaim August 19 - 25, 2019
as Lee County Parks & Recreation 8-and-Under All-Stars Youth Softball Team Week in Lee County, North
Carolina and call upon residents to observe this week recognizing and celebrating the Team and their

contributions to and successes shared with the Lee County community.

Dated this the

ATTEST:

day of August, 2019

Amy M. Dalrymple, Chair
Lee County Board of Commissioners

Jennifer Gamble, Clerk

P.O. Box 1968 408 Summit Drive I Sanford, NC 27330 | (919) 718-4605



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 220 of 373

cotJAr

c A*OV

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 220 of 373

ITEM

LEE COUNTY AGENDA ABSTRACT IV.A.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
(Use the Down or Up Arrows to move between fields of the Form)

MEETING DATE: August 19, 2019

SUBJECT: Zoning Map Amendment @ezoning) Request for 10.4 Acres off ofEakes Road

DEPARTMENT: Sanford / Lee County Community Development

CONTACT PERSON: Amy]. McNeill, Administrator

TYPE: Consent Agenda Action Item Public Hearing Information

REQUEST

BUDGET IMPACT
ATTACHMENTS
PRIOR BOARD ACTTON

RECOMNfENDATION

Joint Public Hearing with the Planning Board for a Rezoning Request for 10.4
acres off of Eakes Road.

N/A
Zonin Ma Amendment ezonin A licadon and Staff Re ort

Hold a joint public hearing and forward to the Planning Board for their
consideration and recommendaüon.

Stnnv1ARY

Applicadon by Dowell and Eakes to rezone three adjoining tracts of land totaling 10.4 ± acres off of
Eakes Road, located between 355 Eakes Road and 97 Lane, from Residential Agricultural (RA)

to Residential (RR). Tract 1 is a 2.5± acre vacant lot identified as Tax Parcel 9529-94-0172-00.

Tract 2 is a 3.1± acre vacant lot identified as Tax Parcel 9529-84-8192-00. Tract 3 is a 4.8± acre vacant lot

identified as Tax Parcel 9529-93-0720-00. All parcels are depicted on Lee County Tax Map 9529.04, and
are illus&ated on a 2003 plat, labeled Property of Dowell G. Eakes and wife, Patd S. Eakes recorded in
Plat Cabinet 2003, Slide 30F of the Lee County Register of Deeds Office.

Fom Updated August 2, 2017 Page 1 of 1



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 221 of 373

BOC Agenda

Regular Meeting

P.CFØP73

Zoning Map Amendment (Rezoning) Application
Circle Jurisdiction That Applies:

City of Sanford Lee County Town of Broadway

l.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8,

9.

A.

B-

C.

D.

E.

F.

Applicant Name: Dowell G. Eakes and Patti S. Eakes

Applicant Address: 333 Eakes Road. Sanford. NC 27332

Applicant Telephone: dgeakes@gmail.com

Name and Address of Property Owner(s) if different than applicant: (same)

Location of Subject Property: Off of Eakes Road. between 355 Eakes Road and 97 Whitney Lane.

All lots are vacant with two lots having frontage on Eakes Road and an adjoining lot to the rear.

Lee co. P.1.Ns : 9529-94-01722000529-84-8192-00, and 9529-93-0720-00

Total Area included in Rezoning Request: 2.5 + 3.1 +4 8 —10.4 +/- total Acres

Zoning Classification: Current Residential Agricultural ( RA) Requested: Residential Restricted ( RR)

Existing Land Use(s): Vacant and wooded.

Reason(s) for Requesting a Zoning Map Amendment (Rezoning): We would like to request that the subject

property be rezoned to Residential Restricted (RR) because we plan to subdivide the property in the future

and would like to prohibit the deyelopment of the lots with mobile/manufactured homes (trailers). RR zoning

does not allow mobile/manufaqtured homes (trailers): therefore. we feel that this is a much more effective

means of regulating the development of the property than using only deed restrictions. This would also help

to protect our property value and the neighbor's property values.

10. Signature(s) of Applicant (and Property Owners if different from Applicant).

I hereby acknowledge that the information contained herein is true. It is further understood that this application will be

reviewed completeness and accuracy and that it shall not be scheduledfor oficial consideration until all required

"yedin oper
conten ar n d/Lee Zoning & Design Review Department.

Signature of Property wner(s) (Sign & Print) Date

Required Attachments/SpbmittqIs

A completed rezoning application (incomplete applications/submittals will not be accepted or processed.
A copy ofa current Lee County Tax Mao illustrating the location of the area to be rezoned, Ifthe exterior boundao of the area to be

rezoned does not follow along existing property boundaries. then the applicant shall be required to submit a metes and bounds (legal)

description describing the area requested for rezoning.

A copy of the latest deed for the subject property as recorded at the Lee County Register of Deeds Offce

A $500.00 Application fee, payable to the City of Sanford is required before processing the application.

*Ifthe requested rezoning is for a Conditional Zoning DistncL a Supplemental Application for Conditional Zoning District must also

be included, along with an additional ü50.00 fee ($750 total fee for Conditional Zoning).

Typically, the submission deadline is the first day of each month at 12:00pm/noon for the rezoning to be heard the following month.

S ecific dates rovidedu on re uest.

STAFF USE ONLY

Staff Signature:

L "Forms & Certifications'Ruaning App (Ltpdate , 18-07-02 by AJMe)

Energov Case No. •



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 222 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 222 of 373

2019-0801

LEE COUNTY
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AND PLANNING BOARD

PUBLIC HEARING INFORMATION
AUGUST 19, 2019

APPLICATION# 2019-0801 TO AMEND THE LEE COUNTY ZONING MAP

Applicants/Owners: Dowell G. and Patti S. Eakes

Request:
Location:

Township:
Tax Parcels:

Adjacent Zoning:

Rezone from Residential Agricultural (RA) to Residential Restricted (RR)
Off of Eakes Road, between 355 Eakes Road and 97 Whitney Lane
Greenwood

9529-94-0172-00, 9529-84-8192-00, and 9529-93-0720-00

North: Residential Restricted (RR), opposite Eakes Road

South: Residential Agricultural (RA)

East: Residential Agricultural (RA)

West: Residential Agricultural (RA)

Introduction: Planning staff has received a rezoning application from Dowell and Patti Eakes as the

first step in possibly marketing approximately 10 acres of land off of Eakes Road for residential
development. The intent is to rezone the land to Residential Restricted (RR) to ensure that no

manufactured/mobile homes (commonly referred to as "trailers") may be placed on the property when/if
it is sold to a developer or individual property owner. The Eakes reside on the adjoining property to the

south, have lived in the area for a long time, and would like to protect both their and the neighbor's

property values and yet be able to sell some of their land. They feel that rezoning is a more effective

means of controlling the future development of the property than private covenants & restrictions, which
may be removed or altered by future developers and/or property owners; therefore, they have submitting
this rezoning request for your consideration.

Site and Area Description:

The site is located in southwestern Lee County, south of US Hwy 15/501 and west of US Hwy 1, off of
Eakes Road. Quail Ridge Subdivision, a single-family home residential community (with the exception
ofa couple of duplexes and triplexes) that surounds Quail Ridge Golf Course, is located on the opposite

side of Eakes Road. The other area surrounding the site is either developed with single-family homes or
wooded/vacant.

Surrounding Land Uses: To the north are single-family homes within the Quail Ridge Subdivision (3 84
and 390 Eakes Road). To the south is the Eake's home / Eakes Land Surveying and 40 acres that is a
combination of a tree farm and a field utilized by the Sanford Model Airplane Club. To the east is a
single-family house (355 Eakes Road) and a City of Sanford water tower. To the west is two single-
family houses (97 and 105 Whitney Lane) and vacant land.

Zoning District Information

Existing Zoning: The subject property is currently zoned Residential Agricultural (RA) zoning district,
which is established to provide areas for low density single family uses, low intensity agricultural

operations as well as agi-business and supportive industrial and commercial uses. Industrial operations



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 223 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 223 of 373

2019-0801

are not permitted unless they clearly support an agricultural use. RA zoning protects and preserves
valuable agricultural areas, implements agricultural protection zoning, establishes performance

standards for rural businesses, preserves rural areas, preserves pasture land and agriculture, sets

maximum permissible densities or new zoning districts, defines specific areas for rural commercial uses,
and identifies areas appropriate for agricultural preservation. The dimensional requirements include a
minimum lot width of 100 feet, a minimum lot depth of 150 feet, a minimum lot size of 40,000 square
feet, with principal building setbacks of 30 feet from the front property line, 30 feet from the rear property

line, and 15 feet from the side property lines, with a maximum building height of 40 feet.

Examples of uses permitted by right within the RA zoning district include single-family detached homes
(site-built, modular), religious complexes churches, schools, animal and crop production, forestry,
stables and riding academies, and in-home daycares for children & adults. There is a list of permitted
uses for this zoning district included within your agenda for your reference. (Manufactured or mobile

homes are permitted within the RA district, with certain developmental regulations.)

Proposed Zoning: The proposed zoning of Residential Restricted (RR) zoning district is established to

provide areas for low-density single-family uses, with a maximum of one and one-half dwelling units
per acre. Property within this zoning district should include tracts which abut or are in close proximity

to existing large-lot single family development, making this an appropriate transition district between
rural, agricultural, and suburban uses. The dimensional requirements include a minimum lot width of
100 feet, a minimum lot depth of 125 feet, a minimum lot size of 30,000 square feet, with principal
building setbacks of 30 feet from the front property line, 30 feet from the rear property line and 15 feet

from the side property lines with a maximum building height of 40 feet.

Examples of uses permitted by right within the RR zoning district include single-family detached homes
(site-built, modular, and manufactured/mobile), churches, animal and crop production, forestry,

stables/riding academies, and in-home daycares for children & adults. There is a list of permitted uses
for this zoning district included within the agenda for your reference. (Manufactured or mobile homes
are not permitted within the RR district.)

In summary, the main differences in RA vs. RR zoning are that RR does not allow manufactured/mobile
homes, the lot size requirement is 30,000sf instead of 40,000sf, and the minimum lot depth is 125ft
instead of 150ft. Since any development at this location will require the installation of private septic

systems (including drain lines and repair areas), this will be the primary factor in determining the actual

lot size, but it cannot be smaller than allowed per the zoning district.

Overlay Districts & Area Plans
Plan SanLee Land Use Plan- Long Range Plan

The plan identifies the future land use place type for this tract of land as "Countryside", which has the

following characteristics:

o agricultural and undeveloped lands outside the Urban Service Area

o preservation of the country's agricultural heritage encouraged

o conservation and maintenance of rural lifestyle supported

o limited residential density

Land use designations include schools, churches, single-family detached dwellings, farmland, forests,
and conservation land. Forms of transportation include automobiles that share the roads with agricultural



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 224 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 224 of 373

2019-0801

activity (with vehicular connectivity encouraged in new development) and pedestrians walking &
bicycling on off-street trails. The zoning districts are Residential Agricultural (RA) and Residential

Restricted (RR). The maximum development density is one dwelling unit per two acres with deep
building setbacks and a 35ft height limit. Utility infrastructure is well water and on-site wastewater

disposal. The features character is two-lane rural highways, dispersed development pattern, and

agricultural fields & forests.

Watershed Conservation Overla District: The subject property is located within our Watershed

Conservation Overlay District, specifically the Little River/Lee County Watershed Protected Area. A
watershed is a basin-like landform delineated by ridgelines that descend into lower elevations that carries

rain water from the land into soils, ground waters, creeks, and streams, eventually making its way to
larger rivers and the ocean. Development within this area is allowed, but there are maximum density
and built upon area requirements designed to ensure the health of the watershed. Any/all future proposed

subdivisions and development must comply with the UDO watershed regulations.

Greenwood Small Area Plan: The subject property is included within the study area for the 2005
Greenwood Small Area Plan, which represents the community's vision for the future of this area and

establishes goals and strategies for managing growth and preserving the rural setting. The goals include:

o

o

o

o

o

o

yowth/development that does not overburden road schools, utilities, or emergency services

balance tax base that allows tax rates to remain low

protecting the rights of individual property owners

preserving low-density, quiet rural neighborhoods

concentration of higher-density growth in planned, mixed-use employment & residential centers
preservation of forests, open space, and farmland

a system of parks and greenways

sign, building, and landscaping design standards that maintain the rural character of the

neighborhood
protection of natural habitat and water quality

land uses which are appropriate for the area and are compatible with the desires of the local

community

Local Overlay District Notes: Per GIS, the subject property is not located within an established

floodplain, there are no mapped wetland areas or streams, and it is not located within a historic district.

Sanford, Lee County and Broadway do not have local grading permits and rely on the NC Deparment
of Environmental Quality to regulate land-disturbing activities. For questions or concerns regarding land

disturbing activities, contact the NC Division of Energy, Mineral, and Land Resources Sediment
Program at 1612 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, NC 27699-1612 or call 919-707-9220 or visit the
NCDEQ website at http://deq.nc.gov.

Utilities: The subject property appears to have access to public water via a •12-inch public water main
that runs parallel to Eakes Road. Given it's location in rural Lee County, the subject property does not

have access to public sanitary sewer; therefore any/all future development must be served by private
septic systems and approved by the Lee County Environmental Health Department and/or a Soil Scientist
licensed to practice in North Carolina and must comply with all applicable regulations.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 225 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 225 of 373

2019-0801

Transportation: The site has approximately 314ft of road frontage on Eakes Road (SRI 181 ), a NCDOT
maintained public highway with a 60ft right-of-way. There is a 2010 traffic court of 520 vehicles per

day on Eakes Road approximately 1,300ft east of the site near a house addressed as 181 Eakes Road.

There is a 2013 traffic court of 140 vehicles per day approximately 300ft northeast of the site on Quail
Ridge Drive near a house addressed at 5902 Quail Ridge Drive.

Development Standards: If rezoned, all of the uses permitted in the Residential Restricted (RR) zoning

district would be allowed and any future redevelopment of the subject property will be required to meet
the current development standards of the UDO.

Staff Information Regarding a Recommendation from the Planning Board: The recommendation
from the Planning Board should include language describing whether or not the action is consistent with

adopted plans and other matters as deemed appropriate by the board. The board may also include
language briefly explaining why it considers the recommendation to be reasonable and in the public
interest.

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends that the Boards support this request. In making this

recommendation, staff finds that the rezoning proposal from Residential Agricultural (RA) to Residential

Restricted (RR) appears to be in keeping with the land uses described in long range plan by allowing
detached single-family dwellings (site built or modular), preserving a rural lifestyle with limited

residential density by requiring a lot size of 30,000sf, with proposed utility infrastructure of

well water and on-site wastewater disposal, the site being currently accessed via a two-lane rural highway

with a dispersed development pattern, and nearby wooded areas. Also, this request appears to be
reasonable and in the public interest based upon the proximity of the site to other existing RR zoning
(opposite Eakes Road, within the Quail Ridge Subdivision) and its location along n publicly-maintained
roadway with existing public water.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 226 of 373

17 3

MAR IN

12

09

723

5831

5004:

sooez

7537

169

7529

476

384
474 472 470

40t

409

713 •z
74

257

349

355

REZONING SITE

10S

EA<ES
SURVEYING

333

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting

41 Z

4130

'NTCRs 174

5037

4550

AVIATIO

94

REZON ING APPLICATION 2019-0801 : Application by Dowell & Eakes
to rezone three tracts of land totaling 10.4+1- acres

off of Eakes Road M to RR.

This is a graphic illustation and not a legal document.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 227 of 373

5e31

30

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting

4130

ASANTDPS 174

PH ASA

$17

7537

17 3

MAR IN

7 RR 759
7EZ

474 472 47C

50082
401

409

-CU
26

34S

IOS

REZONING SITE

EAKES
LAO SURVE'ING

AVIATIO

313

REZON ING APPLICATION 2019-0801 : Application by Dowell & Eakes
b rezone three tracts of land totaling 10.4+1- acres

off of Eakes Road from U to RR.

This is a graphic illustration and not a legal document.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 228 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting

REZONING SITE

lÄilö

REZON ING APPLICATION Application by Dowell & Eakes
to rezone three tracts of land totaling 10.4+1- acres

off of Eakes Road fmm RA to RR.

This is a graphic illustration and not a legal document



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 229 of 373

BOC Agenda
Au u
Re ular ee in

5

Pa 229 of

tnx

7

vin

•au.a

o•ca

irvno

.ze•cx



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 230 of 373

Civic Residential

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 230 of 373

COUNTRYSIDE
Agricultural and undeveloped lands outside the Urban Service Areas
Preservation of county's agricultural heritage encouraged
Conservation and maintenance of rural lifestyle supported
Limited residential density

Local Example - Avents Ferry Road Corridor in northeast Lee County

Working Lands

Schools,

Churches
Single Family

Detached

Dvcellings

Farmland,

Forests,

Conservation

Land

Low Priority

Off-street trails

Development Density
s/ Maximum I dwelling unit / 2 acres

Deep Building Setbacks
35 Foot Height Limit

Cuveni

Share roads

with agricultural

activity

High Mode

Vehicular

connectivity

Utility Infrastructure

V,telt Water

•v On-Site Wastewater Disposal

Preferred Character

Two-Lane Rural Highways

Dispersed Development Pattern
Agricuitural Fields + Forests

Proposed

Ag"cuttvtal Dlstlfct

Country*de

(Secondort)



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 231 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 231 of 373

RA. RESIDENTIAL AGRICULTURAL ZONING DISTRICT
This list was created by Sanford/Lee County Planning & Development staff as a summary of the
permitted land uses within a specific zoning disfrict and is intended for general informational

purposes. Staff makes every effort to ensure that the information provided is accurate and up-to-

date; however, it is recommended that you verify with Planning & Development staff that the
proposed use is permitted within the specific zoning district and discuss any/all development

requirements prior to pursuing a project. This information is applicable for the jurisdictions of

the City of Sanford, Lee County, and the Town of Broadway in North Carolina.

USES PERMITTED BY RIGHT
The uses listed below are permitted by right, subject to any/all other applicable standards of the

Unified Development Ordinance (for example, parking requirements).

Accesso Uses

Accesso uses See Section 5.1

Residential Uses

Dwellin , Du lex two-famil dwellin

Dwellin , Modular home
Dwellin , Sin le-family detached

General Sales or Service

Repair of any goods, equipment or vehicles, the manufacture, assembly or sales of which are
ermitted in that zonin district

Industrial & Manufacturin Uses

Pottery Manufacturing & Sales
Arts Recreation & Entertainment
Botanical arden & arboreta
Parks, la grounds, and athletic fields o erated on a noncommercial basis

Education Public Administration Health Care and Institutional

Reli ious Com lex less than 350 seats , new site

Reli ious Complex (an size), addition to existing com lex/site

Schools, Pre-K — Secondary (nursery and preschool, grade schools, elementary, middle, and high
school), addition to existin site

Trans ortation Communication and Utilities

Utility lines (including electric lines, phone/cable lines, distribution circuits, gas/fuel lines, water

lines, steam/air conditionin lines, ini ation channels, and sewer/waste water lines

A •culture

Animal Production and Su ort Services, uninco orated Lee Count

Cro Production and Su on Functions, uninco orated Lee Coun

Cro Production and Su ort Functions, (Sanford and Broadwa

Forestr and Lo in and Su ort Services, ninco orated Lee Coun
Livestock sales and markets

RA Permitted Uses Page 1



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 232 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 232 of 373

USES PERMITTED WITH DEVELOPNÆNT REGULATIONS
The uses listed below may either be permitted by right Q! upon approval of a Special Use Permit,
but are also subject to the requirements of Article 5 Supplemental Development Regulations of

the Unified Development Ordinance (for example, daycares are required to install a fence around

outdoor play areas).

Residential Uses

Accessory Dwellin s (See Section 10.4

Dwelling, Manufactured home, Class A
Uninco orated Lee Coun and Town of Broadwa onl

Dwelling, Manufactured home, Class B
Uninco orated Lee Coun onl (See Section 10.5

Home Occu ations (See Section 5.16
Manufactured Home for Hardship
Unincorporated Lee Coun onl See Section 10.6

See Section 10.5

Travel Trailer / Recreational Vehicle / Motor Home / Camper, to be used as a Temporary
Residence, Unincorporated Lee County and ETJ areas of Sanford and Town of Broadway
See Section 5.34.2.9)

Accommodations and Grou Livin

Bed & breakfast inn (See Section 5.4
Family Care Homes see NCGS 168-21) (See Section 5.12
Industrial & Manufacturin Uses

Landfills, LCID (2 acres or less in size See Section 5.19

Art Recreation & Entertainment
Stables/Ridin Academies

Stable, Accesso to Dwellin

Education Public Administration Health Care and Institutional

Cemeteries, ublic and rivate does not include individual famil lots See Section 5.6

Da Care facilit , Home Child Care See Section 5.10)
Trans ortation Communication and Utilities

Solar Collectors, Residential (See Section 5.40

USES PERMITTED UPON ISSUANCE OF A SPECIAL USE PERMIT
The uses listed below are permitted in the respective zoning district only after review and
approval of a Special Use Permit by the Board of Adjustment for the applicable jurisdiction in

accordance with Article 3 Zoning and Pennitting Procedures, Section 3.5 Special Use Permits of

the Unified Development Ordinance. Special uses are subject to any/all applicable general

design standards, any development regulations that apply to the specific use and those

requirements that may reasonably be imposed by the respective board as per the Unified
Development Ordinance.

Accommodations and Grou Livin

Donnitories for the students of colle es, commercial schools, staff of ho itals

Nursin , Su ervision, Adult Care Homes, Grou Care Facilities and other rehabilitative services

General Services

RA Permitted Uses Page 2



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 233 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 233 of 373

Farm, landscape, and garden supply sales (feed, seed, fertilizer, farm hardware, lawn fumiture,

mulch, fencing, fountains, statuaries, and other incidental sales of products or related items) -
with indoor stora e onl

Farm, landscape, and garden supply sales (feed, seed, fertilizer, fann hardware, lawn furniture,

mulch, fencing, fountains, statuaries, and other incidental sales of products or related items) -
with outdoor stora e)

Arts Recreation & Entertainment
Am hitheater
Fitness and recreational sports, gym, health spa, reducing salon, swimming pool/auditorium,
rac uet club or athletic club (not otherwise listed)

Golf courses, ublic and rivate

Golf drivin ran es

Huntin and tra in , ameretreats, ame and fishin reserves

Outdoor sta e, bandstand, or similar structure maximum 3,000 s
Performance Theaters (outdoor

Performance Theaters or auditoria (indoor

Recreation activities, commercial indoor, not otherwise listed

Sports stadiums or arenas

. ft.

Studios for artists, designers, musicians, photographers, sculptors, woodworking (not as home
occupation)

Zoos

Education Public Administration Health Care and Institutional

Civic, Social, and Fraternal Organizations, including community centers, meeting halls,
communit halls, rec tion halls, weddin halls for assembl and recreation

Da care facili , Adult

Fire, sheriff and emer enc services

Governmental Functions, not otherwise listed

Libraries

Religious Com lex (more than 350 seats , new site

Schools, Continuing Education (alternative, adult colleges and universities, and technical, trade,
and other specialty schools)

Schools, Pre-K — Secondary (nursery and preschool, grade schools, elementary, middle, and high
school new site

Trans ortation Communication and Utilities

Ai orts, Heli orts, and S 01tEstablishments

Gas or electric eneration distribution facilities, com ressor stations, or substations
Sewa e treatment and Water treatment lants

A riculture
Animal Production and Su ort Services, (Sanford and Broadwa

Forestry and Lo in and Su ort Services, (Sanford and Broadwa

RA Permitted Uses Page 3



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 234 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 234 of 373

USES PERNUTTED UPON ISSUANCE OF A SPECIAL USE PEmnT
THAT HAVE SPECIFIC DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS

The uses listed below are permitted in the respective zoning district only after review and
approval of a Special Use Permit by the Board of Adjustment for the applicable jurisdiction in
accordance with Article 3 Zoning and Pennitting Procedures, Section 3.5 Special Use Permits of

the Unified Development Ordinance. In addition to any/all applicable general desigl standards

and those requirements that may reasonably be imposed by the respective board, these uses have
specific standards that must be adhered to as per the Unified Development Ordinance (for

example, fencing is required around the base of telecomnunication towers, including any

wires .structures or

Residential Uses

Dwelling, Manufactured home, Class A
Ci of Sanford onl (See Section 10.5

Dwelling, Manufactured home, Class B
Ci of Sanford and Town of Broadwa onl See 10.5

Dwelling, Manufactured home, Class C
Uninco orated Lee Coun onl (See Section 10.5)

Rural Family Occupation Commercial/lndustrial
Uninco orated Lee Coun onl See Section 5.30

General Services

Animal Hospitals, Veterinary services, Animal Shelters, Kennels/Animal Pet Services

(See Section 5.3

Nurseries and greenhouses, commercial (See Section 5.25)

Rural family occupation — Commercial/lndustrial
Uninco orated Lee Count onl (See Section 5.30)

Industrial & Manufacturin Uses

Landfills, C&D or LCID( eater than 2 acres in size) (See Section 5.20

Minin and Quarries, Uninco orated Lee Coun and Cit of Sanford onl

Mining and Quarries, EXCEPT Oil and Gas Extraction
Town of Broadwa (See Section 5.23

Mining and Quarries, Oil and Gas Extraction

Town of Broadwa (See Section 5.41

Arts Recreation & Entertainment
Campgounds (See Section 5.29)
Raceways, drag stri s (motorized vehicles See Section 5.27

See Section 5.23

Recreation activities, commercial outdoor (defined in Article 5), not otherwise listed

(See Section 5.28

Travel Trailer Parks See Section 5.36

Education Public Administration Health Care and Institutional

Da Care facilit , Child Care Center See Section 5.10

Da Care facilit Adult See Section 5 38

Trans ortation Communication and Utilities

Solar Collectors, Commercial See Section 5.39

Telecommunication towers (See Section 5.33)

RA Pennitted Uses Page 4



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 235 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 235 of 373

RR RESIDENTIAL RESTRICTED ZONING DISTRICT
This list was created by Sanford/Lee County Planning & Development staff as a summary of the
permitted land uses within a specific zoning district and is intended for general informational

purposes. Staff makes every effort to ensure that the information provided is accurate and up-to-

date; however, it is recommended that you verify with Planning & Development staff that the
proposed use is permitted within the specific zoning district and discuss any/all development

requirements prior to pursuing a project. This information is applicable for the jurisdictions of

the City of Sanford, Lee County and the Town of Broadway in North Carolina.

USES PERMITTED BY RIGHT
The uses listed below are permitted by right, subject to any/all other applicable standards of the

Unified Development Ordinance (for example, parking requirements).

Accesso Uses

Accesso uses (See Section 5.1

Residential Uses

Dwellin , Modular home

Dwellin , Sin le-family detached

Arts Recreation & Entertainment
Parks, la ounds and athletic fields o erated on a noncommercial basis

Education Public Administration Health Car and Institutional

Reli ious Com lex (less than 350 seats , new site
Reli ious Com lex an size , addition to existing complex/site

Schools, Pre-K —Secondary (nursery and preschool, grade schools, elementary, middle, and high

school , addition to existin site

Trans ortation Communication and Utilities

Utility lines (including electric lines, phone/cable lines, disfribution circuits, gas/fuel lines, water

lines, steam/air conditionin lines, irri ation channels, and sewer/waste water lines

A riculture
Animal Production and Su ort Services, uninco orated Lee Coun )

Cro Production and Su ortFunctions, uninco orated Lee Count

Forestry and Lo ing and Sup ort Services, (uninco orated Lee County)

USES PERMITTED WITH DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS
The uses listed below may either be permitted by right Q! upon approval of a Special Use Permit,
but are also subject to the requirements of Article 5 Supplemental Development Regulations of

the Unified Development Ordinance (for example, daycares are required to install a fence around

outdoor play areas).

Residential Uses

Accessor Dwellin s See Section 10.4

Home Occu ations See Section 5.16
Travel Trailer / Recreational Vehicle / Motor Home / Cam er, to be used as a Tem orary

RR Permitted Uses Page 1



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 236 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 236 of 373

Residence, Unincorporated Lee County and ETJ areas of Sanford and Town of Broadway
See Section 5.34.2.9

Accommodations and Grou Livin

Bed & breakfast inn (See Section 5.4)
Famil Care Homes (See NCGS 168-21 see Section 5.12)

Industrial & Manufacturin Uses

Landfills, LCD 2 acres or less in size See Section 5.19

Art Recreation & Entertainment
Stables/Ridin Academies

Stable, Accesso to Dwellin

Education Public Administration Health Care and Institutional

Da Care facilit , Home Child Care See Section 5.10
Trans ortation Communication and Utilities

Solar Collectors, Residential See Section 5.40

USES PERMITTED UPON ISSUANCE OF A SPECIAL USE PERMIT
The uses listed below are permitted in the respective zoning district only after review and
approval of a Special Use Permit by the Board of Adjustment for the applicable jurisdiction in

accordance with Alticle 3 Zoning and Permitting Procedures, Section 3.5 Special Use Pennits of

the Unified Development Ordinance. Special uses are subject to any/all applicable general

design standards, any development regulations that apply to the specific use and those

requirements that may reasonably be imposed by the respective board as per the Unified
Development Ordinance.

Accommodations and Grou Livin

Dormitories for the students of colle es, commercial schools, staff of hos itals

Nursin , Su ervision, Adult Care Homes, Grou Care Facilities and other rehabilitative services

Arts Recreation & Entertainment
Fitness and recreational sports, gym, health spa, reducing salon, swimming pool/auditorium,
racquet club or athletic club (not otherwise listed)

Golf courses, ublic and rivate

Golf drivin ran es

Sports stadiums or arenas

Education Public Administraflon Health Care and Institutional

Civic, Social, and Fraternal Organizations, including community centers, meeting halls,
community halls, rec tion halls, weddin halls for assembl and recreation

Fire, sheriff, and emer enc services

Governmental Functions not otherwise listed

Libraries

Reli ious Com lex more than 350 seats , new site

Schools, Continuing Education (altemative, adult colleges and universities, and technical, trade,
and other s ecialt schools

Schools, Pre-K — Secondary (nursery and preschool, grade schools, elementary, middle, and high
school), new site

RR Pennitted Uses Page 2



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 237 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 237 of 373

Trans ortation Communication and Utilities

Sewa e treatment and Water treatment lants

A riculture
Crop Production and Sup ort Functions, Sanford and Broadwa

USES PERMITTED UPON ISSUANCE OF A SPECIAL USE PERMIT
THAT HAVE SPECIFIC DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS

The uses listed below are permitted in the respective zoning district only after review and
approval of a Special Use Permit by the Board of Adjustment for the applicable jurisdiction in

accordance with 3 Zoning and Permitting Procedures, Section 3.5 Special Use Pennits of

the Unified Development Ordinance. In addition to any/all applicable general design standards

and those requirements that may reasonably be imposed by the respective board, these uses have
specific standards that must be adhered to as per the Unified Development Ordinance (for

example, fencing is required around the base of telecommunication towers, including any

structures or guy wires).

Industrial & Manufacturin Uses

Landfills, C&D or LCID( eater than 2 acres in size) (See Section 5.20

Mining and Quarries, Unincorporated Lee County and City of Sanford only
See Section 5.23

Education Public Administration Health Care and Institutional

Cemeteries, ublic and rivate (does not include individual famil lots) (See Section 5.6)

Da Care facilit , Child Care Center (See Section 5.10

Da care facility, Adult See Section 5.38

Trans ortation Communication and Utilities

Solar Collectors, Commercial (See Section 5.39

Telecommunication towers (See Section 5.33)

RR Permitted Uses Page 3



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 238 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 238 of 373

ADJOINING PROPERTY OWNERS LIST
PETITION BY: Dowell and Patti Bakes

REQUEST:
LOCATION:

DATE:

Rezone 3 vacant adjoining tracts totaling 10.4 ± acres off of Eakes Road from RA to RR
Off of Eakes Road, between 355 Eakes Road and 97 Whitney Lane

9529-94-0172-00, 9529-84-8192-00, and 9529-93-0720-00

No.

01

02

03

04

05

06

07

08

09

10

PIN

9529-94-2168-00

9529-94-4153-00

952993-7792-00

9529-93-1156-00

952903-6387-00

9529-84-7109-00

9529-840518AOO

9529-84-8559-00

952"4-0610-00

9529-94-1671-00

APPLICANTS &
PROPERTY

OWNERS:

2019-08-09

PROP ADDR

355 EAKES RD

o EAKES RD

O EAKES RD

333 EAKES RD

o EAKES RD

97 WHITNEY LANE

468 EAKES RD

390 EAKES RD

384 LAKE RD

380 EAKES RD

OWNER 1

EAKES, KAY CARLYLE
BLANCHARD

SANFORD, CITY OF

EAKES, DOWELL GRAY

EAKES, DOWELL GRAY

BUTNER, KENNIS
WADE
BUTNER, KENNIS
WADE
WALKER, WILFREDO C

WOODY, JEFFREY S

MORGAN, BRANDON L

STIEVENART, RICHARD

Dowell Eakes

OWNER2

EAKES, PATTI

ANN
STALKER

EAKES, PATTE

ANN
STALKER

BUTNER,
MARY H
BUTNER,
MARY H

WALKER,
OFELIA C

WOODY,
PAMELA M

STIEVENART,
CYNTHIA L

Patti S- Eakes

333

333

97

97

468

390

384

380

333

MAIL ST

EAKÉs RD

PO BOX 3729

EAKES RD

EAKES RD

WHITNEY

LANE

WHITNEY
LANE

EAKES RD

EAKES RD

EAKE RD

EAKES RD

fakes Road

MAILCITY

SANFORD

SANFORD

SANFORD

SANFORD

SANFORD

SANFORD

SANFORD

SANFORD

SANFORD

SANFORD

SANFORD

ST

NC

NC

NC

NC

NC

NC

NC

NC

NC

NC

NC

ZIP

27332

27331

27332

27332

27332

27332

27332

27332

27332

27332

(O) = Vacant, no addressed structures on the parcel.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 239 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19,

Regular Meeting
Page 239 of 373

ADJACENT PROPERTY OWNERS NOTIFICATION CERTIFICATION

I, Amy J. McNeill, hereby certify that the property owners and adjacent property owners of the
following rezoning petitions as indicated on the Lee County Tax Maps were notified by First
Class U.S. Mail on Friday, August 9, 2019,

2019-0801

1. Application by Dowell and Patti Eakes to rezone three adjoining tracts of

land totaling 10.4 ±acres off of Eakes Road, between 355 Eakes Road and 97

Whitney Lane, from Residential Agricultural (RA) to Restricted

(RR). Tract 1 is a 2.5± acre vacant lot identified as Tax Parcel 9529-94-0172-

00. Tract 2 is a 3.1± acre vacant lot identified as Tax Parcel 9529-84-8192-00.

Tract 3 is a 4.8± acre vacant lot identified as Tax Parcel 9529-93-0720-00. All

parcels are depicted on Lee County Tax Map 9529.04, and are illustrated on a
2003 plat, labeled Property of Dowell G. Eakes and wife, Patti S. Eakes

recorded in Plat Cabinet 2003, Slide 30F of the Lee County Register of Deeds
Office.

Signature: Date:

Title:

Lee County, North Carolina

1, , a Notary Public for Lee County and State of North

personally

appeared before me on this day and acknowledged the due executio of the foregoing

Instrument. Witness my hand and official seal, this the day of
2019.

Notary Public Signature

My Commission expires (SEAL)



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 240 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 240 of 373

August 9, 2019

Dear Adjacent Property Owner:

The Zoning Ordinance of Lee County, North Carolina requires that adjacent property owners be notified when a
request for a change in zoning classification has been scheduled for a public hearing before the Lee County
Planning Board and Board of Commissioners.

LEE COUNTY PUBLIC NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Lee County Board of Commissioners and Planning Board will hold a joint public

hearing on Monday, August 19, 2019, in the Commissioner's Board Room at the Lee County Govemment
Center 116 Hillcrest Drive Sanford N.C. The Boards will consider one (1) application to amend the Official

Zoning Map of Lee County, NC. The hearing will begin at 6:00 p.m. or as soon thereafter as deemed practical
by the Board. The proposed rezoning application is described below:

1. Application by Dowell and Patti Eakes to rezone three adjoining tracts of land totaling 10.4 +
acres off of Eakes Road, between 355 Eakes Road and 97 Whitney Lane, from Residential
Agricultural (RA) to Residential Restricted (RR). Tract I is a 2.5± acre vacant lot identified

as Tax Parcel 9529-94-0172-00. Tract 2 is a 3.1± acre vacant lot identified as Tax Parcel
9529-84-8192-00. Tract 3 is a 4.8± acre vacant lot identified as Tax Parcel 9529-93-0720-00.

All parcels are depicted on Lee County Tax Map 9529.04, and are illustrated on a 2003 plat,
labeled Property of Dowell G. Eakes and wife, Patti S. Eakes recorded in Plat Cabinet 2003,

Slide 30F of the Lee County Register of Deeds Office.

The public is cordially invited to attend. Further information may be obtained from the Sanford/Lee County
Zoning & Design Review Departrnent, 115 Chatham Street, Suite 1, Sanford, NC 27330 or by calling (919)
718-4656. Upon request and with 24-hour notice, the County will provide an interpreter for the hearing
impaired or any other type of auxiliary aid.

Cualquier cuidadano que tenga preguntas o comentarios de las cosas al referido, puede comunicarse a el

departamento de desarollo para Sanford/Condado de Lee, llame al (919) 718-4656.

Please note that staff has been instructed to provide the following general information to adjacent property

owners for future reference if/when the site associated with this rezoning request is developed. The City of
Sanford, Lee County, and the Town of Broadway do not have local grading permits and rely on the North
Carolina Department of Environmental Quality to regulate land disturbing activities. For questions or concerns

regarding land disturbing activities, please contact the North Carolina Division of Energy, Mineral, and Land

Resources Sediment Program at 1612 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, NC 27699-1612 or call 919-707-9220 or
visit the NCDEQ website at http://deq.nc.gov.

Attachment: GIS Site Map



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 241 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 241 of 373

LEE COUNTY PUBLIC NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Lee County Board of Commissioners and Planning Board will hold a joint public

hearing on Monday, August 19, 2019 in the Commissioner's Board Room at the Lee County Government
Center 116 Hillcrest Drive. Sanford, N.C. The Boards will consider one (1) application to amend the Offcial

Zoning Map of Lee County, NC. The hearing will begin at 6:00 p.m. or as soon thereafter as deemed practical
by the Board. The proposed rezoning application is described below:

1. Application by Dowell and Patti Eakes to rezone three adjoining tracts of land totaling 10.4
+ acres off of Eakes Road, between 355 Eakes Road and 97 Whitney Lane, from Residential
Agricultural (RA) to Residential Restricted (RR). Tract 1 is a 2.5± acre vacant lot identified

as Tax Parcel 9529-94-0172-00. Tract 2 is a 3.1± acre vacant lot identified as Tax Parcel

9529-84-8192-00. Tract 3 is a 4.8+ acre vacant lot identified as Tax Parcel 9529-93-0720-

00. All parcels are depicted on Lee County Tax Map 9529.04, and are illustrated on a 2003
plat, labeled Property of Dowell G. Eakes and wife, Patti S. Eakes recorded in Plat Cabinet

2003, Slide 30F of the Lee County Register of Deeds Offce.

The public is cordially invited to attend. Further information may be obtained from the Sanford/Lee County
Zoning & Design Review Departn-nent, 115 Chatham Street, Suite 1, Sanford, NC 27330 or by calling (919)
718-4656. Upon request and with 24-hour notice, the County will provide an interpreter for the hearing
impaired or any other type of auxiliary aid.

Cualquier cuidadano que tenga preguntas o comentarios de las cosas al referido, puede comunicarse a el

departamento de desarollo para Sanford/Condado de Lee, llame al (919) 718-4656.

By Jennifer Gamble, Clerk
Lee County Board of Commissioners

Please publish in the Legal Notices Section of the Sanford Herald on Friday, August 2, 2019 and on Friday,

August 9, 2019. If you have any questions regarding this notice, please call Amy McNeill at 718-4656, ext.
5397. Please reference this account number (30031885) on the invoice and refer to as City of Sanford Zoning

Notice.

Please send publisher's affidavit to the Community Development Office, P.O. Box 3729 Sanford, NC, and
attention: Angela Baker.

Thank you.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 242 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 242 of 373

ITEM

LEE COUNTY AGENDA ABSTRACT lv. B.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
Use the Down or Up Arrows to move between fields of the Form)

MEETING DATE: August 19, 2019

SUBJECT: UDO Text Amendment to Update the City of Sanford's Public Works Director Certificate

DEPARTMENT: Sanford / Lee County Community Development

CONTACT PERSON: Amy J. McNeill, zoning Administrator

TYPE: Consent Agenda Action Item Public Hearing Information

REQUEST

BUDGET IMPACT
ATTAC1-nvfENTS

PRIOR BOARD ACTION

RECOMMENDATION

Joint Public Hearing with the Planning Board for a proposed UDO text
amendment to u date the Ci of Sanford's Public Works Director Cerüficate

I-DO Text Amendment Memorandum

N/A
Hold a joint public hearing and forward to the Planning Board for their
consideration and recommendation.

SUTvnvfARY

Consideration ofa text amendment to the jointly adopted City of Sanford/ Lee County/ Town of Broadway
Unified Development Ordinance (UDO), Appendix B Specificaåons of Forms to be Submitted, B-4
Subdivision Plats, to revise the Public Works Certificate.

Fom Updated August 2, 2017
Page 1 of 1



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 243 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 243 of 373

MEMORANDUM 4RTEREO

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

REF:

Lee County Board of Commissioners

Lee County Planning Board

Jolm Crumpton, Lee County Manager

Amy J. McNeill, Zoning Administrator

August 19, 2019

UDO Text Amendment Revising the Public Works Certificate on Subdivision Plats
Public Hearing — One Amendment

As per the request of the City of Sanford Public Works Director, Vic Czar, the language in the
Public Works Certificate that is on final subdivision plats within the jurisdictions of Sanford and

Broadway is proposed to be revised to replace the vague reference of the City/Town accepting

"streets, utilities, and other required public improvements" with the more specific reference of
the City/Town accepting "public water, sewer and/or streets". The rationale for this revision is to

clarify specifically what improvements the City of Sanford and the Town of Broadway will be
responsible for maintaining within a subdivision. The certificate for Lee County already has the

proper language.

PROPOSED ANIENDMENT to Appendix B. Specifications for Forms to be Submitted

Draft language for consideration of amending Appendix B. Specificaåons for Forms to be
Submitted, B-4 Subdivision Plats, (d) Requirements for a Final Plat, (16) to revise the
wording as follows:

Current UDO

(c.l) CERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL OF DESIGN AND NSTALLATION OF STREETS,
UTILITIES AND OTHER REQUIRED PUBLIC MPROVEMENTS.
(Use for City of Sanford/Town of Broadway only, if applicable)

I hereby certify that all streets, utilities and other required public improvements have been

installed in an acceptable manner and according to the (City/Town) specifications and standards
in the Subdivision or that a guarantee of the installation of the required

improvements in an amount or manner satisfactory to the (City of Sanford/Town of Broadway)
has been received.

Director of Public Works Date

1



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 244 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 244 of 373

Proposed Changes

(c.i) CERTff1CATE OF APPROVAL OF DESIGN AND BISTALLATION OF PUBLIC
WATER, SEWER AND/OR STREETS.
(Use for City of Sanford/Town of Broadway only, if applicable)

I hereby certify that all public water, sewer, and streets (where applicable) have been installed

in an acceptable manner and according to the (City/Town) specifications and standards in the

Subdivision or that a guarantee of the installation of the required

improvements in an amount or manner satisfactory to the (City/Town) has been received.

Director of Public Works Date

2



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 245 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 245 of 373

ITEM

LEE COUNTY AGENDA ABSTRACT lv. c.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
(Use the Down or Up Arrows to move between fields of the Form)

MEETING DATE: August 19, 2019

SUBJECT: Joint Public Hearing regarding proposed amendment to the Unified Development Ordinance to
create new airport density overlay district and to consider zoning amendment to the Official Zoning Map to
apply new airport density overlay district.

DEPARTMENT: Sanford/Lee County Planning and Development

CONTACT PERSON: Marshall Director

TYPE: Consent Agenda Acdon Item Public Hearing Information

REQUEST

BUDGET nn)ACT
ATTACHMENTS
PRIOR BOARD ACTION

RECONßENDATION

Joint Public Hearing with the Lee County Planning Board regarding

proposed amendment to the Unified Development Ordinance to create

new airport density overlay district and to consider zoning amendment to
the Official Zonin Ma toa I new ort densi overla distict

None

Memorandum and information from Marshall Downe , Plannin Director

n/a

Conduct joint public hearing and forward to Planning Board for their
consideration and recommendation.

SUIvnåARY

Planning staff worked with the executive board and staff of the Raleigh Exec Jetport regional airport regarding the
need for updated zoning rules in and around the airport due to concern about the ever-increasing market for

residential development and the need to create zoning mles around the airport to discourage higher density
neighborhoods and subdivisions.

Planning staff is proposing a new set of rules that would create a new overlay zoning disfrict around the airport that
would set a density limit of one unit per five acres for those properties located within this new zone. The majoHty
of the area in this new boundary is currently zoned RA which is intended for agricultural and single-family residendal
and allows a density of one unit per 0.92 acre (40,000 square feet). The new rules also include an exception under
the UDO's current definition of a minor subdivision. Under this exception, a property owner can create (a) up to
six (6) lots if he/she has frontage on an existing public road Of (b) up to three (3) lots of on a private easement that
connects to a public road. As a result, current property owners would be allowed to create a few lots at the current
RA zoning density of one acre.

Page 1 of 1
Fom Updated August 21 2017



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 246 of 373

MEMORANDUM

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 246 of 373

4RrEREO

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

REF:

Lee County Board of Commissioners

Lee County Planning Board

Dr. John Crumpton, Lee County Manager

Marshall Downey, Planning Director

August 19, 2019

Joint Public hearing for consideration of (a) a proposed amendment to the

UDO and for (b) the application of a new overlay zoning district in regards to
the Raleigh Exec Jetport regional airport.

During the development and public input of our recently adopted PlanSanLee comprehensive

land use plan, Planning staff worked with the executive board of the Raleigh Exec Jetport

regional airport. Coincidentally, the Jetport board and staff was also in the midst of a master
planning process as well. After some discussion about current zoning rules in and around he

airport, the Jetport board expressed concern about encroachment of development. More
specifically, was the concern about the ever-increasing market for residential development

and the need to create zoning rules around the airport to discourage higher density

neighborhoods and subdivisions.

As such, Planning staff drafted a new set of rules that focused on a new overlay that would set
a density limit of one unit per five acres for those properties located within this new zone.
The majority of the area in this new boundary is currently zoned RA which is intended for
agricultural and single-family residential with a density of one unit per 0.92 acre (40,000

square feet). The proposed new rule would require a new residential lot to be a minimum of
five acres.

Staff conducted a public input meeting in August of 2018 at the airport and met with

approximately 30-40 affected property owners. The primary concern expressed by the
majority of attendees was that the new rules did not allow for the creation 1-2 lots for children
or other family members. Most were fine with new rules to prevent large subdivisions, but
did want some flexibility to create lots for family members that were one acre vs. the

proposed five acres. The other concern expressed was what was planned for the airport as

well as issues not related to the zoning change (stormwater/drainage/flooding, being promised

county water in the past). Nfr. Bob Heuts, Airport Director, was available to discuss all issues
specific to the airport.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 247 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 247 of 373

As a result of this first public input, Planning staff revised the proposed amendment to include
an exception. Under the UDO's current definition of a minor subdivision, a property owner
can create (a) up to six (6) lots if he/she has frontage on an existing public road or (b) up to
three (3) lots of on a private easement that connects to a public road. Using this "minor

subdivision" definition as the basis for a new exception, current property owners would be
allowed to create a few lots at the current RA zoning density of one acre. This would assist in
allowing a property owner to create lots for family members or to simply sell a few lots.
However, this would not allow a developer or property owner to create a larger residential

subdivision. Again, the intent is to prevent encroachment of higher density around the airport

and staff believes this is a good compromise.

This revised amendment was presented at a second public input meeting at the airport in April
2019. Staff met with approximately 15-20 property owners and described the new minor
subdivision exception. Most of the attendees at this second hearing appeared to be more

focus on the airport's future development and issues other than the proposed zoning changes.
Again, Mr. Heuts was in attendance and assisted in addressing airport issues.

Attached is the draft amendment for discussion at tonight's public hearing.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 248 of 373

4.13

AIRPORT OVERLAh
DISTRICT.

4.13.1 PURPOSE.

This district is established to prevent the creation

or establishment of obstructions or land uses that

are hazards to air navigation, thereby protecting

the lives and property ofthe users of the Sanford-

Lee County Regional Airport more commonly
known as Executive Jctport", the

property and occupants of land in the vicinity

and the public investment in the airport. This

district is further intended to provide for the safe

landing, take-off, and maneuvering of aircraft in

accordance with Federal Aviation

Administration (FAA) standards. The

provisions of this section are authorized by

NCGS 5}63-30 to 63-37.1.

It is hereby found that an airport hazard

endangers the lives and propertv of uses of the

Sanford-Lee County Regional Airport. and
property or occupants of land in its vicinity. and

also it-the-Qb.s.tætion&.e-in-effect reduces the

size of the available for landing. takeoff. and

maneuvering of aircraft. thus tending to destr2!

or impair the utility of the new Sanford-Lee
County Regional Aimort and the public

investment therein. Accordingly, it is declared:

(1) that the creation or establishment of an

airport hazard is a public nuisance and an injury

to the region served by the new Sanford/ Lee

County AilLQ1t2

{2) that is necessary in thc interest of the public

health. public safety, and general welfare that the

creation or establishment. of aiæort hazards be

prevented: and

{3) that the prevention of these hazards should

be accomplished to the extend legallv possible.

by the exercise of the police power without

compensation.

It is further declared that both the prevention of

the creation or establishment of airport hazards

and the elimination removal altæiQL1

mitigatiom or marking and lighting of existing

airport hazards are public purposes for which the

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 248 of 373

pgli!iælsubdiyision raise or expend public

frnds and.cquire land interests in land:

4.13.2 LOCATION.

An Airport Overlay District is located in the area
immediately around the Sanford-Lee

Regional Airport's runway off of Rod Sullivan
Road in northern Lee County. The boundaries
of are further described within this

section and consists of two distinctly defined

di&tricts: (a) Height Zone &gulations (4.13.4)
and (b) Residential Encroachment Density

Limitations (4.13 .äL

4.1332 AIRPORT
DEFINITIONS

OVERLAY

The definitions contained in this section are

uniquely specific to this Section 4.13 and shall

not apply to other sections of the Unified

Development Ordinance:

AIRPORT - Sanford/Lee County Regional

Airport.

AIRPORT ELEVATION - The highest point of
an airoort's usable 'landing area measured in feei
from sea level.

APPROACH SURFACE, NON-PRECISION
NSTRUÄdEh11ßPD - The inner width of this
approach surface coincides with the width of the

primary surface and is 1000 feet. The non-

precision approach surface expands outward

uniformly to a width of4,000 feet at a horizontal

distance of 10.000 feet from the primary surface.

The centerline being the continuation of thq

centerlinc of the runway. The non-precision
instrument approach surface slope is 34 feet

horizontally for each 1 foot vertically.

APPROACH SURFACE. PRECISION
NSTRUNENT - The inner width of the

approach surface, coincides with the width of the

primary surface and is 1.000 feet. The precision

instrument surface expands outward uniformly

to a width of 4 000 feet at a horizontal distance

of 10.000 feet from the primary surface. The

precision instrument approach surface slope is

50 feet horizontally for each 1 foot vortically.

The recision instrument a roach surface is

further extended from a width of 4 000 feet

where it intersects the horizontal surface to a

width of 16 000 feet at a horizontal distance of



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 249 of 373

50 •00.0 feet from Che primary_surface. The
slope of the extended approach surface is 40 feet

horizontall för each 1 foot verticall

BOARD OF APPEALS - The Lee, Countv Board
pf Adigstment sh311 serve as the Board of

Appeals.

COMCAL SURFACE - The conical surface is
the area that commences at tne periQhQ-Qf-thg
horizontal surface of 4 000 feet. The conical

surface does not include lhg_precisiqn instrument

approach surfaces and the transitional surface.

I he slope of the conical surface is 20 feet

horizontall ihrone 1 foot verticall

FLORA — Any or other type of plants

and vegetation. whether naturallv occurring or

planted.

HAZARD TO AIR NAVIGATION- An
obstruction determined to have a substantial

adverse effect on the safe and efficient utilization

of the navigable airspace.

HEIGHT - For the of determining the

height limits in all zones set forth in this

Ordinance and shown on the zoning map. the
datum shall be mean sea level elevation unless

otherwise specified.

area

of the primary surface coincides in size and

shape with the designated takeoff and landing

area of a heliport. This surface is a horizontal

lane at thc elevation of the established heli ort

elevation.

HORIZONTAL SURFACE - The horizontal

surface is established by arcs of 10.000

feet radii from the center of each end of the

primarv surface of each runway, and connecting

the adjacent arcs by drawing lines tangent to
those arcs. The horizontal surtäce does

not include the approach and transitional

surfaces. The elevation of the horizontal

surface represents a plane of 159 feet above the

established airport elevation.

LARGER THAN IJTILrry RUNWAY - A
runway that is constructed fol and intended to bc

used by propeller driven aircraft of greater than

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 249 of 373

12.500 pounds maximum gross weight and iet
Lowered aircraft.

NONCONFORMING - Anv_pre-existing

structure, object of_patural growth. or use of land

whichiyiaconsistent with the preyisions of this

Ordinance or an amendmc@thereto.

NONPRECISION BISTRUWÆNT RUNWAY -
A runway having an existing instrument

upuoagh procedure utilizin% air navigation

facilities with guidance 01 area

tvne navigation equipment, for which a straight-

in non-precisiun approach procedure has been

approved or planned.

OBSTRUCTION Any structure.
or other oblect, includinq a mobile object. which

exceeds a limiting height set forth in Sect. T. 13.5

of this Ordinance.

PERSON - An individual. firm. partnership,

joint stock

association or «overnmental entitv: includes a

trustee. a receiver. an assignee or a similar

representative.

PRECISION NSTRU1vÆNT RUNWAY - A
runway having an instrument approach

orocedure utilizinz an Instrument Landing

System (ILS) or a Precision Approach Radar

It also means a runwav for which

precision approach system is planned and is so

indicated on an approved air- port lavout plan or

any other planning document.

PRMARY. APPROACH, TRANSITIONAL.
HORIZONrAL AND CONICAL SURFACE
ZONES - These zones are set forth in Sect.

4.13.4 of this Ordinance

PRMARY SURFACE A surface

longitudinally centered on a runway. The width

of the primary surface is 1 000 feet and the

length extends 200 feet beyond each end of the

runway. The elevation of the primarv surface is

the same as the elevation of thc point on
the nmway centerline.

RUNWAY - A defined area on an airport

prepared for landing and takeoff of aircraft along

its length.

STRUCTURE - An Obiect. including a mobile
object, constructed or installed by man.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 250 of 373

including. but without liruting. buildingsx

towers cranes. smokestacks earth formation:

and overhead transmission lines.

TRANSITIONAI SVRFACES - These surfaces
extend outward at 90 degre_aug.les to the

runway centerline and the runway center- linc

extended at a slope of seven (7) feet horizontally

for each one (1) foot vertically from the sides of

the to where they

intersect the horizontal and conical surfaces.

TransitionaLsuffaces for those portion of the

and beyond the limits of the conical

surface extend a distance of 5 000 feei measured

horizontally from the edge of the approach

surface and at 90-dgwee angles to the extended

runway centerline.

!JTILITY RUNWAY - A runway that is

constructed for and intended to be used by

propeller driven aircraft of 12.500 pounds

maximum gross weight and less.

VISUAL RI_JNWAY - A runway intended solely
for the operation of aircraft using visual

approach procedures.

4.13.4 HEIGHT ZONE REGULATIONS

4.13.4.1 Airport Surface Zones - Defined

(a) Boundary. In order to carry out the

rovisions of this Sectio there are hereb

created and established certain zones which

include all of the land Iving within the non-

precision instruman approach surface. the

precision instrument-

transiüonal surfaces the horizontal surfaces and

the conical surfaces as thev applv to a particular

airport. such zones are shown on the Sanford-

Lee county Airport Hazard Map consisting of 1
sheet, prepared by Hobbs. Upchurch and

Associates P A. dated January 1994 and

made a part hereof (this same map is also

considered page 3 of 7 of the Sanford/Lee

C.Q.untY-&gieual Aimort Plan). An area
located in more than one (1) of the following

zones is considered in the zone with

height limitation. The

various zones are hereby established aud defined

as follows:

Primary Surface Zone - The primary

surface zone is hereby established as the area

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 250 of 373

longitudinallv a mnway. The width
of the primary surface is 1 QOO feet and thg
length extends 200 feei beyond cach end of the

runway.

(c) Non-precision In$rument Appt.pæh
Surface Zone - The inner width of this approach
zone coincides with the width of the primary

surface and IS t 000 feel—lhenon-precision

surface zone egpands outward
uniformiy to a width of 4 000 feet at a horizontal
distance of 10.000 feet from the

Its centerline being the continuation of the

centerline of the runway.

surface zone - The inner width of this a

surface zone coincides with the width of the

primarv surface and is 1.000 feet. The precision

instrument approach surface zone expands

outward uniformly to a width of 4,000 feet au
orizontal distance of 10 000 feet from the

primary surface. The precision instrument

approach surface zone is further extended from a

width of 4 OCO feet where it intersects the

orizontal surface to a width of 16 000 feet at a

horizontal distance of 50 000 feet from the

primary surface.

Transitional Surface Zones - These,

zones are hex.gby established as the area beneath

the transitional surfaces. These surfaces extend

outward and upward at 90-degree angles to the
runwav centerline and the runway centerline

extended at a slope of seven (7) feet horizontally

for each foot vertically from the sides of the

primary and approach surfaces to where they

intersect the horizontal and conical surfaces.

Transitional surface zones for those portions of

the precision approach surface zones which

project through and beyond the limits of the

conical surface, extend a distance of 5.000 feet

measured horizontally from the edge of the

approach zones and at 90-degree angles to the

extended runway centerline.

Horizontal surface zone - The

horizontal surface zone is hereby established by_

swinging arcs of 10.000 feet radii from the center

of each end of each

runway. and connccting the adiacent arcs by
drawing lines tangent to those arcs. The



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 251 of 373

horizontal surface zones does not include the

approach and transitional surface zones.

(g) Conical Surface Zones - The conical

surface zones_are hereby established as the area

that commences at

horizontal surface zone and extends outward

there from a horizontal distance of 4 000 feet.

The conical surface zone does not include the

uggisigp instrument approach surface zones and

the transitional surface zones.

4.13.4.2 Airport Surface Zones — Height
Limitations

Except as otherwise provided in this ordinance,

no structure shall be erected altered

allowed to grow. or be maintained in anv zone

created by this Ordinance to a height in excess of

thg_gpplicable height limüerein established for

such zone. Such applicable height limitations
are herebv established for each of the zones in

question as follows—•

Non-precision Instrument Approach(a)

Surface Zone Slopes upward 34 feet

horizontally for each 1 foot vertically beginning

at the end of and at thc same elevation as the

primary surface and extending to a horizontal

distance of 10 000 feet along the extended

runway centerline.

Precision Instrument Approach

Surface Zone Slopes upward 50 feet

horizontally for each 1 foot vertically beginning

at the end of and at the same elevation as the

primary. surface and extending to a horizontal

distance of 10.000 feet along the extended

runway centerline. The slope then extends
upward 40 feet horizontally for each 1 foot

vertically to a horizontal distance of 50.000 feet

Transitional Surface Zones - Slopes(c)

upward and outward seven (7) feet horizontally

for each 1 foot vertically beginning at the sides

of and at the same elevation as the primary
surface and the approach surfaces. and extending

to a hei t of 150 feet above the ai ort

elevation. In addition to the foregoing. there are

established upward and

outward seven (7) feet horizontally for each foot

vertically beginning at the sides of and at the

samo clevation as the approach surfaces. and

extending to where they intersect the conical

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 251 of 373

surface or 5 000 feet from the extended precision

instrument approach surface.

Horizontal surface mne - One

hundred and fifty (150) feet above the airport
elevation.

Conical Surface Zone Slopes

upward and ontward twenty (20) feet

horizontallv for each 1 foot vertically beginning

at the puiphgy_gfthe horizontal surface and at

elevation and extending to a height of 600 feet
above the airport elevation.

4.13.5 RESOENTIAL
ENCROACHMENT DENSITY
LIMITATIONS.

Cal-.........................-l.he-pupgse Of this section is set forth

additional densitv regulation to prcvent and/or

greatly reduce the concentration of residential

dwellings in the immediate vicinity of the

Airport. It is recognized that concentrated

residential development is incongruent with

airport functions and related industrial activities

and therefore the following density

shall apply with the boundary of the Residential

Encroachment Density overlay zone as shown on

the Offcial Zoning Map for Lee County,

(b) APPLICABLITY. Residentiallv

zoned tractstparcels located within the

Residential Encroachment Density overlay zone

shall not be subdivided into parcels of less than

five (5) acres when considering minimum lot

size area. Residentially zoned includes RA
Residential Ayicultural, RR Rural Residential
and all other "R" titled zoning districts as found

within the Sanford/Lee County UDO.

(c) EXENIVHON - LOTS ALLOWED
I-NDER lvf1NOR SUBDIVISION. A lot (or
Jots) for the purposes of constructing single-

family dwellings shall be allowed that is less

than the minimum five (5) acres as required in

subsection (b) above. so long as the

crcated under the definition of a Minor

Subdivision as set forth in Section 6.2.1 of this

UDO. The minimum lot size shall conform to
the minimum of the underlying zoning district.
This exemption shall not be consfrued or abused

to allow multiple minor subdivisions. The



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 252 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 252 of 373

account the decrease in communiÜack_nuud
noise of 10 dB during this period,

fract shall be limited to six cumulative

lots as set forth in Section 6.2.1.2.2 of this UDO

4.13.6 PERNATTED USES.

Land usesshall be forth iii *able-4434

Table 4.6-1 _ Termitted Use MaÜ_of this
Ordinance. provided that no use shall be made of

land or water within any zone_e$ablished by

in sych a nauner as to crgte

electrical interference with navigational_sigælg

or radio communication between the airport and

aircr make it diffcu!tfor ilots to distin •uish

between and others. result in glac

in the eyes of pilot.s using the airzort. impair

visibilitv in the vicinity of the airport. attract

birds or other concentrations of wildlife or

otherwise in any way create a hazard or
the landing, take-off or maneuvering of aircraft

intending to use the aicportg

4.13.7 DINTNSIONAL
REGULATIONS.

Dimensional requirements such as lot size and

building depth shall be governed bv the

underl in zonin districts exc t that:

forth in Sect. 4.13.4 shall also apply where

applicable. Inno event shall the height of any

structure exceed the maximum height permitted
bv the underlying zoning district and/or Sect.

4.13.5.

(b) Minimum Lot Size — For tracts/parc,els

located within the boundary of the the

Residential Encroachment Density Limitation

Residential residential development Qhall be

further restricted as set forth in that Section

4.13.5.

4.13.8 NOISE corvTATIBILITY.

Table 4.13-1 as included in this Ordinance sets

forth and non-compatible average
sound levels for adjoining land uses. Table 4.13-

1 uses he day-night averagc sound level or

"Ldn". Ldn is the average noise level over a 24-
hour period. The noise between the hours of

10pm and 7am is artificially increased by 10
decibels (dB). This noise is weighted to take into



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 253 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 253 of 373

Table 4.13-1

YEARLY DAY-NIGHT AVERAGE SOUND
LEWL Ldn IN DECIBELS

LAND USE

RESIDENTIAL
Residential other than mobile homes and transient lod

Mobile home arks

Transient lod in s

PUBLIC USE
Schools

Hos itals and nursin homes

Churches auditoriums, and concert halls

Governmental services

Trans ortation

Parkin

COMMERCIAL USE
Offices business and rofessional

n s

Wholesale and retail-buildin materials hardware and farm

Retail trade- eneral

Utilities

Communications

MANUFACTURING & PRODUCTION
Manufacturin eneral

Photo hic and o tical

A iculture exc t livestock & fores
Minin & fishin , resource roduction & extraction
RECREATIONAL
Outdoor rts arenas and ectator orts

Outdoor music shells am hitheaters
Nature exhibits and zoos

ui ment

65

Y
Y

Y
Y

Y

Y

Y
Y

Amusement or theme park, Resort, Active Open Space (includes
Parks, Athletic Fields, and Golf Courses), Outdoor Commercial

Amusement, and Campgrounds, Therapeutic Camps, Children's
Cam s, and related establishments.

Golf courses ridin stables and water recreation

65-

70

N
N

25

25

Y
Y

Y

Y

Y

N
N

Y

BELOW
70-

75

N
N
N

N
30

30

25

25

25

25

25

Y
N
N
Y

25

75-

80

N
N
N

N
N
N
30

30

30

30

30

N
N
N
N

30

80-

85

N
N
N

N
N
N
N

N

N

N

N

N
N
N
N

N

OVER
85

N
N
N

N
N
N
N

N

N

N

N

N
N
N

N

Notes to Table 4.13-1: Y — Land use and related structures are compatible; N — Land use and related structures are
not compatible. 25 - Land use and related structures are generally compatible; measures to achieve noise level

reduction of 25 decibels should be incorporated into the design and construction of structures; 30 — Land use and
related structures are generally compatible; measures to achieve noise level reduction of 30 decibels should be

incorporated into the design and construction of structures.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 254 of 373

-the

4.13.S9 NONCONFORMNG USES.

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 254 of 373

markers and lights shall be installed, operated and

maintained at the expense of the Sanford-Lee County

Regional Airport Authority.

4.13.610 ZONING APPROVAL.PEmg:.CSv

4-4-3-63 No Zoning Clearance Permit shall be

granted within the boundary of the Sanford/Lee

County Regional Airport Overlay District that would

allow the establishment or creation of an airport

hazard when the application for a permit is made.

4.13.0.1 The regulations prescribed by this Ordinance

shall not be construed to require the removal, lowering

or other changes or alteration of any structure or tree

not conforming to the regulations as of the effective

date of these regulations, or otherwise interfere with

the continuance of a nonconfonning use. Nothing

contained herein shall require any change in the

construction, alteration or intended use of any

structure, the construction or alteration of which was

begun prior to the effective date of these regulations,

and is diligently prosecuted.

4.13.9.2

No Zoning Clearance Permit shall be granted that
would allow the expansion of a nonconforming use,
structure or eee-flora to become a greater hazard to air

navigation than it was on the effective date of these

regulations when the application for a permit is made.

4.13.9.4 Notwithstanding the preceding

provision of this Section, the owner of any existing

nonconforming structure or tree is hereby required to

permit the installation, operation and maintenance

thereon of such markers and lights as shall be deemed

necessary by the Sanford-Lee County Regional

Airport Authority to indicate to the operators of

aircraft in the vicinity of the airpolt the presence of

such aiQek-kæædaiBe#-hazædairp01t hazards. Such



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 255 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 255 of 373

9F€e

Zenin.g



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 256 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 256 of 373

Description for airport density boundary

BEGINIING at a point, said being the intersection of the Deep River's southern/western bank and the

southern right-of-way boundary of old U.S. Highway 1 (SR 1466), thence with a line SOUTHWEST along

said southern boundary of old U.S. Highway 1, 934 +/- feet to the intersection with eastern boundary of

Lower Moncure Road (SR 1002); thence with a line SOUTH along said eastern boundary of Lower

Moncure Road, 3,809 +/- feet to the intersection of the western boundary of the CSX railroad right-of-

way; thence with a line SOUTHWEST along said western boundary of CSX railroad right-of-way 165 +/-

feet to an intersection with the northeast corner of PIN 9677-15-4040-00; thence with a line WEST

along the northern boundary of PIN 9677-15-4040-00 1,877 +/- feet to the northwest corner of PIN

9677-15-4040-00; thence with a line SOUTH along the western boundary of PINs 9677-15-4040-00 and

9677-13-1883-00 3,861 +/- feet to the intersection of the western boundary of the CSX railroad right-of-

way; thence with a ling SOUTHWEST along western boundary of CSX railroad right-of-way 1,266 +/- feet
to the intersection of the north east corner of PIN 9666-78-7977-00; thence with a line WEST along the

northern boundary of PIN 9666-78-7977-00 329 +/- feet and continuing NORTH along the boundary of

PIN 9666-78-7977-00 527 +/- feet and continuing WEST along the boundary of PIN 9666-78-7977-00
3,788 +/- feet to the intersection of the eastern boundary of U.S. Highway 1; thence with a line

SOUTHWEST along the eastern boundary of U.S. Highway 1 730 +/- feet to the western corner of PIN

9666-78-7977-00 where it intersects with a corner of PIN 9667-50-6965-00; thence with a line SOUTH

along the western boundary of PINs 9666-78-7977-00 and 9666-69-3230-00 4,367 +/- feet thence

continuing EAST along the boundary of PIN 9666-78-7977-00 950 +/- feet and thence continuing SOUTH

along the boundary of PIN 9666-78-7977-00 805 +/- feet to the intersection of the northern boundary of

the ROD Sullivan Road (SR 1425) right-of-way; thence with a line SOUTH crossing the right-of-way of

ROD Sullivan Road and continuing along the western boundary of PIN 9666-78-7977 972 feet +/- to the
intersection of the southwest corner of PIN 9666-78-7977 and the nonhern boundary of PIN 9666-54-

6675-00; thence with a line WEST along the northern boundary of PIN 9666-54-6675-00 1,881 +/- feet to

the northwest corner of PIN 9666-54-6675-00; thence with a line along the western boundary of PINs

9666-54-6675-00 and 9666-52-2894-00 4,490 +/- feet to the intersection of the western boundary of the

CSX railroad right-of-way; thence with a line SOUTH crossing the CSX railroad right-of-way and

continuing along the eastern boundary of the CSX railroad right-of-way 3,418 +/- feet to an intersection

with the southwest corner of PIN 9665-69-2324-00; thence with a line EAST along the southern

boundary of PIN 9665-69-2324-00 and crossing over the right-of-way of Ammons Farm Road (SR 1424)
831 +/- feet to the intersection of the eastern boundary of the right-of-way for Ammons Farm Road and

the northwest corner of PIN 9665-67-6669-00; thence with a line SOUTH along the eastern right-of-way

of Ammons Farm Road 859 +/- feet to an intersection with the southwest corner of PEN 9665-67-6669-

00; thence with a line NORTHEAST along the southern boundary of PIN 9665-67-6669-00 654 +/- feet to

an intersection with the northwest corner of PIN 9665-76-6348-00; thence with a line SOUTH along the

western boundary of PIN 9665-76-6348-00 668 +/- feet and continuing SOUTHWEST along the western

boundary of PIN 9665-76-6348-00 674 +/- feet and continuing SOUTH along the western boundary of

PIN 9665-76-6348-00 1,860 +/- feet and continuing EAST along the western boundary of PIN 9665-76-

6348-00 578 +/- feet and continuing SOUTH along the western boundary of PIN 9665-76-6348-00 1,377

+/- feet and continuing EAST along the western boundary of PIN 9665-76-6348-00 648 +/- feet to the

intersection of the western boundary of the Norfolk Southern railroad right-of-way; thence with a line



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 257 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 257 of 373

NORTHEAST along the western boundary of the Norfolk Southern railroad right-of-way 740 +/- feet to an

intersection with the southern boundary of PIN 9665-76-6348; thence with a line NORTH along the

southern boundary of PIN 9665-76-6348-00 873 +/- feet and continuing EAST along the southern

boundary of PIN 9665-76-6348-00 1,401 +/- feet and continuing NORTH along the southern boundary of

PIN 9665-76-6348-00 1,548 +/- feet and continuing EAST along the southern boundary of PIN 9665-76-

6348-00 2,711 +/- feet to the intersection of the western boundary of the Norfolk Southern railroad

right-of-way; thence with a line NORTHEAST along the western boundary of the Norfolk Southern

railroad right-of-way 750 +/- feet to the intersection of the southeast corner of PIN 9665-76-6348-00;

thence with a line NORTH along the eastern boundary PIN 9665-76-6348-00 2,432 +/- feet to an

intersection with the southwestern most corner of PIN 9676-02-6023-00 and the eastern boundary of

PIN 9665-76-6348-00; thence with a line EAST along the southern boundary of PIN 9676-02-6023-00 242

+/- feet and continuing NORTH along the eastern boundary of PIN 9676-02-6032-00 5,762 +/- feet to an

intersection of the northeast corner of PIN 9676-02-6032-00 and the southern boundary of PIN 9676-04-

5467-00; thence with a line EAST along the southern boundary of PIN 9676-04-5467-00 503 +/- feet to

an intersection of the southern/western right-of-way boundary of Northern Ranches Road and the

southeast corner of PIN 9676-02-6032-00; thence with a line EAST crossing over the Northern Ranches

Road right-of-way 200 +/- feet to an intersection of the eastern/northern right-of-way boundary of

Northern Ranches Road and the western corner of PIN 9676-23-6822-00; thence with a line

EAST/SOUTHEAST along the eastern/northern right-of-way boundary of Northern Ranches Road 1,462

+/- feet to the northwest intersection with the western right-of-way bou ndary of Lower Moncure Road;

thence with a line NORTH along the western right-of-way boundary of Lower Moncure Road 7,578 +/-

feet; thence with a line EAST crossing the Lower Moncure Road right-of-way 60 +/- feet to the

intersection of eastern right-of-way boundary of Lower Moncure Road and the southwest corner of PIN

9677-42-0777-00; thence with a line EAST/NORTHEAST along the southern boundary of PINs 967742-

0777-00 and 9677-42-8567-00 1,744 +/- feet to the southeast corner of PIN 9677-42-8567-00; thence

with a line NORTH/NORTHEAST along the eastern boundary of PIN 9677-42-8567-00 2,388 +/- feet to

the intersection of the southern right-of-way boundary of Lower River Road (SR 1500) and the northeast

corner of PIN 9677-42-8567-00; thence with a line NORTHEAST crossing the right-of-way of Lower River

Road 60 +/- feet to the intersection of the northern right-of-way boundary of Lower River Road and the

southwestern most corner of PIN 9677-64-7606-00; thence with a line SOUTHEAST along the northern

right-of-way boundary of Lower River Road 722 +/- feet to an intersection of said northern right-of-way

boundary of Lower River Road and the northern right-of-way boundary of Barringer Road (SR 1501);

thence with a line NORTHEAST along the northern right-of-way boundary of Barringer Road 2,574 +/-

feet to the end point of the Barringer Road right-of-way and also a southeast corner of PIN 9677-64-

7606-00; thence with a line NORTHWEST along the southern boundary of PIN 9677-64-7606-00 260 +/-
feet to a common corner of PINs 9677-64-7606-00 and 9677-93-4344-00; thence with a line NORTHEAST

along the southern boundary of PINs 9677-64-7606-00 and 9677-86-5045-00 2,543 +/- feet to the

intersection of the southwest corner of PIN 9677-86-5045-00 and the southern/western bank of the

Deep River; thence with a line NORTHWEST along the southern/western bank of the Deep River 8,295

+/- feet to the point of BEGINNING and containing 3,706 +/- acres.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 258 of 373Proposed Airport Overlay

EEP

LOCK

100

0.5

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Pa e 258 of 373

LEES CLAP

CLETUS HALL

025

Legend

Raleigh Executive Jetport

Proposed Airport Overlay

Parcel Boundaries

Major Roads Names

Miles



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 259 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19,

r Meetin

Page 259 of 973

m men m. mm
N N N N N N 'N N N N N N m N N N N N N N N N N N m NiN N N N N N N . N N • N

a 00 o •o o o Luoeeeeooooowooo:eoæo e .00 0 0-0 0 c.o

5 < Z ZZ

88 a äk

1.5 z w

a 0 00 0

>



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 260 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 260 of 373

0 0 0 e o o e 00 o o i

zzzzzz z z z z, z z z, zzz z G zzzz

o '0 00 ooze o o
000* o Q ooeoooooooooezoqoo 0 8.0 0-0 00

åaå
o Woz > O S o

1.5 u.' z =
u.iz

to In m 00 o

1.0



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 261 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 261 of 373

•a UUUuUUUUU < u U •U
z •zzzozz

ox z

at



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 262 of 373

BOC A enda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 262 of 373

PROPERTY OWNERS NOTIFICATION CERTIFICATION

I, David Montgomery, hereby certify that the property owners æd-a$eeent--property-•owmrs of

the following rezoning petitions as indicated on the Lee County Tax Maps were notified by First
Class U S. Mail on Wednesday, August 07, 2019.

2019-0803

1. Consideration of amendments to the jointly adopted City of Sanford/Lee

County/Town of Broadway Unified Development Ordinance (UDO), Article
4.13, which would create a new Airport Density Overlay District. The new
Airport Density Overlay Disfrict would set a density limit of one unit per five

acres for those properties located within this new boundary. Currently, the

majority of the area in this boundary is curently zoned RA which is intended for
agricultural and single-family residential and allows a density of approximately

one unit per 0.92 acre (40,000 square feet). The new rules would, therefore,
lower the maximum density from the current 1 unit per acre to I unit per five (5)
acres. The new rules do include an exception for a minor subdivision. Under
this exception, a property owner can create (a) up to six (6) lots if he/she has

frontage on an existing public road or (b) up to three (3) lots of on a private
easement that comects to a public road. These minor subdivision lots would be

allowed at the current RA zoning density of one unit per 0.92 acre (40,000
square feet).

Consideration of zoning amendment to the Official Zoning Map to apply
the new Airport Density Overlay District as described above.

Signature:

Title:

Lee County, North Carolina

ate: e

, a Notary Public for Lee County and State of North1,

Carolina hereby certifr that ersonally

appeared before me on this day and acknowledged e due exe ution of the foregoing

Insüument. Witness my hand and offcial seal, this the Of

2019.

Notary Public

My Commission expires (SEAL



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 263 of 373

s c.oo.vz

CABO

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 263 of 373

ITEM

LEE COUNTY AGENDA ABSTRACT N. D.
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING

(Use the Down Of Up Arrows to move between fields of the Form)

MEETING DATE: August 19, 2019

SUBJECT: Public Hearing for FY 2021 NC DOT Community Transportation Program Grant
Application

DEPARTMENT: COLTS/Lee county Senior Senrices

CONTACT PERSON: Debbie Davidson

TYPE: Consent Agenda Action Item Public Information

REQUEST

BUDGET IMPACT
ATTACÆ-nv1ENTS

Hold Public Hearing on Grant Application

FY 2021 Bu et- $239,571 - County Match -$35,020
Public Hearin Notices in En 1ish and S anish

PRIOR BOARD ACTION N/A

Hold a public heaÅng on the FY 2021 NC DOT Community TransportationRECONfffENDATION
Pro am Grant A lication.

SUIvnvfARY

A Public Hearing is required for the submission of the North Carolina Department of Tfansportation
FY2020/2021 Community Transportation Progam Grant Application.

We are requesting the follmving Funding Levels:
Administrative — $221,254.00 — Local Match — 15% - $33,188.00

These funds cover 85% of the salary for the County of Lee Transit System Coordinator, and a portion of the
administrative salaries of 4 other staff members and benefits, travel, general office supplies, space rental,

technology supplies, and indirect cost for the administration of the system. Also included in this request is 85%
reimbursement for vehicle insurance on 18 vehicles.

FY 2021 Consolidated Capital Call for Projects Application — 20 Tablets for Van Drivers to utilize soft ware
upgrade proposed by the Institute for Transportation Research and Educaüon at NC State University; Four
replacement desk top computers x,üth monitors, upgfaded dispatch radio equipment — No Vans are being
requested in FY 2021

Capital - $18,317.00 - Local Match - $1,832.00

A public hearing is required to submit this application. One hearing for both applications has been approved by
NC DOT. Official noüce was placed in the Sanford Herald on Tuesday August 5, 2019. Nodces in both English
and Spanish have been posted in the COLTS vehicles and other public buildings Lee County.

Form Updated August 2, 2017 Page 1 of 1



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 264 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 264 of 373

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE

This is to inform the public that a public hearing will be held on the proposed Lee County

Community Transportation Program Application and the Consolidated Capital Call for Projects
Application to be submitted to the North Carolina Department of Transportation no later than

October 4, 2019. The public hearing will be held on August 19, 2019 at 6:00 pm before the Lee
County Board of Commissioners.

Those interested in attending the public hearing and needing either auxiliary aids or services
under the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) or a language translator should contact Debbie
Davidson on or before August 12, 2019, at telephone number 919-776-0501 or via email at
ddavidson@eecountync.gov.

The Community Transportation Program provides assistance to coordinate existing
transportation programs operating in Lee County as well as provides transportation options and
services for the communities within this service area. These services are currently provided

using demand response and subscription. Services are rendered by County of Lee Transit
System.

The total estimated amount requested for the period July 1, 2020 throuqh June 30, 2021

Project

Administrative

Capital (Vehicles and Other)

Totals

Total Amount

$221,254

$18,317

$239,571

Local Share

$33,188 (15%)

$1,832 (10%)

$35,020

This application may be inspected at 1615 S Third Street Sanford NC from August 12-16.
Written comments should be directed to Debbie Davidson before August 16, 2019.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 265 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 265 of 373

AVISO DE AUDIENCIA PUBLICA

Este anuncio es para informar al püblico, que una audiencia püblica se Ilevara a cabo, en Ia solicitud para

el programa propuesto, "Comunidad del Condado de Lee de Transporte" y el "Capital Consolidado

Convocatoria de Proyectos de Aplicaciones", que se presentara al Departamento de Transporte de

Carolina del Norte antes del 4 de octubre, 2019. La audiencia se Ifevarå a cabo el 19 de augusto del

2019, a las 6:00 P, antes de Ia Junta de Comisionados del Condado de Lee.

Los interesados en asistir la audiencia y que necesitan ya sea ayudas o servicios auxiliarén bajo los

Americanos con Discapacidades o un traductor de idiomas, debe ponerse en contacto con Debbie

Davidson antes der 12 de augusto 2019, al 919-776-0501 0 por correo electrånico a

ddavidson@leecountvnc.gov.

El Programa de Transporte Comunidad, proporciona asistencia, para coordinar los programas existentes

de transporte que operan en el condado de Lee, asi como proporciona opciones de Transporte y

Servicios para las comunidades dentro de esta årea de servicio. Estos servicios se prestan actualmente

por el uso de respuesta de la demanda y la suscripciön. Los servicios son prestados por el Condado de
Lee Sistema de Transporte.

proyecto
Administrativo

Capital (vehfcu!os y otro)

Cantidad total

$221 ,254

$ 18,317

Porciån local

$ 33,188 (15%)
$ 1,832 (10%)

Esta aplicaciån puede ser inspeccionada en: 1615 sur de la calle3, de lunes a viernes hasta el 16 de
augusto 2019.



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 266 of 373

coo.

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 266 of 373

ITEM

LEE COUNTY AGENDA ABSTRACT
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING

(Use the Down or Up Arrows to move between fields of the Form)

MEETING DATE: August 19, 2019

SUBJECT: Public Hearing on a Proposed Economic Development Project

DEPARTMENT: Governing Body

CONTACT PERSON: Michael smith, CEO, Sanford Area Growth Alliance

TYPE: Consent Agenda Acåon Item Public Hearing Information

REQUEST

BUDGET IMPACr
ATTACHMENTS
PRIOR BOARD ACITON

RECOMIVÆNDATION

Hold a public hearing and consider a vote for approval of a proposed economic
develo ment ro• ect.

Public Hearin Notice— ublished 8/8/19 in the San ordHerald

Hold a public hearing. Due to the anticipated timeline of this project, SAGA
recommends the Board consider waiving the policy to hold a public hearing at one
meeting then vote on the item at the next meeting. The Board would need to first
vote to waive their policy and then conduct a second vote to approve the project
based on the terms resented.

The proposed economic development project consists of building an industrial building and the purchase of
machinery and equipment in the amount up to $170,900,000 (one hundred seventy million nine hundred thousand

dollars) in taxable investment in Sanford, Lee County, North Carolina, with Lee County sharing up to $5,608,409 (five
million six hundred eight thousand four hundred nine dollars) of the cost of the project with $4,065,409 (four million

sixty-five thousand four hundred nine dollars) revenues from the County's General Fund over the ten year life of the
project and $1,543,000 (one million five hundred and forty-three thousand dollars) coming from a proposed

borrowing of funds as part of renovaüons to the Lee County Government Center. The borrowing is subject to future
approval by the Lee County Board of Commissioners and the North Carolina Local Government Commission. The

borrowed funds will be used to purchase property including all costs assodated with the purchase, and assist the City
of Sanford in development of the property as an industÅal site.

The Coung- will acquire 98.24 acres of real property located on Colon Road (PIN 9655-21-2728-00) at an

estimated purchase pÅce of $12,000 (twelve thousand dollars) per acre Of at a total cost of $1,152,000 (one million

one hundred fifty-two thousand dollars) using funds financed through a borrowing with a financial institution. The
County proposes to convey 70 (seventy) acres of the property to Project Forge. The County will retain 28.24 (twenty-
eight point two four) acres to be developed as an industrial site. The County v:'ill provide $700,000 (seven hundred
thousand dollars) to the City of Sanford from the proposed borrowing for site improvements. Site improvements

include but are not limited to preparation of site to a pad ready condition for building construcüon and the acquisition

of right of way. The project is estimated to create up to 460 (four hundred and sixty) new jobs with an average annual

wage of $51,780 (fifty-one thousand seven hundred and eighty dollars) over the ten-year length of the project. The

Fom Updated August 2, 2017 Page 1 of 2



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 267 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 267 of 373

projected annual payroll at the completion of the project is estimated to be $23,800,000 (twenty three million eight

hundred thousand dollars). This project will stimulate the local economy, promote additional business activity, create

jobs and increase payroll in Lee County. Vhile the Board may authorize iniül approval of Project following the
public hearing, the project is condngent on many factors including financing approval through the Local Government
Commission, acquisition of teal property, and approval of a confract to be provided for the Board's approval at a later
date.

Due to the anticipated timeline for the proposed project, a vote on the material terms presented at the public
hearing has been requested. In order to vote on the project, the Board of Commissioners will need to hold a separate
vote to waive their policy regarding following a public hearing.

Page 2 of 2



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 268 of 373

Public Hearlne Notice
(Publlcadon Date August 8,

2019)

Pursuant to Norel Carolina

General 5158-7.1,
ete Lee County Board of

Commissioners (the Board)
proposes participau In

the coet of an economic de-

velopment project, a
company to be named
The project of

building an Industrial build-
ing and the purchase of ma-
chinery and equipment In

the amount up to
(one hundred

sevenw million nine hun-
dred thousand dollars) in

Invesbnent in San.
ford, Lee County, North Car•
ollna, with Lee Counw shar-
Ing up to (five

million six hundred eight
thouænd four hundred nine
donars) of tie cwt of the

project with $4,065,409 (four

four hundred nine dollars)
revenues from the County's
Generat Fund over
year life of the project and

hundred and forty-tlree
thousand dollars) coming
from a proposed borrowlng
of funds as part of renova-
tlons to the Lee County
GovemmeM Center. Tha

18 subject

Wre approval by the Lee
Counw Board of Commis-
sioners and the North Caro-
llna Local Government Com-

mission. The borrowed
fisndS Will be used pur-

chase Including all

COSB associated with the
purchase, and asslSt tie

City Of Sanford In develop•
ment of the property an

Industrial sits.

The County will Equlre
98.24 acres of real property

loc&d on Colon Road (PIN
9655-21-272840) at an es-

purchue price of
$12,000 (twelve &'ousand

dollars) per acte or at a total
cost of $1 ,152.OOO (one mil.
Ilon one hundred

mousend dollars) using
funds Onanced through a
borrowlng wtth a financiel

Instltudon. The County pro-
poses to convey 70 (sev-
enm acres Of the property
to Prolect. The Counw will
retain 28.24 (twenty-elght

point two four) acres to be
developed as an Endustrlal

site. The County will provide
$700,000 (seven hundred

thousand dollars) to the CiW
Of Sanford from the

posed borrowing for site im.
provements. Site Improve-
ments include but are not

Ilmlted to preparation of sib
to a pad ready condiöon for
bulldlnø conem.•edon and
the of rlght of
way. The pro]ect estlm•

ated to cteate up to 460
(four hundred and Rlxty)
new jobs With an average
annual wage of $51 ,780

ttousand seven

hundred and eighty dollars)
over ten-year of

the proJect. The prolected
annual payroll at the com-
pledon of the project Is es-
timated to be
(twenw threa mlllton eight
hundred thousand dollars).
This project will stimulab

tie local economy, promote
additional business ectlvlty,
create Jobs and

payroll In Lee County. While
Board may authorize inj.

tiaE approval of ProJect fol-

lowing the public hearing,
tie project is contingent on
many factore Including fin-
anclng approval through the
Local Govemment Commis-

ston, acquisition of real
property, and approval of a
contract to be provlded for
tie Boardts approval at a

date.

A public on the
posed economic devetop-
ment Incentlve jnvesbnenb
for these projecb wllt be

held on Monday, August 19,
2019 at 6:00 p.m., or as soon
fiereeRer as matter can
be reached on Ole meetlng
agenda, En the Lee Counw
Government Flrst

Floor, Commlssfoners
Room at 106 Hillcrest Dr.,
Sanford, NC. All fnter—ted
persons are Invj"d to at-
tend and present their

vlew.

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 268 of 373



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 269 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 269 of 373

ITEM

LEE COUNTY AGENDA ABSTRACT A.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
(Use the or Up Arrows to move between fields of the Form)

MEETING DATE: August 19, 2019

SUBJECT: Chatham County NC Broadband Interlocal Agreement

DEPARTMENT: Information Technology

CONTACT PERSON: Kyle Edwards

TYPE: Consent Agenda Action Item Public Informadon

REQUEST

BUDGET IMPACT

MTACH.MENTS

Request BOC to approve interlocal agreement between Lee and Chatham
Coundes

$0

1. Interlocal agreement

PRIOR BOARD ACTION N/A
RECOMMENDATION A rove and dele te Coun 'Man er authori to s • eement

Sl-JTvnv1ARY

The proposed interlocal agreement will allow Chatham County, NC to use facilities to Lee County, NC
and allow Lee County, NC to use facilities belonging to Chatham County, NC in order to give additional capability
to both counties when considering future rural broadband deployment. Such facilities include but may not be
limited to communication towers, county buildings, water towers, and other infrastructure components that would

fufther the deploy-ment capability of broadband internet access in areas of the County where Chathatn and Lee

Counties are adjacent to each other. This agreement has been executed between Chatham and Orange counties

and if so executed between Lee and Chatham, both coundes would be sfronger in their ability to deploy internet in

areas that are unserved or underserved in the future. Each County maintains its full ownership and Åghts therein

to its facilities, this agreement would lay framework that would allow both Chatham and Lee coundes to place

equipment on each other's fadlities when necessary and agreed upon by all parties.

Form Updated August 2, 2017 Page 1 of 1



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 270 of 373

NORTH CAROLINA
CHATHAM COUNTY

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 270 of 373

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT

This Interlocal Agreement, (this "Agreement") is made and entered into this

day of August, 2019, by and between Chatham County ("Chatham"), a body politic and
corporate of the State of North Carolina and Lee County ("Lee"), a body politic and corporate of

the State of North Carolina (collectively "the Counties"). Either Chatham or Lee may be referred
to herein as "Party" or collectively as "the Parties".

WITNESS ETH

WHEREAS, the Counties wish to collaborate on facilitating the creation of

infrasfructure for the provision of high-speed internet access to the residents of the Counties;
and

WHEREAS, the Counties have agreed to provide reciprocal access to suitable

locations, including telecommunication towers, within the Counties and for which the Counties

have legal authority over, for the installation of equipment by a private service provider to offer
broad band internet services; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and other good and valuable
consideration hereinafter set forth, the Counties agree as follows:

1. The purpose of this Agreement is to provide for the Counties to
facilitate the expansion of high speed internet access within the Counties.

2. Fees. Neither Party will collect fees from the other for any consideration
provided under this Agreement.

3. Term. The term of the Ageement will continue until one Party provides the
other Party not less than ninety (90) days prior written notice of termination.

4. Amendment. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the Parties. It

may be changed or amended only by an agreement in sigied by both Parties

5. Notices. All notices and other correspondence given or made pursuant to this
Agreement shall be in writing, delivered in person, mailed by certified mail, return receipt

requested, or delivery by a recognized overnight courier, postage or fees prepaid, addressed to a
Party at the address given below, and shall be deemed effective upon the date received, via

personal delivery, certified mail, or overnight delivery. The Parties shall be responsible for
notifying each other of any change of address. Mailing addresses for the Parties are as follows:



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 271 of 373

If to Chatham County:

If to Lee County:

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 271 of 373

Chatham County

Attention: County Manager
Post Office Box 1809
Pittsboro, North Carolina 27312

Lee County

Attention: County Manager
Post Office Box 1968
Sanford, NC 27331

6. Equipment. Prior to the installation, maintenance, improvement and

operation of any equipment by a private service provider, the Party in whose jurisdiction the
installation will take place shall review the proposed work to determine if same can be

permitted at the desired location. Each Party shall have the right to refuse to allow the

installation, maintenance, improvement and operation of any equipment if it determines that

the same may interfere with currently existing or planned uses at the selected location and/or
pose any increased risk to public safety.

Indemnification. To the fullest extent allowable by North Carolina law, the7.

Counties shall have no liability to each other regarding the installation of equipment and

services provided by an independent service provider. The Counties shall hold each other

harmless for any and all claims, liabilities, losses, damages, costs, or expenses arising out of,

or relating to, the installation, maintenance, improvement and operation of equipment and

provision ofservices provided by an independent service provider, except for those acts caused
by the sole negligence of the Counties. The Counties waive special, incidental, indirect, or

consequential damages, including lost profits, good will, revenues or savings, for claims,
disputes or other matters in question arising out of or relating to this Agreement. This

limitation of liability will survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

8. Miscellaneous. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and

understanding between the Parties and it is understood and agreed that all undertakings,

negotiations, representations, promises, inducements, and agreement heretofore entered into

between the Parties with respect to the matters contained herein are merged in this Ayeement.

No waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be valid unless in writing and
signed by the Party against whom it is sought to be enforced. The provisions of this Agreement
shall insure to the benefit of and be binding upon the Parties hereto and their respective

successors and assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall be governed by and construed
and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of North Carolina, and any action

brought under or concerning this Agreement shall be brought and maintained in a court of

competent jurisdiction in the state of North Carolina. The headings contained in this

Agreement are solely for the convenience of the Parties and do not constitute a part of this

Agreement and shall not be used to construe or interpret any provisions hereof. This

Agreement shall be considered for all purposes as having been prepared by the joint efforts of
the Parties and shall not be construed against one Party or the other as a result of preparation,

substitution, submission, or other event of negotiation. The invalidity or unenforceability of

any term or provision of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any

other provisions of this Agreement, which shall remain in full force and effect, and, if any

such unenforceable provision hereof is enforceable in any part or to any lesser extent, such



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 272 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 272 of 373

provision shall be enforceable in all such parts and to the yeatest extent permissible under

applicable law. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts each of which
shall be deemed an original and all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same

instrument, and the Parties hereto may execute this Agreement by signing any such
counterpart.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Patties have hereunto fixed their hands and seals
effective this the day and year first written above.

LEE COUNTY

By:

John A. Crumpton, County Manager

CHATHAM COUNTY

By:

Dan LaMontagne, County Manager

ATTEST:

Jennifer Gamble, Clerk

ATTEST:

Lindsay Ray, Clerk



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 273 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 273 of 373

ITEM

LEE COUNTY AGENDA ABSTRACT VII. B.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
(Use the Down or Up Arrows to move between fields of the Form)

MEETING DATE: August 19, 2019

SUBJECT: Consideradon of an offer to purchase property located on Wildwood Drive (PIN 9634-12-1809-
00), Sanford, Lee County North Carolina.

DEPARTMENT: Legal

CONTACT PERSON: Jennifer Gamble, Deputy County Attorney/ Clerk to the Board

TYPE: Consent Agenda Action Item Public Hearing Information

REQUEST

BUDGET IMPACT

ATrACHMENTS

To consider an offer to purchase property located on Wildwood Drive (PIN 9634-
12-1809-00 , Sanf0fd, Lee Coun , North Carolina.

Offer letter, resolution, map of the property, tax card, amount owed on the
, oti al deedro

PRIOR BOARD ACTION N/A
RECONMENDATION Pleasure of the Board

The County of Lee acquired property located in the N(fildwood Subdivision at PIN 9634-12-1809-00 in 1994. Prior
to the conveyance, lots in the subdivision were assessed a fee for the extension of a waterline. The waterline

assessment fee was $1,912.49. In lieu of paying the fee for this lot, the owner conveyed title to the County. The
assessment fee in the amount of $1,912.49 is the only outstanding amount associated with the property. The

current tax value of the property is $5,900.00. Joseph Benjamin Lucas has contacted the County expressing an
interest in purchasing the lot for $1,500.

If the Commissioners wish to sell this property, it will be sold through the upset bid procedure. The

Commissioners must first declare the property as surplus, then authorize staff to accept the initial offer of $1,500

from Joseph Benjamin Lucas and adverdse the offer in The Sanford Herald. We Mill ask for sealed bids and if a
qualifring bid is received, the Board also authorizes staff to continue to advertise the qualifying bid until no further

bid is received. The last final high qualifying bid received will go back to the Board for final approval before the
property can be sold.

Form Updated August 2.2017 Page 1 of 1



BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019
Regular Meeting
Page 274 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 274 of 373

REAL ESTATE OFFER

Date:

1, hereby submit an offer to purchase real

property loc ted at:

NC 20/30
ADDRESS:

PIN

60c).OFFER AMOUNT: $

Please read the following before signing below:

All offers require an upfront payment ofa bid deposit in the amount of 5% of the offer
amount and payment of advertising costs with payment to be made in cash, cashiers or
certified check

Advertising costs are non-refundable

Purchase of property is contingent on the approval of the Lee County Board of

Commissioners and/or the Sanford City Council and any other entity joining in
ownership of the above property

All offers are subject to the upset bid process

Property is sold "as is" with no conditions placed on the bid

Title to the property shall be fransferred to the buyer by a nonwarranty deed. County

Attomey does not provide a title search and buyer is welcome to retain a private attorney
for the closing

The County reserves the right to withdraw the property from sale at any time before the

final high bid is accepted and has the right to reject all bids at any time

Final payment of the remaining balance will be due at closing

(Signature)



BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019
Regular Meeting
Page 276 of 373

WILD FORESFRD

•PALMErro Nnt-

BOC en a
of 1

August

Regular Meeting
Page 276 of 373

Parcels

Streets

Railroad

Lee County

Sanford City Limits

Broadway Town Limits

LONGLEAF LN

1 : 191 Feet

https://lee2.connectgis.com./DownloadFile.ashx?i=_ags_map10de5eOcN734e0f94b50c4b8... 7/30/2019



BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019
Regular Meeting
Page 277 of 373

August 1

Regular Meeting
Page 277 of 373

Parcels

Streets

Railroad

Lee County

Sanford City Limits

-RED HÖLLY_DR-

PALMETTO

https://lee2.connectgis.com/DownloadFile.ashx?i=

1 : 851 Feet

_ags_map3349e4a9518c49c9a9fd99eb8a... 8/1/2019



BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019
Regular Meeting
Page 278 of 373

z

z

B C Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 278 of 373

RECEIPT 265970
DATE

RECEIVED FROM

4

FOR WI laund Lo
$0

ACCOUNT
BEGINNING

AMOUNT
PAID
BALANCE
DUE

CASH

CHECK

MONEY
ORDER BY

(2-1 Roq- oo

4

02001 654NCR



BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019
Regular Meeting
Page 279 of 373

Lee County Tax Adminisfration

PARID: 963412180900

COUNTY OF LEE

August fÆa90f2
Regular Meeting
Page 279 of 373

O WILDWOOD DR VACANT

To print a property record card or export search results into a CSV format that can be used with Excel please follow these
steps:

- Select the desired report option from the right menu (e.g. CSV Export, Residential PRC) and hit GO
- Click Open when prompted for an export. Property record cards will open as a PDF.

Parcel

ParlD / PIN:

Tax Year:

Tax Jurisdiction:

Neighborhood:

Valuation

Appraised Land:

Appraised Building:

Appraised Total:

Deferred:

Exempts/ExcIuded:

Assessed Real:

Total Assessed:

Owner

Account Number:

Name:

Name 2:
Own %
Mailing Address:

Linked Sale

Legal

Physical Address:

Legal Description 1:

Plat Cabinet/Slide:

Description

NBHD Code / Name:
Class:

Land Use:

Zoning:

Living Units:

Deeded Acres:

Calculated Acres:

Recorded Transaction

963412180900 /

2019

FWS : WEST SANFORD FIRE DISTRICT
863 : Wildwood

5,900

5,900

51900

41747

COUNTY OF LEE

100

PO BOX 1968

SANFORD NC 27331

534/196

O WILDWOOD DR
VACANT WILDWOOD DR

863 : Wildwood

EX : EXEMPT
XLEE : LEE COUNTY MUNICIPAL

Date

02-JUN-94

Book

534

Page

196

.9236

Instrument Sale Price

2,000

Validity Code

8

https://taxaccess.leecountync.gov/PT/Data1ets/PrintDataIet.aspx?pin= 8/2/2019



BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019
Regular Meeting
Page 280 of 373

Lee County Tax Administration BOC en a

August

Regular Meeting
Page 280 of 373

https://taxaccess.leecountync.gov/PTDatalets/PrintDatalet.aspx?pin=963412180900&gsp=... 8/2/2019



BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019
Regular Meeting
Page 281 of 373

Jennifer Gamble

From:

Sent:

To:

Subject:

Jennifer,

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 281 of 373

Denette Fitzpatrick

Wednesday, July 31, 2019 2:32 PM
Jennifer Gamble

RE: Property Inquiry

I called and left a voice message regarding this property. This parcel was deeded to the County by the owner back when

the County installed waterlines to this neighborhood. Each parcel in the development was assessed a fee for the

waterline. Mr. Green owned two lots at the time, this being one of them. He did not want to pay the waterline

assessment fee and deeded the property to the County. The only costs associated with this parcel is the original

waterline assessment fee of $1.912.49 which was not paid. Feel free to contact me if you have any questions. Thanks so
much.

Denette Fitzpatrick

Tax Collections Manager

Lee County Government 1106 Hillcrest Drive I Sanford, NC 27330

919-7184661 Ext. 54231 dfitzpatrick@leecountvnc.gov www.leecountync.gov

From: Jennifer Gamble

Sent: Wednesday, July 31, 2019 1:49 PM
To: Denette Fitzpatrick <dfitzpatrick@leecountync.gov>

Subject: Property Inquiry

Denette,

Can you tell me the amount owed on lot 29 located on Wildwood Drive (PIN 9634-12-1809-00)?

Thank you,

Jennifer Gamble, NCCCC

Deputy County Attorney/Clerk to the Board of Commissioners

Lee County Government 1408 Summit Drive I Sanford, NC 27330

919-718-4605 — Ext. 5507 ligamble@leecountvnc.gov I www.leecountync.gov

1



BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019
Regular Meeting
Page 282 of 373

0534
8196

cowry

$4.ee

Real Estate
Excise Tax

Vei'ed b'

Ne•e W

Parcel Iå•ntiåer No.

Tme. and PM

County on the day ot

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

.Regular Meeting
4349age 282 of 373

w.

gquqcy. Nana*" g. .P.O. Box 1?68, Saqfor4eLil after recording to

R.R. Hoyle, Attorney ae taw
Thia wa• prepared by

Brief ducription for the Index Loes 27 29 Wildwood

NORTH CAROLINA GENERAL WARRANTY DEED
May9th... day ofTHt8 DEED .

GRANTOR

DONALD W. GUEN and wife, E.

CUEN
635 Fox Run Lane
Algonquin, ILL 60102

ID 94• by and between

GRANTEE

cogNT or LEE
X X. Covan

County Manager
Lee Couney Govertn•ac Center
106 Hillcrest Drive
P.o. Box 1968
Sanford. 27331-1968

Tbi deaien•ilon Granur and Grantee a: uud hareln include parties, th•lr eugeu•org. •nd •ed
ineiud• singular, ptor•l, mucullae, femiDlne or neuter required by context. q

WITNBSETH, that tho Grantor, for•• vatu•ble consideration paid by the GruEtÖ the reed* of vhlci
aebovlodg•d, has •nd by then preen" does granS bargain, and convey unta tbe Grantee in fee •Imp",

Tavuhip,
certain lat or preal of land •lt11Rted in the Clty at

County, North CaroEin• gnd more particularly deserib.d •Stollows:

Ail ot 27 and 29 an ehom on tha nap entitled, "Ylidvood
Section II", prepared by Williaa Works, •dated January 1977,
recorded in Plat Cabinet l. Page 73, County Registry.

This conveyance is made eubåece to those covennes and
reserictions as see out in iagtru.ene dated February 22, 1978,

and recorded In Book 287, Page 774, Lee County Registry.

property conveyed •ubject to Ehe Eolioving

(a) . For the Wilduood Subdivision Water Line which
thi Grantee assu.eg and agrees co pay in fuli aa a eoneideraeion

tor this conveyance.

(b) Pro rata 'haze of ad valoru• taxes fron and after Kay LSD 1994,
vhich Grantee asstnes and agraøø to pay Euii a coneid•ratioa

for thig conveyaac•.



BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019
Regular Meeting
Page 283 of 373

B534
019?

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 283 of 373

BOOK 534e7CE197

property described acquired b' Grantor by Innrum•nt recorded in ...4.9.Q.k..2.9.ä*...P.ge.

L" Coyngy..

Registry.A showing tbe decrlbed meordea Plat gw..Geb$geC..

TO HAVE AND TO -HOLD the •foreaåd lot or parget of land and •II privileges and •ppunnanees Wuuglng
tee

And the Grantor covenants with the Grantee, that Grantor •eiged of 'he premises In tee •Imp", bas right conv.
In fu that marteable ua tree •nd clear of all enegmbr•nen, ud tb•t ud

"fond the tltl. l•vrui et•imt of per.ou• whonwever •nept for the exceptions hereinattee stated.
te th •ereloabov• deerlbed i' cub$ect the following •zeeptloa•:

•r u e•rpanu

Donaid W. Gree

AtTUTt

Sedi

ILLINOIS

OFFIC;AL SEAL •t •teem*
MARY t. cox _

•etcekl •r

4æ-.2.2„zt2L.-.....:-

cnouxa.

before b

or DUDS '0B.



BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019
Regular Meeting
Page 284 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 284 of 373

ITEM

LEE COUNTY AGENDA ABSTRACT VII. C.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
(Use the Down or Up Arrows to move bebveen fields of the Form)

MEETING DATE: August 19, 2019

SUBJECT: Consideration of Resoluüon requesting NCDOT allocation of funding for the realignment of
Kelly Drive to support pedestrian safety in and around Cenfral Carolina Community College.

DEPARTMENT: Governing Body

CONTACT PERSON: Amy Dalrymple, Chair

TYPE: Consent Agenda Action Item Public Hearing Information

REQUEST

BUDGET IMPACT
NITACHMENTS

PRIOR BOARD ACTION

RECONNENDATION

Consider Resoluüon requesting NCDOT allocation of funding for the realignment
of Kelly DÅve to support pedestrian safety in and around Central Carolina
Communi Colle e.

Resoluüon

Adopted Resolution 10-5-15 endorsing the road improvement recommendations

provided by TARPO which included Kelly Drive, voted to send letter of support
on 12-5-16 to move Kelly Drive using the safest possible design due to the
increasing concern about pedestrian traffic in front of the Community College,

Adopted Resolution on 6-19-17 endorsing TARPO project list developed for
consideration in NC DOT prioritization the Kelly Drive project named as
Lee County's fl.rst priority, on 2-9-18 directed County Manager to send letter to

Division Engineer for Division 8 of NCDOT regarding a request for reallocation
of funds to fund the Kelly Drive project, on 5-7-18 approved the road

improvement rankings recommended by the Lee County Transportation

Committee ranking H150148 — SR 1521 (Kelly Drive) form SR 1519 (Nash St) to
northeast of Central Carolina Community College campus to realign Kelly Drive
to bypass CCCC as a top priority on the list, and named the Kelly DHve project as
a goal during discussion with Senator Jim Burgin and Representafre John Sauls at
the Board's lannin retreat on anuarv 31, 2019.
Ado t as resented.

SUMNHRY
The Board of Commissioners have continuously expressed concern and have issued requests to NC DOT to
address the safety hazard to pedestrian traffic along Kelly Drive in front of Cenfral Carolina Community

College. With the completion of the new Health Sciences Center, Veterinary Medical Technology facility,

plans to begin construction on a large anitnal facility, and anticipated projects related to a library and Lee

Early College facility, the hazard to pedestrian traffic is a growing concern. The proposed Resolution has

been requested to send to legislators, NCDOT and the Secretary due to the timing of

upcoming construction projects that could work to collaborate with NCDOT to address the realignment of
Kelly Drive.

Fom Updated August 2, 2017 Page 1 of 1



BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019
Regular Meeting
Page 285 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 285 of 373

RESOLUTION REQUESTING PRIORITIZATION OF TRANSPORTATION FUNDING FOR THE
REALIGNMENT OF KELLY DRIVE

WHEREAS, the realignment of Kelly Drive to bypass Central Carolina Community College (CCCC)

consistently ranks as the highest transportation project priority amongst local county officials; and,

WHEREAS, Lee County is a member of the Triangle Area Rural Planning Organization (TARPO) that is

responsible for developing a transportation project list for priority consideration to be evaluated by the North

Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT); and,

WHEREAS, the Lee County Board of Commissioners (the Board) has consistently supported efforts by

TARPO that prioritize the realignment of Kelly Drive in their list of road improvement recommendations to the

NCDOT including Board Resolutions passed in 2015 and 2017 endorsing TARPO's project recommendation

list that included the Kelly Drive project as Lee County's highest priority; and,

WHEREAS, Kelly Drive, which bi-sects the CCCC campus, is a primary and frequently used roadway

connection between the 421 Bypass and Horner Boulevard (HWY 421/87) through the City of Sanford; and,

WHEREAS, in 2018, the completion of new facilities and the expansion of programs offered at CCCC has

significantly increased traffic on and thru campus, which increases the safety risk to growing pedestrian traffic

as students frequently cross over Kelly Drive to access classrooms and parking; and,

WHEREAS, CCCC plans additional facility expansions with the Large Anima! Vet Tech Facility construction

starting later in 2019 and proposed projects for a new Library and Lee Early College classrooms that will

further exacerbate growing safety concerns related to increased vehicular and pedestrian traffic on and thru

campus; and,

WHEREAS, design and development plans for approved and prospective campus expansion projects may

include funding support for the Kelly Drive realignment project; and,

WHEREAS, the Board strongly believes the realignment of Kelly Drive to bypass the CCCC campus is

essential to preserve the safety of CCCC students and faculty, as well as the safety of drivers in Lee County
that use Kelly Drive.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Lee County Board of Commissioners requests that the

NCDOT allocate funding as soon as possible to support the realignment of Kelly Drive in Lee County.

Adopted this day of

Chairman

2019.

Attest:

Clerk to the Board



BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019
Regular Meeting
Page 286 of 373

„o.i.coc.vj.

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 286 of 373

ITEM

VIII. A.

LEE COUNTY AGENDA ABSTRACT
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING

(Use the Down or Up Arrows to move between fields of the Form)

MEETING DATE: August 19, 2019

SUBJECT: Preliminaryjune 2019 Financial Report

DEPARTMENT: Finance

CONTACT PERSON: Lisa G. Minter, Assistant County Manager/ Finance Director

TYPE: Consent Agenda Action Item Public Hearing Information

REQUEST
BUDGET IMPACT
ATTACHMENTS

N/A — Information onl
N/A

Preliminary Monthly Financial Report for the Month Ended June 30, 2019;
monthly sales tax distribution; historical analysis of sales tax; county-wide historical
anal is of sales tax

PRIOR BOARD ACTION N/A
RECOMMENDATION N/A

SUrvfMARY

Attached is the preliminary monthly financial report for June 2019. Please remember that sales tax revenues run three

months behind. 'Ihere are also other revenues and expenditures felated to FY 2018-2019 that vill be booked between
now and mid-August. At this time, we are at 102.58% of out ad valorem tax budget. At this time, there are no
departments exceeding their budgets.

Sales tax reports are attached sh0Ming revenues received through May 2019 collections. We are still tracking well
against our budget figures and are seeing growth in the 5-6% range.



BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019
Regular Meeting
Page 287 of 373

* * o O

00

00

00

O
e

e

o

o

00

oo

00

O

00

00

O

00

00

00

90

00

m

m

c

00

00

•o

00

90

00

00

00

00

00

0

$0

00

00

00

90
00

90

00

oo

00

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 287 of 373

0
06

00

00

90

00

90

00

0

00

00

2
t.3å

-.2 LL



BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019
Regular Meeting
Page 288 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 288 of 373

e

90
00

O

O

00

00

O
o

00

oa

00
00

00

00

eel

00

oo

o

O

0

o

o

o

O

0

00

90

00

00

8

00

06

e

00

00

00m
00

0

90

00

00

O

o

m

0

8

00

•o

0

9

oo

00

00

0

8

50 E



BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019
Regular Meeting
Page 289 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 289 of 373

oe

e
00

o

00

O

O

c

00

01

O

O

o

6



BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019
Regular Meeting
Page 290 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 290 of 3730)

10

0)

0)

cd

N

O

O

00

00

O

O

0)

N

0)

O

00

00

00

(0

N 00

0)

N N

0.1

oo-

...J

0)

N

o

o

0)

05

od

o

ooO

co

co

co

00

co

(0

0)

6

6
0)

0

06
oo

o

10

0)
0)

00
05

00

eo

O

o

00

6

00 0

GO

10

10 oo

00

oo

0)

0)
o

00

oOza

00 00

o

0)

c



BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019
Regular Meeting
Page 291 of 373

10

1.0

8

gag
0

8-

cei

u'

05 -

05

n O

o
2

10

6

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 291 of 373

a;

m_

8

8

8

o

O

10

6

Of ai

In 8

o



BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019
Regular Meeting
Page 292 of 373

6

m

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 292 of 373

N

z
o"

8

8

€6

O

o

N

N

N

LD

O

n

N

N

N

1.6

***

LO

N

O

O
1.0

10

O

00

1.0

o

6

00

Ln

O

N

o

o

8
6

CO

8

LO

6

o
6

O

O

O

LOE

0-4

05

o



BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019
Regular Meeting
Page 293 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 293 of 373

ITEM

LEE COUNTY AGENDA ABSTRACT VIII. B.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
(Use the Down or Up Arrows to move between fields of the Form)

MEETING DATE: August 19, 2019

SUBJECT: county Manager's Monthly Report for August 2019.

DEPARTMENT: Adminis&adon

CONTACT PERSON: Dr. John Crumpton, county Manager

TYPE: Consent Agenda Action Item Public Hearing Information

REQUEST
BUDGET IMPACT

ATTACHIvfENTS

Coun

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7

PRIOR BOARD ACTION N/A
RECONffENDATION

Nian er's Monthl R ortfor the month of Au st 2019

Monthly Report for August 2019

Building PM Weekly Report — Raleigh Executive Jetport
TARPO Update
OSFM NC Department of Insurance Letter
Monthly Tax Collections Report for July 2019
Parks and Recreation Agenda July 2019
Monthl Permit R Oftfor ul 2019

SUIvfffARY

The County Manager has provided his monthly report for the month of August 2019.

Form Updated August 2.2017 Page 1 of 1



BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019
Regular Meeting
Page 294 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 294 of 373

County Manager's Report — August 19, 2019

Ongoing Projects

Courthouse Renovations Projects — We have received revised cost estimates for the
Courthouse renovation projects. I have asked Moseley Architects to revisit the

renovations of the main courthouse building due to it being extremely over budget. Two
factors are influencing the cost of the project. First, construction inflation over the last

three years of planning for this project has increased greatly. Second, the addition of

security measures for all facilities due to the response from the District Attorney and
Sheriff has increased costs greatly. As I stated before, the $3,000,000 budgeted for this
facility was a very small amount for what needed to be constructed in all the buildings.
Inflation and security will cause us to consider borrowing more funds for this project.

Kiwanis Family Park Projects - The City of Sanford and their consultant have inducted
to us via email that they plan to open the splash pad and all other improvements by August
30. The intent of the City is to have a big Labor Day weekend planned in the park. They
also plan to keep the splash pad open through September.

Lee County Government Parks and Recreation Plans — Withers and Ravenel is

completing the construction plans for Kiwanis Family Park, Horton Park, O. T. Sloan Park

and Temple Park. We anticipate that these projects will be out to bid the next 30 to 45
days. Construction should begin in the fall and be completed by late spring. Again, just
like the Courthouse Project, construction inflation has affected these projects. We expect
the revised plans to come in on budget — a combined $2 million.

Airport Terminal Building — the building should be completed in early September. The
facility is a high quality project for the Airport. The Airport Authority is trying to find a date
in October for an open house/grand opening. That date should be finalized by the end of
August. All Commissioners will be invited to attend this event.

Other Items

Legislative Bills of Interest — The Legislature and Governor are still at an impasse over
the FY 2019-20 and FY 2020-21 -biennium budget. Again, the impacts are minimal in the
short term for Lee County Government. Most of the programs we share responsibility
with the State (Health and Human Services) will continue at the prior fiscal year levels.
The Board of Education is being impacted by the impasse. The school system has not
been able to offer annual contracts to some non-teacher positions and operational
budgets at each school have not been communicated to Principals. S681 is one bill the

Legislature has been working on that impact counties. The bill supports counties ability
to authorize, subject to voter approval, an additional local options sales and use tax at
either % cent or 1/2 cent within sales tax caps. For additional updates, please read your
legislative briefings that are sent to you each Friday from the NCACC legislative staff.



BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019
Regular Meeting
Page 295 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 295 of 373

Opioid Crisis — We were notified last week that First Health has received a 3-year grant
totaling $1 million to address the Opioid Crisis in Lee County. Our Health Department is
engaged with First Health to assist in administering the grant. As we learn more about the
services that will be offered through this grant, we will report to the Commissioners at
future meeting.

Tramway Rural Fire Department Each Department in Lee County is

reviewed/inspected by the State Department of Insurance periodically to review

operations for their fire rating. After reading this report, I thought it was important to begin
sharing these reviews with the Commissioners so that they can see the value the citizens
of Lee County are receiving for the tax dollars they spend for fire service. We have
excellent departments and the attached report shows that Tramway has been working
hard.

Reports

Tax Report — Attached please find the Tax Collection Summary Report for July.

Parks and Recreation — Agenda for July.

Building Inspections Report — The July Building Inspections Report is attached.

Upcoming Meetings/Events:

August 22 to 24, 2019 — North Carolina Association of County Commissioners Annual
Conference in Guilford County.

September 16, 2019 — Commissioners Regular Meeting — 6:00 pm.

October 7, 2019 — Commissioners Regular Meeting — 6:00 pm.

October 21 , 2019 — Commissioners Regular Meeting — 6:00 pm.



BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019
Regular Meeting
Page 296 of 373SANFORD

CONTRACTORS

Form Reference

Owned By

Date

Status

Project Name

Project Reference

Project Address

Location

Project

Report Date

Prepared By

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 296 of 373

Building - PM Weekly Report

Ty Graning (SCI Building Division)

8/8/2019 8:48:01 PM

Opened

50-0026 Raleigh Executive Jetport

50-0026

50-0026 Raleigh Executive Jetport

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

1B

Check Item

Site Constuction

Concrete

Masonry

Metals

Woods & Plastics

Thermal & Moisture Protecion

Openings

Finishes

Specialties

Equipment

Fumishings

Special Construcion

Conveying Systems

Plumbing & Mechanical

Elecb•ical

Public Utilities

Code Inspections

Planned, Not Performed

50-0026 Raleigh Executive Jetport

8/8/2019

Ty Graning

Details

Prepped & poured front sidewalk and concrete under porte cochere.
Graded drive isles to stone base subgrade.

Installed wood base & trim, check in counter, continued countertops,
templated for check in counter.

Continued installing ACM Panels

Installed more glass.

Started wallpaper installation, continued painting, continued tile work.

Completed fireplace instatlaüon.

WII install booster pump 8-9-19.

Started AV rough in, continued electrical trim out.

Next Week's Activities

Continue ACM panels, coninue wallpaper, continue AV rough in, set plumbing fixtures, install stone base for pavement, start irrigation, start
observation floor coating, start LVT installation

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

Check Item

Any Schedule Delays?

Any Weather Days?

Any QC Obserætjons Made?

Areas Unavailable For Work0

Any Outstanding Issues?

Any RFIs?

Any Forhcoming COs?

Yes / No

No

Yes

No

No

No

No

No

Description

Substantial rain Wednesday night

Any incidents on site this week? No

FI. 141458: Building - PM Weekly Report (version 3) Page 1 of 2



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 297 of 373SANFORD

Additional Photos

3/8/2019 PM

Additional Notes

8/8/2019 PM 8/8/2019 PM

Fl. 141458: Building - PM Weekly Report (version 3)

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 297 of 373

Page 2 of 2



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 298 of 373

Jennifer Gamble

Subject:

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 298 of 373

M: [EXTERNAL]Update from local staff TARPO Meeting

From: .montgomerv@sanfordnc.net <david.montgomery@sanfordnc.net>

Sent: Thursday, August 8, 2019 3:53 PM

To: Hal Hegwer <hal.hegwer@sanfordnc.net>; John Crumpton <icrumpton@leecountync.gov>; Marshall Downey
<marshall.downev@sanfordnc.net>; Victor Czar <victor.czar@sanfordnc.net>

Subject: [EXTERNAL]Update from locat staff TARPO Meeting

C A U ION:
ail. Do not click links or open utiless veritiecE. Send all sus icious email

as an attach nn ent to

just was at the local staff TARPO Meeting this morning and wanted to update all of you on several NCDOT projects that
have serious consequences regarding their timeline and for one project, local funding.

The Draft 2000-2029 released in January has recently been revised and is slated to be approved by the NC Board of

Transportation in September 2019. The reasoning for the revisions as explained to us are two-fold: 1) there seems to be

cost overruns of projects throughout the state, and 2) uncertainty of future federal funding. The following Lee County

projects have been affected (please note we were not the only County in TARPO affected by the change):

1) R-3830 (NC42/Broadway Rd Improvements) — construction pushed back from FY20 to FY21. No surprise here as
this was expected.

2) U-5727 (US 1 superstreet in Tramway, Bryan Dr to Carthage St and relocation of Tramway Rd) — ROW pushed
back from FY19 to FY22; construction pushed back from FY20 to FY25. This would push back any

commercial/residential development of that southeast corner of Tramway Road and USI another 5 years.
3) U-5975 (US 1 superstreet in Tramway, White Hill Rd to Bryan Dr) — ROW/Utilities pushed back from FY20 to

FY22; construction pushed back from FY21 to FY25. This would delay improvements to the congestion around
Grace Christian School.

4) U-5709 (Carthage St. improvements in Sanford, Wicker St to Fire Tower Rd) - ROW/Utilities pushed back from

FY19 to FY20; construction pushed back from FY21 to FY24. Obviously this would affect how we planned to use
the CitVs bond money and the County's contribution currently being slated as a local match for the project.

In addition, NCDOT has now announced that instead of a three month delay in the Prioritization 6.0 submittal and
scoring process schedule there will now be a one year delay. As a result, the STIP resulting from P6.O will be a 2023-32
STIP rather than a 2022-31 STIP. In essence, all the new projects we want considered to be on the STIP will be delayed
by another year.

David Montgomery, AICP

Senior Planner, Long Range Planning
115 Chatham Street

Sanford, NC 27330
Ph: 919-718-4657 Ext. 5392

E-Mail: david.montgomerv@sanfordnc.net

1



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 299 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 299 of 373

RATINGS AND INSPECTIONS
Tel 919.647.0000 Fax 919.715.0063

MIKE CAUSEY, INSURANCE COMMISSIONER & STATE FIRE MARSHAL

BRIAN TAYLOR, CHIEF STATE FIRE MARSHAL

OSFM
NC DEPARTMENT OF
INSURANCE

July 15, 2019

John Crumpton

Lee County Manager
408 Summit Dr
Sanford, NC 27330

Dear John Crumpton:

Thank you for the cooperation shown to our Fire Department Rating Inspector on his recent visit to your County.
We are proud of the North Carolina Fire Service and feel that the inspections program has helped to make it
even better.

Enclosed is a summary sheet which shows the results of the updates that have been made in your County Fire
Departments. The fire departments either Did or Did Not meet the minimum requirements for a rated and
certified department in North Carolina today.

As the Inspector explained to the Chiefs of the Departments, the departments not meeting the minimum
requirements will be given 12 months to meet the minimum requirements. The departments, however, are
expected to make an attempt to meet these requirements as soon as they possibly can, depending on the extent
of the reasons they did not pass. The Inspector will be committed to assist your departments for the next 12
months as needed to meet these requirements.

The intention of this inspection plan is not to withdraw the fire department rating if the personnel are making a
sincere attempt to comply to the requirements. However, if after the 12 months from the date of this letter, the
department has failed to comply and no effort has been made to correct the deficiencies, then the district will
become a Class 10 or unprotected.

If we can be of assistance to you or your departments, please let me know.

Yours very truly,

Davie Summey
Supervisor of Inspections

DS/kr

Enclosure

1202 MAIL SERVICE CENTER I RALEIGH, NC 27699-1202 | WWW.NCDOI.COWOSFM



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 300 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 300 of 373

00

O

0b

0

9



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 301 of 373couv

DEPARTMENT OF
TAX ADMINISTRATION

Memo

John Crumpton, County Manager

Michael Brown, Tax Administrator

August 1, 2019

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 301 of 373

Real Property Appraisal Tel: (919) 718-4660

Personal Property Listing Tel: (919) 718-4661

Collections Tel: (919) 718-4662

P.O. Box 1968

Sanford, NC 27331

From:

Date:

Monthly Forced Collection Efforts report for July 2019

Jul 2019

Accounts researched

Wa e arnishments, Escheats and bank attachments issued
Accounts U dated with Collection info
Jul total collections all

Jul collections for coun onl GOI
Pa entA reements Im lemented
Debt Setoff Funds Received

1405

110

205

$ 1,373,287.94

2

$91.03



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 302 of 373

l.

Ill.

VI.

Vil.

Ville

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 302 of 373

MEETING
Monday July 22, 2019

5:30 P.M.

Commissioners' Meeting Room
Lee County Government Center

106 Hillcrest Drive, Sanford, NC

AGENDA

Call to Order

Approval of Minutes

Additions and/or Approval of Agenda

Petitions & Communications (public comment)

Old Business

A. Kiwanis Family Park Update

B. Master Plan Progress Update

C. Lett Family Park Update

D. Bird Pens at San-Lee Park

New Business

Director's Report

Adjournment-



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 303 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regular Meeting
Page 303 of 373

BACKGROUND NOTES

Lee County Parks & Recreation Commission Meeting

Jury 22, 2019

Summertime greetings to all of you. it has been hot but staff and participants are enjoying a good
summer so far.

Kiwanis Family Park splash pad and upgrades work remain on schedule. I keep in touch with the Sanford

Parks Administrator weekly as well as making weekly on-site visits.

WithersRavenel is continuing work on design drawings for the four parks. I have received design

drawings for Kiwanis Children's Park Place and Temple. I should receive drawings this week for Horton

and Temple Parks. I am in contact with them weekly. The next step is to get cost estimates for the
various elements.

Work began last week on installing the playground equipment at Lett Family Park. It could be a couple

or three weeks before the job is complete and ready for play. A purchase order has been approved to

paint exterior restrooms, and gables on buildings/shelter at the park. Youth baseball is underway on the

small field at the park with 9 total teams participating.

The bird pen structure has been placed and passed inspection. Staff is in the process of preparing a path

for the public to view the birds and installing weed cloth and pea gravel as an interior base for the birds.

A volunteer group from Wyeth is coming later this week to assist with this work.

Summer camps, gymnastics, swim lessons, public swim, facility rentals, and post-season

baseball/softball tournaments are keeping staff plenty busy. That's a good thing.

Please let Judy know your attendance plans. Hope to see all of you there.

John P



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 304 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

o > N > r Meeting
04 of 3

>

0

o

o

z

m mom O

• xmx
z z oz02Znna

Ööcnrzomo

•o

z

m

0)

O O

>
o

z

o
o

00

0
a

Oo -4 o



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 305 of 373o e OZ m 0

-1

*ämäåoæaz--öé

Sm00Z0ö-o•

o Éso?Pö

3

mm 0

CDXX••

00 0 z

coo

z 2 -ozo

m

m

c
z

o

m
o

o
z

-4

x

o

o

•n

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

O

O
O

-4 62 a

O

-4



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 306 of 373

r 31

O o o morz00

z

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

ing

o

Omqc• z roz

O

3
m
o
o
z

O to

-i

O

-4

-o c

z

z



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 307 of 373

>
o

o

m

-o

O

8

> o

O

z 0
C z

O

z

0

8

o

c

o

o

O

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

0
92 c e

o
O

c

O

-4o -4 -4

o

0

x

00



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 308 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Req.yBr4,'1sewng

O

z
50

•n

2

o

o

0)

o D -40

0

o

0

0

0
C z

o

0

0

O

z

o

00

z

z

8

e

m

o

o

o

c

O
cn

o

0

o

0

m

o

00



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 309 of 37300 z O o E

9

C

00 00 E

o

00

S

3

o

August 19, 2019

0

o

o

O

0

c

z
0



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 310 of 3738

>
o

-n

>

0
o

0

m

o

8
>
o

o
o

0

00

C

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

r...RoljrA/1gebng

o
o

o

o
0

o

x

z

O

o o

o

o

-4

0

•08

0

o

O 00

-4

-o



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 311 of 373m

>
o

o
o

z
o

0

O

0

o

O

-4

o

z
o

z

01

0

m

0

e

O

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

cn

-i

o

o

o

z0

-4

-4

- - äcn0

0 Z

o

3

-4

0
g o



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 312 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regybra,'lsebng
8

>

C

o
o

0

C

o

z
o
z

o

z C

o

o

o

0

00

0)

co

0

o

00

-n

c

z

32

c

z
3

o

0

o

0

o

z

Z

m

01

z
o



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 313 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

80

C

S

0

o

m

0C

z

00

8

o

00

0C

o

o

0

o

z
o
z

0

-n

0

o

zo

O

z z

oo

-o

z

a.o

cn

O

3

-i

o

N

o

0

3
o

00



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 314 of 373

3

o

0

ö

>
o

o
0

80

o

0
C

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

z
o

z

0

o

C

0

o z
o
z

o o

co

o

01

-o

O

o

m

o

X

0

-n

o

o



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 315 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

0
C

0

0

o

-4

—1

o

o

0

o

m

9

z

0

5

c.na

01

O

-n > o

z

3

rn..{i

O
00

a.

r.n

z

a o

o



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 316 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

m

z

0
8

m

3.

z

•o

o

00

co

o

o

>

09

o

zz

•n

z

z
3

o

c

o

z

3

O

00

c

To-a

00

0 0

00

0
-1 -4o



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 317 of 37300 0

cnö

—23m

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

*eqylgrbebng

O

(O

o

0

0
C

o

z
o

00

z

O

>

0
C

z

8

0

O

-n

0

z 0

o o

o

a:

00

o

z
o

0

00

00

z

o

z

5

a

0

-4

m

-.4

0

o
z

0

r

o z



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 318 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

R.9Q9BrW1se&fig
o

o

c

o

o
0
0

c
m

-4

3

o

-<

O

o

8
0

-4 -4 -4

O

o

o

0

0

o

o

0

m

m

o

c

o

O

01



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 319 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

oywlgr JIG ing
8

0m
o

O 00
o

z O

o

2

0
3

o

0

cnøzo —o

-omo

ooc

0

ö3ä

ooQ3

c.n

Z

c

0

o

z

c

o

o

O

0

o

z

m

0
-4



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 320 of 373

•o

m

m

Z

0

m

a.

>

0

O

m
m

o

O

O

O

0

2

m

3

0

o

0

o o

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

m

o

o

o

0

O

0 Z



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 321 of 3738

O

o

3

3

O

-4

o

o

o

z
m

0

08

z

— com

g cno

tn

a

om

z

0

m

m

0

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

.Beælgr

O

m

O

Z

> zen

O
0

•o

o

O

oza

m O

O

zen

o

o

o

0

c

O

m

3

-1 -4

o

0

O

a

O z

O



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 322 of 373

0

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

z

9ä-f

o

0

>

-n

o
z

z

2

O

o

m

o

o

O

z

m

m

a

o

o

O

m

Z

•o

8

O

0

> g i 00

-4

o

o

z

o

m

a

m

m

-n

0

z

o

m

o

0
o

o

m

o

•n

0
O

c
o

o

0
Z Z 0

o



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 323 of 373

> >

0

(0 m
m

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

r Fetingm

O

0)

8
a

O

o

O

m

O

O

0

3

o

m

m

0

o

-4

o O

o

m

m

o

0

O

O

o

0
o

m

O

m

m

O

O

0)

o
0.0 a 0)



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 324 of 373

m

O

o

O

>

0

o

0

m
m 8 8

•o

3

> z

m

o

ozo

m o

O

0

o m

o

o

Oo

O

0

o

o

0

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

UeetinB

z

•o

m

z
-4 -4 -4

0

o o



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 325 of 3738

>

m

z

ozo

m
m

o

8

(D

m

8

m

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

#eælgr

0

z

-4

c

8

Om

0

z

m

2.

0
m

m

00

O

o

o

0

0

m

o

z

O

O

m

o

m o

c

m

O

0

00
oo

O

-z

O

0
0 -4

0

O

(D

o



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 326 of 373m

0

0

9

O

-4

3

m

m

-o

>

O

o

o

o

o

m

>

m

Z

>

z

o zen

2.

oza

O

m

m

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

m

0

0

m

m

o

8

o

m

m

z

09

00

o

O

O

o

m

o

o

o

0

Z

O
o o

o o

O

o

—l

00



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 327 of 373

0

3

m

m

O 00

0
3

o

m

z

z

m

m

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

-5evlgrBebnß

m

ozo

m

o

0o

o

o

o

O

o

o

3

0

m

>

o

2

0

o

m

o

-n

z
o



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 328 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

>

ozo
O

z

mm

-.4

o

2

O

o

m

o

O

m

m o
0

>

m

Z

•o

o

0

o

o

c

c.n

Z

o

0

0

Z



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 329 of 373

0

m

o

o

o

o

m

o

c

0

o

o

o

0

Z

m

c

N

8

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

#eælgr

ozo

o O

o

o

O

o

o

O

o

m

m

O

o

0

m

o

o

o

o

m

m

>

O

o

o

m

m

m

o

>

O

o

o

O

O

m

m

o

o

c



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 330 of 373

o

GO

c

0
O

8

n
O

Z

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

o

m
0

Z

0

m

0

n

G)

m

m

8
o

O

0

O

o

o

m

z

m

>

o

o

0

Z

c

z

o

O

o

o

Z

ozo

o o

m

O

o

o

o

O

o

O

m

-4



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 331 of 373

m

m

mo
0

o

O

O

71
3

O

0

o 0

o

O Z

-o

0
O

00

o

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Z

m

z
o

z

o

O

m

m

o

o

0

cn m

m

00

2

O

o
00

C

O

o zoo

m

o

O

c

m o



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 332 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

O

80 s

0

z

o

-o

m

m

>

3

0

g m

m

m

o

o

m

z

—l

00

0

Z

m

m

Z

0.)

Z o

c

m

m

o

o

o

O

O

O

m

o

O

m

2

o

o

a
-4



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 333 of 373

0

o zen

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

9

m

oo

mo

O

O

m

m

O

o

O

m

>

O

m

m

o

o

O

0

o

o

>
O

o

z

o

c

o

m

00

o

o

N

m

m

O

o

>

O

zzen
3
0
o o

m

05 •

o

0

o

0)

o

-4



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 334 of 373

m

z

m

>

m
3

o

N

-1
o

m m

0

-o
O

0

z

o
z

ozeo

om

O

m

a.

00 0

09

0

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Re%llar Meetin

0gra

m

m

>

O

o

m

o

0

o

0

m

m

m

O

o

z
o

O

o

co

0 z

-.4

c

0 o



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 335 of 3738

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

70

co

2

O

o

-o

m

m

o

O

o

O

0
o

m

z

o

m

m

c

o

O

m

ä

-4

o

m

m

O

O

cn

O

o

c

0 a

3

20 a

O

0

o

O

0

a

00 0

m soo -4



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 336 of 373

m

Z

m

o

o

•o m

m

m
o

0

O

— 22.

o
o

co

o

O

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

0

3

0

m

m

>

-o

z

ozo

O

o
3

o

0

O

O

m

m

00

O0

o

o

o

-n

z

m

m

O

o

c o

o

c

m o o

-4



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 337 of 373

•o

••

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Azo__ m nm

0

•o

z

m

0)

o

0

z

o

m

0

Z o

O

—1

z

o

0

0

m

o

0

O
5

o

0O m0 z

o

z0

0

o

2



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 338 of 373

o 3

m

O
m

Z

3
O

o

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

m

z

0

0

o tn

0

m o

O

z

m

o

0
-4

a

o

O

0
o

0

O

00

OO

-4

0

O

O

0

o

z
0)

m

>

O

m

2

OO O

0
0

m

z

9-0

o

c

00



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 339 of 3738

C o

o

O

n

G)

V)

m

o

3

m

3

m

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

— _ 3CoB37E

z
o

m

m ozo

0

o

O

o

o

z

m o

0

m

m o
0 O

o

-n

0

a

0

m

m

O

O

o

O

o 0o

O

.00



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 340 of 373

o
> Z

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

z
o

-4

m

ozo

0
m

mO

o

0

o

0)

o

o

Om

m

O

O

o

a

0 -4 -4

01

o

0

—l

o

•n

0

a

o



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 341 of 373

o
8

OTä>N

0

5

0

o

oza

o

0

o

m

O

o

a

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019
Regul r Meetin

N

z

oza

o

0

z

O

0

z

o
o0

0

3

o

0

o

n

o
0)

o
O

c

-4

z
m

-o

o

m

X

o

c

o

o

0

z

o

o

z



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 342 of 373m

o o

0

O

cn

0

-n

0)

o

-o

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

O

3

C

o

O

0

O

o

z

O

0

o

oz

-4

Z

z

o

z

a

O

0

o

o
o

O

o

00

•o

0

C

O

-4

o

0

o

x

3

-n

0

•o

a

0

o

c

00

3

0 z
soa —1



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 343 of 373o o

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019
> r Me tinc

3

O m

O

>

O

0

o

z

Oz

—1

o

o

N

Z

o

O

O

o
o

0

0

o

z

e

0

Z

o

o

c

O
3

9

O

-n

0O O

o

z

O

o
o

0

•o
o

o

a.

0)

o

o



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 344 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

8
o 8O

o

0

0

o

0

3

G)

z

o

z

o
o

a

o
3

o

0

C o

O
o

o

•n

c o

o

c

00

0 0
0



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 345 of 373o o

00 0

-4

x

c

O
z

(D

o
O

O
Z

C

00o

3
o

Z

o

o

o
O

O

z

o

o

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

cn

a

O

Z

o

o

o c

-1



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 346 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

ßG*lBrL/1geUp
8

o
o

o

o

c

o

a

01

00

0

2
O

3

8

oz
0

o

o

0

3.

z

6

m

o

O

o

C o

0

m

z

3

o

60 0

C

Z

o
o

o

o

0
-4

o

-4

9

O

c

01

0



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 347 of 373

0
>
-o

O

m

>

-o

o

o

z

o
O

oz

O

0

o

c

8o

o

c

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

oz

o
m

O

a

O

O

O

o

-n

-1

C

m

O

o

O

-n

0

a

8

0 0



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 348 of 3730 00 m 00 o m

c
o

x

o

z

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

z

O

C

O

o

m

>

o

0

o

o

z

C

0

O

c

-1 -1

o

00

No

o

3

* O
O

Z

o

o

00

00 n

•n

0
-4



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 349 of 373

0

z

m

Z

o

8

o

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

> laeMq9t9*

0

o

C

-o

Z

z

>

0

0

o

-n

O

Om

z

o
o

o

z

z

$ go

o

z

o

z

3

o
o

3

o

3

m

o

00

o

-4 o
0



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 350 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

O o

0

o

O
m

0
z

0)

-4

-4

z

o

-4

o

z
m o

z

o

Z

z

zO

m

o

o

O

Z

O
o

o

o

o

c

C

m

o

o

o

co

O

0

0 c

-40 00

o

o

0

o



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 351 of 3738

o

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

o > N > r Meetinc

z

o
0

C

z

O

o

2

0

o
a tn

0

m

0

o

8

3

m

3 0



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 352 of 373

o

O

8 0 70

00
0

o z

0

0
C

0
O O

Z

o

a

>

o

0

x

z

o

3

0

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Regylar Meetin

can

o
0

0
o 08



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 353 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

lar Me tin

8

o z

o

z

o

0
C

o

C

0

o

0

0

Z

o

0

o

800

C

Z

z

o

-4

n

o

o

cn (D

-4
o o -4 o



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 354 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

8 8

2

0

0

o

o

0

o

o

C

z

X

o

o

C

z

O

c

O

o

co

9.

O

o

z

X o



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 355 of 37388

00 .

•o

o

o m
o

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

DO

02

>

O

o

o

o
o

c

o

X

o

N
o

-q

O o

0

>

O

o

Z

o

o

o

o

o

0)

-4

0

-4 -1
o



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 356 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

m

o

c

0
8

>

O

z

G)

-4>

O

0

-do

o

o

o

0
o

z

X

D

o
o

c

3

0

-4O

o

x

o

o

o

c

o

c

0
o o o



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 357 of 373

a. 2.

0
0

>

m

m

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

o

-n

o

z

o n

z

00
0

o

o

a

o

0

•o

o

o

O

Ili

0
G) o

o

o

o

o

o o



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 358 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019
Regular Meetin

0

00 0

3

-4

z
0
-n

m o

z

00

>

oo

o

O

m

o

O

O

o

z

e

>

00

o

O

m

z

o

0

-4

o

0

o

c



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 359 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

o

o

8

z
n poe =

90 N o c k

>

Z

O

C)

3.

o

8

9

0

•o

G)

z

o

O

o

CD

O

0

z

>

o

m
0

o

z

m 0

O

o
0

o



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 360 of 373o

60
O

0) co

c

o

8

z

>

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

$$*lIgr011gebn

2
o

O

C

0
o

o

o

o

o

z

o
o

C
m

m

8

o

0C

o
a
o



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 361 of 373

>

3

z
o

o

C

•o

o

8

0

Z

o

z

o

0

O

>

O

z

o

z
O

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

0

ø

O

o

0 z
o

0
o



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 362 of 3738

0
0

0

Z

m o o

o

o

o

m
o c o

0

c

o

z

00

cn

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

z

z

0
-4



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 363 of 373

z

o

z

o

z

-n

z

o

z

z

z

z

3
o

0

z

-1

0

z

z

z

z

z

z
3

z

0
o

z

0

z

z

3

x

z

0

N

o

8

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

Mge

00

o

oz-
0 m

-4

c

•o

m
o

z
n

o

c

o

-4

z

a

o

0

o

z

o

c

0 z
-4 -40



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 364 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

8

-4

(0

o

o

o

O

Z

o

O

O

8

o
G)

o

(n

0
z

0

o
z

oc

z

0

o

O o

o

co

0

o

o

o

c

o

o_äi
O

o

-4



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 365 of 3730

00 0

-o

z

>

c

z

Z

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

egng

oo

o

-4 -4 -1



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 366 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

8

-o

8
c9

o

aa
-4

0

CD

o

0

3

o

o

a

-4

a

m o

•o

3

O

o

-4

-4

o

m

0

O

90

z

O

-4
z
o0



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 367 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

>

0

N

O
o 9

m

o

3

zz

0

-o

o

c

o 0
-8

-a

o

O

0

o

0
o

O

c

o

0

5-0

-1

0

O

m

0

3

00

o

Z
• 00



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 368 of 373

•o

c m

00

O

m

c

a.

cn

o

>

z

0

o cn

z

p

0

0

0 o

c
o

z

o

o

0

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

0

o
3

-4o

0
o O



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 369 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

O 3190

O

3

o

o

Z

-o

cn

c

o

00

0

0

O
3

m

O oo
09

cn 6.2

0
-1 —1

z

z
o

a

o

o

O

o



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 370 of 373o

O

a

8
•o

0

o

C

8

O
o

z

o
O

o

C

o
o

o

c

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

0

o

o

m
-o

o

z

o

0

o

•o

.4

0
-4



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 371 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

z > N Beguler Mgevng
z

00
O

o

D

o

O

0

-n

z

r

z
O

o

z
o

O z
G)

ö

Z 0

C

3

O

-40

z
o

m

m

0

D

D x

o

o

z

o

z

o
-4

z
o

z
o

o

z
o

z

0

00

Z 0



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 372 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

2.

0

o z

Z

r

z
O

z

o

o

z

o z

0

o

-n

0

0

-4

3

z

9

0C

z
o

0

O

m

o

r

o

o

Z

o

o

r

O

o o

zo

o

Oz
-4
0

9
0

0

-4

z 0
C

-4

z Z
o



BOC Agenda 
August 19, 2019 
Regular Meeting 
Page 373 of 373

BOC Agenda
August 19, 2019

e ardv1aeV'10

z


	AGENDA - 8-19-19  Regular Meeting - CS
	AGENDA Backup 8-19-19
	II. A. Minutes from teh 7-15-19 Regular Meeting
	II. B. Minutes from teh 7-15-19 Closed Session Meeting
	II. C. Tax Release and Refund Report for July 2019
	II. D. Sheriff Vehicle Purchase Dodge Chargers
	II. E. Sheriff Vehicle Purchase
	II. F. Senior Services Vehicle Replacement
	II. G. Renewal of ATM Lease Agreement
	II. H. NCAPHA Staffing Agreement
	II. I. General Services Sand Pro Purchase
	II. J. Audit Contract Amendment
	II. K. Resolution - Flex Benefits
	II. L. Resolution - HRA
	II. M. Budget Amendment
	II. N. State Aid Application
	II. O. Tar Heel Legislature Delegate
	II. P. Disaster Debris Management Services Contract
	II. Q. BOH Appointment - Charity Dodson
	III. A. Proclamation Girls 8 U Team
	IV. A. Public Hearing Zoning Amendment Eakes Rd
	IV. B. Public Hearing - UDO Public Works Certification
	IV. C. Public Hearing - Airport Overlay District
	IV. D. NC DOT Grant - COLTS
	IV. E. Public Hearing - ED
	VII. A. Interlocal Agreement with Chatham County RE Broadband
	VII. B. Property Purchase -Wildwood Drive
	VII. C. Kelly Drive
	VIII. A. June 2019 Financial Report
	VIII. B. CM Monthly Report Aug 2019




